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BEFORE 
THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO 

In the Matter of the Joint Application ) 
of Bell Atlantic Corporation and GTE) 
Corporation for Consent and ) Case No. 98- -̂TP-UNC 
Approval of a Change in Control ) 

JOINT APPLICATION 

Bell Atlantic Corporation ("Bell Atlantic") and GTE Corporation ("GTE") (collectively, 

the "Joint Applicants") hereby make this Application pursuant to Revised Code Section 4905.402, 

and request the approval of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio of a transaction whereby 

GTE vnll become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bell Atlantic. As a result of this transaction. Bell 

Atlantic will acquire indirect control of GTE North Incorporated ("GTE North") a "domestic 

telephone company" as defined in Revised Code Section 4905.402. Neither Bell Atlantic nor its 

affiliates are currently affiliated with GTE or its affiliates. 

DESCRIPTION OF THE JOINT APPLICANTS 

The Joint Applicants are Bell Atlantic (which will acquire indirect "control" of GTE 

North, as that term is defined in Revised Code §4905.402(A)(1)), and GTE Corporation, the 

parent company of GTE North (GTE North, although it is not incorporated in Ohio, is still a 

domestic "telephone company," as that term is defined in Revised Code §4905.402(A)(3)). 

A. Bell Atlantic 

Bell Atlantic Corporation is a corporation created and existing under the laws of the State 

of Delaware. Its principal office is located at 1095 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New 

York 10036. Bell Atlantic's subsidiaries provide telecommunications services on a regulated and 

unregulated basis in various locations throughout the United States and in several foreign 
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countries. Bell Atlantic's regulated local telephone subsidiaries provide service in thirteen states 

and the District of Columbia. 

Although Bell Atlantic itself is not a regulated telephone company within Ohio or 

elsewhere, Bell Atlantic's local telephone subsidiaries are subject to public utility regulation in the 

states in which they operate as well as regulation by the Federal Communications Commission 

CTCC") for the interstate services they provide to end users and interexchange carriers. 

In 1997, Bell Atlantic had annual operating revenues of $30 billion. It has a strong 

balance sheet and investment-grade credit rating. Its operating companies serve approximately 

40.8 million access lines, providing in the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic. Bell Atlantic's cellular 

operations provide service to approximately 6 million customers. 

Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc. ("BACF') is an operating affiliate of Bell Atlantic 

subject to Commission jurisdiction with authority to operate as a switchless reseller of long 

distance telecommunications services throughout Ohio. NYNEX Long Distance ("NLD") d/b/a 

Bell Atlantic Long Distance is also a s\̂ dtchless reseller of long distance telecommunications 

services in Ohio. Additionally, PrimeCo Personal Communications, L.P., a company in which 

Bell Atlantic holds a substantial interest, provides wireless telecommunications service in Ohio. 

B. GTE 

GTE Corporation is a corporation created and existing under the laws of the State of New 

York, with its principal office located at 1255 Corporate Drive, Irving, Texas 75038-2518. 

GTE's subsidiaries provide telecommunications services on a regulated and unregulated basis in 

various locations in the United States and in several foreign countries. GTE's regulated 

incumbent local telephone subsidiaries provide service in 28 states, including Ohio. 



Although GTE itself is not a regulated telephone company within Ohio or elsewhere, 

GTE's incumbent local telephone subsidiaries, or operating companies, are subject to public utility 

regulation in the states in which they operate as well as regulation by the FCC for the interstate 

services they provide to end users and interexchange carriers. GTE North is such a local 

telephone subsidiary. 

In 1997, GTE had annual operating revenues of $23 billion. It has a strong balance sheet 

and investment-grade credit rating. Its operating companies serve approximately 22.3 million 

access lines throughout the country. GTE's cellular operations provide service to 4.6 million 

customers and its long distance operations provide service to almost 3 million customers. 

GTE has the following regulated subsidiaries in Ohio: 

1. GTE North 

GTE North provides local telephone service, access service, and intraLATA toll service 

between its own exchanges and the exchanges of other local telephone companies. As noted 

above, GTE North is a "domestic telephone company" within the meaning of Revised Code 

§4905,402. 

2. Other GTE Affiliates 

In addition to GTE North, GTE has several other subsidiaries that are authorized by the 

Commission to provide regulated services in the State of Ohio ("the other GTE Affiliates"): 

• GTE Communications Corporation ("GTECC." formerly known as GTE Card Services, 

Inc. d^/a GTE Long Distance) is a switchless reseller of long distance 

telecommunications services. GTECC obtained authority to provide long distance 

services throughout Ohio in Case No. 96-252-CT-ACE, filed its final tariffs effective 

August 22, 1996, and is the holder of Certificate No. 90-5679. Although GTECC also 



provides competitive local exchange service in certain states, it does not provide 

competitive local exchange service anywhere in Ohio. 

• GTE Wireless Affiliates, specifically, GTE Mobihiet of Ohio LP, GTE Mobilnet of 

Cleveland Incorporated, and Ohio RSA # 3 LP (providing cellular telephone service in 

northeastern Ohio) and GTE Wireless of the Midwest Incorporated (providing personal 

communications service in southeastern Ohio) have been providing competitive wireless 

communications services in Ohio for several years. 

• GTE Telecommunication Services Incorporated ("GTE TSI") is a switchless reseller of 

long distance telecommunications services in Ohio. 

As is apparent fi-om the descriptions of Bell Atlantic and GTE subsidiaries in Ohio, there is 

some overlap with respect to the companies' long distance reseller services, but none with respect 

to their core business as local exchange service carriers. Accordingly, Bell Atlantic and GTE do 

not compete against each other within Ohio to any meaningfiil extent, and do not compete at all in 

Ohio's local exchange market. 

C. Service Addresses 

Notices and other pleadings in connection with this Joint Application should be served on 

the Joint Applicants as follows: 

For BeU Atlantic: 

John Walker 
BELL ATLANTIC CORPORATION 
1710 H Street, N.W. 
11th Floor 
Washington, D.C. 20006 
(202) 392-5926 



William D. Smith 
BELL ATLANTIC CORPORATION 
1095 Avenue of the Americas 
37th Floor 
New York, NY 10036 
(212)395-6495 

Robert W.Woltz, Jr. 
BELL ATLANTIC CORPORATION 
600 East Main Street 
24th Floor 
Richmond, VA 23219 
Phone: (804)772-1595 

For GTE: 

Thomas E. Lodge, Esq. 
THOMPSON HINE & FLORY LLP 
One Colmnbus 
10 West Broad Street 
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3435 
(614)469-3200 

John Rogovin 
Jeff Carlisle 
O'MELVENY & MYERS LLP 
555 Thirteenth Street, N.W. 
Washington, DC 20004 
(202) 383-5300 

DESCRIPTION OF THE STOCK TRANSFER AND CHANGE OF CONTROL 

A. Holding Company Stock Transfer 

The mechanics of the merger of GTE and Bell Atlantic are described in the Merger 

Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 1. GTE will merge into Beta Gamma Corporation, a 

subsidiary of Bell Atlantic created solely to facilitate the merger. GTE will be the surviving 

subsidiary, and Bell Atlantic will be the surviving parent corporation. GTE's shareholders will 

receive 1.22 shares of Bell Atlantic for every share owned of GTE. 
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At closing, (i) the merged company's headquarters will be located in New York City; (ii) 

Charles R. Lee, currently Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of GTE, will become Chairman 

and co-Chief Executive Officer of the merged company; (iii) Ivan Seidenberg, currently Vice 

Chauman, President, and Chief Executive Officer of Bell Atlantic, will become President and co-

Chief Executive Officer of the merged company; and (iv) the Boards of Directors of GTE and 

Bell Atlantic will each have selected half of the new Board of Directors for the merged company. 

Until July 1, 2002, the new Board of Directors will nominate GTE and Bell Atlantic directors for 

election to maintain equality on the Board. 

For federal income tax purposes, the merger is intended to qualify as a tax-fi-ee 

reorganization under Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. Assuming the merger 

qualifies as such a reorganization, GTE shareholders will realize no gain or loss with respect to 

the exchange of their GTE shares for Bell Atlantic shares, except for cash received in lieu of 

fractional shares. Furthermore, the merger is intended to be accounted for as a pooling of 

interests transaction under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and APD Opinion 16. As 

such, Bell Atlantic will retroactively restate for financial purposes its Consolidated Financial 

Statements to include the assets, shareholder equity, and results of operations of GTE as though 

GTE and Bell Atlantic had been combined at the begiiming of all reported periods. 

Since this is a stock transaction involving the two parent corporations, with the exchange 

of voting common shares of GTE for Bell Atlantic stock, it will not be necessary for Bell Atlantic 

to issue bonds, notes, or any other form of indebtedness to finance the merger, nor will it be 

necessary to sell any assets in Ohio to consummate the merger. 



Afl:er the transaction is completed, Bell Atlantic, as the surviving parent will have 

indirectly acquired control of GTE North, but otherwise the corporate structure of GTE North, 

and its relationship to GTE, will remain unchanged. 

B. Regulatory Obligations 

Until the transaction is completed, Bell Atlantic and GTE will continue to operate as 

independent entities. The transaction will not occur until all necessary governmental and 

regulatory approvals and reviews have been obtained or completed. This process includes a 

review by the Department of Justice ("DOT'), the FCC, and a number of state commissions. 

When the transaction is completed, GTE North will remain a subsidiary of GTE. The 

authorizations and licenses currently held by the GTE North will remain in place. The transactions 

necessary to complete the merger will not change the relationship of GTE North with the 

Commission: GTE North will simply become a second-tier subsidiary of Bell Atlantic. Thus, the 

stock transaction will not entail any change in the rates, terms or conditions for the provision of 

any telecommunications services provided in Ohio. Further, no operations, lines, plants, 

franchises or permits of GTE North will merge with the lines, plants, franchises or permits of any 

Bell Atlantic entity; the transaction that is the subject of this application does not involve the 

merger of any telephone companies. 

Therefore, the parent company merger will not interfere with the Commission's 

jurisdiction nor impede the satisfaction of its public policy goals. GTE North will remain subject 

to, and will continue to meet, all of its obligations and commitments under the Commission's 

rules, regulations and decisions. 



REASONS FOR THE STOCK TRANSACTION 

Bell Atlantic and GTE are merging because, over the long-term, they can better achieve 

their goals in the increasingly competitive telecommunications environment as a combined entity. 

Although Bell Atlantic and GTE have each pursued these goals separately, the changing nature of 

the telecommunications industry within the United States makes it desirable for them to pool their 

resources and expertise. 

The telecommunications industry has changed because technology, customer expectations, 

and public policy have changed radically within the last five years. Advancing technology has 

expanded the options available to consumers, who then create a demand for new services and new 

service providers. These changes are continuing and accelerating. The Telecommunications Act 

of 1996 (the "1996 Act") and the actions of this Commission have recognized these changes and 

have, accordingly, opened the doors to competition. 

Incumbent local exchange carriers, like GTE's and Bell Atlantic's operating companies, 

must not only meet the fiiture needs of their current customers, they must also compete with the 

numerous alternative providers who are entering the marketplace. Moreover, in order to enter 

new territories and offer viable competitive services, mcumbent companies must ensure that they 

have adequate resources. 

Companies spaimmg the spectrum of sizes and services have recognized these complex 

dynamics and have taken significant steps to modify their business practices accordingly. For 

example, WorldCom has merged with UUNet, MFS, Brooks Fiber, and, most recently, MCI. 

Qwest has, within only a few years become a significant player in the telecommunications industry 

through strategic mergers, including its recent merger with LCI. Sprint has formed international 

alliances with, among others, France Telecom and Deutsche Telekom. As the Commission is also 
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aware, numerous local telephone company mergers have also taken place or are underway: 

Ameritech/SBC/SNET (currently the subject of Case No. 98-1082-TP-AMT), SBC/Pac Bell, and 

Bell Atlantic/NYNEX. Even AT&T, the largest telecommunications corporation in the United 

States, has decided that corporate mergers and alliances are essential in the new 

telecommunications environment. AT&T has bought Teleport and announced its plans to 

purchase TCI, and has formed alliances with numerous foreign carriers. 

GTE and Bell Atlantic are thus merging so they can better achieve their mutual goals in 

this changing environment. First, each company wants to ensure that, in the face of competition, 

it will remain a strong, healthy provider of basic telecommunications services in its current 

territories. Second, each company wants to be a fiilly integrated telecommunications service 

provider, able to offer business and residential customers packaged voice, data, long distance, 

video, wireless and other advanced and innovative services. Third, each company wants a 

national presence, with the ability to compete not only for business customers in hotly contested 

markets, but also for residential consumers. Competition is a goal of both companies, consistent 

with both companies' longstanding commitments to universal service. 

The merged company, operating with combined resources, management, personnel and 

technical expertise, will have more financial and operational strength than either company would 

have on its own. The merger will roughly double the size of each company, which will receive 

revenues from a widely distributed national base of customers and services. Bell Atlantic's and 

GTE's combined assets, management and persoimel will result in more efficient corporate 

operations reflecting the best practices of both companies, creating a stronger and more 

competitive merged entity. Consequently, the merged company can, over the long-term, translate 



these parent company benefits into stronger support for its operations in Ohio, thereby benefiting 

both business and residential customers. 

THE STOCK TRANSACTION AND THE PUBLIC CONVENIENCE 

A. Competition with Other Incumbent Local Telephone Companies 

Bell Atlantic's territories are concentrated in the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic, and it does 

not have the dispersed faciUties necessary to enter and compete effectively as a CLEC in key 

markets outside its region, such as Cleveland and Cincmnati. GTE, with its network dispersed 

geographically throughout the United States, is the "enabler" that will allow Bell Atlantic to enter 

new markets throughout the country. Moreover, the merged company will have a broader 

financial base, giving it the strength necessary to support entry into new markets and making it 

better able to offer consumers a highly attractive package of local, wireless, long distance and 

internet services. 

B. Packaged Services 

Before the 1996 Act, telecommunications markets were divided not only geographically 

but also by product line. Today, however, the markets for telecommunications services are 

demanding and being served by firms offering a fiJl range of telecommunications services on a 

nationwide basis. The 1996 Act's deregulatory provisions have allowed four entities to form or 

plan expanded aUiances capable of providing such packages across the country: 

MCLWorldCom/MFS/UUNet, AT&T/TCI/Teleport, SBC/PacTel/SNET/Ameritech and 

Sprint/Sprint Spectrum. The merger of Bell Atlantic and GTE will create a fifth new competitor 

with the nationwide presence and financial resources necessary to compete head-to-head with the 

big four telecommunications carriers in providing the fiill array of telecommunications services 

both around the country. 
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C. Internet and Data 

Consumers in Ohio are also increasing their demands for data services, making it 

important to ensure that a sufiicient number of healthy competitors provide such services 

throughout Ohio. The merger will advance this goal by strengthening GTE Internetworking 

(formerly known as BBN). GTE Internetworking is currently the fourth largest provider of 

Internet backbone services, but still far behind WorldCom, Cable & Wireless (spun off from MCI) 

and Sprint. The WoridCom, Cable & Wireless and Sprint data networks are significantly larger 

than GTE's data network. AT&T is also attempting to join the top ranks of Internet backbone 

providers. The merger will combine GTE Internetworking's facilities with the opporturuty to 

access Bell Atlantic's large urban customer base, including the hundreds of Fortune 1000 

businesses based in Bell Atlantic's territory with offices across the country. GTE Internetworking 

could potentially have access to a solid base of high volume data customers, enabling it to expand 

services faster and ensure a continued high level of competition in this critical sector. 

D. Long Distance 

The merger will increase competition in the long distance market in Ohio by presenting the 

Joint AppUcants with a better opportunity to utilize a combination of GTE's national facilities and 

resale capabilities. Construction of a national long-distance network requires large volumes of 

traffic to achieve necessary economies of scale and scope. Not surprisingly, there are few long 

distance facilities-based networks that are truly national in reach today. With the FCC's approval 

of the merger of WorldCom and MCI, there are now only three fiilly national facilities-based 

carriers: MCIAVoridCom, AT&T and Sprint. Resellers of long distance service, like GTECC, are 

critically dependent today on one of these few network providers to supply their long distance 
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services. Thus, although it provides long distance service in Ohio through GTECC, GTECC is 

almost wholly dependent on WorldCom's facilities. 

E. Synergies 

The Joint Applicants will have the opportunity to reaHze synergies that will, over the long 

term, make the merged companies more efficient and responsive in the marketplace. These 

expected synergies include, among other things, the consolidation and elimination of redundant 

management fimctions, primarily in the headquarters fimctions, the consolidation of the two 

companies' capital and purchasing programs, and the combination of the two companies' 

development efforts for new systems and services. 

F. Competition For Customers 

As longstanding providers of local exchange service in their respective territories, GTE 

and Bell Atlantic have proven records of providing service not only to high volume business 

customers, but also, and primarily, to their residential and small business customers. The merged 

company will continue to serve all customers in their territories, unlike many other competitors in 

the market who are interested only in serving high-end business customers. 

G. Corporate Citizenship 

GTE and Bell Atlantic support their local communities. The merged company will 

continue to observe this tradition of corporate citizenship that has been a hallmark of GTE and 

Bell Atlantic policy for many years. 

H. Impact on Employment 

The merger is not expected to have a material impact on employment levels of GTE 

hourly workers and Bell Atlantic Associates, and all existmg union contracts will be honored. 

Any labor reductions occasioned by the merger will come, most likely, from the consolidation and 
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elimination of redundant management positions. Any consolidation of management positions that 

does occur is expected to be accomplished to the extent possible, by attrition, retirement, and 

other voluntary measures. 

1. Benefits from Best Practices 

The merged company will be able to draw upon the expertise and abilities of the persoimel 

from both companies, adopting each company's best practices to better serve the public. Bell 

Atlantic and GTE have operated networks and marketed services in geographically distinct 

markets: the South, Midwest and West for GTE, and the Mid-Atlantic and Northeast for Bell 

Atlantic. Accordingly, they have developed separate yet complementary skills. These 

complementary skills will, when combined, allow both companies to better maintain and improve 

the quality and efficiency of the service they provide. 

J. Continued Regulatory Compliance 

The stock transaction will not affect GTE North's status as a subsidiary of GTE, nor vwll 

it affect the regulatory authority of this Commission over GTE North in any respect. GTE 

North's customers will continue to obtain the same products and services as they did before the 

stock transaction, at the same rates they paid before the stock transaction. GTE North will 

continue to submit reports to the Commission as required and GTE North will remain subject to 

the Commission's jurisdiction. Following the stock transaction, as before, GTE North will, as 

necessary, apply to the Commission for appropriate authorization to change the rates, terms or 

conditions of service, or to introduce new services. 

K. No Anti-Competitive Effect 

Even though GTE and Bell Atlantic subsidiaries are authorized to provide long distance 

service in Ohio, their common ownership will not significantly impact competition for long 
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distance services. Combmed, GTE and Bell Atlantic's subsidiaries serve only a small fraction of 

the total long distance market in Ohio. Long distance services are provided in Ohio by numerous 

other competitors, and the market as a whole is dominated by the three largest long distance 

companies, AT&T, MCIAVoridCom and Sprint. Accordingly, even though GTE and Bell 

Atlantic's separate subsidiaries in Ohio will now be commonly owned, there will be no anti­

competitive effect m Ohio. 

REVISED CODE SECTION 4905.402 

Under Revised Code §4905.402(B), Bell Atlantic is obligated to obtain the prior approval 

of the Commission before acquuing indirect control of GTE North, and has therefore filed this 

Joint Application with GTE. Approval is to be granted "after review of the application" or "after 

any necessary hearing" once "the Commission is satisfied that approval of the appUcation will 

promote public convenience and result in the provision of adequate service [by GTE North] for a 

reasonable rate, rental, toll or charge." For the reasons described in the foregoing, and for those 

described below, the Commission should promptly so find, and need not convene a hearing to do 

so. 

A. This Joint Application Should Be Granted 

The stock transaction that is the subject of this Joint Application is a parent company 

merger and is not expected to materially change or relocate, by operation of law or otherwise, the 

operations or legal status of GTE North. GTE North will remain subject to the jurisdiction of this 

Commission, and there will ordy be an indirect change of control over GTE North. Moreover, 

follovring the transaction, GTE North will be owned by the same shareholder - GTE - as it was 

immediately before the merger. 
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Accordingly, the Joint Applicants submit that the "acquisition of control" herein described 

vAW promote the public convenience and result in the continued provision of adequate service for 

a reasonable rate, rental, toll or charge by GTE North. Accordingly, the Commission should 

grant this Joint Application under Revised Code §4905.402. 

B. No Hearing Is Necessary 

Under Revised Code §4905.402(B) this Joint Application may, and should be, deemed 

approved if the Commission refrains from acting upon it for a period of thirty days. The 

Applicants submit that this application should be so treated. 

The stock transaction that is the subject of this Joint Application will take place among 

two publicly-traded corporations over which this Commission has no general jurisdiction. Federal 

agencies, by contrast - specifically the Federal Communications Commission and Department of 

Justice, among others -- exercise pervasive jurisdiction over the operating companies of GTE and 

Bell Atlantic, and must also approve the transaction that is the subject of this Joint Application. 

Given the limited authority of this Commission, and the scrutiny that vnW be provided at 

the federal level, the transaction that is the subject of this Joint Application presents no issues that 

warrant a hearing in the State of Ohio. This Joint Application should be approved by operation of 

law or by order of the Commission. 

CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons. Bell Atlantic Corporation and GTE Corporation pray that the 

Commission: 

A. Consider and conclude that no hearing upon this Joint AppUcation is 
necessary; and 
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B. Either 

(i) REFRAIN from issuing an order in this matter for a period of not 
less than thirty (30) days, as a result of which this Joint AppUcation 
will be deemed APPROVED by operation of law; or alternatively, 

(ii) FIND that for Bell Atlantic Corporation to acquire control 
of GTE Corporation and mdirectly of GTE North 
Incorporated, all as described in this Joint Application, will 
promote the pubUc convenience 
and result in the provision of adequate service for a 
reasonable rate, rental, toll or charge, and APPROVE this 
Application pursuant to Revised Code Section 
4905.402(B). 
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Respectfiilly submitted, 

BELL ATLANTIC CORPORATION 

By: 
richaeiJuyLowe 

BELL ATLANTIC NETWORK SERVICES, INC. 
1320 N. Court House Road 
8* Floor 
Arlington, VA 22201 
(703) 974-7344 
(703) 974-0783 (Fax No.) 

Its Attorneys 

GTE CORPORATION 

By: ^'iiorr^ "CV 

&\FLORYLLP 
Thomas E. L( 
THOMPSON( 
One Columbus 
10 West Broad Street, Suite 700 
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3435 
(614)469-3200 

Its Attorneys 



EXmSTTS 

In fiirther support of this application, the Joint Applicants submit the following exhibits: 

EXHIBIT 1 

EXHIBIT 2 

EXHIBIT 3 

EXHIBIT 4 

EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 6 

EXHIBIT 7 

Merger Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, Dated as of July 
27, 1998 by and among BeU Atlantic Corporation, Beta Gamma 
Corporation and GTE Corporation (Without Schedules) 

GTE Corporation 1997 Annual Report 

Bell Atlantic Corporation 1997 Annual Report 

Pre- and Post-Merger Organizational Charts 

National and State Wireline Service Territory Maps 

National and State Wireless Service Area Maps 

Securities and Exchange Commission S-4 Form (to be filed when 
available) 



VERIFICATION 

I, P. Alan Bulliner, Associate General Counsel and Corporate Secretary of Bell 

Atlantic Corporation, do solemnly swear that the facts stated in the foregomg Petition, and 

all exhibits incorporated by reference, insofar as they relate to Bell Atlantic Corporation, are 

to the best of my knowledge and belief, true and correct and that said statements of fact 

constitute a complete statement of the matter to which they relate. 

Bill Atlantic Corporation 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this ^ ' ' d a y of , , / ] ^ . p i . ^^ \u J \ , 1998 

>tary Public 

« ^ ^ i n ^ J * SULUVAN 
Notary Public, State of New Yorfc 

No. 4889913 
Qusliflad in Rockland County 

^Qualified in Westchester CouiWy} 
Commission Expires April 20, i a ^ 



VERIFICATION 

I, Geoffrey C. Gould, Vice President-Government and 
Regulatory Affairs for GTE Corporation, do solemnly swear 
that the facts stated in the foregoing Petition, and all 
exhibits incorporated by reference, insofar as they relate 
to GTE Corporation and its subsidiaries, are to the best of 
my knowledge and belief, true and correct and that said 
statements of fact constitute a complete statement of 
matters to which they relate. 

^ ^ 
Geoffrey C. Gquld 
Vice ̂ President-Government 

and Regulatory Affairs 
GTE Corporation 

Subscribed and sworn to before 
me this /^ day of October 1998 

/ , 
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: Slsiloi 



AGREEMENT AND PLAN 

OF MERGER 

DATED AS OF 

JULY 27,1998 

AMONG 

BELL ATLANTIC CORPORATION, 

BETA GAMMA CORPORATION 

AND 

GTE CORPORATION 
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AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER 

This AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (this "Agreement"), dated as of July 
27, 1998 ("the date hereof), is entered into by and among Bell Atiantic Corporation, a 
Delaware corporation ("Bell Atlantic"), Beta Gamma Corporation, a New York corporation 
and a wholly owned subsidiary of Bell Atiantic ("Merger Subsidiary"), and GTE Corporation, 
a New York corporation ("GTE"). 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of each of Bell Atiantic, Merger Subsidiary and 
GTE has determined that it is in the best interests of its stockholders that Bell Atlantic and 
GTE enter into a business combination under which a subsidiary of BeU Atiantic will merge 
with and into GTE pursuant to the Merger (as defined in Section 1.1 hereoQ and Bell Atiantic 
and GTE desire to enter into the "merger of equals" transaction contemplated hereby, and, in 
connection therewith, to make certain representations, warranties and agreements; 

WHEREAS, as a condition to, and inmiediately after, the execution of this Agreement, 
and as a condition to the execution of the Bell Atiantic Option Agreement (as defined below), 
GTE and Bell Atiantic are entering into a stock option f^reement (the "GTE Option 
Agreement") in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A; 

WHEREAS, as a condition to, and immediately after, the execution of this Agreement, 
and as a condition to the execution of the GTE Option Agreement, GTE and Bell Atlantic are 
entering into a stock option ^reement (the "BeU Atiantic Option Agreement", and together 
with the GTE Option Agreement, the "Option Agreements") in the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit B; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of each of Bell Atlantic, Merger Subsidiary and 
GTE has determined that the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby are 
consistent with, and in fintherance of, its business strategies and goals and has approved the 
Merger upon the terms and conditions set forth herein; 

WHEREAS, for federal income tax purposes, it is intended that the Merger shall 
constitute a tax-firee reorganization under Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 
as amended (the "Code"); and 

WHEREAS, for accounting purposes, it is intended that the Merger shall be accoimted 
for as a pooling of interests under United States generally accepted accounting principles 
("GAAP"); 



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein contained, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto 
hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I - THE MERGER 

SECTION 1.1 — 77?e Merger. At tiie Effective Time (as defined in Section 12 hereof) 
and subject to and upon the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the New York 
Business Corporation Law ("NYBCL"), Merger Subsidiary will be merged witii and into GTE 
(the "Merger"), whereby the separate corporate existence ofMerger Subsidiary shall cease and 
GTE shall continue as the surviving corporation which shall be a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
Bell Atiantic. GTE as the smiiving corporation after the Merger is herein sometimes referred 
to as the "Surviving Corporation" and Mei^er Subsidiary as the non-surviving corporation 
after the Merger is herein sometimes referred to as the "Merged Corporation." GTE, Bell 
Atiantic and Merger Subsidiary are herein referred to collectively as tiie "Parties" and each 
individxially as a "Party." 

SECTION 1.2 — Effective Time. As promptiy as practicable after the satisfaction or 
waiver of the conditions set forth in Article VIII hereof and the consummation of the Closing 
referred to in Section 7.2(b) hereof, the Parties shall cause the Merger to be consummated by 
filing a Certificate ofMerger with the Secretary of State of the State of New York with respect 
to the Merger, in such form as required by, and executed in accordance with, the relevant 
provisions of the NYBCL (the time of such filing being the "Effective Time"). 

SECTION 1.3 ̂ Effect of the Merger. At tiie Effective Time, tiie effect of the Merger 
shall be as provided in Ae applicable provisions of the NYBCL. Without limiting the 
generality of the forgoing, and subject thereto, at the Effective Time all the property, rights, 
privileges, powers and fianchises of GTE and Merger Subsidiary shall continue with, or vest 
in, as the case may be, GTE as the Surviving Corporation, and all debts, liabilities and duties 
of GTE and Merger Subsidiary shall continue to be, or become, as the case may be, the debts, 
liabilities and duties of GTE as the Surviving Corporation. As of the Effective Time, the 
Surviving Corporation shall be a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Bell Atiantic. 

SECTION 1.4 — Subsequent Actions. If at any time after the Effective Time the 
Surviving Corporation shall consider or be advised that any deeds, bills of sale, assignments, 
assurances or any other actions or things are necessary or desirable to continue in, vest, perfect 
or confirm of record or otherwise in the Surviving Corporation its right, titie or interest in, to 
or under any of the rights, properties, privileges, franchises or assets of either of its constituent 
corporations acquired or to be acquired by the Surviving Corporation as a result of, or in 
connection with, the Merger or otherwise to cany out this Agreement, the officers and 
directors of the Surviving Corporation shall be directed and autiiorized to execute and deliver, 
in the name and on behalf of either of such constituent corporations, all such deeds, bills of 



sale, assignments and assiu-ances and to take and do, in the name and on behalf of each of such 
corporations or otherwise, all such other actions and thii^s as may be necessary or desirable 
to vest, perfect or confirm any and all right, titie and interest in, to and under such rights, 
properties, privileges, fi^nchises or assets in the Surviving Corporation or otherwise to cany 
out this Agreement. 

SECTION 1.5 — Certificate of Incorporation; Bylaws; Directors and Officers of 
Surviving Corporation, Unless otherwise screed by GTE and Bell Atiantic before the 
Effective Time, at tiie Effective Tune: 

(a) the Certificate of Incorporation of GTE as the Surviving Corporation shall be 
the Certificate of Incorporation of GTE as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, 
until thereafter amended as provided by law and such Certificate of Incorporation; 

(b) the Bylaws of GTE as the Surviving Corporation shall be the Bylaws of GTE 
immediately prior to the Effective Time, until thereafter amended as provided by law and the 
Certificate of Incorporation and the BylaAvs of such Surviving Corporation; and 

(c) the directors and officers of GTE immediately |»rior to the Effective Time shall 
continue to serve in their respective ofiSces of the Surviving Corporation fix)m and after the 
Effective Time, in each case until their successors are elected or appointed and qualified or 
until their resignation or removal. If at the Effective Time a vacancy shall exist on the Board 
of Directors or in any office of the Surviving Corporation, such vacancy may thereafter be 
filled in the manner provided by law and the Bylaws of the Surviving Corporation. 

ARTICLE n - EFFECT ON STOCK OF THE SURVIVING 
CORPORATION AND THE MERGED CORPORATION 

SECTION 2.1 — Conversion of Securities. The manner and basis of converting the 
shares of common stock of the Surviving Corporation and of the Merged Corporation at the 
Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of any of the Parties 
or the holder of any of such securities, shall be as hereinafter set forth in this Article II. 

SECTION 2.2 — Conversion of Shares, (a) Subject to Section 2.7, each share of 
common stock, par value S0.05 per share, of GTE ("GTE Common Stock") issued and 
outstanding immediately before the Effective Tune (excluding those cancelled pursuant to 
Section 2.3) and all rights in respect thereof, shall at the Effective Time, without any action 
on the part of any holder thereof, be converted into and become 1.22 shares of common stock, 
par value $0.10 per share, of Bell Atiantic ("Bell Atiantic Common Stock"). Such ratio of 
GTE Common Stock to Bell Atiantic Common Stock is herein referred to as the "Exchange 
Ratio." 



(b) As of the Effective Time, all shares of GTE Common Stock converted pursuant 
to Section 2.2(a) shall no longer be outstanding and shall automatically be cancelled and 
retired and shall cease to exist, and each holder of a certificate (each, an "Old Certificate") 
representing any such shares of GTE Common Stock shall cease to have any rights with 
respect thereto, except the right to receive shares of Bell Atiantic Common Stock, in 
accordance with Section 2.2(a), certain dividends or other distributions in accordance with 
Section 2.5(b) and any cash in lieu of firactional shares of Bell Atlantic Common Stock to be 
issued or paid in consideration therefor upon surrender of such certificate in accordance with 
Section 2.5, without interest 

(c) For ail purposes of this Agreement, unless otherwise specified, each share of 
GTE Common Stock held by employee stock ownership plans of GTE (i) shall be deemed to 
be issued and outstanding, (ii) shall not be deemed to be held in the treasury of GTE and (iii) 
shall be converted into shares of Bell Atiantic Common Stock in accordance with the 
Exchange Ratio. 

SECTION 2.3 — Cancellation of Treasury Shares and Bell Atlantic*owned Shares. 
At the Effective Time, each share of GTE Common Stock held in the treasury of GTE or 
owned by Bell Atiantic immediately prior to the Effective lune shall be cancelled and retired 
and no shares of stock or other securities of Bell Atiantic or the Siuidving Corporation shall 
be issuable, and no payment or other consideration shall be made, with respect thereto. 

SECTION 2.4 — Conversion of Common Stock of the Merged Corporation into 
Common Stock of the Surviving Corporation. At the Effective Time, each share of common 
stock ofMerger Subsidiary issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, 
and all rights in respect thereof, shall, without any action on the part of Bell Atiantic, forthwith 
cease to exist and be converted into 1,000 validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable shares 
of common stock, par value $0.05 per share, of the Survivir^ Corporation (the "Surviving 
Corporation Common Stock"). Immediately after the Effective Time and upon surrender by 
Bell Atiantic of the certificate representing the shares of the common stock of Merger 
Subsidiary, GTE as the Surviving Corporation shall deliver to Bell Atiantic an appropriate 
certificate or certificates reinresenting tiie Surviving Corporation Common Stock created by 
conversion of the common stock ofMerger Subsidiary owned by Bell Atlantic. 

SECTION 2.5 ̂ Exchange Procedures, (a) Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, 
at or prior to the Effective Time Bell Atiantic and GTE shall j ointiy appoint an exchange agent 
(the "Exchange Agent") to effect tiie exchange of Old Certificates for Bell Atiantic Common 
Stock in accordance with the provisions of this Article II. At the Effective Time, Bell Atiantic 
shall deposit, or cause to be deposited, with the Exchai^e Agent certificates representing Bell 
Atiantic Common Stock for exchange for Old Certificates in accordance with tte provisions 
of Section 2.2 hereof (such certificates, together with any dividends or distributions with 



respect thereto, being herein referred to as the "Exchange Fund"). Commencing immediately 
after the Effective Time and until the appointment of the Exchange Agent shall be terminated, 
each holder of an Old Certificate may surrender the same to the Exchange Agent, and, after 
the appointment of the Exchange Agent shall be terminated, any such holder may surrender 
any such certificate to Bell Atiantic. Such holder shall be entitied upon such surrender to 
receive in exchange therefor a certificate or certificates representing the mmiber of whole 
shares of Bell Atlantic Common Stock such holder has a right to receive in accordance with 
Section 2.2 hereof, certain dividends or other distributions in accordance with Section 2.5(b) 
hereof, and a cash payment in lieu of fractional shares, if any, in accordance with Section 2.7 
hereof, and such Old Certificate shall forthwith be cancelled. The >^ole shares of Bell 
Atiantic Common Stock to be delivered to such holder shall be delivered in book entry form, 
unless such holder shall timely elect in writing to receive the certificates representing siKh 
shares. 

Unless and imtil any such Old Certificate is so surrendered, and except as may be determined 
by Bell Atiantic for a period not to exceed six months after the Effective Time, no dividend 
or other distribution, if any, payable to the holders of record of Bell Atiantic Common Stock 
as of any date subsequent to the Effective Time shall be paid to the holder of such certificate 
in respect thereof. Accept as otherwise provided in Section 2.6 hereof, upon the surrender of 
any such Old Certificate, however, tiie record holder of the certificate or certificates 
representing shares of Bell Atiantic Common Stock issued in exchange therefor shall receive 
fix)m the Exchange Agent or from Bell Atlantic, as the case may be, payment of the amoimt 
of dividends and other distributions, if any, which as of any date subsequent to the Effective 
Time and until such surrender shall have become payable and were not paid with respect to 
such number of shares of Bell Atiantic Common Stock ("Pre-surrender Dividends"). No 
interest shall be payable with respect to the payment of Pre-Surrender Dividends upon the 
surrender of Old Certificates. After the appointment of the Exchange Agent shall have been 
terminated, any holders of Old Certificates which have not received payment of Pre-Surrender 
Dividends shall look only to Bell Atiantic for payment thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoii^ 
provisions of this Section 2.5 (b), neither the Exchange Agent nor any Party shall be liable to 
a holder of an Old Certificate for any BeU Atiantic Common Stock, any dividends or 
distributions thereon or any cash payment for fiactional shares as contemplated by Section2.7, 
delivered to a public ofGcial pursuant to any applicable abandoned property, escheat or similar 
law or to a transferee pursuant to Section 2.6 hereof. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, certificates surrendered for 
exchange by any "affiliate" of GTE shall not be exchanged until BeU Atiantic shall have 
received a signed agreement from such "affiliate" as provided in Section 7.14 hereof. 

SECTION 2.6—Transfer Books. The stock transfer books of GTE shall be closed at 
the Effective Time and no transfer of any shares of GTE Common Stock wiU thereafter be 
recorded on any of such stock transfer books. In the event of a transfer of ownership of GTE 



Common Stock that is not registered in the stock transfer records of GTE at the Effective 
Time, a certificate or certificates representing the number of whole shares of BeU Atiantic 
Common Stock into which such shares of GTE Common Stock shall have been converted 
shall be issued to the transferee together with a cash payment in lieu of fractional shares, if 
any, in accordance with Section 2.7 hereof, and a cash payment in the amount ofPre-Surrender 
Dividends, if any, in accordance with Section 2.5 (b) hereof, if the Old Certificate therefor is 
surrendered as provided in Section 2.5 hereof, accompanied by aU documents required to 
evidence and effect such transfer and by evidence of payment of any applicable stock transfer 
tax. The >^ole shares of BeU Atiantic Common Stock to be delivered to such holder shaU be 
delivered in book entry form, unless such holder shall timely elect in writing to receive the 
certificates representing such shares. 

SECTION 2.7 — No Fractional Share Certificates, (a) No scrip or fiactional share 
certificate for BeU Atiantic Common Stock will be issued in certificated or book entry form 
upon the sunender for exchange of Old Certificates, and an outstanding fiactional share 
interest will not entitie the owner thereof to vote, to receive dividends or to any rights of a 
stockholder of BeU Atiantic or of the Surviving Corporation with respect to such fiactional 
share interest. 

(b) As promptiy as practicable following the Effective Time, the Exchai^e Agent 
shall determine the excess of (i) the number of whole shares of Bell Atiantic Common Stock 
to be issued and delivered to the Exchange Agent pursuant to Section 2.5 hereof over (ii) the 
aggregate number of whole shares of Bell Atiantic Common Stock to be distributed to holders 
of GTE Common Stock pursuant to Section 2.5 hereof (such excess being herein called 
"Excess Shares"). Following the Effective Time, the Exchange Agent, as agent for the holders 
of GTE Conamon Stock, shaU sell the Excess Shares at then prevaUing prices on the New Yoric 
Stock Exchange (tiie "NYSE"), aU in the marmer provided in subsection (c) of this Section 2.7. 

(c) The sale of the Excess Shares by the Exchange Agent shaU be executed on the 
NYSE through one or more member firms of the NYSE and shaU be executed in round lots 
to the extent practicable. The Exchange Agent shaU use aU reasonable efforts to complete the 
sale of the Excess Shares as promptiy following the Effective Time as, in the Exchange 
Agent's reasonable judgment, is practicable consistent with obtaining the best execution of 
such sales in Ught of prevailing market conditions. The Exchange Agent shall, out of the 
proceeds from the sale of the Excess Shares, pay all commissions, transfer taxes and other out-
of-̂ pocket transaction costs, including the expenses and compensation of the Exchange Agent, 
incurred in connection with such sale of the Excess Shares. Until the net proceeds of such sale 
or sales have been distributed to the holders of GTE Common Stock, the Exchange Agent will 
hold such proceeds in trust for the holders of GTE Common Stock (tiie "Common Shares 
Trust"). ITie Exchange Agent shall determine the portion of the Common Shares Trust to 
which each holder of GTE Common Stock shall be entitied, if any, by multiplying the amount 
of tiie aggregate net proceeds comprising the Ccnnmon Shsures Trust by a fir^tion the 



numerator of which is the amount of fi-actional share interests to which such holder of GTE 
Common Stock is entitied (after taking into account all shares of GTE Common Stock held 
at the Effective Time by such holder) and the denominator of which is the ̂ gregate amount 
of fractional share interests to which all holders of GTE Common Stock are entitied. 

(d) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections (b) and (c) of this Section 2.7, 
GTE and BeU Atiantic may agree at their option, exercised prior to tiie Effective Time, in Ueu 
of the issuance and sale of Excess Shares and the making of the payments contemplated in 
such subsections, that Bell Atiantic shaU pay to the Exchange Agent an amount sufficient for 
the Exchange Agent to pay each holder of GTE Common Stock an amount in cash equal to 
the product obtained by multiplying (i) the fiactional share interest to which such holder would 
otherwise be entitied (after takii^ into accoimt all shares of GTE Common Stock held at the 
Effective Time by such holder) by (ii) the closing price for a share of BeU Atlantic Common 
Stock on the NYSE Composite Transaction Tape on the first business day immediately 
foUowing the Effective Time, and, in such case, all references herein to the cash proceeds of 
the sale of the Excess Shares and similar references shall be deemed to mean and refer to the 
payments calculated as set forth in this subsection (d). In such event. Excess Shares shaU not 
be issued or otherwise transferred to the Exchange Agent pursuant to Section 2.5 (a) hereof 
or, if previously issued, shall be returned to BeU Atiantic for canceUation. 

(e) As soon as practicable after the determination of the amounts of cash, if any, 
to be paid to holders of GTE Common Stock with respect to any fractional share interests, the 
Exchange Agent shaU make available such amoimts, net of any required withholding, to such 
holders of GTE Common Stock, subject to.and in accordance with the terms of Section 2.5 
hereof. 

(f) Any portion of the Exchange Fund and the Common Shares Trust which 
remains undistributed for six months after the Effective Time shall be delivered to Belt 
Atiantic, upon demand, and any holders of GTE Common Stock who have not theretofore 
compUed with the provisions of this Article II shall thereafter look only to BeU Atlantic for 
satisfaction of their claims for Bell Atlantic Common Stock, any cash in lieu of fractional 
shares of BeU Atiantic Common Stock and any Pre-Surrend^ Dividends. 

SECTION 2.8—Options to Purchase GTE Common Stock (a) At tiie Effective Time, 
each option or warrant granted by GTE to purchase shares of GTE Common Stock which is 
outstanding and unexercised immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be assumed by Bell 
Atiantic and converted into an option or warrant to purchase shares of Bell Atiantic Common 
Stock in such amount and at such exercise price as provided below and otherwise having the 
same terms and conditions as are in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time (except to 
the extent that such terms, conditions and restrictions may be altered in accordance with their 
terms as a result of the transactions contemplated hereby): 



(i) the number of shares of Bell Atlantic Common Stock to be 
subject to the new option or warrant shall be equal to the product of (x) the 
number of shares of GTE Common Stock subject to the original option or 
warrant and (y) the Exchange Ratio; 

(ii) the exercise price per share of BeU Atlantic Common Stock 
imder the new option or warrant shall be equal to (x) the exercise price per 
share of the GTE Common Stock under the original option or warrant divided 
by (y) the Exchange Ratio; and 

(iii) upon each exercise of options or warrants by a holder thereof, 
the aggregate number of shares of Bell Atiantic Common Stock deliverable 
upon such exercise shaU be rounded down, if necessary, to the nearest whole 
share^d the 2^gregate exercise price shall be rounded up, if necessary, to the 
nearest cent 

The adjustments provided herein with respect to any options which are "incentive stock 
options" (as defined in Section 422 of the Code) shaU be effected in a marmer consistent with 
Section 424(a) of the Code. 

(b) At the Effective Time, each stock ai^reciation right ("SAR") with respect to 
GTE Conunon Stock vAdch is outstanding and unexercised immediately before the Effective 
Time shall be converted into an SAR with respect to shares of BeU Atiantic Common Stock 
on the same terms and conditions as are in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, with 
the adjustments set forth in subsection (a) of this Section 2.8. 

SECTION 2.9—RestrictedStock At tiie Effective Time, any shares of GTE Common 
Stock awarded pursuant to any plan, arrangement or transaction, and outstanding immediately 
prior to the Effective Time shall be converted into shares of BeU Atlantic Common Stock in 
accordance with Section 22 hereof̂  subject to the same terms, conditions and restrictions as 
in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, except to the extent that such terms, 
conditions and restrictions may be altered in accordance with their terms as a result of the 
transactions contemplated hereby. 

SECTION 2.10 — Certain Adjustments. If between tiie date hereof and the Effective 
Time, the outstanding shares of GTE Common Stock or of BeU Atiantic Common Stock shaU 
be changed into a different number of shares by reason of any reclassification, recapitalization, 
split-up, combination or exchange of shares, or any dividend payable in stock or other 
securities shaU be declared thereon with a record date within such period, the Exchai^e Ratio 
shall be adjusted accordmgly to provide to the holders of GTE Common Stock and BeU 
Atiantic Common Stock the same economic effect as contemplated by this Agreement prior 
to such reclassification, recapitalization, split-up, combination, exchange or dividend. 
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ARTICLE i n - CERTAIN ADDITIONAL MATTERS 

SECTION 3.1 — Certificate of Incorporation arui Bylaws of Bell Atlantic. At the 
Effective Time and subject to and upon the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the 
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware ("DGCL"), Bell Atlantic shall cause the 
Certificate of Incorporation of BeU Atiantic and the Bylaws of BeU Atiantic to be amended 
and restated to incorporate the provisions set forth in Appendices I-A and I-B hereto, 
respectively. Such amendment and restatement of the Bell Atiantic Certificate of Incorpora­
tion and amendment and restatement of the BeU Atiantic Bylaws are referred to herein as the 
"Certificate Amendment" and the "Bylaws Amendment," respectively. 

SECTION 3.2 — Dividends. Each of GTE and BeU Atiantic shaU coordinate with 
the other the declaration of, and the setting of record dates and payment dates for, dividends 
on GTE Common Stock and BeU Atiantic Common Stock so that holders of GTE Common 
Stock do not (i) receive dividends on both GTE Common Stock and BeU Atiantic Common 
Stock received in connection with the Merger in respect of any calendar quarter or (ii) fail to 
receive a dividend on either GTE Common Stock or Bell Atiantic Common Stock received 
in connection with the Merger in respect of any calendar quarter. 

SECTION 3.3 — Headquarters. GTE and Bell Atiantic agree that immediately 
following the Effective Time the headquarters of BeU Atiantic shall be located in New York, 
New York. 

SECTION 3.4—Corporate Identity. GTE and BeU Atiantic agree tiiat at tiie Effective 
Time, the corporate name of BeU Atiantic shall be as shall have been agreed by the Parties. 

ARTICLE IV - REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF GTE 

Except as expressly disclosed in the GTE Filed SEC Reports (as defined below) 
(including all exhibits referred to therein) or as set forth in the disclosure schedule deUvered 
by GTE to BeU Atiantic on tiie date hereof (tiie "GTE Disclosure Schedule") (each section 
ofwhich qualifies the correspondii^y numbered representation and warranty or covenant 
as specified therein), GTE hereby represents and warrants to BeU Atiantic as follows: 

SECnON4.1—OrganizationandQualiflcation;Subsidiaries. EachofGTEandeach 
of its Significant Subsidiaries is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good 
standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation or organization. Each of the GTE 
Subsidiaries which is not a Significant Subsidiary is duly oiganized, validly existing and in 
good standing imder the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation or organization, except for 
such failure which, whectaken together with aU other such fidlures, would not reasonably be 
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on GTE. Each of GTE and its Subsidiaries has the 



requisite corporate power and authority and any necessary governmental authority, franchise, 
license, certificate or permit to own, operate or lease the properties that it purports to own, 
operate or lease and to carry on its business as it is now being conducted, and is duly qualified 
as a foreign corporation to do business, and is in good standing, in each jurisdiction where the 
character of its properties owned, operated or leased or the nature of its activities makes such 
qualification necessary, excq>t for such failure ^^ch, when taken together with aU other such 
failures, would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on GTE. 

SECTION 42 — Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws. GTE has heretofore 
furnished, or otherwise made available, to Bell Atiantic a complete and correct copy of the 
Certificate of Incorporation and the Bylaws, each as amended to the date hereof, of GTE. 
Such Certificate oflncorporation and Bylaws are in fuU force and effect. Neither GTE nor any 
of its Significant Subsidiaries is in violation of any of the provisions of its respective 
Certificate oflncorporation or, in any material respect, its Bylaws. 

SECTION 4.3 — Capitalization, (a) The authorized capital stock of GTE consists 
of (i) 9,217,764 shares of preferred stock, par value $50.00 per share, none of which are 
outstanding or reserved for issuance, (ii) 11,727,502 shares of preferred stock, no par value 
per share, none of which are outstanding and 700,000 of which have been reserved for 
issuance in accordance with the Rights Agreement (as defined below), and (iii) 2,000,000,000 
shares of GTE Common Stock, ofwhich, as of June 30,1998, (A) 963,241,244 shares were 
issued and outstanding, (B) 25,658,980 shares were held in the treasury of GTE, (C) not more 
than 50,000,000 shares were issuable upon the exercise of options outstanding under the GTE 
option plans, and (D) 31,603,945 shares were reserved for issuance in connection wth other 
GTE Plans (as defined in Section 4.11(b) below). Except for GTE Equity Rights issued to 
GTE employees in the ordinary course of business or, after the date hereof, as permitted by 
Section 6.2 hereof or pursuant to the Bell Atiantic Option Agrednent, (i) since June 30,1998, 
no shares of GTE Common Stock have been issued, except upon the exercise of options 
described in the immediately preceding sentence, and (ii) there are no outstanding GTE Equity 
Rights. For purposes of this Agreement, "GTE Equity Rights" shaU mean subscriptions, 
options, warrants, calls, commitments, agreements, conversion rights or other rights of any 
character (contingent or otherwise) to purchase or otherwise acquire any shares of the capital 
stock of GTE from GTE or any of GTE's Subsidiaries at any time, or upon the happening of 
any stated event, except for ri^ts granted under the Rights Agreement, dated as of December 
7, 1989 (tiie "GTE Rights Agreement"), between GTE and tiie Ri^ts Agent (as defined 
therein), and the BeU Atiantic Option Agreement. Section 4.3 of the GTE Disclosure Schedule 
sets fonh a complete and accurate list of certain information with respect to all outstanding 
GTE Equity Ri^ts as of June 30,1998. 

(b) Except as set forth in Section 4.3 of the GTE Disclosure Schedule, pursuant to 
the Bell Atiantic Option Agreement, or, after the date hereof, as permitted by Section 6.2 
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hereof, there are no outstanding obligations of GTE or any of GTE's Subsidiaries to 
repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any shares of c^ ta l stock of GTE. 

(c) All of the issued and outstanding shares of GTE Common Stock are vaUdly 
issued, fidly paid and nonassessable. 

(d) All of the outstanding coital stock of each of GTE's Significant Subsidiaries, 
and aU of the outstanding capital stock of GTE's Subsidiaries owned directiy or indirectiy by 
GTE, is duly authorized, validly issued, fuUy paid and nonassessable. AU of the outstanding 
capital stock of each of GTE's Significant Subsidiaries is owned by GTE free and clear of any 
liens, security interests, pledges, ^reements, claims, charges or encumbrances. AU of the 
outstanding capital stock of GTE's Subsidiaries owned directiy or indirectiy by GTE is owned 
free and clear of any Uens, security interests, pledges, agreements, claims, charges or 
encumbrances, except >^ere such liens, security interests, pledges, agreements, claims, 
charges or encumbrances would not, individuaUy or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse 
Effect on GTE. Except as hereafter issued or entered into in accordance with Section 6.2 
hereof, there are no existing subscriptions, options, warrants, caUs, commitments, £^reements, 
conversion rights or other rights of any character (contingent or otherwise) to purchase or 
otherwise acquire fix»m GTE or any of GTE's Subsidiaries at any time, or upon the happening 
of any stated event, any shares of the capital stock of any GTE Subsidiary, whether or not 
presentiy issued or outstanding (except for rights of first refusal to purchase interests in 
Subsidiaries which are not wholly owned by GTE), or any of GTE's direct or indirect interests 
in any Material Investment, and there are no outstanding obHgations of GTE or any of GTE's 
Subsidiaries to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any shares of coital stock of any of 
GTE's Subsidiaries or securities related to any investments, other than such as would not, 
individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect on GTE. 

SECTION 4.4 — Authority Relative to this Agreement. GTE has the necessary 
corporate power and authority to enter into this Agreement and, subject to obtaining the 
requisite ^>proval of the Merger Agreement by GTE's stockholders required by the NYBCL 
(the "GTE Stockholder Approval"), to perform its obligations hereunder. The execution and 
delivery of this Agreement by GTE, and the consummation by GTE of the transactions 
contemplated hereby, have been ditiy authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part 
of GTE, subject to obtaining the GTE Stockholder Approval. TTiis Agreement has been duly 
executed and delivered by GTE and, assuming the due autiiorization, execution and deUvery 
thereof by each of BeU Atiantic and Merger Subsidiary, constitutes a legal, vaUd and binding 
obligation of GTE, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws relating to or affecting the 
rights and remedies of creditors generally and to general principles of equity (regardless of 
whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law). 
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SECTION 4.5 —TVb Conflict; Required Filings and Consents, (a) Except as described 
in subsection (b) below, tiw execution and delivery of this Agreement by GTE do not, and the 
performance of tiiis Agreement by GTE wiU not, (i) violate or confUct with the Certificate of 
Incorporation or Bylaws of GTE, (ii) conflict with or violate any law, regulation, court order, 
judgment or decree applicable to GTE or any of its Subsidiaries or by whichf any of their 
respective property or assets (including investments) is bound or affected, (iii) violate or 
conflict with the Certificate oflncorporation or Bylaws of any of GTE's Subsidiaries, (iv) 
result in any breach of or constimte a defiiult (or an event which with notice or lapse of time 
or both would become a default) under, or give to others any rights of termination or 
cancellation of, or result in the creation of a lien or encumbrance on any of the properties or 
assets (including investments) of GTE or any of its Subddiaries pursuant to, result in the loss 
of any material benefit under, or result in any modification or alteration of, or require the 
consent of any other party to, any contract, instrument, permit, license or franchise to which 
GTE or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which GTC, any of such Subsidiaries or any of 
their respective property or assets (including investments) is bound or affected, except, in the 
case of clauses (ii), (iii), and (iv) above, for conflicts, violations, breaches, defaults, results or 
consents \ ^ch , individually or in the aggregate, would not have a Material Adverse Effect 
on GTE. 

(b) Except for applicable requirements, if any, of state or foreign public utUity 
commissions or laws or similar local or state or foreign regulatory bodies or laws, state or 
foreign antitrust or foreign investment laws and commissions, the Federal Communications 
Commission, stock exchanges upon which securities of GTE are listed, the Exchange Act, the 
premerger notification requirements of the HSR Act, filing and recordation of appropriate 
mei^er or other docimients as required by the NYBCL and any fUings required pursuant to any 
state securities or "blue sky" laws or the rules of any appUcable stock exchanges, (i) neither 
GTE nor any of its Significant Subsidiaries is requued to submit any notice, report or other 
filing with any federal, state, local or foreign government, any court, administrative, 
regitiatory or other governmental ^ency, commission or authority or any non-govemmental 
U.S. or foreign self-regulatory agency, commission or authority or any arbitral tribunal (each, 
a "Governmental Entity") in cormection with the execution, deUvery or performance of this 
Agreement and (ii) no waiver, consent, approval or authorization of any Governmental Entity 
is required to be obtained by GTE or any of its Significant Subsidiaries in connection with its 
execution, deUvery or performance of this Agreement 

SECTION 4.6 — SEC Filings; Financial Statements, (a) GTE has filed aU forms, 
reports and documents required to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
("SEC") since January 1, 1995, and has heretofore delivered or made available to BeU 
Atiantic, in the form filed with the SEC, together with any amendments thereto, its (i) Annual 
Reports on Form 10-K for the fiscal years ended December 31,1995,1996 and 1997, (ii) all 
proxy statements relating to GTE's meetings of stockholders (Aether aimual or special) held 
since January 1,1995, (iii) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 
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31,1998, and (iv) all otiier reports or registration statements filed by GTE with tiie SEC smce 
January 1, 1995, including without limitation all Annual Reports on Form 11-K filed with 
respect to tiie GTE Plans (collectively, tiie "GTE SEC Reports", witii such GTE SEC Reports 
filed witii tiie SEC prior to tiie date hereof being referred to as "GTE FUed SEC Reports"). 
The GTE SEC Reports (i) were prepared substantiaUy in accordance with the requirements of 
tiie 1933 Act or tiie Exchange Act (as defined in Section 10,4 hereof), as tiie case may be, and 
the rules and regulations promulgated under each of such respective acts, and (ii) did not at 
tiie time they were filed contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
material fact reqitired to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, 
in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not nusleading. 

(b) The financial statements, mcluding all related notes and schedides, contained 
in the GTE SEC Reports (or incorporated by reference therein) feirly present the consoUdated 
financial pQ3ition of GTE and its Subsi^aries as at the respective dates thereof and the 
consoUdated results of operations and cash flows of GTE and its Subsidiaries for the periods 
indicated in accordance with GAAP applied on a consistent basis throt^out the periods 
involved (except for changes in accounting principles disclosed in the notes thereto) and 
subject in the case of interim financial statements to normal year-end adjustments. 

SECTION 4.7—Absence of Certain Changes or Events. Except as disclosed in the 
GTE Filed SEC Reports and in Section 4.7 of the GTE Disclosure Schedule, since December 
31,1997, and except as permitted by this Agreement or consented to hereunder, GTE and its 
Subsidiaries have not incurred any material liability required to be disclosed on a balance sheet 
of GTE and its Subsidiaries or the footootes thereto prepared m conformity with GAAP, 
except in the ordinary course of their businesses consistent with their past practices, and there 
has not been any change, or any event involving a prospective change, in the business, 
financial condition or results of operations of GTE or any of its Subsidiaries which has had, 
or is reasonably lUcely to have, a Material Adverse Effect on GTE, and GTE and its 
Subsidiaries have conducted their respective businesses in the ordmary course consistent with 
their past practices. 

SECTION 4.8 — Litigation. There are no claims, actions, suits, proceedings or 
investigations pending or, to GTE's knowledge, threatened against GTE or any of its 
Subsidiaries, or any properties or rights of GTE or any of its Subsidiaries, by or before any 
Governmental Entity, except for those that are not, individuaUy or in the aggregate, reasonably 
likely to have a Material Adverse Effect on GTE or prevent, materially delay or intentionally 
delay the ability of GTE to consummate transactions contemplated hereby. 

SECTION 4.9 — Permits; No Violation of Law. The businesses of GTE and its 
Subsidiaries are not being conducted in violation of any statute, law, ordinance, regulation, 
judgment, order OT decree of any Governmental Entity (including any stock exchange or other 
self-regulatory body) ("Legal Requirements"), or in violation of any permits, firanchises. 
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licenses, authorizations, certificates, variances, exemptions, orders, registrations or consents 
that are granted by any Governmental Entity (including any stock exchange or other self-
regulatory body) ("Pennits"), except for possible violations none of wiuch, individually or in 
the aggregate, may reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on GTE. No 
investigation or review by any Governmental Entity (including any stock exchange or other 
self-regulatory body) with respect to GTE or its Subsidiaries in relation to any alleged 
violation of law or regulation is pending or, to GTE's knowledge, threatened, nor has any 
Governmental Entity (inclu<^g any stock exchange or other self-regulatory body) indicated 
an intention to conduct the same, except for such investigations ^^ch, if they resulted in 
adverse findings, would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, 
a Material Adverse Effect on GTE. Except as set forth in Section 4,9 of the GTE Disclosure 
Schedule, neither GTE nor any of its Subsidiaries is subject to any cease and desist or other 
order, judgment, injunction or decree issued by, or is a party to any written Agreement, 
consent Agreement or memorandum of imderstanding with, or is a party to any commitment 
letter or similar undertaking to, or is subject to any order or directive by, or has adopted any 
board resolutions at the request of, any Governmental Entity that materially restricts the 
conduct of its business or which may reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse 
Effect on GTE, nor has GTE or any of its Subsidiaries been advised that any Governmental 
Entity is considering issuing or requesting any of the foregoing. None of the representations 
and warranties made in this Section 4.9 are being made with respect to Environmental Laws. 

SECTION 4.10—Joint Proxy Statement. None of the information suppUed or to be 
supplied by or on behalf of GTE for inclusion or incorporation by reference in the registration 
statement to be fUed with the SEC by BeU Atiantic in connection with the issuance of shares 
of BeU Atiantic Common Stock in the Merger (the "Registration Statement") wiU, at the time 
the Registration Statement becomes effective under the 193 3 Act, contain any untrue statement 
of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary 
to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, 
not misleading. None of the information suppUed or to be suppUed by or on behalf of GTE 
for inclusion or incorporation by reference in the joint proxy statement, in defiiutive form, 
relating to the meetings of GTE and Bell Atiantic stockholders to be held in connection with 
the Merger, or in the related proxy and notice of meeting, or soliciting material used in 
connection therewith (referred to herein collectively as the "Joint Proxy Statement") wUl, at 
the dates mailed to stockholders and at the times of the GTE stockholders' meeting and the 
Bell Atiantic stockholders' meeting, contain any untme statement of a material iact or omit to 
state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the 
statements therein, in the Ught of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
misleading. The Registration Statement and the Joint Proxy Statement (except for information 
relating solely to Bell Atiantic) will comply as to form in all material respects with the 
provisions of the 1933 Act and the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated 
thereunder. 
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SECTION 4.11 — Employee Matters; ERISA, (a) Except where tiie failure to be trae 
would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect on GTE, (i) each 
GTE Plan has been operated and ^iministered in accordance with appUcable law, including 
but not limited to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended 
("ERISA"), and the Code, (ii) each GTE Plan intended to be "quaUfied" witiim tiie meaning 
of Section 401 (a) of the Code is so qualified, (iii) except as required by COBRA, no GTE Plan 
provides death or medical benefits (whether or not insured), with respect to current or former 
employees of GTE or of any trade or business, whether or not incorporated, which together 
with GTE would be deemed a "single employer" within the meaning of Section 4001 of 
ERISA (a "GTE ERISA AfBUate"), beyond their retirement or other termination of service, 
(iv) no UabUity under Titie IV of ERISA has been incurred by GTE or any GTE ERISA 
AfBliate that has not been satisfied in fiiU, and no condition exists that presents a material risk 
to GTE or any GTE ERISA Affiliate of incurring any such UabUity (otiier than PBGC 
premiums), (v) all contributions or other amounts due from GTE or any GTE ERISA AfBUate 
with respect to each GTE Plan have been paid in full, (vi) neither GTE nor any GTE ERISA 
Affiliate has engaged in a transaction in connection with which GTE or any of its Subsidiaries 
could reasonably be expected to be subject to either a civil penalty assessed pursuant to 
Section 409 or 502(i) of ERISA or a tax imposed pursuant to Section 4975 or 4976 of tiie 
Code, (vii) to the best knowledge of GTE tiiere are no pending, threatened or anticipated 
claims (other than routine claims for benefits) by, on behalf of or against any GTE Plan or any 
trusts related thereto, and (viii) neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement nor the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby wiU (A) result in any payment 
(including, without limitation, severance, unemployment compensation, golden parachute or 
otherwise) becoming due to any director or any employee of GTE or any of its Subsidiaries 
under any GTE Plan or otherwise, (B) materially increase any benefits otherwise payable 
under any GTE Plan or (C) result in any acceleration of the time of payment or vesting of any 
such benefits. 

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, "GTE Plan" shall mean each defened 
compensation, bonus or other incentive compensation, stock purchase, stock option or other 
equity compensation plan, program, agreement or arrangement; each severance or termination 
pay, medical, surgical, hospitalization, life insurance or other "welfare" plan, fund or program 
(within the meaning of section 3(1) of ERISA); each profit-sharii^ stock bonus or other 
"pension" plan, fund or program (witiiin the meaning of section 3(2) of ERISA); each 
employment, termination or severance agreement; ai^ each other employee benefit plan, fund, 
program, agreement or arrangement, in each case, that is sponsored, maintained or contributed 
to or required to be contributed to by GTE or by any GTE ERISA AfBUate or to which GTE 
or any GTE ERISA AfBUate is party, whether written or oral, for the benefit of any employee 
or former employee of GTE or any GTE ERISA Affiliate. 

SECTION 4.12 — Labor Matters, Neitiier GTE nor any of its Subsidiaries is the 
subject of any material proceeding asserting that it or any of its Subsidiaries has committed 
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an unfair labor practice or is seeking to compel it to bargain with any labor uruon or labor 
organization nor is there pending or, to the actual knowledge of its executive ofBcers, 
threatened in writing, nor has there been for the past five years, any labor strike, dispute, 
walkout, woiic stoppage, slow-down or lockout involving it or any of its Subsidiaries, except 
in each case as is not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a Material 
Adverse Effect on GTE. 

SECTION 4.13— Environmental Matters. Except for such matters that, individually 
or in the aggregate, are not reasonably lUcely to have a Material Adverse Effect on GTE: (i) 
each of GTE and its Subsidiaries has compUed with aU appUcable Environmental Laws (as 
defined below); (ii) the properties currentiy owned or operated by it or any of its Subsidiaries 
(including soils, groimdwater, sur&ce water, buUdings or other structures) are not contami­
nated with any Hazardous Substances (as defined below); (ui) the properties formerly owned 
or operated by it or any of its Subsidiaries were not contaminated with Hazardotis Substances 
during the period of ownership or operation by it or any of its Subsidiaries; (iv) neither it nor 
any of its Subsidiaries is subject to UabUity for any Hazardous Substance disposal or 
contamination on any third party property; (v) neither it nor any Subsidiary has been 
associated with any release or threat of release of any Hazardous Substance; (vi) neither it nor 
any Subsidiary has received any notice, demand, letter, claim or request for information 
alleging that it or any of its Subsidiaries may be in violation of or liable under any 
Environmental Law (including any claims relating to electromagnetic fields or microwave 
transmissions); (vii) neither it nor any of its Subsidiaries is subject to any orders, decrees, 
injimctions or other arrangements with any Governmental Entity or is subject to any indemnity 
or other agreement with any third party relating to liability under any Environmental Law or 
relating to Hazardous Substances; and (viii) there are not circumstances or conditions 
involving it or any of its Subsidiaries that could reasonably be expected to result in any claims, 
liability, investigations, costs or restrictions on the ownership, use, or transfer of any of its 
properties pursuant to any Environmental Law. 

As used herein and in Section 5.13, the term "Environmental Law" means any 
law relating to: (A) the protection, investigation or restoration of the environment, health, 
safety, or natural resources, (B) the handling, use, presence, disposal, release or threatened 
release of any Hazardous Substance or (C) noise, odor, wetiands, poUution, contamination or 
any injury or threat of injury to persons or property in connection with any Hazardous 
Substance. 

As used herein and m Section 5.13, the term "Hazardous Substance" means any 
substance that is: listed, classified or regulated pursuant to any Environmental Law, including 
any petroleum product or by-product, asbestos-containing material, lead-containing paint or 
plumbing, polychlorinated biphenyls, radioactive materials or r^on. 
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SECnObl4.l4—BoardAction; Vote Required; Applicability ofSecHon 912. (a) The 
Board of Directors of GTE has unanimously determined that the transactions contemplated 
by this Agreement and the Option Agreements are in the best interests of GTE and its 
stockholders and has resolved to recommend to such stockholders that they vote in favor 
thereof 

(b) The s^proval of the Merger Agreement by two-thirds of the votes of aU 
outstanding shares entitied to vote thereon by aU holders of GTE Common Stock is the only 
vote of the holders of any class or series of the cs^ital stock of GTE required to approve this 
Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby. The provisions of 
Section 11 .A of the Certificate of Incorporation of GTE wiU not apply to the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement and the Option Agreements. 

(c) The provisions of Section 912 of the NYBCL wiU not, assuming the accuracy 
of the representations contained in Section 5.20 hereof (without givir^ effect to the knowledge 
qualification therein), apply to this Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated hereby. 

SECTION 4.15 — Opinions of Financial Advisors. GTE has received the opinions of 
Goldman, Sachs & Co. ("Goldman Sachs"), and Salomon Smith Barney Inc. ("Salomon Smith 
Barney"), each dated July 27,1998, to the effect that, as of such date, the Exchange Ratio is 
fair from a financial point of view to the holders of GTE Common Stock. 

SECTION 4.16 — Brokers. Except for Goldman Sachs, Salomon Smith Barney and 
Chase Securities Inc., the arrangements with which have been disclosed to BeU Atiantic prior 
to the date hereof, which have been eng^ed by GTE, no broker, finder or investment banker 
is entitied to any brokerage, finder's, investment banking or other fee or corxunission in 
coimection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Option Agreements 
based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of GTE or any of its Subsidiaries. 

SECTION 4.17 - Tax Matters. Except as set forth in Section 4.17 of tiie GTE 
Disclosure Schedule: 

(a) AU material federal, state, local and foreign Tax Returns (as defined herein) 
required to have been filed by GTE or its Subsidiaries have been filed with the Expropriate 
governmental authorities by the due date thereof including extensions; 

(b) The Tax Returns referred to in subpart (a) of this Section 4.17 correctiy and 
completely reflect all material Tax UabiUties of GTE and its Subsidiaries required to be shown 
thereon; 

(c) AU material Taxes (as defined herein) shown as due on those Tax Returns 
referred to in subpart (a) of this Section 4.17 as weU as any material foreign witiihoiding 
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Taxes imposed on or in respect of any amounts paid to or by GTE or any of its Subsidiaries, 
whether or not such amoimts or withholding Taxes are referred to or shown on any Tax 
Returns referred to in Section 4,17 (a) hereof, have been fully paid or adequately reflected as 
a liability on GTE's or its Subsidiaries' financial statements included in the GTE SEC Reports; 

(d) ^ t h respect to any period for which Tax Returns have not yet been filed, or 
for which Taxes are not yet due or owing, GTE and its Subsidiaries have made due and 
sufBcient accruals for such Taxes in their respective books and records and financial 
statements; 

(e) Neither GTE nor any of its affiliates has taken, agreed to take or omitted to take 
any action that would prevent or impede the Merger fix>m qualifying as a tax-fiee reorganiza­
tion under Section 368 of the Code; 

(f) No deficiencies for any Taxes have been proposed, asserted or assessed against 
GTE or any of its Subsidiaries that are not adequately reserved for under GAAP, except for 
deficiencies that individually or in the ^gregate would not have a Material Adverse Effect 
on GTE; 

(g) GTE is not aware of any material liens for Taxes upon any assets of GTE or 
any of its Subsidiaries apart from liens for Taxes not yet due and payable; and 

(h) As used in this Agreement, "Taxes" shaU include all (x) federal, state, local or 
foreign income, property, sales, excise, use, occupation, service, transfer, payroll, franchise, 
withholding and other taxes or similar governmental charges, fees, levies or other assessments 
including any interest, penalties or additions with respect thereto, (y) liabiUty for the payment 
of any amoimts of the type described in clause (x) as a result of being a member of an 
afBliated, consoUdated, combined or unitary groiq), and (z) UabiUty for the payment of any 
amounts as a result of being party to any tax sharing agreement or as a result of any express 
or impUed obUgation to indemnify any other person with respect to the payment of any 
amounts of the type described in clause (x) or (y). As used in this Agreement, "Tax Return" 
shall include any declaration, return, report, schedule, certificate, statement or other sinular 
document (including relating or supporting information) required to be fUed or, where none 
is required to be filed with a taxing authority, the statement or other document issued by a 
taxing authority in connection witii any Tax, including any information return, claim for 
refund, amended retum or declaration of estimated Tax. 

SECTION 4.18 — Intellectual Property; Year 2000. 

(a) As used in this Agreement, "GTE Intellectual Property" means aU of the 
foUowmg >^ch are necessary to conduct the business of GTE and its Subsidiaries as presentiy 
conducted or as currentiy proposed to be conducted: (i) trademarks, trade dress, service 
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marks, copyrights, logos, trade names, corporate names and all registrations and ^plications 
to register the same; (ii) patents and pending patent applications; (iii) all computer software 
programs, databases and compUations (collectively, "Computer Softwgore"); (iv) all 
technology, know-how and trade secrets; and (v) all material Ucenses and agreements to which 
GTE or any of its Subsidiaries is a party which relate to any of the foregoing. 

(b) GTE or its Subsidiaries owns or has the right to use, seU or Ucense all GTE 
InteUectual Property, fi'ee and clear of all liens or encumbrances, and aU registrations of GTE 
Intellectual Property are valid and enforceable and have been duly recorded and maintained, 
except, in each case, as would not, individuaUy or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse 
Effect on GTE. 

(c) To the knowledge of GTE, the conduct of GTE's and its Subsidiaries' business 
and the use of the GTE Intellectual Property does not materiaUy infringe, violate or misuse any 
InteUectual property rights or any other proprietary right of any person or give rise to any 
obligations to any person as a result of co-authorship, and neither GTE nor any of its 
Subsidiaries has received any notice, not satis&ctorUy resolved, of any claims or threats that 
GTE's or its Subsidiaries' use of any of the GTE InteUectual Property materially infringes, 
violates or misuses, or is otherwise in confUct with any intellectual property or proprietary 
rights of any third party or that any of the GTE InteUectual Property is invaUd or unenforce­
able that would, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect on GTE. 

(d) GTE and its Subsidiaries have used reasonable efforts to maintain the 
confidentiality of their trade secrets and other confidential GTE Intellectual Property. 

(e) GTE has undertaken a concerted effort to ensure that all of the Computer 
Software, computer firmware, computer hardware (whether general or special purpose), and 
other simUar or related items of automated, computerized, and/or software system(s) that are 
to be used or relied on by GTE or by any of its Subsidiaries in the conduct of their respective 
businesses wiU not malfunction, will not cease to function, wiU not generate incorrect data, 
and will not provide iiKorrect results when processing, providing and/or receiving (i) date-
related data into and between the twentieth and twenty-first centuries and (ii) date-related data 
in connection with any vaUd date in the twentieth and twenty-first centuries. GTE reasonably 
beUeves that such effort wUl be successful. 

SECTION 4.19 — Insurance. Except as set fortfi in Section 4.19 of tiie GTE 
Disclosure Schedule, each of GTE and each of its Significant Subsidiaries is, and has been 
continuously since January 1, 1987 (or such later date as such Significant Subsidiary was 
organized or acquired by GTE), insured with financially responsible insurers in such amounts 
and against such risks and losses as are customary for companies conducting the business as 
conducted by GTE and its Subsidiaries during such time period. Except as set forth in Section 
4.19 of the GTE Disclosure Schedule, smce January 1, 1995, neither GTE nor any of its 
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Subsidiaries has received notice of cancellation or termination with respect to any material 
insurance poUcy of GTE or its Subsidiaries. The insurance policies of GTE and its 
Subsidiaries are valid and enforceable policies. 

SECTION 420 — Ownership of Securities. As of the date hereof, neither GTE nor, 
to GTE's knowledge, any of its affiliates or associates (as such terms are defined under the 
Exchange Act), (i) beneficially owns, directiy or indirectiy, or (u) is party to any agreement, 
arrangement or understanding for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting or disposing of, 
in each case, shares of capital stock of Bell Atiantic, which in the aggregate represent 10% or 
more of the outstanding shares of Bell Atiantic Common Stock (other than shares held by GTE 
Plans and the Bell Atiantic Option Agreement). 

SECTION 4.21 — Certain Contracts, (a) AU contracts described in Item 601(b)(10) 
of Regulation S-K to which GTE or its Subsidiaries is a party or may be bound ("GTE 
Contracts") have been filed as exhibits to, or incorporated by reference in, GTE's Annual 
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,1997. AU GTE Contracts are vaUd and 
in fiill force and effect on the date hereof except to the extent they have previously expired in 
accordance with their terms or if the &ilure to be in full force and effect, individuaUy and in 
the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on GTE. 
Neither GTE nor any of its Subsidiaries has violated any provision of, or committed or failed 
to perform any act which with or without notice, lapse of time or both would constitute a 
default under the provisions of, any GTE Contract, except in each case for those GTE 
Contracts which, individually and in the ̂ gregate, would not reasonably be expected to result 
in a Material Adverse Effect on GTE. 

(b) Set forth in Section 4.21 of the GTE Disclosure Schedule is a list of each 
contract, agreement or arrangement to which GTE or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or may 
be bound which is an arrangement limiting or restraining Bell Atiantic, GTE, any Bell Atlantic 
or GTE Subsidiary or any successor thereto from engaging or competing in any business 
which has, or could reasonably be expected to have in the foreseeable fiiture, a Material 
Adverse Effect on GTE, or to GTE's knowledge, on Bell Atiantic. 

SECTION 422—Rights Agreement, (a) Neitiier BeU Atiantic nor Merger Subsidiary 
shall be deemed to be an Acquiring Person (as such term is defined in the Rights Agreement) 
and the Distribution Date (as defined in the Rights Agreement) shaU not be deemed to occur 
and the Rights will not separate from GTE Common Stock, as a result of entering mto this 
Agreement or the Option Agreements or consummating the Merger and/or the other 
transactions contemplated hereby or thereby. 

(b) GTE has taken all necessary action with respect to all of the outstanding 
Rights (as defined in the Rights Agreement) so that, as of immediately prior to the Effective 
Time, as a result of entering into this Agreement or consummating tiie Merger and/or the other 
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transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Option Agreements, (i) neither GTE nor 
BeU Atlantic will have any obligations under the Rights or the Rights Agreement and (U) the 
holders of the Rights wiU have no rights under the Rights or the Rights Agreement 

ARTICLE V - REPRESENTATIONS AND 
WARRANTIES OF BELL ATLANTIC 

Except as expressly disclosed in the BeU Atlantic Filed SEC Reports (as defined 
below) (including aU exhibits referred to therein) or as set forth in the disclosure schedule 
deUv^redbyBeUAtiantictoGTEontiiedatehereof(tiie"BeUAtiantic Disclosure Schedule" 
and together with the GTE Disclosure Schedule, the "Disclosure Schedules") (each section of 
which quaUfies the correspondingly numbered representation and warranty or covenant 
as specified therein). Bell Atlantic hereby represents and warrants to GTE as foUows: 

SECTION 5.1 —Organization and Qualification; Subsidiaries. Each of BeU Atiantic 
and each of its Significant Subsidiaries is a corporation dufy organized, vaUdly existing and 
in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation or organization. Each of 
the BeU Atiantic Subsidiaries which is not a Significant Subsidiary is duly organized, vaUdly 
existing and in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction oflncorporation or organiza­
tion, except for such failure which, when taken together with all other such failures, would not 
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Bell Atlantic. Each of Bell 
Atlantic and its Subsidiaries has the requisite corporate pow^ and authority and any necessary 
governmental authority, franchise, license or permit to own, operate or lease the properties that 
it purports to own, operate or lease and to carry on its business as it is now being conducted, 
and is duly quaUfied as a foreign corporation to do business, and is in good standing, in each 
jurisdiction where the character of its properties owned, operated or leased or the nature of its 
activities makes such qualification necessary, except for such faUure which, when taken 
together with all other such failures, would not reasonably be expected to have a Material 
Adverse Effect on BeU Atiantic. 

SECTION 5.2—Certificate of IncorporationandBylaws. BeU Atiantic has heretofore 
furnished, or otherwise made avaUable, to GTE a complete and correct copy of tiie Certificate 
oflncorporation and the Bylaws, each as amended to the date hereof, of Bell Atiantic. Such 
Certificate oflncorporation and Bylaws are in fuU force and effect Neither BeU Atiantic nor 
any of its Significant Subsidiaries is in violation of any of the provisions of its respective 
Certificate oflncorporation or, in any material re^^ect, its Bylaws* 

SECTION 5.3 — Capitalization (a) The autiiorized capital stock of BeU Atlantic 
consists of (i) 250,000,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock, par value $. 10 per share, none 
of which are outstanding or reserved for issuance, and (u) 2,250,000,000 shares of BeU 
Atiantic Common Stock, ofwhich, as ofJvme 30,1998, (A) 1,553,473,710 shares were issued 
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and outstanding, (B) 22,722,614 shares were held in the treasury of BeU Atiantic and (C) 
80,392,512 shares were issuable upon the exercise of options outstanding under the BeU 
Atiantic option plans Usted in Section 5.3 of the Bell Atiantic Disclosure Schedule. Except 
for Bell Atiantic Equity Rights issued to Bell Atiantic employees in the ordinary course of 
business or, after the date hereof, as permitted by Section 6.2 hereof or pursuant to the BeU 
Atiantic Option Agreement, (i) since June 30,1998, no shares of Bell Atiantic Common Stock 
have been issued, except upon the exercise of options and rights described in the immediately 
preceding sentence, and (u) there are no outstanding BeU Atiantic Equity Rights. For purposes 
of this Agreement, "BeU Atiantic Equity Rights" shaU mean subscriptions, options, warrants, 
caUs, comirutments, ̂ reements, conversion rights or other rights of any character (contingent 
or otherwise) to purchase or otherwise acquire, any shares of the capital stock of Bell Atiantic 
fix>m BeU Atiantic or any of BeU Atiantic's SubsicUaries at any time, or upon the happening 
of any stated event, excluding the GTE Stock Option. Section 5.3 of the BeU Atiantic 
Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and accurate list of certain information with respect 
to aU outstanding BeU Atiantic Equity Rights as of June 30,1998. 

(b) Except as set forth in Section 5.3 of the Bell Atiantic Disclosure Schedule, 
pursuant to the GTE Stock Option or, after the date hereof, as pennitted by Section 6.2 hereof, 
there are no outstanding obligations of Bell Atiantic or any of Bell Atiantic's Subsidiaries to 
repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any shares of cs^ital stock of Bell Atiantic. 

(c) AU of the issued and outstanding shares of BeU Atiantic Common Stock are 
validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable. 

(d) All of the outstanding capital stock of each of BeU Atiantic's Significant 
Subsidiaries, and all of the outstanding capital stock of Bell Atlantic's Subsidiaries owned 
directiy or indirectiy by BeU Atiantic, is duly authorized, vaUdly issued, fuUy paid and 
nonassessable. All of the outstanding capital stock of each of Bell Atiantic's Significant 
Subsidiaries is owned by BeU Atiantic free and clear of any liens, security interests, pledges, 
agreements, claims, charges or encumbrances. All of the outstandir^ capital stock of BeU 
Atiantic's Subsidiaries owned directiy or indirectiy by BeU Atlantic is owned fi%e and clear 
of any Uens, security interests, pledges, agreements, claims, charges or encumbrances, except 
where such liens, security interests, pledges, agreements, claims, charges or encumbrances 
would not, individually or m the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect on BeU Atiantic. 
Except as hereafter issued or entered into m accordance with Section 6.2 hereof, there are no 
existing subscriptions, options, warrants, calls, commitments, agreements, conversion rights 
or other rights of any character (contingent or otherwise) to purchase or otherwise acquire 
from BeU Atiantic or any of BeU Atiantic's Subsidiaries at any time, or upon the happening 
of any stated event, any shares of the capital stock of any BeU Atiantic Subsidiary, whether 
or not presentiy issued or outstanding (except for rights of first refusal to purchase interests 
in Subsidiaries which are not whoUy owned by Bell Atlantic), or any of GTE's direct or 
indirect interests in any Material Investment, and there are no outstanding obUgations of BeU 
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Atiantic or any of Bell Atiantic's Subsidiaries to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any 
shares of capital stock of any of Bell Atiantic's Subsidiaries or securities related to any 
investments, other than such as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material 
Adverse Effect on GTE. 

SECTION 5.4—Authority Relative to this Agreement. Bell Atiantic has the necessary 
corporate power and authority to enter into this Agreement and, subject to obtaining the 
requisite stockholder s^proval of the issuance (the "Stock Issuance") of BeU Atiantic 
Common Stock pursuant to the Merger Agreement and die Certificate Amendment 
(collectively, the "BeU Atiantic Stockholder Approval"), to perform its obligations hereunder. 
The execution and deUvery of this Agreement by BeU Atiantic and the consummation by Bell 
Atiantic of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by aU necessary 
corporate action on the part of Bell Atlantic, subject to obtaining the Bell Atiantic Stockholder 
Approval. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by BeU Atiantic and, 
assuming the due authorization, execution and deUvery thereofby the other Parties, constitutes 
a legal, valid and binding obligation of Bell Atiantic, enforceable against it in accordance with 
its terms, subject to appUcable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other 
laws relating to or affecting the rights and remedies of creditors generally and to general 
principles of equity (regardless of whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law). 

SECTION 5.5 —No Conflict; Required Filings and Consents, (a) Except as described 
in subsection (b) below, the execution and delivery of this Agreement by Bell Atiantic do not, 
and the performance of this Agreement by Bell Atiantic wUl not, (i) violate or confUct with 
the Certificate oflncorporation or Bylaws of Bell Atiantic, (ii) confUct with or violate any law, 
regulation, court order, judgment or decree applicable to BeU Atiantic or any of its 
Subsidiaries or by which any of their respective property or assets (including investments) is 
bound or affected, (iU) violate or confUct with the Certificate oflncorporation or Bylaws of 
any of BeU Atiantic's Subsidiaries, or (iv) result in any breach of or constitute a default (or an 
event which with notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) under, or give to 
others any rights of termination or canceUation of, or result in the creation of a Uen or 
encumbrance on any of the properties or assets (including investments) of BeU Atiantic or any 
of its Subsidiaries pursuant to, result in the loss of any material benefit under, or result in any 
modification or alteration of, or require the consent of any other party to, any contract, 
instrument, pemut, Ucense or firanchise to ̂ ^ch BeU Atiantic or any of its Subsidiaries is a 
party or by which BeU Atiantic, any of such Subsidiaries or any of tiieir respective property 
or assets (including investments) is bound or affected, except, in the case of clauses (ii), (ui) 
and (iv) above, for confUcts, violations, breaches, defaults, results or consents which, 
individually or in the aggregate, would not have a Material Adverse Effect on Bell Atiantic. 

(b) Except for appUcable requirements, if any, of state or foreign pubUc utility 
commissions or laws or similar local or state foreign regulatory bodies or laws, state or foreign 
antitrust or foreign investment laws and commissions, the Federal Communications 

23 



Commission, stock exchanges i^ion which the securities of Bell Atiantic are listed, the 
Exchange Act, the premerger notification requirements of the HSR Act, filing and recordation 
of appropriate merger or other documents as required by the NYBCL and any filings required 
pursuant to any state securities or "blue sky" laws or the rules of any applicable stock 
exchanges, (i) neither BeU Atiantic nor any of its Significant Subsidiaries is required to submit 
any notice, report or other filing with any Governmental Entity in connection with the 
execution, delivery or performance of this Agreement and (u) no waiver, consent, approval 
or authorization of any Govnnmental Entity is required to be obtained by Bell Atiantic or any 
of its Significant Subsidiaries in connection with its execution, delivery or performance of this 
Agreement 

SECTION 5.6 — SEC Filings; Financial Statements, (a) BeU Atiantic has filed all 
forms, reports and documents required to be filed with the SEC since January 1,1 S>95, and has 
heretofore delivered or made available to GTE, in the form filed with the SEC, together with 
any amendments thereto, its (i) Aimual Reports on Form 10-K for the fiscal years ended 
December 31, 1995, 1996 and 1997, (u) aU proxy statements relating to BeU Atiantic's 
meetings of stockholders (whether annual or special) held since January 1, 1995, (iii) 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,1998, and (iv) all other 
reports or registration statements fUed by Bell Atiantic with the SEC since January 1,1995,. 
including without limitation aU Annual Report on Form 11-K filed with respect to the Bell 
Atiantic Plans (collectively, die "Bell Atiantic SEC Reports", with such Bell Atiantic SEC 
Reports filed with the SEC prior to the date hereof being referred to as "Bell Atiantic Filed 
SEC Reports"). The Bell Atiantic SEC Reports (i) were prepared substantially in accordance 
with the requirements of the 1933 Act or the Exchange Act, as the case may be, and the rules 
and regulations promulgated under each of such respective acts, and (ii) did not at the time 
they were filed contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light 
of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 

(b) The financial statements, including aU related notes and schedules, contamed 
in the BeU Atiantic SEC Reports (or incorporated by reference therein) fairly present the 
consolidated financial position of Bell Atiantic and its Subsidiaries as at the respective dates 
thereof and the consoUdated results of operations and cash flows of BeU Atiantic and its 
Subsidiaries for the periods indicated in accordance with GAAP applied on a consistent basis 
throughout the periods involved (except for changes in accounting principles disclosed in the 
notes tiiereto) and subject in the case of interim financial statements to normal year-end 
adjustments. 

SECTION 5.7—Absence of Certain Changes or Events. Except as disclosed in the 
BeU Atiantic Filed SEC Reports and in Section 5.7 of the BeU Atiantic Disclosure Schedule, 
since December 31, 1997, and except as pennitted by this Agreement or consented to 
hereunder, BeU Atiantic and its Subsidaries have not incurred any material UabiUty required 
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to be disclosed on a balance sheet of BeU Atiantic and its Subsidiaries or the footnotes thereto 
prepared in conformity with GAAP, except in the ordinary course of their businesses 
consistent with their past practices, and there has not been any change, or any event involving 
a prospective change, m the business, financial condition or results of operations of BeU 
Atiantic or any of its Subsidiaries which has had, or is reasonably likely to have, a Material 
Adverse Effect on BeU Atiantic, and BeU Atiantic and its Subsidiaries have conducted their 
respective businesses in the ordinary course consistent with their past practices. 

SECTION 5.8 — Litigation. There are no claims, actions, suits, proceedings or 
investigations pending or, to BeU Atiantic's knowledge, threatened against Bell Atiantic or any 
of its Subsidiaries, or any properties or rights of BeU Atlantic or any of its Subsidiaries, by or 
before any Governmental Entity, except for those that are not, individuaUy or in the ̂ gregate, 
reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect on Bell Atiantic or prevent, materiaUy 
delay or intentionally delay the ability of GTE to consummate the transactions contemplated 
hereby. 

SECTION 5.9—Permits; No Violation of Law. The businesses of BeU Atiantic and 
its Subsidiaries are not being conducted in violation of any Legal Requirements or in violation 
of any Permits, except for possible violations none of wrtiich, individually or in the aggregate, 
may reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Bell Atlantic. No 
investigation or review by any Governmental Entity (mcluding any stock exchange or other 
self-regulatory body) with respect to Bell Atiantic or its Subsidiaries in relation to any alleged 
violation of law or regulation is pending or, to Bell Atiantic's knowledge, threatened, nor has 
any Governmental Entity (includmg any stock exchange or other self-regulatory body) 
indicated an intention to conduct the same, except for such investigations which, if they 
resulted in adverse findings, would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the 
aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect on BeU Atlantic. Except as set forth in Section 5.9 of the 
Bell Atlantic Disclosure Schedule, r^ither BeU Atlantic nor any of its Subsidiaries is subject 
to any cease and desist or other order, judgment, injimction or decree issued by, or is a party 
to any written Agreement, consent Agreement or memorandum of understanding with, or is 
a party to any commitment letter or similar undertaking to, or is subject to any order or 
directive by, or has adopted any board resolutions at tiie request of, any Governmental Entity 
that materially restricts the conduct of its business or Â 4uch may reasonably be expected to 
have a Mat^ial Adverse Effect on BeU Atlantic, nor has BeU Atiantic or any of its 
Subsidiaries been advised that any Governmental Entity is considering issuing or requesting 
any of the foregoing. None of the representations and warranties made in this Section 5.9 are 
being made with respect to Environmental Laws. 

SECTION 5.10-Joint Proxy Statement. None of the information supplied or to be 
si^pUed by or on behalf of BeU Atiantic for inclusion or incorporation by reference in the 
Registration Statement wiU, at the tune the Registration Statement becomes effective under 
the 1933 Act, contam any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact 
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required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements tharein, hi the light of the 
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. None of the information suppUed 
or to be supplied by or on behalf of Bell Atlantic for inclusion or incorporation by reference 
in the Joint Proxy Statement wiU, at the dates mailed to stockholders and at the times of the 
GTE stockholders' meeting and the BeU Atiantic stockholders' meeting, contain any untrue 
statement of a material ^ct or omit to state any material ^ t required to be stated therein or 
necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the Ught of the circumstances under 
which they were made, not misleading. The Registration Statement and the Joint Proxy 
Statement (except for information relating solely to GTE) wiU comply as to form in all 
material respects with the provisions of the 1933 Act and the Exchange Act and the rules and 
regulations promulgated thereunder. 

SECTION 5.11— Employee Matters; ERISA, (a) Except v^here tiie feUure to be true 
would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect on BeU Atiantic, 
(i) each Bell Atiantic Plan has been operated and administered in accordance with ̂ pUcable 
law, including but not limited to ERISA and the Code, (ii) each BeU Atiantic Plan intended 
to be "qualified" within the meaning of Section 401(a) of the Code is so qualified, (iii) except 
as required by COBRA, no Bell Atlantic Plan provides death or medical benefits (whether or 
not insured), with respect to current or former employees of Bell Atiantic or of any trade or 
business, whether or not incorporated, vAdch together with Bell Atlantic would be deemed a 
"single employer" witiun the meaning of Section 4001 of ERISA (a "BeU Atiantic ERISA 
Affiliate"), beyond their retirement or other termination of service, (iv) no liabiUty under Titie 
IV of ERISA has been incurred by Bell Atiantic or any BeU Atiantic ERISA Affiliate tiiat has 
not been satisfied in full, and no condition exists that presents a material risk to Bell Atiantic 
or any Bell Atiantic ERISA AfBUate of incurring any such UabiUty (other than PBGC 
premiums), (v) all contributions or other amounts due from Bell Atiantic or any BeU Atiantic 
ERISA AffiUate with respect to each Bell Atiantic Plan have been paid in fiill, (vi) neither Bell 
Atiantic nor any BeU Atiantic ERISA Affiliate has eng^ed in a transaction in connection with 
which Bell Atiantic or any of its Subsidiaries could reasonably be expected to be subject to 
either a civU penalty assessed pursuant to Section 409 or 502(i) of ERISA or a tax imposed 
pursuant to Section 4975 or 4976 of the Code, (vU) to the best knowledge of BeU Atiantic 
there are no pending, threatened or anticipated claims (other than routine claims for benefits) 
by, on behalf of or against any BeU Atiantic Plan or any trusts related thoeto, and (viii) neither 
the execution and deUvery of this Agreement nor the consummation of the transactions 
contemplated hereby wiU (A) result in any payment (mcluding, without limitation, severance, 
unemployment compensation, golden parachute or otherwise) becoming due to any director 
or any employee of Bell Atiantic or any of its Subsidiaries under any Bell Atiantic Plan or 
otherwise, (B) materially increase any benefits otherwise payable under any Bell Atiantic 
PlanG or (C) result in any acceleration of the time of payment or vesting of any such benefits. 

(b) For purposes of this Agreement,"BeU Atiantic Plan" shaU mean each 
deferred compensation, bonus or other incentive compensation, stock purchase, stock option 
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or other equity compensation plan, program, agreement or arrangement; each severance or 
termination pay, medical, surgical, hospitalization, life insurance or other "welfare" plan, fund 
or program (within the meaning of section 3(1) of ERISA); each profit-sharing, stock bonus 
or other "pension" plan, fund or program (within the meaning of section 3(2) of ERISA); each 
employment, termination or severance ̂ reement; and each other employee benefit plan, fund, 
program, agreement or arrangement, in each case, that is sponsored, maintained or contributed 
to or required to be contributed to by BeU Atiantic or by any BeU Atiantic ERISA AfBUate 
or to yMch BeU Atlantic or any Bell Atlantic ERISA A£BUate is party, whether written or oral, 
for tiie benefit of any employee or former employee of BeU Atiantic or any BeU Atiantic 
ERISA Affiliate. 

SECTION 5.12—Labor Matters. Neither Bell Atiantic nor any of its Subsidiaries is 
the subject of any material proceeding asserting that it or any of its Subsidiaries has committed 
an unfair labor practice or is seeking to compel it to bargain with any labor union or labor 
organization nor is there pending or, to the actual knowledge of its executive officers, 
threatened in writing, nor has there been for the past five years, any labor strike, dispute, 
waUcout, work stopple, slow-down or lockout involving it or any of its Subsidiaries, except 
in each case as is not, individually or m the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a Material 
Adverse Effect on BeU Atiantic. 

SECTION 5.13— Environmental Matters. Except for such matters that, individually 
or in the ^gregate, are not reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect on Bell 
Atiantic: (i) each of BeU Atiantic and its Subsidiaries has complied with aU applicable 
Environmental Laws (as defined below); (ii) the properties currentiy owned or operated by it 
or any of its Subsidiaries (includmg soils, groundwater, sur&ce water, buildings or other 
structures) are not contaminated with any Hazardous Substances (as defined below); (iii) the 
properties formerly owned or operated by it or any of its Subsidiaries were not contaminated 
with Hazardous Substances during the period of ownership or operation by it or any of its 
Subsidiaries; (iv) neither it nor any of its Subsidiaries is subject to UabiUty for any Hazardous 
Substance disposal or contamination on any third party property; (v) neither it nor any 
Subsidiary has been associated with any release or threat of release of any Hazardous 
Substance; (vi) neither it nor any Subsidiary has received any notice, demand, letter, claim or 
request for inft}miation alleging that it or any of its Subsidiaries may be in violation of or 
liable under any Environmental Law (including any claims relating to electrom^netic fields 
or microwave transmissions); (vu) neither it nor any of its SubsicUaries is subject to any orders, 
decrees, injunctions or other arrangements with any Govermnental Entity or is subject to any 
indemnity or other agreement with any third party relating to UabiUty under any Environmen­
tal Law or relating to Hazardous Substances; and (vin) there are not circumstances or 
conditions involving it or any of its Subsidiaries that could reasonably be expected to result 
in any claims, liabiUty, investigations, costs or restrictions on the ownership, use, or transfer 
of any of its properties pursuant to any Environmental Law. 
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No representation is made by BeU Atiantic in this Section 5.13 for which 
neither Bell Atiantic nor any of its Subsidiaries is (or would be, if a claim were brought in a 
formal proceeding) a named defendant, but as to which BeU Atiantic or any of its Subsidiaries 
may be Uable for an allocable share of any judgment rendered pursuant to the POR. No 
representation is made by BeU Atiantic m subsection (i) of this Section 5.13 as to properties 
owned, leased or operated by AT&T or any of its Subsidiaries except for such properties 
which are, or at any time since November 1,1983 were, owned, leas^ or operated 1^ BeU 
Atiantic or any of its Subsidiaries. 

SECTION 5.14 — Board Action; Vote Required (a) The Board of Directors of BeU 
Atiantic has unanimously determined that the transactions contemplated by this Agreement 
and the Option Agreements are in the best interests of BeU Atiantic and its stockholders and 
has resolved to recommend to such stockholders that they vote in &vor thereof. 

• 

(b) The approval of the Certificate Amendment by a majority of the votes entitied 
to be cast by all holdera of Bell Atiantic Common Stock and the sqyproval of the Stock 
Issuance pursuant thereto by a majority of the votes cast thereon, provided that the total votes 
cast thereon represents bver 50% in interest of all securities of Bell Atiantic entitied to vote 
thereon, are the only votes of the holders of any class or series of the capital stock of Bell 
Atiantic required to approve this Agreement, the Merger, the Certificate Amendment, the 
Stock Issuance and the other transactions contemplated hereby. 

SECTION 5.15 — Opinions of Financial Advisors. BeU Atiantic has received the 
opinions of Bear, Steams & Co. Inc. ("Bear Steams") and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & 
Smith Incorporated ("Merrill Lynch"), each dated July 27,1998, to the effect that, as of such 
date, the Exchange Ratio is &ir fix>m a financial point of view to the holders of Bell Atiantic 
Common Stock. 

SECTION 5.16 — Brokers. Except for Bear Steams, MerrUl Lynch and Morgan 
Stanley Dean Witter, the arrangements with which have been disclosed to GTE prior to the 
date hereof, which have been engaged by BeU Atiantic, no broker, finder or investment banker 
is entitied to any brokerage, finder's, investment banking or other fee or commission in 
connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Option Agreements 
based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of BeU Atlantic or any of its Subsidiaries. 

SECTION 5.17—Tax Matters. Except as set forth in Section 5.17 of tiie BeU Atiantic 
Disclosure Schedule: 

(a) AU material federal, state, local and foreign Tax Returns required to have been 
filed by Bell Atiantic or its Subsidiaries have been filed with the appropriate governmental 
authorities by the due date thereof including extensions; 
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(b) The Tax Returns referred to in subpart (a) of this Section 5.17 correctiy and 
completely reflect all material Tax UabiUties of Bell Atiantic and its Subsidiaries required to 
be shown thereon; 

(c) All material Taxes shown as due on those Tax Returns referred to in subpart 
(a) of this Section 5.17, as weU as any material foreign withholding Taxes imposed on or in 
respect of any amounts paid to or by BeU Atiantic or any of its Subsidiaries, whether or not 
such amounts or withholding Taxes are referred to or shown on any Tax Returns referred to 
in Section 5.17 (a) hereof, have been fiiUy paid or adequately reflected as a UabiUty on BeU 
Atiantic's or its Subsidiaries' financial statements included in the BeU Atiantic SEC Reports; 

(d) With respect to any prior period for which Tax Returns have not yet been filed, 
or for which Taxes are not yet due or owing, BeU Atiantic azKi its Subsidiaries have made due 
and sufficient accruals for such Taxes in their respective books and records and financial 
statements; 

(e) Neither Bell Atiantic nor any of its affiliates has taken, agreed to take or 
omitted to take any action that would prevent or impede the Merger from qualifying as a tax-
firee reorganization under Section 368 of the Code; 

(f) No deficiencies for any Taxes have been proposed, asserted or assessed agains t 
Bell Atiantic or any of its Subsidiaries that are not adequately reserved for under GAAP, 
except for deficiencies that individually or in the aggregate would not have a Material Adverse 
Effect on BeU Atiantic; and 

(g) BeU Atiantic is not aware of any material liens for Taxes i ^ n any assets of 
Bell Atiantic or any of its Subsidiaries apart fix>m liens for Taxes not yet due and payable. 

SECTION S.li—Intellectual Property. 

(a) As used in this Agreement, "BeU Atiantic InteUectual Property" means aU of 
the foUowing which are necessary to conduct the business of Bell Atiantic and its Subsidiaries 
as presentiy conducted or as currentiy proposed to be conducted: (i) trademarks, trade dress, 
service marks, copyrights, logos, trade names, corporate names and aU registrations and 
appUcations to register the same; (u) patents and pending patent ̂ plications; (iU) Computer 
Software; (iv) all technology, know-how and trade secrets; and (v) all material licenses and 
agreements to A^ch Bell Atiantic or any of its Subsidiaries is a party which relate to any of 
the foregoing. 

(b) BeU Atiantic or its Subsidiaries owns or has the right to use, sell or license all 
BeU Atiantic Intellectual Property, firee and clear of aU liens or encumbrances, and all 
registrations of BeU Atiantic hitellectual Property are valid and enforceable and have been 
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duly recorded and maintained, except, in each case, as would not, individually or in the 
aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect on Bell Atiantic. 

(c) To the knowledge of Bell Atiantic, the conduct of Bell Atiantic's and its 
Subsidiaries' business and the use of the BeU Atlantic InteUectual Property does not materially 
infiinge, violate or misuse any intellectual property rights or any other proprietary right of any 
person or give rise to any obUgations to any person as a result of co-authorship, and neither 
BeU Atiantic nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any notice, not satis&ctorUy resolved, 
of any claims or threats that Bell Atlantic's or its Subsidiaries' use of any of the BeU Atiantic 
Intellectual Property materiaUy infiinges, violates or misuses, or is otherwise in conflict with 
any intellectual property or proprietary rights of any third party or that any of the Bell Atlantic 
Intellectual Property is invalid or unenforceable that would, individuaUy or in the aggregate, 
have a Material Adverse Effect on BeU Atiantic. 

(d) Bell Atiantic and its Subsidiaries have used reasonable efforts to maintain the 
confidentiality of their trade secrets and other confidential BeU Atiantic InteUectual Property. 

(e) BeU Atiantic has undertaken a concerted effort to ensure that all of the 
Computer Software, computer firmware, computer hardware (whether general or special 
purpose), and other similar or related items of automated, computerized, and/or software 
system(s) that are to be used or relied on by BeU Atlantic or by any of its Subsidiaries in the 
conduct of their respective businesses will not malfunction, will not cease to function, will not 
generate incorrect data, and will not provide incorrect results when processing, providing 
and/or receiving (i) date-related data into and between the twentieth and twenty-first centuries 
and (U) date-related data in connection with any valid date in the twentieth and twenty-first 
centuries. BeU Atiantic reasonably believes that such effort will be successful. 

SECTION 5.19—Insurance. Except as set forth in Section 5,19 of tiie BeU Atiantic 
Disclosure Schedule, each of BeU Atiantic and each of its Significant Subsidiaries is, and has 
been continuously since January 1,1987 (or such later date as such Significant Subsidiary was 
organized or acquired by Bell Atlantic), msured with financiaUy responsible insurers in such 
amounts and against such risks and losses as are customary for companies conducting the 
business as conducted by Bell Atiantic and its Subsidiaries during such time period. Except 
as set forth in Section 5.19 of the BeU Atiantic Disclosure Schedule, since January 1,1995, 
neither BeU Atiantic nor any of its Subsidiaries has received notice of cancellation or 
termination with respect to any material insurance poUcy of BeU Atiantic or its Subsidiaries. 
The insurance policies of Bell Atiantic and its Subsidiaries are valid and enforceable policies. 

SECTION 5.20—Ownership of Securities. As of the date hereof, neitiier BeU Atiantic 
nor, to BeU Atiantic's knowledge, any of its affiliates or associates (as such terms are defined 
under the Exchange Act), (a) (i) beneficially owns, directiy or indirectiy, or (u) is party to any 
agreement, arrangement or understanding for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting or 
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disposing of, in each case, shares of capital stock of GTE, which in the ^gregate represent 
10% or more of the outstanding shares of GTE Common Stock (other than shares held by Bell 
Atiantic Plans and the GTE Option Agreement), nor (b) is an "interested stockholder" of GTE 
witiiin tiie meamng of Section 912 of the NYBCL. Except as set forfli in Section 5.20 of the 
BeU Atiantic Disclosure Schedule, BeU Atiantic owns no shares of GTE Common Stock 
described in the parenthetical clause of Section 2.2 (a) hereof which would be canceled and 
retired without consideration pursuant to Section 2.3 (a) hereof. 

SECTION 5.21 — Certain Contracts, (a) AU contracts descnljed in Item 60I(b)(10) 
of Regulation S-K to which Bell Atiantic or its Subsidiaries is a party or may be bound ("Bell 
Atiantic Contracts") have been filed as exhibits to, or incorporated by reference in. Bell 
Atlantic's Aimual Report on Form lO-K for the year ended December 31,1997. All BeU 
Atiantic Contracts are vaUd and in full force and effect on the date hereof except to the extent 
they have previously expired in accordance with their terms or if the failure to be in full force 
and effect, individually and in the aggregate would not reasonably be expected to have a 
Material Adverse Effect on BeU Atiantic. Neither BeU Atiantic nor any of its Subsidiaries has 
violated any provision of, or committed or failed to perform any act Â 4uch with or without 
notice, lapse of time or both would constitute a default under the provisions of, any Bell 
Atiantic Contract, except in each case for those BeU Atiantic Contracts which, individually 
and in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect 
on BeU Atiantic. 

(b) Set forth in Section 5.21 of the BeU Atiantic Disclosure Schedule is a list of 
each contract, agreement or arrangement to which Bell Atiantic or any of its Subsidiaries is 
a party or may be bound which is an arrangement limiting or restraining Bell Atiantic, GTE, 
any Bell Atiantic or GTE Subsidiary or any successor thereto fix)m engaging or competing in 
any business which has, or could reasonably be expected to have in the foreseeable future, a 
Material Adverse Effect on BeU Atiantic or, to Bell Atiantic's knowledge, on GTE. 

SECTION 5.22—Merger Subsidiary. BeU Atiantic and Merger Subsidiary represent 
and warrant to GTE as follows: 

(a) Organization and Corporate Power. Merger Subsidiary is a corporation duly 
incorporated, yaUdly existing and hi good standing under the laws of the State of New York. 
Merger Subsidiary is a direct, ̂ o U y owned subsidiary of Bell Atiantic. 

(b) Corporate Authorization. Merger Subsidiary has aU requisite corporate power 
and authority to enter into this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated 
hereby. The execution, delivery and performance by Merger Subsidiary of this Agreement and 
the consummation by Merger Subsidiary of the transactions contemplated hereby have t)een 
duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on tiie part ofMerger Subsidiary. This 
Agreement has been duly executed and deUvered by Merger Subsidiary and constitutes a valid 
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and binding agreement ofMerger Subsidiary, enforceable against it in accordance with its 
terms, except as such enforceabiUty may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
moratorium and other sinular laws relating to or affecting creditors generally, by general 
equity principles (regardless of irfiether such enforceabiUty is considered in a proceeding in 
equity or at law) or by an impUed covenant of good frdth and fair dealu^. 

(c) Non Contraveruion. The execution, delivery and performaiKe by Merger 
Subsidiary of this Agreement and the consurrunation by Merger Subsidiary of the transactions 
contemplated hereby do not and wiU not contravene or conflict with the certificate of 
incorporation or by-laws of Mergw Subsidiary. 

(d) No Business Activities. Merger Subsidiary has not conducted any activities 
other than in connection with the organization of Merger Subsidiary, the negotiation and 
execution of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. 
Merger Subsidiary has no Subsidiaries. 

ARTICLE VI - CONDUCT OF BUSINESSES 
PENDING THE MERGER 

SECTION 6.1 — Transition Planning. Ivan G. Seidenberg and Charles R. Lee, as 
Chief Executive Officers of BeU Atiantic and GTE, respectively, jointiy shall.be responsible 
for coordinating aU aspects of transition planning and implementation relating to the Merger 
and the other transactions contemplated hereby. If either such person ceases to be Chief 
Executive Officer of his respective comfiany for any reason, such person's successor as Chief 
Executive Officer shaU assume his predecessor's responsibilities under this Section 6.1. 
During the period between the date hereof and the Effective Time, Messrs. Seidenb^ and Lee 
jointiy shall (i) examine various alternatives regarding the manner in which to best organize 
and manage the businesses of Bell Atlantic and GTE after the Effective Time, and (ii) 
coordinate policies and strategies with respect to regulatory authorities and bodies, in all cases 
subject to applicable law. 

SECTION 6,2—Conduct of Business in the Ordinary Course. Each of GTE and BeU 
Atiantic covenants and agrees that, subject to the provisions of Sections 7.16 and 7.17 hereof, 
between the date hereof and the Effective Time, unless the other shall otherwise consent in 
writii^ and except as described in Section 6.2 of the Disclosure Schedules or as otherwise 
expressly contemplated hereby, the business of such Party and its Subsidiaries shaU be 
conducted only in, and such entities shaU not take any action except in, the ordinary course 
of business and in a maimer consistent witii past practice; and each of GTE and BeU Atiantic 
and their respective Subsidiaries wiU use their commercially reasonable efforts to preserve 
substantiaUy intact their business organizations, to keep available the services of those of their 
present officers, employees and consultants who are integral to the operation of their 
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businesses as presentiy conducted and to preserve their present relationships with significant 
customers and suppUers and with other persons with whom they have significant business 
relations. By way of amplification and not limitation, except as set forth in Section 6.2 of the 
Disclosure Schedules or as otherwise expressly contemplated by this Agreement and the 
Option Agreements, and subject to the provisions of Sections 7.16 and 7.17, eachof GTE and 
Bell Atiantic agrees on behalf of itself and its Subsidiaries that they wUl not, between the date 
hereof and the Effective Time, directiy or mdirectiy, do any of the foUowing witiiout tiie prior 
written consent of the other. 

(a) (i) except for (A) the issuance of shares of GTE Common Stock and BeU 
Atiantic Common Stock m order to satisfy obUgations under the GTE Plans and Bell Atlantic 
Plans in effect on the date hereof and BeU Atiantic Equity Rights or GTE Equity Rights issued 
thereunder and under existing dividend reinvestment plans, which issuances shaU be consistent 
with its existing poUcy and past practice; (B) grants of stock options with respect to GTE 
Common Stock or BeU Atiantic Common Stock to employees in the ordinary course of 
business and in amounts and in a manner consistent with past practice; and (C) the issuance 
of securities by a Subsidiary to any person which is directiy or indirectiy wholly owned by 
GTE or Bell Atiantic (as the case may be): issue, sell, pledge, dispose of, encumber, 
authorize, or propose the issuance, sale, pledge, disposition, encumbrance or authorization of 
any shares of capital stock of any class, or any options, warrants, convertible securities or 
other rights of any kind to acquire any shares of capital stock of, or any other ownership 
interest in, such Party or any of its Subsidiaries (excluding such as may arise upon the exercise 
of existing rights); (ii) amend or propose to amend the Certificate oflncorporation or Bylaws 
of such Party (other than by Bell Atlantic as contemplated hereby) or any of its Subsidiaries 
(other than wholly owned Subsidiaries) or adopt, amend or propose to amend any shareholder 
rights plan or related rights agreement; (iU) split, combine or reclassify any outstanding shares 
of GTE Common Stock and Bell Atiantic Common Stock, or declare, set aside or pay any 
dividend or distribution payable in cash, stock, property or otherwise with respect to shares 
of GTE Common Stock and BeU Atiantic Common Stock, except for cash dividends to 
stockholders of GTE and BeU Atiantic declared in accordance with existing dividend poUcy 
payable to stockholders of record on the record dates consistentiy used in prior periods; (iv) 
redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire or offer to redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire any 
shares of its capital stock, except that each of GTE and BeU Atiantic shaU be permitted to 
acquire shares of GTE Common Stock or BeU Atiantic Common Stock, as the case may be, 
from time to time in open maricet transactions, consistent with past practice and in compliance 
with applicable law and the provisions of any applicable employee benefit plan, program or 
arrar^ement, for issuance upon tiie exercise of options and other rights granted, and the 
lapsing of restrictions, under such Party's respective employee benefit plans, programs and 
arrangements and dividend reinvestment plans; or (v) authorize or propose or enter into any 
contract, agreement, commitment or arrangement with respect to any of the matters prohibited 
by this Section 6.2 (a); 
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(b) (i) acquire (by merger, consolidation, or acquisition of stock or assets) any 
corporation, partnership or other business organization or division thereof or make any 
investment in another entity (other than an entity which is a wholly owned Subsidiary of such 
Party as of the date hereof and other than incorporation of a whoUy owned Subsidiary), except 
for acquisitions or investments v^ch do not exceed $500,000,000 in the segregate for all such 
acquisitions or investments in any 12-month period; (U) except in the ordinary course of 
business and in a maimer consistent with past practice, seU, plec^e, dispose of, or encumber 
or authorize or propose the sale, pledge, disposition or encumbrance of any assets of such 
Party or any of its Subsidiaries, except for transactions which do not exceed $500,000,000 in 
the aggregate in any 12-month period and provided further that, unless and until it is mutuaUy 
determined that pooling of interests accounting is not available for the Merger, no Party shall 
make any dispositions in excess of an aggregate of S100,000,000 except for those dispositions 
that the management of either party has determined, with the concurrence of its independent 
accountants,.to be either in the ordinary course of business or not in contemplation of the 
Merger, and therefore not a disposition to be measured, individually and in the ̂ gregate with 
other dispositions, for material disposition of asset purposes, as required by Accountii^ 
Principals Bulletin No. 16 and the authoritative interpretations thereto; or (iii) authorize, enter 
into or amend any contract, agreement, commitment or arrangement with respect to any of the 
matters prohibited by this Section 6.2(b); 

(c) incur indebtedness if, foUowing the taking of such action, it is reasonably 
anticipated that such Party's outstanding senior indebtedness would be rated by Standard & 
Poor's at lower than A-, in the case of GTE, or at lower than A, in the case of Bell Atiantic. 

(d) enter into (i) leveraged derivative contracts (defined as contracts that use a 
fector to multiply the underlying index exposure) or (ii) other derivative contracts except for 
the purpose of hedging known interest rate and foreign exchange exposures or otherwise 
reducing such Party's cost of financing; 

(e) take any action with respect to the grant of any severance or termination pay, 
stay bonus, or other incentive arrangements (otherwise than pursuant to any GTE Plan, BeU 
Atiantic Plan (collectively with aU GTE Plans, "Benefit Plans") or any policies, arrangements 
and agreements of such Party ̂ ^ch were in effect on, or offered or approved to be offered by 
the board of directors or senior management of the respective Party prior to, the date hereof, 
or pursuant to any renewal or extension subsequent to the date hereof of the duration of the 
term of any such Benefit Plans, policies, arrangements or agreements), or with respect to any 
increase in benefits payable under its severance or termination pay policies, or stay bonus or 
other incentive arrangements in effect on the date hereof; 

provided, however, that this subsection shall not prohibit GTE or BeU Atiantic 
or their respective subsidiaries from taking any actions whatsoever that are described in this 
Section 62(e) if (i) such actions are not Merger-related and are m amounts not materially 
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greater than past practice or as otherwise required by Legal Requirements or appUcable 
provisions of the plan, policy or arrangement, and the Party takii^ such action consults with 
the other Party (where such consultation is reasonable and practicable) reasonably in advance 
of any such action, or (ii) such actions are Merger-related, are taken to meet busings needs, 
are consistent with competitive maricet practices of large data transmission or telecommunica­
tions companies, and the other Party gives its consent to such actions (such consent not to be 
unreason^ly withheld after being consulted by the Party proposing such action (\iAere such 
consultation is reasonable and practicable) reasonably in advance of any such action); 

provided, further, that on and after the date hereof̂  each of GTE and Bell 
Atiantic wUl use its best efforts in good &ith to develop and adopt within 60 days of the date 
hereof, in concert with the other, a common set of principles and guidelines for the design and 
Implementation of merger-related retention incentives and severance benefits for the purpose 
of enabling the respective companies to implement complementary plans, programs and 
arrangements, utilizing best competitive practices which each believes wUl faciUtate the 
convergence of the benefits and employment practices and poUcies of the Parties and their 
respective subsidiaries during the period culminating in the Effective Time, and as soon as 
practicable after such adoption, each such Party shall comply, and cause their respective 
subsidiaries to comply, with such principles and guidelines (and any amendments thereto 
which are mutually agreed by the Parties thereafter); 

(f) take any action with respect to mcreases in employee compensation, or make 
any payments under any GTE Plan or any Bell Atlantic Plan, as the case may be, to any 
director or employee of, or independent contractor or consultant to, such Party or any of its 
Subsidiaries, adopt or otherwise materially amend (except for amendments required or made 
advisable by Legal Requirements) any GTE Plan or Bell Atiantic Plan, as the case may be, or 
enter into or amend any employment or consulting ^reement, or grant or estabUsh any new 
awards under any such existing GTE Plan or Bell Atlantic Plan or agreement; 

provided, however, that this subsection shaU not prohibit GTE or Bell Atlantic 
or their respective subsidiaries fix>m takii^ any actions whatsoever that are described in this 
Section 6.2(f) if (i) siKh actions are not Merger-related and are in amounts not materially 
greater than past practice or as otherwise required by Legal Requirements or appUcable 
provisions of the plan, poUcy or arrangement, and, except in the case of increases in employee 
compensation in the ordmary course of business consistent with past practice, the Party taking 
such action consults with the other Party (where such consultation is reasonable and 
practicable) reasonably in advance of any such action, or (ii) such actions are taken to meet 
business needs, are consistent with competitive market practices of large data transmission or 
telecommunications companies, and the other Party gives its consent to such actions (such 
consent not to be unreasonably withheld after being consulted by the Party proposing such 
action (where such consultation is reasonable and practicable) reasonably in advance of any 
such action); 
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(g) change in any material respect its accounting policies, methods or procedures 
except as reqmred by GAAP; 

(h) take any action which it believes when taken could reasonably be expected to 
adversely affect or delay in any material respect the abiUty of any of the Parties to obtain any 
approval of any Governmental Entity required to consummate the transactions contemplated 
hereby; 

(i) other than pursuant to this Agreement, take any action to cause the shares of 
their respective Conunon Stock to cease to be quoted on any of the stock exchanges on ̂ 4iich 
such shares are now quoted; 

(j) (i) other than as consistent with past practice, issue SARS, new performance 
shares, restricted stock, or similar equity based rights; (u) materially modify (with materiality 
to be determined with respect to the Benefit Plan in question) any actuarial cost method, 
assumption or practice used in determining benefit obUgations, aimual expense and funding 
for any Benefit Plan, except to the extent required by GAAP; (iii) materially modify (with 
materiality to be determined with respect to the Benefit Plan trust in question) the investment 
phUosophy of the Benefit Plan trusts or maintain an asset allocation which is not consistent 
with such philosophy, subject to any ERISA fiduciary obUgation; (iv) subject to any ERISA 
fiduciary obligation, enter into any outsourcing agreement, or any other material contract 
relating to the Benefit Plans or man^ement of the Benefit Plan trusts, provided that Bell 
Atiantic and GTE may enter into any such contracts that may be terminated within two years; 
(v) offer any new or extend any existing retirement incentive, "window" or similar benefit 
program; (vi) grant any ad hoc pension increase; (vu) establish any new or fund any existing 
"rabbi" or similar trust (except in accordance with the current terms of sirch trust), or enter into 
any other arrangement for the purpose of securing non-qualified benefits or defened 
compensation; (viii) adopt any corporate owned life insurance program; or (ix) adopt or 
implement any "spUt dollar" life insurance program; 

provided, however, that tiiis subsection shall not prohibit GTE or BeU Atiantic 
or their respective subsidiaries fit>m taking any actions whatsoever that are described in this 
Section 6.2(j) (with the exception of clause (jXO) if such actions are m amounts not materially 
greater than past practice or as otherwise required by Legal Requirements or appUcable 
provisions of the plan, policy or arrangement, and the Party taking such action consults with 
the other Party (where such consultation is reasonable and practicable) reasonably in advance 
of any such action; or 

(k) take any action which it believes when taken would cause its representations 
and warranties contained herein to become inaccurate in any material respect 
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GTE and Bell Atiantic agree that any written approval obtained under this Section 6.2 
may be relied upon by the other Party if signed by the Chief Executive Officer or any other 
executive officer of the Party providii^ such written ^proval. 

SECTION 6.3 — No Solicitation (a) From and after the date hereof,, BeU Atlantic 
shaU not, nor shall it permit any of its Subsidiaries to, nor shall it authorize or permit any of 
its officers, directors or employees or any mvestment banker, financial advisor, attorney, 
accountants or other representatives retained by it or any of its Subsidiaries to, directiy or 
indirectiy through another person, (i) soUcit, initiate or encourage (mcluding by way of 
furnishing information), or knowingly take any other action designed to faciUtate, any 
Alternative Transaction (as hereinafter defined) or (ii) participate in any discussions regarding 
any Alternative Transaction; provided, however, that if, at any time prior to approval of the 
Stock Issuance and the Certificate Amendment by the holders of BeU Atlantic Common Stock, 
the Board of Directors of BeU Atlantic determines m good &ith, after receipt of advice from 
outside counsel, that the failure to provide such information or participate in such negotiations 
or discussions would result in a reasonable possibility that tiie Board of Directors of Bell 
Atiantic would breach their fiduciary duties to stockholders under applicable law. Bell Atiantic 
may, in response to any such proposal that has been determined by it to be a Bell Atiantic 
Superior Proposal (as defined in Section 72(b)), that was not solicited by it and that did not 
otherwise result from a breach of this Section 6.3(a), and subject to Bell Atiantic giving GTE 
at least two business days written notice of its intention to do so, (x) furnish information with 
respect to Bell Atiantic and its Subsidiaries to any person pursuant to a customary confidenti­
ality agreement contaitung terms no less restrictive than the terms of the Nondisclosure 
Agreement dated July 19, 1998 entered into between BeU Atiantic and GTE (tiie 
"Nondisclosure Agreement"), provided that a copy of all such information is delivered 
simultaneously to GTE, and (y) participate in negotiations regarding such proposal. Bell 
Atiantic shaU promptiy notify GTE oraUy and in writing of any request for information or of 
any proposal in connection with an Alternative Transaction, the material terms and conditions 
of such request or proposal (including a copy thereof if in writing, and all other documenta­
tion and any related correspondence) and the identity of the person making such request or 
proposal. BeU Atiantic will keep GTE reasonably informed of the status and details (including 
amendments or proposed amendments) of such request or pn^posal on a current basis. Bell 
Atlantic shaU immediately cease and terminate any existing solicitation, initiation, 
encouragement, activity, discussion or negotiation with any persons conducted heretofore by 
Bell Atiantic or its representatives with respect to the foregoing. BeU Atiantic (i) agrees not 
to release any Third Party (as defined below) fix>in, or waive any provision of, or fail to 
enforce, any standstill agreement or similar agreements to which it is a party related to, or 
which could affect, an Alternative Transaction and agrees that GTE shaU be entitied to enforce 
BeU Atiantic's rights and remedies under and in connection with such £^reements and (ii) 
acknowledges that the provisions of clause (i) are an important and uitegral part of this 
Agreement. Nothing contained in this Section 6.3(a) or Section 12 shaU ;»ohibit BeU 
Atlantic (i) from taking and disclosmg to its stockholders a position contemplated by Rule 
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14e-9 or Rule 14e-2(a) promulgated under the Exchange Act or (ii) from making any 
disclosure to its stockholders if, in the good faith judgment of the Board of Directors of BeU 
Atiantic, after receipt of advice from outside counsel, failure to disclose would result in a 
reasonable possibiUty that the Board of Directors of Bell Atiantic would breach its fiduciary 
duties to Bell Atiantic's stockholders under applicable law. 

(b) From and after the date hereof, GTE shall not, nor shaU it permit any of its 
Subsidiaries to, nor shall it authorize or permit any of its officers, directors or employees or 
any mvestmait banker, financial advisor, attorney, accountants or other rq>resentatives 
retained by it or any of its Subsidiaries to, durectiy or indirectiy through another person, (i) 
solicit, iiutiate or encourage (including by way of furnishing information), or knowingly take 
any other action designed to facUitate, any Alternative Transaction (as hereinafter defined) or 
(u) participate in any discussions regarding any Alternative Transaction; provided, however, 
that if, at any time prior to approval of this Agreement by the holders of GTE Common Stock, 
the Board of Directors of GTE determines in good faith, after receipt of advice from outside 
counsel, that the failure to provide such information or participate in such negotiations or 
discussions would result in a reasonable possibility that the Boaiti of Directors of GTE would 
breach their fiduciary duties to stockholders under applicable law, GTE may, in response to 
a proposal that has been determined by it to be a GTE Superior Proposal (as defined in Section 
7.2(d)), that was not solicited by it and that did not otherwise result from a breach of this 
Section 6.3(b), and subject to GTE giving Bell Atlantic at least two business days written 
notice of its intention to do so, (x) furnish information with respect to GTE and its Subsidiaries 
to any person pursuant to a customary confidentiality agreement containing terms no less 
restrictive than the terms of the Nondisclosure Agreement, provided that a copy of all such 
information is delivered simultaneously to BeU Atiantic, ami (y) participate in negotiations 
regarding such proposal. GTE shaU promptiy notify Bell Atiantic oraUy and in writing of any 
request for information or of any proposal in connection with an Alternative Transaction, the 
material terms and conditions of such request or proposal (including a copy thereof, if in 
writing, and all other documentation and any related correspondence) and the identity of the 
person making such request or proposal. GTE will keep BeU Atiantic reasonably informed 
of the status ahd details (including amendments or proposed amendments) of such request or 
proposal on a current basis. GTE shaU immediately cease and terminate any existing 
solicitation, initiation, encouragement, activity, discussion or negotiation with any persons 
conducted heretofore by GTE or its representatives with respect to the foregoing. GTE (i) 
agrees not to release any Third Party from, or waive any provision of, or faU to enforce, any 
standstill agreement or similar agreements to which it is a party related to, or which could 
affect, an Alternative Transaction and agrees that BeU Atlantic shall be entitied to enforce 
GTE's rights and remedies under and in connection with such agreements and (ii) acknowl­
edges that the provisions of clause (i) are an important and integral part of this Agreement. 
Nothing contained in tiiis Section 6.3(b) or in Section 7.2 shall prohibit GTE (i) from taking 
and disclosing to its stockholders a position contemplated by Rule 14e-9 or Rule 14e-2(a) 
promulgated under the Exchange Act or (u) fix)m mating any disclosure to its stockholders 
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if, in the good faith judgment of the Board of Directors of GTE, after receipt of advice from 
outside counsel, failure to disclose would result in a reasonable possibility that the Board of 
Directors of GTE would breach its fiduciary duties to GTE's stockholders under applicable 
law. 

(c) For purposes of this Agreement, "Alternative Transaction" means, whether in the 
form of a proposal or intended proposal, a signed agreement or completed action, as the case, 
may be, any of (i) a transaction or series of transactions pursuant to which any person (or 
group of persons) other than BeU Atiantic and its Subsidiaries and other than GTE and its 
Subsidiaries (a "Third Party") acquires or would acquire, directiy or indirectiy, beneficial 
ownership (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) of more than 20% of the 
outstanding shares of BeU Atiantic or GTE, as the case may be, whether from Bell Atlantic 
or GTE or pursuant to a tender offer or exchange offer or otherwise, (u) any acquisition or 
proposed acquisition of, or business combination with, BeU Atiantic or any of its Significant 
Subsidiaries or GTE or any of its Significant Subsidiaries, as the case may be, by a merger or 
other business combination (including any so-called "merger-of-equals" and whether or not 
BeU Atiantic or any of its Significant Subsidiaries or GTE or any of its Significant 
Subsidiaries, as the case may be, is the entity surviving any such merger or business 
combination) or (iii) any other transaction pursuant to which any Third Party acquires or 
would acquire, directiy or indirectiy, control of assets (including for this purpose the 
outstanding equity securities of Subsidiaries of Bell Atiantic or GTE, as the case may be, and 
any entity surviving any merger or business combination including any of them) of Bell 
Atiantic or any of its Subsidiaries or GTE or any of its Subsidiaries, as the case may be, for 
consideration equal to 20% or more of the fair market value of all of the outstanding shares 
of Bell Atiantic Common Stock or aU of the outstanding shares of GTE Common Stock, as 
the case may be, on the date of this Agreement 

SECTION 6.4—Subsequent Financial Statements. Prior to the Effective Time, each 
of GTE and BeU Atiantic (a) wiU consult with the other prior to making publicly available its 
financial results for any period and (b) wUl consult with the other prior to the fUing of, and 
will timely file with the SEC, each Aimual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Report on Form 
10-Q and Current Report on Form 8-K required to be filed by such Party under the Exchange 
Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder and wiU promptiy deliver to the 
other copies of each such report fUed with the SEC. As of their respective dates, none of such 
reports shaU contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the 
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. The respective audited financial 
statements and unaudited interim financial statements of each of GTE and Bell Atiantic, as the 
case may be, included m such reports wUl fairly present the consolidated financial position of 
such Party and its Subsidiaries as at the dates thereof and the results of tiieir operations and 
cash flows for the periods then ended in accordance with GAAP appUed on a consistent basis 
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and, subject, in the case of unaudited interim financial statements, to normal year-end 
adjustments. 

SECTION 6.5 — Control of Operations. Nothing contained in this Agreement shaU 
give Bell Atiantic, directiy or mdirectiy, the right to control or direct GTE's operations prior 
to the Effective Time. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall give GTE, directiy or 
indirectiy, the right to control or direct Bell Atlantic's operations prior to the Effective Time. 
Prior to the Effective Time, each of Bell Atiantic and GTE shaU exercise, consistent with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, complete control and supervision over its respective 
operations. 

ARTICLE v n - ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 7.1 — Joint Proxy Statement and the Registration Statement, (a) As 
promptiy as practicable after the execution and delivery of this Agreement, tiie Parties shaU 
prepare and file with the SEC, and shall use all reasonable efforts to have cleared by the SEC, 
and promptiy thereafter shall mail to the holders of record of shares of BeU Atiantic Common 
Stock and GTE Common Stock, the Joint Proxy Statement, provided, however, that GTE and 
Bell Atlantic shall not maU or otherwise furnish the Joint Proxy Statement to their respective 
stockholders unless and until: 

(i) they have received notice fix>m the SEC that the Registration 
Statement is effective under the 1933 Act; 

(ii) GTE shall have received a letter of PricewaterhouseCoopers 
L.L.P., dated a date within two business days prior to the date of the first 
mailing of the Joint Proxy Statement, and addressed to GTE, in form and 
substance reasonably satisfactory to GTE and customary in scope and 
substance for "cold comfort" letters deUvered by independent pubUc accoun­
tants in connection with registration statements on Form S-4 with respect to the 
financial statements of Bell Atiantic included in the Joint Proxy Statement and 
the Registration Statement; and 

(iu) BeU Atiantic shaU have received a letter of Arthur Andersen 
LLP, dated a date within two business days prior to the date of the first mailing 
of the Joint Proxy Statement, and addressed to BeU Atiantic, in form and 
substance reasonably satisfactory to BeU Atlantic and customary in scope and 
substance for "cold comfort" letters deUvered by independent pubUc accoun­
tants m connection with registration statements on Form S-4 with respect to the 
financial statements of GTE included in the Joint Proxy Statement and tiie 
Registration Statement. 
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(b) The Parties will cooperate in the preparation of the Jobt Proxy Statement and 
tiie Registration Statement and in having the Registration Statement declared effective as soon 
as practicable. 

SECTION 7.2 - Bell Atlantic and GTE Stockholders' Meetings. 

(a) Aspromptiy asfnracticableaftertheRegistratioaStatementis declared effective 
under the Securities Act, BeU Atiantic shaU duly give notice of, convene and hold a meeting 
of its stockholders (the "BeU Atiantic Stockholders' Meetmg") in accordance with tiie DGCL 
for the purpose of obtauung the BeU Atlantic Stockholder Approval and shaU, subject to the 
provisions of Section 7.2(b) hereof, through its Board of Directors, recommend to its 
stockholders the approval of the Stock Issuance and adoption of the Certificate Amendment 

(b) Neither the Board of Directors of BeU Atiantic nor any committee thereof shall 
(i) except as expressly permitted by this Section 7,2(b), withdraw, quaUfy or modify, or 
propose publicly to withdraw, qualify or modify, in a manner adverse to GTE, tiie approval 
or recommendation of such Board of Directors or such committee of the Certificate 
Amendment or the Stock Issuance, (ii) approve or recommend, or propose publicly to approve 
or recommend, any Alternative Transaction or (iii) cause BeU Atiantic to enter into any letter 
of intent, agreement in principle, acquisition agreement or other similar s^eement (each, a 
"BeU Atiantic Acquisition Agreement") related to any Alternative Transaction. Notwithstand­
ing the foregoing, in the event that prior to the adoption of the Stock Issuance and the 
Certificate Amendment by the holders of BeU Atlantic Common Stock tiie Board of Directors 
of BeU Atiantic determines in good faith, after it has received a Bell Atiantic Superior 
Proposal (as defined below) and after receipt of advice from outside counsel, that the failure 
to do so would result in a reasonable possibUity that the Board of Directors of BeU Atiantic 
would breach its fiduciary duties to BeU Atiantic stockholders under applicable law, the Board 
of Directors of BeU Atiantic may (subject to this and the foUowing sentences) inform BeU 
Atiantic stockholders that it no longer beUeves that such adoption is advisable and no longer 
reconunends approval (a "BeU Atlantic Subsequent Determination"), but only at a time that 
is after the fifth busmess day foUowing GTE's receipt of written notice advising GTE that the 
Board of Directors of BeU Atiantic has received a BeU Atiantic Superior Proposal specifying 
the material terms and conditions of such Bell Atiantic Superior Proposal (and including a 
copy thereof with aU accompanying documentation, if in writing), identifying the person 
making such BeU Atiantic Superior Proposal and stating that it intends to make a BeU Atiantic 
Subsequent Determination. After providing such notice, BeU Atiantic shall provide a 
reasonable opportunity to GTE to make such adjustments in the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement as would enable BeU Atiantic to proceed with its recommendation to its 
stockholdera without a BeU Atiantic Subsequent Determination; provided, however, that any 
such adjustment shaU be at the discretion of the Parties at the time. For purposes of this 
Agreement, a "BeU Atiantic Superior Proposal" means any proposal (on its most recentiy 
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amended or modified terms, if amended or modified) made by a Third Party to enter into an 
Alternative Transaction which the Board of Directors of Bell Atiantic determines in its good 
faith judgment (based on, among otiier things, the advice of a financial advisor of nationaUy 
recognized reputation) to be more favorable to Bell Atlantic's stockholders than the Merger 
taking into account all relevant factors (including ̂ ^4lether, m the good faith judgment of the 
Board of Duectors of BeU Atiantic, after obtainii^ the advice of a financial advisor of 
nationally recognized reputation, the Third Party is reasonably able to financt tiie transaction, 
and any proposed changes to this Agreement that may be proposed by GTE in response to 
such Alternative Transaction). Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, BeU 
Atiantic shall submit the Stock Issuance and the Certificate Amendment to its stockholders 
whether or not the Board of Directors of Bell Atiantic makes a Bell Atiantic Subsequent 
Determination. 

(c) As promptiy as practicable after the Registration Statement is declared effective 
under the Securities Act, GTE shall duly give notice of, convene and hold a meeting of its 
stockholders (tiie "GTE Stockholders' Meeting") in accordance witii tiie NYBCL for tiie 
purpose of obtaining the GTE Stockholder Approval and shall, subject to the provisions of 
Section 7.2(d) hereof, through its Board of Directors, recommend to its stockholders the 
approval and adoption of this Agreement and the Merger. 

(d) Neither the Board of Directors of GTE nor any committee thereof shall (i) 
except as expressly permitted by this Section 7.2(d), withdraw, qualify or modify, or propose 
publicly to withdraw, qualify or modify, in a manner adverse to BeU Atlantic, the approval or 
recommendation of such Board of Directors or such comnuttee of the Mei^er or this 
Agreement, (ii) approve or recommend, or propose publicly to approve or recommend, any 
Alternative Transaction, or (ui) cause GTE to enter into any letter of intent, agreement in 
principle, acquisition ^reement or other similar agreement (each, a "GTE Acquisition 
Agreement") related to any Alternative Transaction. Notwithstandmg the foregomg, in the 
event that prior to the adoption of this Agreement by the holdera of GTE Common Stock the 
Board of Directora of GTE detemunes m good feith, after it has received a GTE Superior 
Proposal (as defined below) and after receipt of advice fix>m outside counsel, that the &Uure 
to do so would result in a reasonable possibility that the Board of Directors of GTE would 
breach its fiduciary duties to GTE stockholders under appUcable law, the Board of Directors 
of GTE may (subjectto this and the followii^ sentences) inform GTE stockholders that it no 
longer believes that the Merger is advisable and no longer recommends approval (a "GTE 
Subsequent Determination"), but only at a tune that is after the fifth busmess day following 
Bell Atiantic's receipt of written notice advising BeU Atiantic that the Board of Directors of 
GTE has received a GTE Superior Proposal specifying the material terms and conditions of 
such GTE Superior Proposal (and including a copy thereof with all accompanying 
documentation, if in writing), identifying the person maldng such GTE Superior Proposal and 
statuig that it intends to make a GTE Subsequent Determmation. After providing such notice, 
GTE shaU provide a reasonable opportunity to Bell Atiantic to make such adjustments in the 
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terms and conditions of this Agreement as would enable GTE to proceed with its recommen­
dation to its stockholders without a GTE Subsequent Determination; provided, however, that 
any such adjustment shall be at the discretion of the Parties at the time. For purposes of this 
Agreement, a "GTE Superior Proposal" means any proposal (on its most recentiy amended or 
modified terms, if amended or modified) made by a TTiird Party to enter mto an Alternative 
Transaction which the Board ofDirectors of GTE determines in its good faith judgment (based 
on, among other things, the advice of a financial advisor of nationally recognized reputation) 
to be more favorable to GTE's stockholders than the Mei^er taking into account all relevant 
factors (including whether, in the good ftdth judgment of the Board of Directora of GTE, after 
obtaining the advice of a financial advisor of nationally recognized reputation, the Third Party 
is reasonably able to finance the transaction, and any proposed changes to this Agreement that 
may be proposed by Bell Atiantic in response to such Alternative Transaction). Notwith­
standing any other provision of this Agreement, GTE shaU submit this Agreement to its 
stockholders Avhether or not the Board of Directors of GTE makes a GTE Subsequent 
Determination. 

SECTION 7.3 — Consummation ofMerger; Additional Agreements. 

(a) Upon the terms and subject to the conditions hereof and as soon as practicable 
after the conditions set forth in Article VIII hereof have been fulfilled or waived, each of the 
Parties required to do so shall execute in the maimer required by the NYBCL and deliver to 
and fUe with the Secretary of State of the State ofNew York such instruments and agreements 
as may be required by the NYBCL and the Parties shall take aU such other and further actions 
as may be required by law to make the Merger effective, and Bell Atiantic shall take all such 
other and further actions as may be required by law to make the Certificate Amendment and 
the Bylaws Amendment effective. Prior to the filings referred to in this Section 7.3(a), a 
closing (the "Closing") wiU be held at the offices of Bell Atiantic (or such other place as the 
Parties may agree) for the purpose of confirming all the foregoing. The Closing will take 
place upon the fulfillment or waiver of aU of the conditions to closing set forth in Article VIII 
of this Agreement, or as soon thereafter as practicable (the date of tiie Closing being herein 
refened to as the "Closing Date"). 

(b) Each of the Parties wiU comply m aU material respects with aU applicable laws 
and with all appUcable rules and regulations of any Governmental Entity in connection with 
its execution, deUvery and performance of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated 
hereby. Each of the Parties agrees to use all commercially reasonable efforts to obtain in a 
timely manner all necessary waivers, consents and ^jprovals and to effect aU necessary 
registrations and filings, and to use all commercially reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be 
taken, all other actions and to do, or cause to be done, aU other things necessary, proper or 
advisable to consummate and make effective as promptiy as practicable the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement and the Option Agreements and to effect aU necessary fUings 
under the 1933 Act, the Exchange Act and the HSR Act. Without limiting the generaUty of 
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the foregoing, each of GTE and Bell Atiantic shaU promptiy prepare and file a Premei^er 
Notification in accordance with the HSR Act, shall promptiy comply with any requests for 
additional information, and shall use its commerciaUy reasonable efforts to obtain termination 
of the waiting period thereunder as promptiy as practicable. 

(c) Each of BeU Atiantic and GTE shall, in connection with the efforts referenced 
in Section 7.3(a) and (b), (i) cooperate in all respects with each other in connection with any 
filing or submission and m connection with any investigation or other inquiry, including any 
proceeding initiated by a private party; (ii) promptiy inform the other party of any material 
communication received by such party from, or given by such party to any Governmental 
Entity and of any material communication received or given in connection with any 
proceeding by a private party, in each case regarding any of the transactions contemplated 
hereby and (iii) consult with each other in advance of any meeting or conference with any such 
Governmental Entity or, in connection with any proceeding by a private party, with any other 
person, and to the extent pennitted by the applicable Governmental Entity or other person, 
give the other Party the opportunity to attend and participate in such meetings and conferences. 

(d) In furtherance and not in linutation of the covenants of the parties contained 
in Sections 7.3(a), (b) and (c), if any administrative or judicial action or proceeding, including 
any proceeding by a private party, is instituted (or threatened to be instituted) challenging any 
transaction contemplated by this Agreement or the Option Agreements as violative of any 
appUcable law, or if any statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, injunction or 
administrative order is enacted, entered or promulgated or enforced by a Governmental Entity 
which would make the Merger or the other transactions contemplated hereby or by the Option 
Agreements illegal or otherwise prohibit or materially impair or delay consummation of the 
transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, each of BeU Atiantic and GTE shall cooperate 
in all respects with each other and use all commercially reasonable efforts to contest and resist 
any such action or proceeding, to have vacated, Ufted, reversed or overtumed any decree, 
judgment, injunction or other order, M îether temporary, preliminary or permanent, that is in 
effect and that prohibits, prevents or restricts consummation of the transacticms contemplated 
by this Agreement and to have such statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, 
injunction or administrative order repealed, rescinded or made inapplicable. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing or any other provision of this Agreement, nothing in this Section 73 shaU limit 
a party's right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.1 so long as such Party has 
up to then complied in aU respects with its obligations under this Section 7.3. 

(e) If any objections are asserted with respect to the transactions contemplated 
hereby under any £q>plicable law or if any suit is instituted by any Governmental Entity or any 
private party challenging any of the transactions contemplated hereby as violative of any 
applicable law, each of BeU Atlantic and GTE shall use its commercially reasonable efforts 
to resolve any such objections or chaUenge as such Governmental Entity or private party may 
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have to such transactions imder such law so as to permit consummation of the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement. 

SECTION 7.4 —Notification of Certain Matters. Each of GTE and BeU Atiantic shall 
give prompt notice to the other of the following: 

(a) the occurrence or nonoccurrence of any event whose occurrence or nonoccur­
rence would be likely to cause either (i) any representation or warranty contained in this 
Agreement to be untrue or in^curate in any material respect at any time fit>m the date hereof 
to the Effective Time, or (ii) directiy or indirectiy, any Material Adverse Effect on such Party; 

(b) any material failure of such Party, or any officer, director, employee or Agent 
of any thereof, to comply with or satisfy any covenant, condition or agreement to be compUed 
with or satisfied by it hereunder, and 

(c) any facts relating to such Party which would make it necessary or advisable to 
amend the Joint Proxy Statement or the Registration Statement in order to make the statements 
therein not misleading or to comply with applicable law; provided, however, that the delivery 
of any notice pursuant to this Section 7.4 shall not limit or otherwise affect the remedies 
available hereunder to the Party receiving such notice. 

SECTION 7.5 — Access to Information, (a) From the date hereof to the Effective 
Time, each of GTE and BeU Atiantic shall, and shall cause its respective Subsidiaries, and its 
and their officers, directors, employees, auditors, counsel and agents to afford the officers, 
employees, auditors, counsel and agents of the other Party complete access at aU reasonable 
times to such Party's and its Subsidiaries' officers, employees, auditors, counsel agents, 
properties, offices and other facilities and to all of their respective books and records, and shall 
furnish the other with all financial, operating and other data and information as such other 
Party may reasonably request, including in connection with confirmatory due ditigence. 

(b) Each of GTE and Bell Atiantic agrees that all information so received from the 
. other Party shaU be deemed received pursuant to the Nondisclosure Agreement and such Party 
shaU, and shaU cause its Subsidiaries and each of its and their respective officera, directors, 
employees, financial advisors and agents ("Party Representatives"), to comply with the 
provisions of the Nondisclosure Agreement with respect to such urformation and the 
provisions of the Nondisclosure Agreement are hereby incorporated herein by reference with 
the same effect as if fiiUy set forth herein, provided that such information may be used for any 
purpose contemplated hereby. 

SECTION 7.6 — Public Announcements. GTE and BeU Atlantic shall use all 
reasonable efforts to develop a joint communications plan and each Party shaU use all 
reasonable efforts to ensure that all press releases and other public statements with respect to 
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the transactions contemplated hereby shall be consistent with such joint communications plan 
or, to the extent inconsistent therewith, shall have received the prior written approval of the 
other. 

SECTION 7.7 — Transfer Statutes. Each of GTE and BeU Atiantic a©iees to use its 
commercially reasonable efforts to comply promptiy with aU requirements of the New Jersey 
and Connecticut Property Transfer Statutes, to the extent applicable to the transactions 
contemplated hereby, and to take aU actions necessary to cause the transactions contemplated 
hereby to be effected in compUance with the New Jersey and Connecticut Property Transfer 
Statutes. GTE and Bell Atiantic ^ree that they will consult with each other to detemune 
what, if any, actions must be taken prior to or after the Effective Time to ensure compliance 
with such stamtes. Each of GTE and Bell Atiantic agrees to provide the other with any 
documents to be submitted to the relevant state agencies prior to submission and £^rees not 
to take any action to comply with the New Jersey and Connecticut Property Transfer Statutes 
without the other's prior consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Each 
Party shall bear its respective costs and expenses incurred in connection with compliance with 
the New Jersey and Connecticut Property Transfer Statutes. For purposes of this section, the 
New Jersey and Connecticut Property Transfer Statutes means the New Jersey Industrial Site 
Recovery Act, 1993 N J. Laws 139, and the Connecticut Transfer Act, Conn. Gen. Stat. Ann. 
§ 22a-134(b). 

SECTION 1.%—Indemnification, Directors' and Officers' Insurance. Foraperiodof 
six yeara after the Effective Time, Bell Atiantic shaU cause GTE to, and Bell Atlantic shall, 
maintain in effect the current policies of directora' and officers' UabUity insurance and 
fiduciary liability insurance maintained by GTE and BeU Atiantic, respectively (provided that 
Bell Atiantic may substitute therefor poUcies of at least the same coverage and amounts 
containing terms and conditions which are, in the aggregate, no less advantageous to the 
insured in any material respect) with respect to all possible claims arising from &cts or events 
which occurred on or before the Effective Tune. BeU Atiantic shaU cause GTE to maintain 
in effect (a) the current provisions regarding indemnification of officera and directora 
contained in the charter aid bylaws of GTE and each of its Subsidiaries until the statutes of 
limitations for aU possible claims have run; provided that BeU Atiantic need not cause GTE 
to maintain in effect indemnification provisions contained in the charter and bylaws of its 
Subsidiaries if and to the extent that BeU Atiantic assumes such indemnity obUgations; and 
(b) any directors, officera or anployees indemnification agreements of GTE and its respective 
Subsidiaries. BeU Atiantic shall cause GTE to, and BeU Atiantic shaU, indemnify the dbectora 
and officera of GTE and BeU Atiantic, respectively, to the fullest extent to which GTE and 
Bell Atlantic are permitted to indemnify such officera and directora imder their respective 
chartera and bylaws and appUcable law. As of the Effective Time, BeU Atiantic shall 
unconditionally and irrevocably guarantee for the benefit of such durectora, officera and 
employees the obligations of GTE under the foregomg indemnification arrangements. 
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SECTION 7.9 — Employee Benefit Plans, (a) Except as otherwise provided herein or 
set forth in Section 6.2 of the Disclosure Schedules, GTE and BeU Atiantic agree that, unless 
otherwise mutually determined, the GTE Plans and the BeU Atlantic Plans in effect at the date 
hereof shall remain in effect after the Effective Time with respect to classes of employees 
covered by such plans immediately prior to the Effective Time. 

From time to tune from the date h«eof to the Effective Time, the management of BeU 
Atiantic and GTE shall consult with one another for the purpose of reviewing such Benefit 
Plans for management (non-represented) employees of BeU Athmtic and GTE and their 
respective subsidiaries ("Man^ement Employees"), and determining vdiich of such Benefit 
Plans represent best competitive practices, which should be terminated at the Effective Tune 
(or following a transition period thereafter), and which of such Benefit Plans should be 
redesigned and/or extended to other employees at (or after) the Effective Time. Notwithstand­
ing the foregoing or any other provision of this Agreement, (1) after the Effective Time, Bell 
Atiantic shaU cause the compensation and benefits provided to simUarly-situated Management 
Employees of each business unit to be at least as valuable as the segregate compensation and 
benefit package provided to such employees of that business unit immediately prior to the 
Effective Time, except to the extent (i) such benefits and/or compensation plans are replaced 
by one or more benefits and/or compensation plans at least as valuable as those which are 
provided to simUarly situated employees of comparable business units of the other Party or 
its subsidiaries, or (ii) corresponding benefits for similarly situated employees of the other 
Party or its subsidiaries are eliminated, (2) fit>m the Effective Time until the first anniversary 
thereof, BeU Atiantic shaU not, and shaU ensure that each of its Subsidiaries shaU not, 
discontinue, or change eligibUity provisions or levels of benefits under, severance plans, 
policies and arrangements m which such Management Employees participated immediately 
prior to the Effective Time, and further agrees that any of such plans, policies or arrangements 
tiiat expire during such one-year period shall be extended for the duration of such one-year 
period, and (3) for the 18-month period immediately foUowing the Effective Time, with 
respect to those GTE Man^ement Employees v^o were relocated as part of the consoUdation 
of GTE's world headquartera to Texas, BeU Atlantic shaU not, and shaU ensure that each of its 
Subsidiaries shaU not, discontinue, or change the relocation benefits program which was 
applicable to such Maiu^ement Employees as of the Effective Tune. In addition, with respect 
to aU Management Employees, at and after the Effective Time (i) each such employee shall 
receive fiill credit for their credited service with their respective employer prior to the 
Effective Time for all purposes, including eligibiUty (includmg eligibUity for early retirement, 
disability and other benefits), vesting, level ofbenefits and benefit accrual (except to the extent 
such benefit accrual would be duplicative); (u) any provisions which restrict benefits by reason 
of pre-existing conditions, waiting periods or evidence of insurabUity shall be waived and (iu) 
such employees shall receive credit under such plan for co-payments and deductible during 
the applicable plan year. 
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(b) Except as otherwise set forth in Sections 2.8 and 2.9 hereof, in the case of the 
GTE Plans under which the employees' interests are based upon GTE Common Stock, or the 
respective market prices thereof (but which interests do not constitute stock options), GTE and 
Bell Atiantic agree that such interests shall, from and after the Effective Tune, be based on 
BeU Atiantic Conunon Stock in accordance with the Exchange Ratio. 

(c) With respect to aU GTE Plans which have entitiement or vesting terms that are 
based upon the market price or value per share of GTE Common Stock, GTE and BeU Atiantic 
agree that fix)m and after the Effective Time, such market price or value per share shall be 
adjusted by multiplying it by the inverse of the Exchange Ratio. 

(d) With respect to any GTE Plans maintained or contributed to outside the United 
States for the benefit of non-United States citizens or residents, the principles set forth in this 
Section 7.9 and in Section 6.2 of the Disclosure Schedules shall apply to the extent the 
appUcation of such principles does not violate applicable foreign law. 

(e) Without limiting the appUcabUity of Sections 2.8 and 2.9 hereof, each of the 
Parties shall take all actions as are necessary to ensure that GTE will not at the Effective Time 
be bound by any stock options, SARS, warrants or other rights or agreements which would 
entitle any person, other than Bell Atiantic, to own any capital stock of the Surviving 
Corporation or to receive any payment in respect thereof, and all GTE Plans conferring any 
rights with respect to GTE Common Stock or other capital stock of GTE shall be deemed 
hereby to be amended to be in conformity with this Section 7.9. 

SECTION 7.10—Succession (a) At the Effective Time, pursuant to the tenns of the 
Employment Agreements (as defined below) and subject to Section 5.11 of the Bylaws of Bell 
Atiantic reflecting the Bylaws Amendment (the "Amended Bylaws") (i) Charles R. Lee shall 
hold the positions of Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer of BeU Atiantic and (ii) Ivan 
G. Seidenberg shall hold the positions of President and Co-Chief Executive Officer of BeU 
Atlantic. Pursuant to the terms of the Employment Agreements and subject to Section 5.11 
of the Amended Bylaws (A) on June 30,2002, Mr. Seidenberg shall become the sole Chief 
Executive Officer of BeU Atiantic and (B) on June 30, 2004, Mr. Lee shaU cease to be 
Chairman of BeU Atiantic and such position wiU be assumed by Mr. Seidenbe^. If either of 
such persons is unable or unwilling to hold such offices as set forth above, his successor shall 
be selected by the Board of Durectora of BeU Atiantic in accordance with die Amended 
Bylaws. The authority, duties and responsibilities of the positions set forth above shall be set 
forth in the Employment Agreements, which Employment Agreements shall also set forth in 
their entirety the rights and remedies of Mr. Seidenb^ and Mr. Lee with respect to 
employment by BeU Atiantic. Neither Mr. Seidenberg nor Mr. Lee shall have any right, 
remedy or cause of action under this Section 7.10, nor shaU they be third party beneficiaries 
oftius Section 7,10. 
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(b) As soon as practicable after the date hereof. Bell Atiantic shaU enter into 
employment agreements effective as of the Effective Time (the "Employment Agreements") 
with Messra. Lee and Seidenberg containing arrangements concerning management succession 
satisfactory to each Party. 

SECn01>l7.U—Stock Exchange Listing. Each oftiie Parties shaU use its best efforts 
to obtain, prior to the Effective Time, the approval for listing on the NYSE, effective upon 
official notice of issuance, of the shares of BeU Atlantic Common Stock into which tiie GTE 
Common Stock wiU be converted pursuant to Article II hereof and which wUl be issuable upon 
exercise of options pursuant to Section 2.8 hereof. 

SECTION 7.\2—Post-Merger Bell Atlantic Board ofDirectors. (a) At tiie Effective 
Time, 50% of the directora of Bell Atiantic shaU be directora selected by Bell Atiantic, to the 
extent possible fix)m current directora of BeU Atlantic, and 50% shaU be selected by GTE, to 
the extent possible from current directora of GTE. 

The persons to serve initially on the Board of Duectora of Bell Atiantic at the Effective 
Time who are GTE Directora (as defined below) shall be selected solely by and at the absolute 
discretion of the Board of Directora of GTE prior to the Effective Time; and the persons to 
serve on the Board of Directora of Bell Atiantic at the Effective Time who are BeU Atiantic 
Directora (as defined below) shall be selected solely by and at the absolute discretion of the 
Board of Directora of Bell Atiantic prior to the Effective Time. In the event that, prior to the 
Effective Time, any person so selected to serve on the Board of Directora of Bell Atiantic after 
the Effective Time is unable or unwilling to serve in such position, the Board of Directora 
which selected such peraon shall designate another of its membera to serve in such person's 
stead in accordance with the provisions of the immediately preceding sentence. 

(b) From and after tiie Effective Tune and until July 1,2002, tiie Board of Directora 
of BeU Atiantic and each Committee of the Board of Directora of BeU Atiantic as constituted 
following each election of Directora shaU consist of an equal number of GTE Directora and 
Bell Atiantic Directora and subject to the fiduciary duties of the Directora, the Board of 
Directora shall nominate for election at each stockholdera meeting at which Directora are 
elected, an equal number of GTE Directora and BeU Atlantic Directora. If, at any time prior 
to July 1,2002, the number of GTE Directora and BeU Atlantic Directora serving, either as 
directora or as membera of any Committee of the Board of Directora of BeU Atiantic, would 
not be equal, then, subject to the fiduciary duties of the directora, the Board of Directora shall 
appoint to fill any existing vacancy or vacancies, as appropriate, such person or peraons as 
may be requested by the remaming GTE Directora (if the number of GTE Direaora is, or 
would otherwise become, less than the number of BeU Atiantic Directora) or by the remaining 
BeU Atiantic Directora (if the number of BeU Atiantic Directora is, or would otherwise 
become, less than the number of GTE Directora) to ensure that there shaU be an equal number 
of GTE Directora and BeU Atiantic Directora. The provisions of the preceding two sentences 
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shall not apply in respect of any vacancy which occura after July 1,2002. The term "GTE 
Director" means (i) any person serving as a director of GTE on the date hereof who becomes 
a director of Bell Atiantic at the Effective Time and (ii) any person \siio subsequentiy becomes 
a director of Bell Atiantic and who is designated by the GTE Directora pursuant to this 
paragraph; and the term "Bell Atiantic Director" means (i) any person serving as a director of 
BeU Atiantic on the date hereof >^o continues as a director of BeU Atlantic after the Effective 
Time and (ii) any person who becomes a director of Bell Atlantic and who is designated by 
the BeU Atiantic Directora pursuant to this paragraph. From the Effective Time through July 
1,2002, the Board of Directora shall consist of an even number of Directws and such number 
ofDirectora shall not be amended unless, immediately foUowii^ such amendment, the number 
of GTE Directora then in office is equal to the numb^ of BeU Atiantic Directora then in office. 

(c) Each of GTE and BeU Atlantic shall take such action as shall reasonably be 
deemed by either tl^reof to be advisable to give effect to the provisions set forth in this 
section, including but not limited to incorporating such provisions in the Bylaws of Bell 
Atiantic in effect at the Effective Time. 

SECTION 7.13 —No Shelf Registration BeU Atiantic shaU not be required to amend 
or maintain the effectiveness of the Registration Statement for the purpose of permitting resale 
of the shares of Bell Atiantic Common Stock received purauant hereto by the persons who 
may be deemed to be "affiUates" of GTE or BeU Atlantic within the meaning of Rule 145 
promulgated under the 1933 Act. The shares of Bell Atlantic Common Stock issuable upon 
exercise of options purauant to Section 2.8 hereof shall be registered under the 1933 Act and 
such registration shaU be effective at the time of issuance. 

SECTION 7.1 A—Affiliates, (a) Each of GTE and Bell Atiantic (i) has disclosed to tiie 
other m Section 7.14 of the Disclosure Schedules aU persons who are, or may be, as of the date 
hereof its "affiliates" for purposes of Rule 145 under the Securities Act or SEC Accountuig 
Series Release 135, and (ii) shaU use all reasonable efforts to cause each person who is 
identified as an "affiliate" of it in Section 7.14 of the Disclosure Schedules to deUver to the 
other as promptiy as practicable but in no event later than 31 days prior to the Closing Date, 
a signed Agreement substantially m the form attached hereto as Exhibit 7.14(a), in the case 
of GTE, and 7.14(b), m tiie case of BeU Atiantic. GTE and BeU Atiantic shall notify each 
other from time to time of any other peraons who then are, or may be, such an "affiliate" and 
use all reasonable efforts to cause each additional person who is identified as an "affiliate" to 
execute a signed Agreement as set forth in this Section 7.14(a). 

(b) If the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Option Agreements 
would otherwise qualify for pooling of interests accounting treatment, shares of GTE Common 
Stock and shares of Bell Atiantic Common Stock held by such "affiUates" of GTE or Bell 
Atiantic, as the case may be, shall not be transferable during the 30 day period prior to the 
Effective Time, and shares of Bell Atiantic Common Stock issued to, or as of the Effective 
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Time held by, such "affiliates" of GTE and Bell Atiantic shaU not be transferable untfl such 
time as financial results covering at least 30 days of combined operations of GTE and BeU 
Atiantic have been published within the meanii^ of Section 201.01 of the SEC's Codification 
of Financial Reporting Policies, regardless of A^ether each such "affiUate" has provided the 
signed Agreement referred to in Section 7.14 (a), except to the extent permitted by, and in 
accordance with, SEC Accounting Series Release 135 and SEC Staff Accounting BuUetins 65 
and 76. Any Bell Atiantic Common Stock held by any such "affiliate" shaU not be 
transferable, regardless of vdietiier such "affiliate" has provided the applicable signed 
Agreement referred to in Section 7.14(a), if such transfer, eitiier alone or in the aggregate with 
other transfera by "affiliates", would preclude the abitity of the Parties to account for the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Option Agreements as a pooling of 
interests. Bell Atiantic shaU not register the transfer of any shares of BeU Atiantic Common 
Stock unless such transfer is made in compUance with the foregoing. 

SECTION 7.15 — Blue Sky. GTE and Bell Atiantic wiU use their best efforts to obtam 
prior to the Effective Time aU necessary blue sky permits and approvals required to permit the 
distribution of the shares of BeU Atlantic Common Stock to be issued in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement 

SECTION 7.16—Pooling of Interests. Each of the Parties will use its best efforts to 
(a) cause the transactions contemplated by this Agreement to be accounted for as a pooling of 
interests in accordance with GAAP, and such accounting treatment to be accepted by Bell 
Atiantic's independent certified public accountants, by the NYSE and by the SEC, 
respectively, and (b) not take any action which could reasonably be expected to cause such 
accounting treatment not to be obtained; provided that the foregoing shaU not apply to any 
conduct or the effect of any conduct to obtain all necessary waivers, approvals and consents, 
and to avoid any contractual, legal, regulatory or other issues, impediments or delays, to 
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Option Agreements. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall restrict the rights of any Party pursuant to the Option 
Agreements. 

SECTION 7.17 — Tax-Free Reorganization (a) Each of the Parties wUl use its best 
efforts to cause the Merger to qualify as a tax-free reoi^anization under Section 368 of the 
Code, (b) BeU Atiantic wiU deUver an Officer's Certificate substantially in the form ofExhibit 
7.17(b)(i) executed as of tiie Closing Date and GTE wiU deUver an Officer's Certificate 
substantially in the form ofExhibit 7.17(bXii) executed as of the Closing Date 
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ARTICLE Vra - CONDITIONS TO MERGER 

SECTION 8.1 — Conditions to Obligations of Each Party to Effect the Merger. The 
respective obligations of each Party to effect the Merger shall be subject to the following 
conditions: 

(a) Stockholder Approval. Each oftiie GTE Stockholder Approval and the BeU 
Atlantic Stockholder Approval shaU have been obtained; 

(b) Legality. No federal, state or foreign statute, rule, regulation, executive order, 
decree, mjunction or administrative order shaU have been enacted, entered, promulgated or 
enforced by any Governmental Entity vvliich is in effect and has the effect of (i) making the 
Merger illegal or otherwise prohibiting the consummation of the Mei^er or (ii) creating a 
Material Adverse Effect on GTE or BeU Atiantic, with or without including its owi^rahip of 
GTE and its Subsidiaries after the Effective Time; 

(c) HSR Act; California PUC. Anywaitingperiod^>pUcabletotheconsummation 
of the Merger under the HSR Act shall have expued or been termitiated and the decision and 
order of the California Public UtiUties Commission ("CPUC") authorizing the Merger and 
making any required determinations under Section 854(a)-(c) of the California PubUc Utilities 
Code, including its determination as to any required allocation of economic benefits, if any, 
of the Merger, between shareholdera and ratepayera, shall have become final; 

(d) Regulatory Matters. AU authorizations, consents, ordera, permits or approvals 
of, or declarations or filings with, and all expirations of waiting periods imposed by, any 
Govermnental Entity (all of the foregoing, "Consents") which are necessary for the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, other than Consents which, if not 
obtained, would not have a Material Adverse Effect on BeU Atiantic, with or without includmg 
its ownership of GTE and its Subsidiaries after the Merger, or GTE, shaU have been filed, have 
occurred or have been obtained (aU such Consents being referred to as the "Requisite 
Regulatory Approvals") and aU such Requisite Regulatory Approvals shaU be in fiiU force and 
effect, provided, however, that a Requidte Regulatory Approval shall not be deemed to have 
been obtained if m connection with the grant thereof there shaU have been an imposition by 
any Governmental Entity of any condition, requirement, restriction or change of regulation, 
or any other action directiy or indirectiy related to such grant taken by such Governmental 
Entity, which would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverae Effect on either of (A) 
GTE or (B) Bell Atiantic (either with or without including its ownerehip of GTE and its 
Subsidiaries after the Merger); 

(e) Registration Statement Effective. The Registration Statement shall have 
become effective prior to the mailing by each of GTE and BeU Atlantic of the Joint Proxy 
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Statement to its respective stockholdera, no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the 
Registration Statement shall then be in effect, and no proceedings for that purpose shall then 
be threatened by the SEC or shaU have been initiated by the SEC and not concluded or 
withdrawn; 

(f) Blue Sky. All state securities or blue sky permits or approvals required to carry 
out the transactions contemplated hereby shaU have been received; 

(g) Stock Exchange Listing. The shares of BeU Atiantic Common Stock into which 
the GTE Conunon Stock wiU be converted pursuant to Article II l^reof and the shares of Bell 
Atiantic Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of options pursuant to Section 2.8 hereof 
shall have been duly approved for listing on the NYSE, subject to official notice of issuance; 

(h) . Pooling. Unless unable to be delivered due to actions taken by the Parties 
^^ch constitute mutuaUy ̂ reed commerciaUy reasonable efforts or commercially reasonable 
efforts with respect to wureless operations, (i) BeU Atiantic shall have received a letter fix)m 
PricewaterhouseCoopera L.L .P., dated as of the Closing Date, to the effect that the transactions 
contemplated hereby wiU qualify for pooling of interests accounting treatment; and (ii) GTE 
shall have received a letter fix)m Arthur Anderaen LLP, dated as of the Closing Date, to the 
effect that the transactions contemplated hereby will qualify for pooling of interests accounting 
treatment; 

(i) Consents Under GTE Agreements. GTE shall have obtained the consent or 
approval of any peraon whose consent or approval shaU be required under any agreement or 
instrument in order to permit the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby 
except those which the &ilure to obtain would not, individuaUy or in the aggregate, have a 
Material Adverae Effect on BeU Atlantic, including its ownerahip of GTE and its Subsidiaries 
after the Merger, and 

(j) Consents Under Bell Atlantic Agreements. BeU Atiantic shaU have obtained 
the consent or approval of any person whose consent or approval shaU be required under any 
agreement or instrument in order to permit the consummation of the transactions contemplated 
hereby except those viiich the failure to obtain would not, individuaUy or ui the aggregate, 
have a Material Adverse Effect on BeU Atiantic, including its ownership of GTE and its 
Subsidiaries after the Merger. 

SECTION 8.2 — Additional Conditions to Obligations of GTE. The obUgations of 
GTE to effect the Merger are also subject to the fulfilhnent of the foUowii^ conditions: 

(a) Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties of Bell 
Atiantic contained in this Agreement shaU be true and correct on the date hereof and (except 
to the extent such representations and warranties speak as of a date earUer than the date hereof) 
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shall also be true and correct on and as of the Closing Date, except for changes permitted 
under Section 6.2 hereof or otherwise contemplated by this Agreement and the Option 
Agreements, with the same force and effect as if made on and as of the Closing Date, 
provided, however, that for purposes of this Section 8.2(a) only, such representations and 
warranties shaU be deemed to be true and correct unless the ^lure or failures of such 
representations and warranties to be so true and correct (without regard to materiaUty 
quaUfiera contained therein), individually or in the aggregate, results or would reasonably be 
expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect on BeU Atiantic, either with or without 
including its ownerslup of GTE and its Subsidiaries after the M^er ; 

(b) Agreements and Covenants. BeU Atiantic and Merger Subsidiary shaU have 
performed or compUed with all agreements and covenants required by this Agreement to be 
performed or complied with by them on or before the Effective Time, provided, however, that 
for purposes^f this Section 82 (b) only, such agreements and covenants shall be deemed to 
have been compUed with unless the faUure or &Uures of such agreements and covenants to 
have been complied with (without regard to materiality quaUfiera contained therein), 
individuaUy or in the aggregate, results or would reasonably be expected to result in a Material 
Adverse Effect on BeU Atiantic, either with or without including its ownerahip of GTE and 
its Subsidiaries after the Merger; 

(c) Certificates. GTE shall have received a certificate of an executive officer of 
Bell Atiantic to the effect set forth in paragraphs (a) and (b) above; 

(d) Tax Opinion GTE shaU have received an opinion of O'Melveny & Myere LLP, 
special counsel to GTE, dated as of the Closing Date, in form and substance reasonably 
satisfactory to GTE, substantially to the effect that, on the basis of the &cts, representations 
and assumptions set forth in such opmion, the Mei^er constitutes a tax-free reorganization 
under Section 368 of the Code and therefore: (A) no gain or loss wUl be recognized for federal 
income tax purposes by BeU Atiantic, GTE or Meiger Subsidiary as a result of the formation 
of Merger Subsidiary and the Merg^ and (B) no gain or loss wUl be recognized for federal 
income tax purposes by the stockholdera of GTE upon their exchange of GTE Common Stock 
solely for BeU Atiantic Common Stock pursuant to the Merger (except with respect to cash 
received in lieu of a fractional share interest in BeU Atiantic Common Stock). In renderii^ 
such opinion, O'Melveny & Myera LLP may require and rely upon representations and 
covenants including representations and covenants substantiaUy in the form of those contained 
in the GTE officer's certificate and the BeU Atiantic officer's certificate attached hereto as 
Exhibit 7.17(bXii) and Exhibit 7.17(b)(i), respectively; 

(e) Affiliate Agreements. GTE shall have received the agreements required by 
Section 7.14 hereof to be delivered by the BeU Atiantic "affiliates," duly executed by each 
"affiliate" of BeU Atiantic; and 
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(f) Bylaws Amendment, Board ofDirectors. Bell Atiantic shall have taken aU such 
actions as shall be necessary so that (i) the Bylaws Amendment shaU become effective not 
later than the Effective Time; and (u) at the Effective Time, the composition of BeU Atiantic's 
Board shall comply with Section 7.12 hereof (assuming GTE has designated the GTE 
Directora as contemplated by Section 7.12 hereoQ. 

SECTION 8.3 — Additional Conditions to Obligations of Bell Atlantic. The 
obligations of BeU Atiantic to effect the Merger are also subject to the fulfilhnent of the 
foUowii^ conditions: 

(a) Representations arui Warranties. The representations and warranties of GTE 
contained in this Agreement shaU be true and correct on the date hereof and (except to the 
extent such representations and warranties speak as of a date earUer than the date hereof) shall 
also be true and correct on and as of the Closing Date, except for changes permitted under 
Section 6.2 hereof or otherwise contemplated by this Agreement and the Option Agreements, 
with the same force and effect as if made on and as of the Closing Date, provided, however, 
that for purposes of this Section 8.3 (a) only, such representations and warranties shaU be 
deemed to be true and correct unless the frulure or failures of such representations and 
warranties to be so true and correct (without regard to materiality quaUfiera contained therein), 
individually or in the aggregate, results or would reasonably be expected to result m a Material 
Adverse Effect on GTE or Bell Atiantic (only after including its ownerahip of GTE and its 
Subsidiaries after the Merger); 

(b) Agreements and Covenants. GTE shall have performed or complied with all 
agreements and covenants required by this Agreement to be performed or compUed with by 
them on or before the Effective Time, provided, however, that for purposes of this Section 8.3 
(b) only, such agreements and covenants shall be deemed to have been complied with unless 
the Allure or failures of such agreements and covenants to have been complied with (without 
regard to materiaUty quaUfiera contained tiierem), individually or in the aggregate, results or 
would reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect on GTE; 

(c) Certificates. BeU Atlantic shaU have received a certificate of an executive 
officer of GTE to the effect set forth in paragr^hs (a) and (b) above; 

(d) GTE Rights Agreement. The rights issued pursuant to tiie GTE Rights 
Agreement shaU not have become non-redeemable, exercisable, distributed or triggered 
pursuant to the terms of such Agreement and would not become so upon consummation of the 
transactions contemplated hereby; 

(e) Tax Opinion. BeU Atiantic shall have received an opinion of Skadden, Arps, 
Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP, special counsel to BeU Atiantic, dated as oftiie Effective Time, 
in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to BeU Atiantic, substantiaUy to the effect that, 
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on the basis of the facts, representations and assumptions set forth in such opinion, the Merger 
constitutes a tax-free reorganization under Section 368 of the Code and therefore: (A) no gain 
or loss will be recognized for federal income tax purposes by BeU Atiantic, GTE or Merger 
Subsidiary as a result of the formation ofMerger Suteidiary and the Merger, and (B) no gain 
or loss wUl be recognized for federal income tax purposes by the stockholdera of BeU Atlantic 
as a result of the Merger, including the Certificate Amendment In rendering such opinion, 
Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP may require and rely upon representations and 
covenants including representations and covenants substantiaUy in the form of those contained 
in the GTE officer's certificate and the BeU Atlantic officer's certificate attached hereto as 
Exhibits 7.17(b)(ii) and 7.17(bXi) respectively. 

(f) Affiliate Agreements. BeU Atiantic shall have received the s^reements required 
by Section 7.14 hereof to be deUvered by the GTE "affiUates," duly executed by each 
"affiUate" of GTE. 

ARTICLE K - TERMINATION, AMENDMENT AND WAIVER 

SECTION 9.1 — Termination This Agreement may be terminated at any time before 
the Effective Time, in each case as authorized by the respective Board ofDirectors of GTE or 
BeU Atiantic: 

(a) By mutual written consent of each of GTE and BeU Atiantic; 

(b) By either GTE or Bell Atiantic if the Merger shaU not have been consummated 
on or before July 26, 1999 (the "Initial Termination Date" and as such may be extended 
purauant to this paragraph, the "Termination Date"), provided, however, that if on the 
Termination Date the conditions to the Closing set forth in Sections; 8. l(bXi), (c) or (d) shall 
not have been fulfilled, but aU other conditions to the Closing shall be fulfiUed or shaU be 
capable ofbemg fulfiUed, then the Termination Date shall be extended to March 31,2000, (the 
"Extended Tomination Date"); and provided further that if on the Extended Termination Date 
the conditions to the Closing set forth in Sections 8.1(b)(i), (c) or (d) shall not have been 
fulfiUed, but aU other conditions to the Closing shall be fuUfiUed or sh£dl be capable of being 
fulfiUed, then the Termination Date shall be extended to June 30,2000 (the "Final Termination 
Date"), unless within five days prior to the Extended Termination Date any Party reasonably 
determines that it is substantially unlUcely tiiat the conditions to the Closuig set forth m 
Sections 8.1(bXi)> (c) and (d) will be fulfUled by the Final Teimination Date and delivera to 
the other Parties a notice to such effect. The right to terminate this Agreement under this 
Section 9.1 (b) shall not be available to any Party whose faUure to fiilfiU any obUgation under 
this Agreement has been the cause of, or resulted in, the failure of any condition to be 
satisfied; 
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(c) By either GTE or BeU Atiantic if after the date hereof a court of competent 
jurisdiction or Govermnental Entity shall have issued an order, decree or ruling or taken any 
other action (which order, decree or ruling the Parties shall use their commerciaUy reasonable 
efforts to lift), in each case permanentiy restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Option Agreements, an4 such order, 
decree, ruling or other action shaU have become final and nonappealable; 

(d) (i) by GTE, (A) if Bell Atlantic shaU have breached or Med to perform in any 
material respect any of its representations, warranties, covenants or other agreements 
contained in this Agreement, ̂ ^ch breach or failure to perform (1) is incapable of being cured 
by BeU Atiantic prior to the Termination Date and (2) rendera any condition under Section 8.1 
or 8.2 incapable of being satisfied prior to the Termination Date, or (B) if a condition under 
Sections 8.1 or 8.2 to GTEs obligations hereunder cannot be satisfied prior to the Temunation 
Date; 

(ii) by BeU Atiantic, (A) if GTE shaU have breached or ̂ led to perform in any 
material respect any of its representations, warranties, covenants or other agreements 
contained in this Agreement, ̂ ^ch breach or failure to perform (1) is incapable of being cured 
by GTE prior to the Termination Date and (2) rendera any condition under Sections 8.1 and 
8.3 incapable of being satisfied prior to the Termination Date, or (B) if a condition under 
Sections 8.1 or 8.3 to Bell Atiantic's obligations hereunder cannot be satisfied prior to the 
Termination Date; 

(e) By either GTE or Bell Atiantic if the Board of Directora of the other or any 
committee of the Board ofDirectora of the other (i) shall faU to mclude in the Joint Proxy 
Statement its recommendation without modification or qualification that stockholdera approve 
this Agreement and the Merger, in the case of GTE, or the Stock Issuance and the Certificate 
Amendment, in the case of BeU Atiantic Stock, (u) shaU withdraw or modify in any adverae 
manner its approval or recommendation of this Agreement or the Merger, in the case of GTE, 
or the Certificate Amendment or the Stock Issuance in the case of BeU Atiantic, (iii) shall fail 
to reaffirm such approval or recommendation upon si^h Party's request, (iv) shaU approve or 
recommend any Alternative Transaction or (v) shaU resolve to take any of the actions specified 
m this Section 9.1(e); or 

(f) By either GTE or BeU Atiantic if any of tiie required ^>provals of the 
stockholdera of GTE or of BeU Atiantic shaU faU to have been obtamed at a duly held 
stockholdera meeting of either of such companies, including any adjournments thereof. 

SECTION 9.2 — Effect of Termination (a) In tiie event of tennination of tius 
Agreement as provided in Section 9.1 hereof, and subject to the provisions of Section 10.1 
hereof, this Agreement shaU forthwith become void and there shall be no liabiUty on the part 
of any of the Parties, except (i) as set forth in this Section 9.2 and in Sections 4.10,4.16,5.10, 
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5.16 and 10.3 hereof, and (ii) nothing herein shall reUeve any Party fix)m liabiUty for any 
wUlfiil breach hereof. 

(b) If this Agreement (i) is terminated by GTE pursuant to Section 9.1(e) hereof, 
(ii) could have been (but was not) terminated by GTE pursuant to Section 9.1(e) hereof and 
is subsequentiy terminated by BeU Atlantic or GTE pursuant to Section 9.1(f) because of the 
&Uure to obtain the BeU Atiantic Stockholder Approval, (uiXA) could not have been 
terminated by GTE pursuant to Section 9.1(e) hereof but is subsequentiy terminated by BeU 
Atiantic or GTE pursuant to Section 9.1(f) because of the feilure to obtain the BeU Atlantic 
Stockholder Approval, (B) prior to the Bell Atiantic Stockholdera' Meeting tl^re shall have 
been an offer or proposal for, an announcement of any intention with respect to (including the 
filing of a statement of beneficial ownerahip on Schedule 13D discussing the possibility of or 
reserving the right to engage in), or any agreement with respect to, a transaction that would 
constitute an Alternative Transaction (as defined in Section 6.3(c) hereof, except that for the 
purposes of this Section 9.2(b), the applicable percentage m clause (i) of such definition shall 
be fifty percent (50%)) mvolving BeU Atiantic or any of BeU Atlantic's Subsidiaries, and (C) 
within 12 months afterthe termination of this Agreement, BeU Atiantic entera into a definitive 
agreement with any Third Party with respect to an Alternative Transaction, or (iv) is 
terminated by GTE as a result of BeU Atiantic's material breach of Section 7.1, Section 7.2(a) 
or Section 7.2(b) hereof which, in the case of Section 7.1 and Section 7.2(a) only, is not cured 
within 30 days after notice thereof to BeU Atiantic, Bell Atlantic shall pay to GTE a 
tennination fee of one bUlion eight hundred milUon dollara ($1,800,000,000) (tiie "GTE 
Termination Fee"). 

(c) If this Agreement (i) is terminated by BeU Atiantic purauant to Section 9.1 (e) 
hereof, (ii) could have been (but was not) terminated by BeU Atiantic purauant to Section 
9.1(e) hereof and is subsequentiy terminated by GTE or BeU Atiantic pursuant to Section 
9.1 (f) because of the failure to obtain the GTE Stockholder Approval, (iiiXA) could not have 
been terminated by Bell Atlantic purauant to Section 9.1(e) hereof but is subsequentiy 
terminated by GTE or BeU Atiantic pursuant to Section 9.1 (f) because of tl» failure to obtaui 
the GTE Stockholder Approval, (B) (nior to the GTE Stocldioldera' Meeting there shall have 
been an offer or proposal for, an announcement of any intention with respect to (including the 
filing of a statement of beneficial ownerahip on Schedule 13D discussing the possibility of or 
reserving the right to eng^e in), or any ^reement with req)ect to, a transaction that would 
constitute an Alternative Transaction (as defined in Section 6.3(c) hereof, except that for the 
purposes of this Section 9.2(c), the appUcable percentage in clause (i) of such definition shaU 
be fifty percent (50%)) involving GTE or any of GTE's Subsidiaries, and (C) within 12 months 
after the teimination of this Agreement, GTE entera into a definitive agreement with any Third 
Party with respect to an Alternative Transaction, or (iv) is terminated by BeU Atiantic as a 
result of GTE's material breach of Section 7.1, Section 7.2(c) or Section 7.2(d) hereof which, 
in the case of Section 7.1 and Section 7.2(c) only, is not cured withm 30 days after notice 
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tiiereof to GTE, GTE shaU pay to BeU Atiantic a termination fee of one billion eight hundred 
milUon dollara ($1,800,000,000) (tiie "BeU Atiantic Tennination Fee"). 

(d) Each tennination fee payable under Sections 9.2(b) and (c) above shaU be 
payable in cash, payable no later than one business day following the deUvery of notice of 
termination to the other Party, or, if such fee shaU be payable pursuant to clause (iii) of either 
of Section 9.2(b) or (c), such fee shall be payable no later than one business day following the 
day such Party entera mto the definitive agreement referenced in such clause (iu). 

(e) GTE and BeU Atiantic agree that tiie agreements contained in Sections 9.2(b) 
and (c) above are an integral part of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the 
Option Agreements and constitute Uquidated dam^es and not a penalty. In the event of any 
dispute as to whether any fee due under such Sections 9.2(b) and (c) is due and payable, the 
prevaUing party shall be entitied to receive Scorn the other Party the costs and ecpenses 
(including legal fees and expenses) in connection with any action, including the filing of any 
lawsuit or other legal action, relatii^ to such dispute. Interest shaU be paid on the amount of 
any u i ^ d fee at the pubUcly announced prime rate of Citibank, N.A. from the date such fee 
was required to be paid. 

SECTION 9.3 — Amendment. This Agreement may be amended by the Parties 
purauant to a writing adopted by action taken by all of the Parties at any time before the 
Effective Time; provided, however, that, after approval of the Merger Agreement by the 
stockholdera of GTE or Bell Atiantic, whichever shall occur first, no amendment may be made 
>^ch would (a) alter or change the amount or kinds of consideration to be received by the 
holdera of GTE Common Stock upon consummation of the Merger, (b) alter or change any 
term of the Certificate of Incorporation of GTE or the Certificate of Incorporation of BeU 
Atiantic (except for the unplementation at the Effective Tune of the Certificate Amendment) 
or (c) alter or change any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement if such alteration or 
change would adversely affect the holdera of any class or series of securities of GTE or Bell 
Atiantic. This Agreement may not be amended except by an instrument m writing signed by 
the Parties. 

SECTION 9.4 — Waiver. At any time before tiie Effective Tune, any Party may (a) 
extend the time for the performance of any of the obligations or other acts of the other Parties, 
(b) waive any maccuracies in the representations and warranties contained herein or in any 
document deUvered pursuant hereto and (c) waive compliance with any of the agreements or 
conditions contained herein. Any ̂ reement on the part of a Party to any such extension or 
waiver shall be vaUd only as against such Party and only if set forth in an instrument in writmg 
signed by such Party. 
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ARTICLE X - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

SECTION lO.l —Non-Survival of Representations, Warranties and Agreements. The 
representations, warranties and agreements in this Agreement shaU terminate at the Effective 
Time or upon the termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.1 hereof, as the case 
may be, except that (a) the agreements set forth in Article I and Sections 2.2,2.4,2.5,2.6,2.7, 
2.8, 2.9, 7.8, 7.9 and 7.12 hereof shall survive tiie Effective Time indefinitely, (b) tiie 
agreements and representations set forth in Sections 4.10,4.16,5.10,5.16,7.5 (b), 92 and 
10.3 hereof shaU survive termination indefinitely and (c) nothing contained herein shaU limit 
any covenant or Agreement of the Parties which by its terms contemplates performmice after 
the Effective Time. 

SECTION 10.2 — Notices. All notices and other commimications given or made 
pursuant hereto shaU be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given or made as 
of the date of receipt and shall be delivered personally or mailed by registered or certified maU 
(postage prepaid, retum receipt requested), sent by overnight courier or sent by telecopy, to 
the Parties at the foUowing addresses or telecopy numbera (or at such other address or telecopy 
number for a Party as shall be specified by lUce notice): 

(a) if to GTE: 

GTE Corporation 
One Stamford Forum 
Stamford, Connecticut 06904 
Attention: WUliamP.Ban 
Executive Vice President-Government 
and Regulatory and General Counsel 
Telecopy No.: (203)965-3464 

with a copy to: 

O'Melveny & Myera LLP 
153 East 53"* Street, 54* Floor 
New York, New York 10066 
Attention: Jeffiey J. Rosen, Esq. 
Telecopy No.: (212) 326-2061 
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(b) ifto BeU Atiantic: 

Bell Atiantic Corporation 
1095 Avenue oftiie Americas, 39* Floor 
New Yoric, New Yoric 10036 
Attention: Vice President and General Counsel 
Telecopy: (212)597-2587 

with a copy to: 

BeU Atiantic Networic Services, Inc. 
1717 Arch Street, 32N 
PhUadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103 

. Attention: Assistant General Counsel - Mergera and Acquisitions 
Telecopy; (215)963-9195 

and 

Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP 
919 Third Avenue 
New York, New York 10022-3897 
Attention: Peter Allan Atkins, Esq. 
Telecopy No.: (212) 735-2000 

SECTION 10.3—Expenses. ExceptasotherwiseprovidedinthisAgreement,aUcosts 
and expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated 
hereby shaU be paid by the Party incurring such costs and expenses, except that those expenses 
incurred in connection with the printing of the Joint Proxy Statement and the Registration 
Statement, as weU as the fUing fees related thereto and any filing fee required in coimectioji 
with the filing of Premerger Notifications under the HSR Act, shaU be shared equally by GTE 
and Bell Atiantic. GTE wUl pay any real i^operty transfer or similar Taxes imposed on the 
stockholdera of GTE in connection with tiiis Agreement and the transactions contemplated 
hereby. 

SECTION 10.4—Certain Definitions. For purposes ofthis Agreement, the following 
terms shaU have the foUowing meanings: 

(a) "1933 Act" means the Securities Act of 1933, as the same may be amended 
from time to time, and "Exchai^e Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the 
same m ^ be amended firom time to time. 
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(b) "affiUate" of a person means a person that directiy or indirectiy, through one 
or more intermediaries, controls, is controUed by, or is under common control with, the first 
mentioned person. 

(c) "commercially reasonable efforts" ^lall mean those efforts necessary or 
advisable to advance the interests of the Parties in achieving the purposes and specific 
requirements and satisfymg the conditions ofthis Agreement provided that such efforts wiU 
not reqiure or mclude either expense or conduct not ordinarily mcurred or engaged m by 
Parties seeking to implement agreements of this type unless part of a separate mutual 
understanding of the Parties not contamed in this Agreement whetiier reached before or after 
the Agreement is executed. 

(d) "control" (including the terms "controlled by" and "under common control 
with") means the possession, direct or indirect, of the power to direct or cause the direction 
of the management and policies of a person, whether through the ownership of stock, as trustee 
or executor, by contract or credit arrangement or otherwise. 

(e) "HSR Act" means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, 
as the same may be amended from time to time. 

(f) "knowledge" of any Party shall mean the actual knowledge of the executive 
ofScera of such Party. 

(g) "Material Adverse Effect" means any change in or effect on the business of the 
referenced corporation or any of its Subsidiaries that is or wiU be materially adverse to the 
business, operations (including the income statement), properties (including intangible 
properties), condition (financial or otherwise), assets, UabiUties or regulatory status of such 
referenced corporation and its Subsidiaries takm as a Mdiole, but shall not include (I) the 
effects of changes that are generally appUcable in (A) the telecommunications industiy, (B) 
the United States economy or (C) the United States securities markets if, in any of (A), (B) or 
(Q, the effect on GTE or BeU Atiantic, determined without includmg its ownership of GTE 
after the Merger, (as the case may be) and its respective Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, is not 
materiaUy disproportionate relative to the effect on the other and its Subsidiaries, taken as a 
whole. All references to Material Adverse Effect on BeU Atiantic or its Subsidiaries contamed 
in Article FV, V or VI ofthis Agreement shall be deemed to refer solely to BeU Atiantic and 
its Subsidiaries without including its ownership of GTE and its Subsidiaries after the Merger. 

(h) "Material Investment" means (a) as to GTE, any person which GTE duectiy 
or indirectiy holds the stock of, or other equity interest in, provided the lesser of the fair 
market value or book value of such mterest exceeds SlOO ixulUon, excluding, however, any 
person which is a Subsidiary of GTE; and (b) as to BeU Atlantic, any person which Bell 
Atlantic directiy or indirectiy holds the stock of, or other equity interest in, provided the lesser 
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oftiie ^ir market value or book value of such interest exceeds $100 miUion, excluding, 
however, any Person which is a Subsidiary of BeU Atiantic. 

(i) "person" means an individual, corporation, partnership, association, trust, 
estate, limited liabiUty company, labor union, umncorporated organization, entity or groi^ (as 
defined in the Exchange Act). 

(j) "POR" means the Plan of Reorganization approved by the United States Court 
for the District of Columbia on August 5,1983 and the Agreement Concerning Contingent 
LiabiUties, Tax Mattera and Termination of Certam Agreements dated as of November 1, 
1983, as amended and supplemented. 

(k) "Significant Subsidiary" with respect to GTE means any Subsidiary \ ^ c h on 
the date of determination is a "significant subsidiary" within the meaning of Rule l-02(w) of 
Regulation S-X promulgated under the Exchange Act and, with respect to Bell Atiantic means 
any Subsidiary ^^ch on the date of determination is a "significant subsidiary" within the 
meaning of Rule l-02(w) of Regulation S-X promulgated under the Exchange Act 

(1) "Subsidiary", "GTE Subsidiary", or "BeU Atiantic Subsidiary" means any 
corporation or other legal entity ofwhich GTE or BeU Atiantic, as the case may be (either 
alone or through or together with any other Subsidiary or Subsidiaries), owns, duectiy or 
indirectiy, more than 50% of the stock or other equity interests the holdera of which are 
generally entitied to vote for the election of the board of directora or other governing body of 
such corporation or other legal entity. For purposes ofthis Agreement, Grupo lusaceU S.A. 
de C.V. shall be deemed to be a Material Investment, and not a Subsidiary, of Bell Atiantic. 

SECTION 10.5 — Headings. The headii^ contained in this Agreement are for 
reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation ofthis 
Agreement 

SECTION 10.6 — Severability. If any term or other provision of this Agreement is 
invaUd, Ulegal or inc^iable of being enforced by any rule of law or public policy, aU other 
conditions and provisions ofthis Agreement shaU nevotheless remm in fuU force and effect 
so long as the economic or legal substance of the transfusions contemplated hereby is not 
affected in any manner adverae to any Party. Upon such determination that any term or other 
provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced, the Parties shaU negotiate in good 
faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the ori^mal intent of the Parties as closely as 
possible in an acceptable manner to the end that the transactions contemplated hereby are 
fulfiUed to the maximum extent possible. 

SECTION 10.7—Entire Agreement; No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement, 
the Nondisclosure Agreement and the Stock Option Agreements constitute the entire 
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agreement and, except as expressly set forth herein, supersedes any and all other prior 
agreements and undertakings, both written and oral, among the Parties, or any of them, with 
respect to the subject matter hereof and, except for Section 7.8 (Indenmification, Directora' and 
Officera' Insurance) and Section 7.12 (Post-Merger BeU Atiantic Board ofDirectora), is not 
intended to confer iq)on any person other than GTE, Bell Atiantic, and Merger Subsidiary and, 
after the Effective Time, their respective stockholdera, any rights or remedies hereunder. 

SECTION 10.8 —Assignment. This Agreement shaU not be assigned by operation of 
law or otherwise. 

SECTION 10.9 — Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and 
construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Delaware appUcable to contracts 
executed in and to be performed entirely within that State, without regard to the conflicts of 
laws provisions thereof; provided that the Merger shall be governed by the laws of the State 
ofNew York applicable to contracts executed in and to be performed entirely within that State, 
without regard to the confUcts of laws provisions thereof. 

SECTION 10.10 — Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more 
counterparts, and by the different Parties in separate counterparts, each of which when 
executed shall be deemed to be an original, but all ofwhich shall constitute one and the same 
Agreement. 

SECTION 10.11 —Interpretation. 

(a) Whenever the words "include", "includes" or "including" are used in 
this Agreement they shall be deemed to be foUowed by the words "without limitation." 

(b) Words denoting any gendor shall include all gendera Where a word or 
phrase is defined herein, each of its other grammatical forms shaU have a corresponding 
meaning. 

(c) A reference to any party to this Agreement or any other £^reement or 
document shaU include such party's successora and permitted assigns. 

(d) A reference to any legislation or to any provision of any legislation shall 
include any modification or re-enactment thereof, any legislative provisicm substituted therefor 
and all regulations and statutory mstruments issued thereunder or pursuant thereto. 

(e) AU references to "$" and dollara shall be deemed to refer to United 
States cunency unless otherwise specificaUy provided. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, GTE, BeU Atiantic and Beta Gamma Corporation have 
caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first written above by their respective 
officera thereunto duly authorized. 

GTE CORPORATION 

Bv: s/ Charles R. Lee 
Name: 
Titie: 

Charles R. Lee 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 

Bv: s/ Marianne Drost 
Name: 
Titie: 

Marianne Drost 
Secretary 

BELL ATLANTIC CORPORATION 

By: s/ Ivan Seidenberg 
Name: Ivan Seidenberg 
Titie: Vice Chairman, Preddent and Chief 

Executive Officer 

BETA GAMMA CORPORATION 

By: s/ Ivan Seidenberg 
Name: 
Titie: 

Ivan Seidenberg 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS • 
(Millions of Dollars, Except Per-Share Amounts) 

Revenues and Sales 
Operating Income 
Net Income* 
Earnings Per Common Share* 

Basic 
Diluted 

Common Shareholders' Equity 
Average Common Shares Outstanding (in millions) 
Return on Common Equity 
Capital Expenditures 
Access Minutes of Use (in millions) 
Access Lines (in thousands) 
Employees (in thousands) 

Costs associated with tlie new data initiatives reduced net income by $242 million, or $ .25 per share in 1997. Excluding these costs, basic earnings per share from core operations would have been $3,17, The 1996 
results include a pretax gain of $12 million, which increased net Income by $8 million, or $ .01 per share, in connection with the program to sell or trade a small percentage of nonstrategic domestic local-exchange 
telephone properties. Excluding this gain and the costs related to the new data initiatives, net income would hawe grown 8,8% while earnings per share would have grown 10,1%. 

ABOUT GTE • With 1997 revenues of more than $23 billion, GTE is one of the world's largest 
telecommunications companies and a leading provider of integrated telecommunications services^ 
In the United States, GTE provides local service in 28 states and wireless service in 17 states, 
nationwide long-distance service and internetworking services ranging from dial-up Internet access 
for residential and small-business consumers to Web-based applications for Fortune 500 compa­
nies, and video service in selected markets. Outside the United States, the company serves over 
seven million telecommunications customers. • In addition, GTE is a leader in government and 
defense communications systems and equipment, directories, telecommunications-based informa­
tion services, and aircraft-passenger telecommunications. 

CONTENTS • 
1. Our Cover: What's the Big Idea? 
2. Chairman's Message 
4. GTE People, Social Responsibility 
5. Domestic Operations 

12. International Operations 
16. GTE At A Glance 
17. GTE Service Areas 
18. Selected Financial Data 
20. Financial Review 
29. Consolidated Financial Statements 
33. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
40. Directors and Officers 
4 1 . Corporate Information 

(SB WE'RE NOT JUST YOUR LOCAL TELEPHONE 
COMPANY ANYMORE • Featured on the cover 
and throughout this annual report is a constant 
stream of information, flowing from GTE 
customers who live and work around the 
world. Have an idea? Let us move it for you. ... 



OUR COVER: WHAT'S THE BIG IDEA? • Years ago, GTE was a local telephone 
company moving voice over copper wires. Today, we're that - and much more. 
• Sometimes we move voice along a strand of fiber-optic cable stretched 
between telephones. Or send it through the air to your wireless phone. We 
move voice, video and digitized data along the Internet, pipe it beneath 
the ocean, and cable it underground to your phone, fax or TV. • Whether 
you're tracking fish shipments from the Chesapeake Bay, ordering inventory 
in Shanghai or making a call to a friend down the street - we're there. 
• We're People Moving Ideas'"! 

COLD • John Patten has placed "in the money" in 

competitions including Alaska's Tditarod and Minnesota': 

Beargrease Sled Dog Marathon using a lightweight 

dog sled that he designed and built at his Saw Tooth 

Mountain Sled Works in Grand Marais, Minnesota. 

The Sled Works is one of 11 million businesses featured 

in GTE's SuperPages®, putting them on the map — no 

matter where in the world they're located. 

HOT • Deep in the heart of Rub AI Khaki - Saudi Arabia's 

"Empty Quarter"- sits Shaybah, a major oil and gas field 

managed by Saudi ARAMCO. There, GTE employees 

routinely brave sandstorms and I 30-degree heat to pro­

vide a communications infrastructure including radio, fiber­

optic £md local area networks, and basic telephone service. 

LOW • Since 1952, visitors to Carlsbad Caverns have 
been able to make phone calls 755 feet below the wind­
swept New Mexico desert, GTE installed a special cable, 

• i r c e d to withstand its own ponderous weight and 
pled from view. The cable carries conversations 
two pay phones, from the cafeteria and gift shop 

phone system and from 14 emergency phones located 
along miles of subterranean trails. 

HIGH • GTE installed fiber-optic cables that link the observ­

atories atop Hawaii's Mauna Kea, I 3,796 feet above sea 

level, to research stations at the base ofthis inactive volcano. 

Transmitting images from the farthest known reaches of 

outer space, GTE's voice, video and data capabilities help 

scientists understand the universe and share this information 

with the rest of our world — practically at light speed. 



CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE • 

The telecommunications industry is undergoing fundamental and 
profound change, driven largely by technological developments, 
rising customer expectations, and greater levels of competition. 

We have spent the past several years positioning GTE to thrive 
in this new environment. And in 1997, we mapped out a strategy 
to capture the new opportunities we see to truly become a growth 
company. To win, we believe GTE must: 

• Create a national, versus a multi-regional, presence; 

• Enhance our international capabilities; 

• Offer a broad array of services, with increased focus 
on enhanced data and leading-edge Internet services; 

• Develop the marketing and sales expertise to compete 
in key national markets; and 

• Provide unparalleled customer service to build the trust 
and confidence of consumers as more and more choices 
flood the marketplace. 

In the midst of so much change, one thing remains constant: 
The key to our success is in providing customers with excellent 
products and service. We understand the important role we play 
in serving our customers' needs, because we are a company that 
moves the most precious cargo of all: ideas and information. 

That's why People Moving Ideas is both the theme of this annual 
report and our new national advertising campaign. These three 
words capture the spirit and direction of today's GTE: We are a 
company on the move. We're people who move ideas, one person 
to another, one company to another, anywhere in the world. 

During 1997, we took several important steps to fulfill our 
vision to turn GTE into a true growth company. At the same 
time, we made substantial gains across virtually all areas of 
our core businesses. 

STRONG RESULTS FROM CORE OPERATIONS - We know 
what it takes to compete and win in the changing telecommu­
nications marketplace. At year-end 1997, we had a record 
1.5 million new domestic telephone customer lines, 889,000 
new long-distance customers, 738,000 new wireless customers, 
202,000 new Internet-access customers, 114,000 new directory 
advertising customers, and 73,000 new video and competitive 
services customers. 

We are very pleased with the financial and operating results of 
our core business for 1997. Our consolidated revenues and sales 
for the year increased $1.92 billion, or 9%, to $23.3 billion, 
the highest annual revenue growth ever reported by our company. 

Our earnings per share (EPS) from core operations increased 10% 
for the third consecutive year. Net income from core operations 
was $3.04 billion, or $3.17 per share. However, because of the 
dilutive effect of our data initiatives and other critical growth 
investments, our net income was reduced to $2.79 billion, 
or $2.92 per share. Without these investments, our core EPS 
growth would have exceeded 15% for the year. Making the right 
investments today provides the foundation for future profitable 
growth and ensures that we are a leader in providing integrated 
communications services in the marketplace. 

With the steps we've taken to strengthen our competitive position 
and with the continued strong performance of our core businesses, 
we expect our revenue growth rates to hit double digits in 1998 
and EPS growth to be in the 13% to 15% range in 1999. Certain 
factors that may affect these forward-looking statements are 
discussed on pages 26 and 27. 

STEPS TOWARD LONG-TERM GROWTH • In addition to deliver­
ing strong results in core operations in 1997, we took steps to 
position ourselves for future profitable grovrth as outlined in o 
overall strategy: m 
• We must have a national presence. In May 1997, we launched 
GTE Communications Corporation, a competitive local-exchange 
carrier that will market the full spectrum of GTE services in key 
markets, without regard to franchise boundaries. 

" We must be a leader in providing value-added, enhanced data 
services. Industry-wide data revenues are now growing at about 
15% annually, roughly three times faster than traditional voice 
services. The Internet continues to grow exponentially. All told, 
industry-wide data revenues are expected to quadruple from 
roughly $100 billion in 1997 to over $400 billion in 2006. 

To seize data-related growth opportunities, we have moved 
aggressively to position GTE as the industry's leading provider 
of advanced data internetworking services. 

In 1997, this strategy included the acquisition of BBN Corpora­
tion - a leading supplier of end-to-end Internet solutions - as well 
as the development of a high-speed, national fiber-optic network. 
In addition, in November we purchased Genuity Inc. - a premier, 
value-added provider of distributed application Web hosting serv­
ices that enable customers to transfer their business applications 
to the Internet. 

In 1998, we will expand and capitalize on our position in the data 
market, which will provide a significant new source of revenues. 

• We must provide bundled services - a complete, convenient 
package of telecommunications services, all on a single bill. S 
veys repeatedly show that consumers want "one-stop" shopping. 
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In 1996, GTE became the first of its peers to offer local, long­
distance, wireless and Internet-access services on a single bill. 
By year-end 1997, we offered the convenience of "one-stop" 
shopping in 21 markets throughout the country. 

• And finally, we must continue to enhance our international 
capabilities. This market represents a significant opportunity 
for us. The international market is more than twice as big as 
the U.S. market and it's growing twice as fast. 

WE ARE HELPING TO DEFINE A NEW TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
INDUSTRY • While our industry is experiencing unprecedented 
growth, we are also experiencing significant restructuring. 
Alliances, mergers and acquisitions are changing the competitive 
landscape on an almost daily basis. 

Within this context, in October, GTE offered to buy MCI for 
$40 per share in cash. In November, MCI announced that it had 
signed an agreement to merge with WorldCom in a deal reported 
t ^ e worth $51 per share in stock for most shareholders and 

^^Bsame amount In cash for shareholders of BT (formerly British 
^Brecom), which owns about 20% of MCI. 

I believe acquiring MCI would have been - and still would be -
an excellent strategic fit for GTE. The acquisition would have 
significantly accelerated our overall growth. But it only made 
sense at the right price. The WorldCom offer exceeded the price 
that made sense for GTE. 

We're confident about GTE's ability to succeed in the competi­
tive marketplace iv/t/70i;t entering into a major transaction or 
combination with another company. In other words, we can go 
it alone and win. 

However, we will continue to hold discussions with other 
companies regarding possible alliances and combinations 
that will help accelerate growth or enhance our strategic 
plans. This is an integral part of doing business in the 
evolving telecommunications industry. 

A FEW FINAL WORDS • In a period of unprecedented change 
in the telecommunications industry, GTE has not only stayed 
ahead of the curve, we have helped define the curve. We are 
leading the effort to ensure that Congress' intention to create 
a level playing field among competitors is fulfilled as the Tele­
communications Act of 1996 is implemented. This successful 
effort is making a significant impact on the accomplishment of 
our goal to create a profitable growth company, and has helped 
inspire the cultural shift to a much more aggressive posture in 
the marketplace. This transformation of GTE to a growth company 
is absolutely key to building greater shareholder value long term. 

This transformation has not been easy. I want to express my 
thanks to three special groups. 

To all of GTE's shareholders, I thank you for your support and 
confidence as GTE navigates through a changing and challenging 
industry - but an industry full of opportunity. 

To our employees, thank you for your dedication, your hard work 
and your positive and professional attitude. 

And to our customers, thank you for allowing us to serve you. 
We pledge even higher levels of service for you in the future. 

With the continued support of our shareholders, our team of 
world-class employees and our loyal customer base, GTE's 
growth prospects have never been better. The only question is: 
How far and how high we will go? 

a l ^ i ^ ^ ^' oC ^•A^JZ. 

CHARLES R. LEE 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
February 20, 1998 

CONSOLIDATED REVENUES AND REVENUE GROWTH RATES [excludes properties sold) 

Q Revenues and Sales (in billions) 

• Revenue Growth Rates 
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GTE PEOPLE • 

Building a stronger sense of partnership is a key goal of GTE's 
human resources policies and programs. Enhancing the capabili­
ties of our people is equally important. 

With the introduction of our Partnership Shares program, our 
domestic employees now receive stock options. 

Partnership Shares is the largest employee stock option program 
in the telecommunications industry and one of the 10 largest in 
corporate America. More than 91,000 GTE employees received 
options in 1997. 

Some 40,000 of our employees are union represented, primarily 
by either the Communications Workers of America or the Inter­
national Brotherhood of Electrical Workers. We've partnered 
with these unions to strengthen our GTE team. As a result, we've 
initiated special programs to increase employee involvement in 
identifying and resolving business issues and to share information 
vital to improved performance. 

In November, reflecting our longstanding leadership in employee 
health care benefits, we were the first company to adopt the 
"Consumer Bill of Rights and Responsibilities" developed by a 
presidential health care advisory commission. GTE was praised by 
President Clinton for this action during a White House ceremony. 

In 1997, we continued to demonstrate our deep commitment 
to developing our workforce by completing the nationally recog­
nized Management Development Core Course Series. These 
courses, in which more than 22,000 employees participated over 
the past four years, have been the centerpiece of our strategy to 
develop the next generation of GTE's leaders. The successor Lead­
ership Development Series is scheduled to start in early 1998. 
Similarly, the majority of our front-line workers participated in 
the Front-Line Core Course series. This series will continue to 
play a vital role in our efforts to educate our front-line employees 
about GTE's competitive market strategies. 

We continue our commitment to balance work and family needs. 
For example, we offer special seminars, broadcast to GTE locations 
via our internal TV network. These seminars assist employees in 

financial planning and in selecting colleges for their children. We 
also provide many employees with the flexibility of telecommuting. 

GTE is committed to making diversity a critical consideration in 
the recruitment, hiring, career development and promotion of our 
employees. We also recognize that our success in the marketplace 
largely depends on a workforce that is able to anticipate and meet 
the needs of diverse customers. 

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY • 

Preparing the future workforce is the strategy driving GTE's giving 
program. Each year through the GTE Foundation, we contribute 
to nearly 4,000 nonprofit organizations. Grants in 1997, totaling 
more than $27 million, concentrated on supporting math and 
science education - equipping students with skills needed in the 
21st century. 

The GTE Growth Initiatives for Teachers Program, for example, 
helps educators boost student achievement by harnessing 
technology. The Scientific American FRONTIERS series on 
PBS, underwritten by GTE, reaches millions of viewers in 
homes and classrooms with stories on scientific breakthroughs 

# 

Our giving also extends to special partnerships with the United 
Negro College Fund and Literacy Volunteers of America. Beyond 
education, we also support initiatives that enhance the arts and 
build healthy, vibrant communities. 

We also are helping our communities to grow by supporting eco­
nomic development initiatives and assisting with job creation 
and retention. In addition, our employees serve as volunteers in 
hundreds of nonprofit organizations - reinforcing our company's 
commitment to the communities we serve. 

TIMELY • When Colette Petros was diagnosed with 
multiple sclerosis, she wanted to learn more about 
possible treatments. Colette logged onto the Internet 
at the Antelope Valley College Library in California's 
Mohave Desert, where she is a student, and uncovered 
the latest medical research. She shared this with her 
physician, who prescribed a more promising treatment 
plan. A GTE grant helped the college connect to the 
World Wide Web. 

CARING • For 25 years, a gravel parking lot covered what 
were once salmon spawning beds in McCoIlum County 
Park, near Everett, Washington. Seeking to restore the 
1,35-acre site to its original wetlands habitat, the Adopt-
A-Stream Foundation had 400 truckloads of fill hauled 
away. Volunteers from GTE and other local organizations' 
assisted in planting 4,000 native plants and constructing 
a beaver dam. Today, a new freshwater marsh is home 
to great blue herons, sandpipers, ducks, pileated wood­
peckers, frogs, salamanders and salmon. 

• 



DOMESTIC OPERATIONS-

Domestic Operations took a number of definitive steps in 1997 
to become a national provider of integrated telecommunications 
services and to position GTE to take advantage of growth opportu­
nities in the data marketplace. 

On the data front, we acquired BBN Corporation - the company 
that helped pioneer the Internet. In May, we began developing 
a new, state-of-the-art, nationwide fiber-optic network. This 
network of the future will enable GTE to provide outstanding 
end-to-end voice, video and data services to customers. 

To be a national provider of integrated services, we made 
several organizational changes during the year. These changes 
will provide us with maximum flexibility to meet the competitive 
challenges ahead. 

We remodeled our Telephone Operations group and built three 
new business units: 

• GTE Network Services is managing our extensive local telephone 
^Mtwork and retains marketing, sales and service responsibilities 
^^ftparrier, business and residential customers. This unit will 
^ W t i n u e to serve the more than 21.5 million residential and 

business customers of GTE within its wireline service territories. 

• We formed GTE Communications Corporation - which is our com­
petitive local-exchange carrier, or CLEC. It will be able to market 
the full spectrum of GTE services, including local, long-distance, 
wireless and data services, without regard to franchise boundaries. 
This unit will allow us to compete on a level playing field with 
other companies entering our markets as CLECs, and will help 
us become a national provider of telecommunications and data 
services. At year-end 1997, this group was aggressively marketing 
a full array of bundled services in California and Florida, with 
plans to market In additional states by year-end 1998. 

• In addition, we formed GTE Business Development and 
Integration - a unit that will review marketing strategy and 
market response on behalf of all business units. This unit 
will also be responsible for many staff functions, such as infor­
mation technology, and will reduce expenses and eliminate any 
potential duplication of efforts. 

While we are taking definitive steps to achieve our overall vision, 
we experienced strong growth across all our business units. 

Revenues from our domestic business units grew to $20.4 billion, 
an increase of 10% over 1996 results. 

GTE Network Services achieved strong results in 1997. Revenues 
from new and expanded services - including caller ID, video, voice 

saging and call waiting - soared an Impressive 55%. Overall, 
ork usage jumped 13% in 1997. Residential second lines, a 

key measure of future demand, grew an impressive 16%. Business 
lines Increased 9%. 

I f U I I I 

GTE Wireless is an integral part of our effort to provide a total 
integrated communications package to customers nationwide. 
During 1997, its customer base increased by 20%, reaching 
a total of 4.5 million customers by year end. In 1997, we 
responded quickly to significant price competition in several 
markets, introducing new pricing plans and promotions. We 
reduced customer turnover and fraud, even as we entered new 
territories. We introduced digital personal communications 
services In three new markets: Cincinnati, Seattle and Spokane. 
We now offer wireless service in 17 states. 

GTE Directories encompasses more than 2,300 directory titles 
with a circulation of 70 million copies. This unit also has expand­
ed into a multi-product company and in 1997 became the first 
major publisher to offer customers value-priced integrated bun­
dling of print directory, electronic directory, cable-TV advertising 
and Internet-access services - through a single sales call. Monthly 
usage of our Internet-based SuperPages® interactive service grew 
by nearly 16%, reaching monthly levels of four million visits and 
53 million hits. 

GTE Technology and Systems brings our successful GTE Laborato­
ries and GTE Government Systems units under one roof. This unit 
Is moving quickly to provide leadership and coordination of tech­
nology planning and resources throughout GTE. GTE Government 
Systems continued to successfully market our unique expertise to 
governments and defense agencies. 

GTE Internetworking was created in 1997 after the acquisition 
of BBN Corporation. This unit is quickly positioning GTE as the 
industry's leading provider of advanced data and Internet-related 
services, including network management, security and other 
value-added services. Further enhancing our data capabilities, 
we acquired Genuity Inc., a company that specializes in complex 
Web-hosting services. Genuity brings to GTE strategically located 
network data centers and load-balancing proprietary software 
that ensures efficient delivery of data access across the Internet. 

GTE Airfone strengthened its position this year as the industry 
leader in inflight communications with the addition of Continental 
Airlines to its roster of clients. Airfone offers a full array of air/ 
ground communications services, including conference calling, 

seat-to-seat calling, data and fax capabilities, 
and a wide variety of information services, 
including LIVE CNN. Airfone® service is now 
installed in more than 2,300 aircraft. 

We're pleased with the progress we made 
this past year, but we're even more excited 
about our unlimited growth prospects In the 
years ahead. 

KENT B. FOSTER 
President 



, ^ n B W t ^ ACCESS 

Michael Mcllraph, a sponge diver in Tarpon 

Springs, Florida, uses one of GTE's 21,5 million telephone 

lines to make a call. In addition to nationwide long-distance 

and Internet-access services, GTE has local and wireless service 

^^; I ' •' Alan WalUue, chairman of a puhlit.' rclaiion.v agcncv, 
is one of OTH's tirst customers in the Mariner's Villaiji.-
condominium complex in Marina Uel Rev, C'jlili)rnL,i, tn 
rccci\e new, blazin^lv last Intt-rnct-acccss soivice, c^illfd 
asymmetrical dijjital subsciibcr line (ADSL) leclinology. 
ADSI. trars7iiit.'> iiu ĵc vulujnes ol" (.Lita between home 
and otfice computers al ^poceis up to 1.5 megabits-pcr-
second, takiag Uit; piui out, of working over the Inlcrnct 
aL slower speeds. 

areas that cover approximately 30% of the U.S. population. Fully 

60% of the U.S. population lies within easy reach (100 miles or 

less) of GTE's existing territories. 

rR I r N r:..Y ••' CJ'I'E phone Mart"^ .stores provide onc-,^to|) 
.shojiping and total rommunieations solution^. Services 
range from wireline to uiicles.s, digital p.igers, l.ixes, i able 
.SLibseriplioii, and the Internet. Phuae Mart'' store'- are ab 
friendly place.^ to get technical questions ansuered. Ol , 
GTii's 148 stores, 1 1 S had revenues ol S 1 million or mor 
bringing total retail reycnuei to more than S3^0 milUon in 
1997, a 37% increa^<; over 1996. 



IT'S SHOWTIME 

150+ CHANNELS 
VIA AMERICAST<̂  GTE HAD MORE 
THAN 73,000 CABLE-TV CUSTOMERS 
AT YEAR-END 1997. 

Some days, things just don': gc right. Like get:ing 
stranded on a desert highway in New Viexico. Having a wireless 
phone can make Ire a little eas er. GTE's wire ess businesses 

serve b. / rr llion oeoole living on this crowdec planet - and a 
tew W10 find themiselves in some pretty remote places as well. 

! inda NeNon. ,i i u r ^e pi\H l i l i o i n r, 

.I-.1 -. a V d rn nrn-., np( In i ' \ai i i i : ie Hie in:ier cai' ol i \ o j r . ( ; 

.•.duh al the .W''. i"op; ili laii MiMivtnes, .; I mine es-, -.fielti'r 

•i,i.-ii,il.\ Min|j().-ud b\ ilie <.! 1 f' 1 o i ind.mon, .A le lenie ' l icn i , 

•II. ••mto- ^ idev dink- an imai^e ol I I K e.i;- and transini i^ it 

i i \ i.'r t.i'i b ^̂  II tdines lo i.inT-idlir(; i.iM Inr.s al the U;i i \ ersitv' 

lit Sm.di Idoriea PfdialrK - (_' ini,.. 



^J01CE MAIl. 

The frenetic staf^ of Boston.com churns out a daily on­
line version of The Boston Globe newspaper, The Information 
service also works with over 40 conteni providers - from other 
publications to TV ana radio outlets - to provide advertisers with 
a direct link to New Englanders in search of everything from Red 
Sox scores to real estate classifieds, updated weather reports, 

'I'he Federal .•\\iation .Aciministration 

(FAAl .selected t j T b t o de^i'^n. install an<l o p e r a t e a new 

. \ c ronau t i ca l In format ion Sv.stem, T \ . \ p e r s o n n e l and 

mil i tary pilot.-, at .^50 loca t ions across the Ll.S. will use 

the sys tem to p r e p a r e and file flight plans u i l h the PAA, 

and to coinniLinicaLc w e a t h e r briefings and advisorie.s 

on l ine , inaltiiig it tas ter and easier to c o m m u n i c a t e 

cri t ical fbght - re la ted da ta . 

traffic conditions and online exhibits for Boston's Museum of 
Fine Arts. GTE Internetv/orking is the site's Internet service and 
Web-hostIng provider, offering secure network management and 
reliability - a requirement for this popular site, which receives 
as many as one million page views each day, 

Josephit ic bas ton , a r ea l t o r , u^es Gd"b 

Real bs ia te Solut ions .sidiware to do^vnluad " rea l - l jm<" 

in io rma t ion on the local housing; marke t to a pro^pee^i^e 

c n - l o m e r . Using a !apCi>p I'omoLiter, she has fast, d i r c i l 

access to mt i l t ip le l i - t ings , pub l ic da tabases , e mail .iu(] 

dial-Lifj liiLernel-aLces.-i services I'roni her h o m e , oll ice or 

on ihe road , proviciinu he r wi th a c o r n p e t i t i \ e edge . 

http://Boston.com
file://�//iation
file:///cronautical


GTE provides over 13.000 Boeing Company 
employees with dial-up Internet-access service and offers a fast 
ntegrated services digital network (ISDN) system to promote 

Telecommuting. We also helped to configure and install a private 
Central Office telephone switching system. GTE Is bidding on 

customdzing a wireless headset system that, will allow jet aircraft 
assemblers to communicaie with suppliers - and each other 
across the factory floor more efficiently, boosting productivity 
and quality in Its plants In Washington and Kansas. 

•, i" _ - "• •' '. • G I'h onaides P u r d u e Uni \ ersity ir. W e s t 

I a tave t t e , Indiana, to nse a .^pecial P ic tu re I el " sv.stem to 

c o n d u c t in te rac t ive iilislariee learn ing , \ i deo l i nk ing tacultv 

and student.s at o t h e r campuses to increase ot t iee hou r s 

and the c[ualiC\' of educa t ion , G T E also m e e t s o t h e r P u r d u e 

c o m m o n i r a t i o n s needs i rnm basic p h o n e service t o tr ial 

.\I^SL In te rne t access and a managed .switching tacility on 

the c a m p u s , u h i e b serves 3 6 , 0 0 0 s tuden t s and 1 2 , 0 0 0 tacul tv 

and staff. 

file:///ideolinking


COAST-TQ-COflST 

1.7 MILLION 
LONG-DISTANCE CUSTOMERS 

World-renowned potter Nancy Youngblood Lugo (right) 
uses skills passed down over the centuries through her family to 
create a decorative clay pot, One of her creations is seen here 
baking in a traditional open fire kiln In her studio on the Santa 
Clara Reservation in Espahola, New Mexico. GTE local and long­
distance phone service, together with the Internet, help Nancy 
keep In touch with family, friends and gallery outlets. Her 
husband, George (above), Is a GTE employee who helps to 
maintain telephone voice transmissions over the rugged Jemez 
Mountains to Greater Santa Fe and beyond. 

Detective David Wilson (left) and officer David 
Tull of the Irving, Texas, Police Department use the Bastille''', 
GTE's new, secure. Web-based software, to track a missing child 
across state lines. When fully deployed, the Bastille"" will help 
law enforcement agencies to collaborate on everything from 
monitoring gangs to tracking "most wanted" suspects. 



GTE IS CREATING A 

15,000-MILE 
DATA NETWORK. 

•:^'>\iNf'".""Z ..• • Mike Rabaut Is an associate professor of computer 
science and the father of three children, Including Sarah (left). 
Because his wife often works out of town, he leaves his campus 
office early to be home when the kids get out of school. He 
has this flexibility and remains productive, thanks to GTE's 

far-reaching network, which includes local and long-distance 
service and Internet access. All of this allows Mike to tele-
commute from his home office, where he edits Web files, 
faxes papers, reconfigures college routers and e-mails students. 

SAVVY ' Wendy Ballentiiie receives a lacial Irorn Erin 

Fox at Pazazz Hair Design. Pazazz advertises in GTE's 

'I he bycrvthing Pages* telephone directory. Pazazz 

also reaches potential ciisromer.s through advertising 

kTE's SuperPages'* interactive service and GTE 

Ficast® cable TV. 



ON THE ROAD 

GLOBALROAM" SERVICE 
ALLOWS USERS TO MAKE AND RECEIVE CALLS 
THROUGH THEIR HOME WIRELESS PHONE 
NUMBER WHILE TRAVELING IN EUROPE AND ASIA. 

m ^ r v , Z V - ^ ; S : ^ ^ ^ ^ 
INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS 

International operations had a very successful year of continued 
improvement of existing operations while pursuing new profitable 
growth opportunities. 

Overall, GTE's international operations continue to make signifi­
cant contributions to the company's financial performance. 

Reported revenues were $2.9 billion, up 7% from 1996, and 
consolidated net income reached $366 million, up 8% over 1996. 
Results in 1997 included the cost of start-up operations in Asia. 

Looking at our International operations on a managed basis, 
revenues reached $5.2 billion in 1997, up 20% from 1996. 

At the end of 1997, GTE's International operations served more 
than 6.1 million access lines, 1.2 million cellular subscribers 
and 382,000 paging customers throughout the world. 

BC Telecom and Qu6becTel - our affiliated companies in 
Canada - both had strong performances as they successfully 
managed the transition to a fully competitive marketplace. 

CODETEL - the national telephone company of the Dominican 
Republic, which GTE wholly owns - maintained Its solid perform­
ance in the face of increasing competition. 

CANTV - Venezuela's national telephone company, which we 
manage and in which we have nearly a 26% ownership interest-
also had an outstanding year financially and now is preparing for 
competition that will arrive in the next few years. At the end of 
1996, CANTV became a public company with the listing of Its 
share equivalents on the New York Stock Exchange. The Initial 
share equivalents were offered publicly on November 22, 1996 

at $23. At the end of 1997, the share equivalents were trading 
at $41,625, an increase of 8 1 % since the initial offering. 

Our international joint ventures continued to grow. For example, 
CTI - a wireless telephone company in Argentina - more than 
tripled its cellular customer base during the year. In China, serv­
ice over our paging network expanded to 20 major metropolitan 
areas. Elsewhere in Asia, GTE is investing in everything from 
personal communications systems in Taiwan to helping India and 
Sri Lanka companies build telecommunications infrastructures. 

GTE expanded Its directories presence in Europe in 1997 with 
new acquisitions in Poland and Austria. We joined with Swedish 
publisher Telia AB to purchase Polish independent publisher U S 
WEST Polska from U S WEST International. GTE also purchased 
Herold Business Data, Austria's largest telephone directory pub 
lisher, in a joint venture with Post & Telekom Austria. 

In addition, we realigned our international units to strengthen 
our business development efforts, and appointed a new manage­
ment team to spearhead our drive. We're focusing particularly 
on new opportunities in Latin America, Europe and Asia. 

We're confident that International will 
continue to present GTE with unlimited 
growth opportunities. 

h 

MICHAEL T. MASIN 
Vice Chairman and President International 

AT YOUR SERVICE- GTE owns SO.8% of BC Telecom, 
which provides a full range of sophisticated telecommunica­
tions services to the Canadian province of British Columbia. 
BC Telecom crowned a successful year by being ihe sole host 
telecommunications provider to Vancouver's November 
1997 Asia-Paciiic Economic Council Summit, which 
brought together presidents, prime ministers and trade 
ministers of Canada, Mexico, the U.S. and most Pacific 
Rim countries. 

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS: 
ACCESS LINES AND CELLULAR SUBSCRIBERS [including affiliates) 
• Access Lines (in millions) 
• Cellular Subscribers [in Ihousands) 
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lUTERNATIONAL 

OVER 7 MILLION 
CUSTOMERS OUTSIDE THE U.S. FROM 
CANADA TO CHINA AND ARGENTINA 

Since late 1995, G T L nas oarlnercC with a major 
Chinese w/elcss ccrr:")any tc help -iioder'nze teiecomir jnications 
n China with a nationwice paging nelwork. Today, the netv^ork s 

arrive n ,'•'() major metmpclitan areas, inr uding Shanghai (ahcve) 
Guangzhe., anc Beij ng. With 1.2 Jill un people, China presents 
GTE wi:h a niajcr irarket ooportunity. 
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5.7 MILLION 
CUSTOMERS WORLDWIDE 

(.','[']• lias \L'i\M.)rL ( )-.Jf rati nil ^ e'i 'nici •, 

I NOC ^l in t h r IJoimnicJi i KcpublK', wliori ' ii> L'C)! li- I M 
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ELECTRONIC COMMERCE 

GTE's CYBERTRUST™ 
TEAM IS WORKING WITH AMERICAN EXPRESS®, 
MASTERCARD INTERNATIONAL® AND BANKS 
AROUND THE WORLD - INCLUDmG CHINA, 
TAIWAN, JAPAN AND THE U.S. - TO OFFER SAFE 
ELECTRONIC COMMERCE VIA THE INTERNET. 

OR CALLING FKOV T H L RA.N LORi-S^" 01- ICUACU F A L L S , 

IN ARGEN^ONA, GTE'S C O V P A N I A OL " L L L L O N O S D T I . 

INTERIOR (CTI) AFF IL IA ! ^ COVERS FHF T - R R . T O R Y WITh 

DYNAPvliC • Pacific Cellular Corporation Ltd., a coiisor-

tium in which GTE is a stakeholder, launched a nation­

wide personal communications srrvice.s venture in Taiwan 

^ m j ^ in 1998. Over 140,000 customers presubscribed to 

^^^H.>rvice. GTE h the only foreign strategic partner in 

^ ^ K o n s o r t i u m . 

ONE OF :_AT N AVERICA'S MOST EXTENSIVE WRELESS 
NE""'v'VORKS -' CTI more than tripled its wireless customer base 
in the interior regions during 1997 to over 328 .000 users. 

BONJOUR • The QuebecTel Group Inc. in Canada covers 
the northeastern portion of Quebec's vast territory. CiTL 
owns 50.6% of the company. In 1997, "Globetrotter"^," 
the QucbecTcl-owncd Internet service provider, extended 
its reach and enjoyed tremendous commercial success, 
QuebecTel also acquired Aide a la Micro-Informatique 
(AMI) Inc., a high-tech systems integration firm, 
strengthening the company's teehnulogical power. 
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GTE AT A GLANCE-

MAJOR DOMESTIC OPERATIONS • 

GTE Network Services is GTE's nationwide regulated wireline telephone 
operation, it served more than 21.5 million residential and business lines 
at the end of 1997. The business unit is also responsible for all wholesale 
operations to other telecommunications companies. 

GTE Communications Corporation is GTE's competitive local-exchange 
carrier (CLEC). It markets the full spectrum of GTE's services, includ­
ing local, long-distance, wireless and data services, without regard to 
franchise boundaries. 
• GTE Long Distance provides long-distance services to customers in all 

50 states. 
• GTE Video Services provides advanced high-quality video services to 

residential and business customers in California, Florida and Hawaii 
(including cable modem internet access in some markets). 

GTE Wireless is a leading provider of wireless telecommunications products 
and services in 73 metropolitan statistical areas, 53 rural statistical areas 
and three major trading areas. Some 61.3 million people live in the areas 
GTE is licensed to serve and it has 4.5 million customers. 

GTE internetworlfing Inc. offers managed access to the Internet and a variety 
of value-added services for businesses and other organizations. It offers 
Internet services with global reach, as well as Internet and Intranet business 
application solutions. It includes BBN Technologies, which provides the 
core research and development efforts that continue to drive the evolution 
of the Internet. 

GTE Directories annually publishes or provides sales and other directory-
related services for more than 2,300 directory titles with a circulation of 
70 million copies. 

• GTE New Media Services develops and markets online advertising and 
information services, including SuperPages® an interactive service for 
consumers and advertisers on the Internet's World Wide Web. 

GTE Technology & Systems serves as a consolidated source of technology-related 
information, coordination, support and guidance for all GTE business units. 
• GTE Government Systems is a leading supplier of communications and 

intelligence systems for defense, government and industry primarily in 
the United States. It also provides field engineering services, logistics 
support and the installation, operation and maintenance of telecommuni­
cations and information systems. 

• GTE Laboratories is the central research and development facility for 
GTE Corporation. 

GTE Airfone, the leading provider of airborne communications systems, 
provides clear, reliable inflight telecommunications services to passengers 
on more than 2,300 aircraft. Passengers can use the Airfone® service 
to make and receive calls, send and receive data and faxes, and access 
e-mail and voice mail. Since the first call in 1984, the Airfone service 
has logged more than 76 million calls. 

MAJOR INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS • 

GTE International networks connect more than 250 locations on five 
continents. GTE has more than 40 years of international experience 
and serves more than seven million customers. 

BC Telecom provides local, long-distance and wireless services in the 
province of British Columbia, Canada, to three million customers. GTE 
has a 50.8% controlling interest in BC Telecom. 

Compaftfa An6nima Naclonal Tel^fonos de Venezuela (CANTV) is a full-
service telecommunications provider offering local, wireless, national 
and international long-distance services throughout Venezuela. GTE is 
part of a multinational consortium that owns a controlling minority 
interest in CANTV. 

Companfa Dominicana de Tel^fonos (CODETEL) provides local, wireless, 
national and international long-distance services throughout the Dominican 
Republic. 

Companfa de Tel^fonos del Interior (CTI) provides wireless services in the 
north and south interior regions of Argentina. CTI has more than 328,000 
wireless customers. GTE is part of a multinational consortium that owns a 
controlling minority interest in CTI. 

GTE China provides paging services in 20 major metropolitan areas, 
including Beijing. 

QuebecTel Group Inc. provides local, long-distance and wireless services 
to more than 300,000 customers in the northeastern region of Quebec, 
Canada. GTE has a 50.6% controlling interest in QuebecTel. 

GTE International Telecom Services includes business initiatives involving 
the publishing and sale of directory-related services in Europe, Canada, 
Asia and Latin America, as well as an Engineer, Furnish and Install (EF&I) 
business unit. 



DOMESTIC SERVICE AREAS-

% Wireline 9 Wireline and PCS 9 Wireless 0 Wifeline and Wireless 

0 Personal Communications Services (PCS) % Long-distance, dial-up Internet-access and Directories in all 50 states 

INTERNATIONAL SERVICE AREAS 

% = ^ ^ 

Central America and 
Caribbean • 

Dominican Republic 
c CODETEL: Full-service 

provider 

Business Unit Operations 
^ Belize 
° Costa Rica 
D Mexico 

South America 

Venezuela 
^ CANTV: Full-service 

provider 

Argentina 
°CTi: National wireless 

provider (outside 
Buenos Aires) 

North America 

Canada 
^ QuSbecTel Group Inc.: 

Full-service provider in 
northeastern region of 
Quebec 

North America « 

Canada 
o BC Telecom: Full-service 

provider 

Europe / Middle East • ; Asia Pacific 

Business Unit Operations 
° Austria 
° Belgium 
° Poland 
fJ Spain 
° Hungary 
° Saudi Arabia 

China 
aGTE China: Paging venture in 

20 major metropolitan areas 

Taiwan 
o Member of national 

wireless consortium 

Japan 
a Participant in 

wireless consortium 
a Engineer, Furnish & 

Install activities 

Northern Mariana Islands 
° Full-service provider 

Business Unit Operations 
o Sri Lanka 
° Brunei 



Selected Financial Data GTE Corporation and Subsidiaries 

(Millions of Dollars, Except Per-Share Amounts) 

Results of Operations 

Revenues and sales 

Local services 

Network access services 

Toll services 

Cellular services 

Directory services 

Other services and sales 

Total revenues and sales 

Cost Of services and sales 

Selling, general and administrative 

Depreciation and annortization 

Restructuring costs 

Operating income 

Net income (loss) 

Income before extraordinary charges* '̂ 

Consolidated's' 

Earnings (loss) per common share 

Income before extraordinary charges^ '̂ 

Consolidated'̂ ) 

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share 

Income before extraordinary chargesf'̂ ' 

Consolidated^' 

Common dividends declared per share 

Book value per share 

Average common shares 

outstanding (in millioris) 

Assets and Capital 

Consolidated assets 

Long-term debt and redeemable 

preferred stock 

Shareholders' equity 

Net cash from operations 

Capital expenditures 

Consolidated Ratios and Other Information 

Return on common equity's) 

Return on investment's) 

Average common equity 

Equity ratio 

Average Investment 

Research and development 

Employees (in thousands) 

Total 

United States 

1997 1996 

$ 6,607 

4,923 

2,429 

2,817 

1,507 

4,977 

$ 6,060 

4,618 

2,500 

2,562 

1,527 

4.072 

23,260 21,339 

9,203 

4,560 

3.886 

8,071 

4,010 

3,770 

5,611 5,488 

2,794'=) 
2,794 

2.92" '̂ 
2.92 

2.90 
2.90 
1.88 
8.39 

2,798 
2798 

2.89 
2.89 

2.88 
2.88 
1.88 
7.62 

958 

42,142 

14,494 

8,038 

6,244 

5,128 

37.6% 

14.5% 

7,433 

36.5% 

26,857 

122 

114 

94 

959 

38,422 

13,210 

7,336 

5,899 

4,088 

40.2% 

15.6% 

6,960 

38.1% 

24,395 

122 

102 

83 

1995 

$ 5,743 

4,363 

2.548 

2,191 

1.383 

3.729 

19,957 

7,537 

3,689 

3,675 

5.056 

2,538 

(2,144)̂ ^> 

2.62 

(2.21)(«) 

2.61 

(2.20) 

1.88 

7.05'^) 

970 

37,019'^' 

12,744 

6,871'̂ ' 

5,033 

4,034 

(20.3)% 

(4.2)% 

10,539 

37.9%'^) 

27,150 

137 

106 

85 

1994 1993 

5,137 

4,348 

3,285 

1,666 

1,372 

3.720 

5,062 

4,398 

3,321 

1.178 

1,438 

3.935 

19,528 19.332 

7,677 

3,667 

3,432 

7,848 

3,817 

3,419 

1.840'^' 

4.752 2.408'W 

2,441 

2,441 

2.55 

2.55 

2.54 

2.54 

1.88 

10.85 

958 

42,500 

12,236 

10,483 

4,740 

4,192 

24.8% 

13.1% 

9,838 

46.2% 

25,647 

139 

111 

89 

972 

882") 

1.03 

.93<f) 

1.03 

.93 

1.85 

9.96 

945 

41,575 

13,103 

9,593 

5,373 

3,893 

8.8% 

6.9% 

10,030 

42.6% 

27,322 

135 

117 

94 

Five-Year Annual 

Growth Rate* 

6.5% 

1.8 

(7.6) 

26.2 

1.6 

1.8 

3.5 

1.8 

2.4 

3.5 

12.7 

17.1 

15.8 

15.8 

1.1 
(6.6) 

1.1 

(1.1) 

.4 
(6.5) 
4.7 
4.3 

(5.3) 

(1.4) 

(4.6) 

(3.0) 

(2.6) 

tnternational Operations (included above}"') 

Revenues and sales 
Income before extraordinary charges 

Total assets 

$ 2,902 

366 

6,877 

$ 2,711 

339 

6,516 

$ 2,477 

206 

5,808 

$ 2,483 

265 

5,727 

$ 2,420 
321 

5,449 

m 
4.0 H P 
5.2 

5.4 

Notes to Selected Financial Data appear oo page 19, 
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Selected Financial Data GTE Corporation a n d Subsidiar ies 

[Millions of Dollars] 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 
Five-Year Annual 

Growth Rate* 

Network Statistics 

Access minutes of use (In millions) 
Access lines (in thousands) 

79.640 70,452 64,193 59,247 55,864 8.6% 

Total'!) 
United States") 

Switched 

Wireless subscribers (includes PCS in thousands) 
Jota\ 
United States 

Adjusted "POPs" (in millions)'!) 
Total 
United States 

Domestic Wireline Operations 
Revenues and sales 
Operating income'") 
Operating cash flow margin"*) 
Capita! expenditures 

Domestic Cellular Operations 
^herv i ce revenues 
^^perat lng income 

Operating cash flow margin"*) 
Capital expenditures 

* Lea St-squares method; percentages have been omitted w 

27,670 
21,539 
18,378 

5,701 
4,487 

78.9 
61.3 

$15,134 
4,491 

47.7% 
3,607 

$ 2,549 
449 

33.5% 
297 

here not meaningful. 

25,766 
20,007 
17,416 

4,445 
3,749 

78.3 
61.9 

$13,965 
3,982 

48.3% 
2,690 

$ 2,347 
461 

36.0% 
600 

24,050 
18,512 
16,650 

3,547 
3,011 

76.7 
61.7 

$13,375 
3,621 

47.8% 
2,564 

$ 2,019 
410 

35.8% 
709 

22,739 
17,427 
16,022 

2,660 
2,339 

68.0 
53.0 

$13,212 
3,490 
46.4% 

2,821 

$ 1,539 
278 

35.3% 
610 

21,972 
17,059 
15,915 

1,787 
1,585 

63.4 
53.0 

$13,162 
1,962">' 
34.7% 

2,811 

$ 1,082 
124 

31.9% 
389 

5.5 
5.2 
3.1 

36.1 
32.7 

6.1 
3.9 

2.6 
11.2 

-
2.7 

25.9 
45.6 

— 
.8 

(a) During 1993, GTE recorded one-time restructuring costs of $L8 billion, which reduced net income by $1.2 billion, or $1.22 per share. 
(b) Includes a $74 million pretax charge ($46 million after-tax, or $.05 per share) for the cost of voluntary separation programs at domestic telephone operations. 

(c) Includes costs associated vi/ith the new data initiatives that reduced net income by $242 million, or $.25 per share. 
(d) 1996,1995,1994 and 1993 include after-tax gains of $8 million, or $.01 per share; $11 million, or $.01 per share; $162 million, or $.17 per share; and $91 million, or $.10 per share, 

respectively, on sales of certain nonstrategic domestic local-exchange telephone properties. 

(e) See Note 2 on Extraordinary Charges. 
(f) During 1993, GTE redeemed, prior to scheduled maturity, $2.1 billion of high-coupon first-mortgage bonds of five of its telephone subsidiaries. These redemptions resulted in an 

after-tax extraordinary charge of $90 million {net of tax benefits of $53 million), or $.10 per share. 

(g) Excluding th^ special items described in footnotes (a) through (f), net income, earnings per common share, diluted earnings per share, return on common equity and return on 

investment would have been: 

1997 

$3,036 
3.17 
3.16 
40.6% 
15.6% 

1996 

$2,790 
2.88 
2.87 
40.1% 
15.5% 

1995 

$2,527 
2.61 
2.60 
23.2% 
12.8% 

1994 

$2,279 
2.38 
2.37 
23.3% 
12.5% 

1993 

$2,077 
2.20 
2.19 
20.4% 
11.2% 

Five-Year Annual 
Growth Rate* 

11.2% 
10.0 
10.0 

— 
— 

Net income (in millions) 
Earnings per common share 
Diluted earnings per common share 
Return on common equity 
Return on investment 

(h) Includes GTE's international subsidiaries and affiliates. 
( i} Access lines exclude 448,000 and 440,000 net lines sold during 1994 and 1993, respectively. Total access lines include 2.7 million, 2.5 million, 2.4 million, 2.3 million and 2.0 million 

lines sen/ed by CANTV in Latin America in 1997-93, respectively. Excluding the effect of CANTV and the access lines sold during 1994 and 1993, the five-year total access line growth 
ate was 5.9%, 
epresents population to be served times GTE's percentage interest in wireless markets. 

Represents operating income before depreciation and amortization divided by revenues. 

I l l 
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Financial Review 

Return to Shareholders 
GTE's primary objective is to maximize shareholders' long-term total 
return, consisting of share-price appreciation and dividends. Total return 
to GTE shareholders in 1997 increased to 20% compared with 8% appre­
ciation in 1996. GTE generated a three-year 1997 average total return of 
25.3% compared with the regional Bell operating companies of 30£%. 

RETURN TO SHAREHOLDERS (assumes dividends are reinvested) 

• GTE 

n RBOC Average (regional Bell operating companies) 

30.6% 

H R E E - V E A R S R D H T H 

GTE's commitment to shareholder value is supported by clear 
investment criteria: investments must be in the Company's integrated 
telecommunications business, and they must be expected to earn more 
than their cost of capital over time. GTE's commitment to shareholder 
value is also supported by a policy of maintaining a dividend payout ratio 
that is competitive with peer companies. Consistent with this policy, 
GTE maintained its dividend at $1.88 per share in 1997, resulting in a 
dividend payout ratio of 64%. 

Consolidated Operations 
GTE had another strong year in 1997 Domestically, GTE realized record 
growth in access lines and network usage and strong growth in wireless 
customers. Internationally, network services revenues grew 7%, driven by 
increased usage of network access lines, higher rates in the Canadian 
operations and wireless subscriber growth in Canada and the Dominican 
Republic. 

Consolidated net income in 1997 was $3.0 billion, or $3.17 per 
share, excluding the impact of data initiatives. This is a 10% earnings per 
share growth compared with consolidated net income in 1996 of $2.8 bil­
lion, or $2.8S per share, excluding the impact of gains {$8 million, or 
$.01 per share) associated with the sale of nonstrategic domestic tele­
phone properties. Including the effects of the new 1997 data initiatives, 
reported earnings per share of $2.92 was achieved on $2.8 billion of net 
Income. 

Consolidated revenues and sales grew 9% in 1997 to $23.3 billion 
compared with $21.3 billion reported in 1996. Strong volume grovrth In 
network services operations and substantial Increases in wireless cus­
tomers more than offset lower, more competitive pricing. Outside the 
U.S., local rate rebalancing programs in Canada and the Dominican 
Republic more than offset toll revenue losses resulting fram competitive 
pressures. 

DOMESTIC WIRELINE OPERATIONS: ACCESS LINES (ir millions/excJLdes properties sold) 

• Special Lines 

• Switched Lines 21.5 

18.5 
17.1 17.« 

GTE's Network Services experienced record growth, adding 1.5 mil­
lion access lines, an Increase of 7.7%, and achieving a 13.0% increase in 
minutes of use. 

During 1997, GTE added 738,000 new domestic wireless customers, 
bringing total domestic wireless customers to 4,487,000 and total world­
wide wireless customers to 5,701,000, representing a 28.3% growth rate 
over the 4,445,000 served at the end of 1996. 

The rollout of new and expanded services also drove the Increase 
in revenues. These services, which Include Interlata long-distance, 
CentraNet®, data and custom-calling features, such as caller ID, call 
waiting and voice messaging, increased these revenues 55% to $1.9 bil­
lion In 1997 This compares with $1.2 billion of revenues recorded in 
1996. These new services are expected to continue to contribute a larger 
percentage of GTE's total revenue stream In future years as a result of 
strong business and consumer demand. 
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DOMESTIC WIRELINE OPERATIONS: NEW AND EXPANDED SERVICES (in billions) 

• Long Distance 

H Local Sen/lces %l ,9 

• Network Access and Other Services and Sales 

• Revenue Growth Rates 

» 1 . 2 

( O . g 

• 

Operating income for 1997 reached a record $5.6 billion, up 2% 
from the $5.5 billion reported in 1996. The increase was accomplished 
while investing in new strategic opportunities, such as the data initia­
tives, that b^an In 1997 Excluding the data initiatives, 1997 operating 
income from core operations was $6.0 billion, representing 9% grovirth 
over last year. Investments in other initiatives, such as long distance, 
PCS, video and GTE SuperPages®, as well as GTE's new sales, service 
and marketing activities, reduced operating income by $456 million. Net 
interest expense Increased from 1996 levels due to higher debt balances, 
partly offset by favorable Interest rates. Other expense totaled $48 mil­
lion in 1997 compared with $50 million In 1996. The slight improvement 
reflects GTE's Increased ownership in and higher earnings from CANTV, 
he Venezuelan telephone company In which GTE has a 25.9% equity 

interest, and Income from unconsolidated domestic wireless subsidiaries. 
GTE's effective income tax rate in 1997 increased to 36.8% from 36.6% 
in 1996. 

In 1996, consolidated revenues and sales totaled $21.3 billion com­
pared with $20.0 billion In 1995. Strong volume growth in telephone 
operations and substantial increases in cellular customers more than 
offset lower, more competitive pricing. In the U.S., price reductions and 
regulatory actions reduced revenues by approximately $160 million and 
$450 million In 1996 and 1995, respectively. 

Operating income In 1996 increased 8.5% over 1995. The increase 
was due to higher revenues and ongoing cost reductions from process 
re-engineering activities. The Increase was partially offset by higher costs 
associated with the expansion of core wireline and wireless businesses, 
as well as investments In new initiatives. Income was $2.8 billion, or 
$2.88 per share, in 1996, an Increase of 10% compared with $2.5 billion, 
or $2£1 per share, in 1995, excluding special Items. 

For a discussion of the use of financial Instruments and contin­
gencies, see Notes 9 and 16 to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
During 1995, GTE adopted accounting principles appropriate for nonreg-
ulated companies and recorded extraordinary chaises totaling $4.7 bil­
lion, or $4.83 per share, as discussed In Note 2 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

Local Service Revenues-
Local service revenues are based on fees charged to customers for provid­
ing local telephone exchange service within designated franchise areas. 
Local service revenues increased 9% to $6.6 billion In 1997 This growth 
was attributable to adding a record 1.5 million domestic access lines In 
service during 1997, a 77% grovrth rate, including a 426,000, or 8.9%, 
Increase In business lines and a 267,000, or 16.0%, increase in residen­
tial second lines. The growth in second lines Is attributable to strong con­
sumer demand for access to the Internet, online computer services and 
fax machines. Additionally, 159,000 international access lines were 
added in 1997 

DOMESTIC WIRELINE OPERATIONS: 

MINUTES OF USE AND MINUTES OF USE GROWTH RATES (excludes properties sold) 

• Minutes of Use tin billions) 

• Minutes of Use Growth Rates ' ^ • ^ 

8 , 4 2 

• — 
9 . 5 % 

• 

fit.2 

9 . 7 1 

7 0 . 5 

9 .8J__, 

13 ,03 

Network Access Service Revenues 
Interstate and intrastate network access service revenues are based 
on fees charged to interexchange carriers that use GTE's I oca I-exchange 
network in providing long-distance services to their customers. Network 
access service revenues of $4.9 billion grew 7% from $4.6 billion In 
1996. The Impact of the 13.0% grovrth In minutes of use of GTE's 
domestic local-exchange network for long-distance calling was partially 
offset by competitive and regulatory-mandated rate reductions totaling 
$120 million. 

Toll Service Revenues 
Toll service revenues are based on fees charged for service beyond a 
customer's local calling area but within the local access transport area 
(LATA), and also include revenues of GTE Long Distance service intro­
duced In 1996. Toll service revenues decreased 3% to $2.4 billion from 
the 1996 level. This decline was primarily attributable to price reductions 
to meet less expensive competitive access and regulatory-mandated rate 
reductions. Partially offsetting these reductions were $274 million of 
higher revenues related to GTE Long Distance service. 



Financiai Review 

Cellular Service Revenues 
Cellular service revenues grew 10% to $2.8 billion from $2.6 billion In 
1996. The growth In revenues was primarily attributable to the growth in 
customers both in the U.S. and internationally. Total U.S. customers 
served at the end of 1997 reached 4,487,000, an increase of 20% over 
1996. Cellular market penetration increased to 91% In 1997 compared 
with 78% In 1996. The revenue growth was tempered by a decline in 
revenues per customer per month in the U.S., reflecting price competi­
tion and continued grovrth of casual and security users in the customer 
base. During the year, revenues per customer In the U.S. averaged 
$51 per month compared with $60 In 1996, a 15.0% decline. 

DOMESTIC WIRELESS OPERATIONS: SUBSCRIBERS AND MARKET PENETRATION 

• Subscribers (with PCS) (in thousands) 

1 , 5 8 5 

3 . 3 1 ^ ^ - ^ 

2 , 3 3 9 

t .8X 
— • 

3,011 

6^3^_ 

3 . 7 4 9 

7.82__^ - ^ 

4 . 1 8 7 

2 . 1 % 

95 

Directory Services Revenues 

Directory services revenues result primarily from the sale of Yellow 
advertising and also include fees charged to print, publish and distribute 
telephone directories. GTE annually publishes or provides sales and other 
directory-related services for approximately 2,600 different directories in 
47 states and 16 foreign countries. Directory services revenues declined 
slightly, 1% to $1.5 billion in 1997 

Other Services and Sates 

Other services and sales include revenues from: GTE Government 
Systems, which provides integrated telecommunication systems and 
customized solutions and equipment to U.S. government defense and 
civilian agencies as well as commercial users both domestically and inter­
nationally; GTE Airfone, which provides a I re raft-based telecommunica­
tion services for passengers; and telephone and cellular equipment sales 
and services. In addition, other services and sales includes revenue from 
data initiatives of $279 million in 1997 GTE continued strengthening Its 
data initiatives by acquiring BBN Corporation (BBN) based In Cambridge, 
Massachusetts. BBN Is a leading provider of high performance end-to-
end Internet solutions such as World Wide Web site hosting, network 
security, consulting, systems integration, and dedicated and dial-up 
Internet access for government and commercial customers. Its 2,200 
employees have extensive experience in leading-edge Internet and other 
telecommunications applications. Twenty-eight years ago, BBN created 
ARPANET, the forerunner of the internet. In total, other services and 
sales revenues Increased to $5.0 billion in 1997, reflecting an Increase of 
22% due to the new data initiatives and higher non-network related 
equipment and systems sales. During 1997 GTE Government Systems 
received orders valued at $1.4 billion, an 18% increase over 1996. 

Cost of Services and Sales 
Cost of services and sales Increased 14% to $9.2 billion in 1997 com­
pared with $8.1 billion in 1996, primarily reflecting the growth In sales of 
telecommunication systems and equipment as well as increased costs 
associated with the new initiatives that GTE started over the past two 
years. Partly offsetting these increases are productivity improvements 
such as the rollout of technologically-advanced systems, thereby reducing 
labor-intensive processes. 

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses 
Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 14% in 1997 
to $4.6 billion from $4.0 billion in 1996. The growth in these operating 
costs is primarily related to higher selling and advertising costs, which 
grew 34% from 1996 levels. In addition, the Increase is associated with 
the strong customer growth and support of the data and other new initia­
tives, within GTE's core wireline and wireless operations. Partially offset­
ting these increases were ongoing cost containment and reduction 
programs In general and administrative costs, which have been Imple­
mented across all business units, in addition to a reduction in pension 
costs due to the purchase of annuities for certain retirees. 

Depreciation and Amortization 
Depreciation and amortization increased 3% to $3.9 billion in 1997 com 
pared with $3.8 billion In 1996. The increase reflects the expansion of 
the wireline network to meet demand for additional lines, enhanced call­
ing features and switched data services, and the continued deployment of 
enabling technologies for broadband services. The wireless netvrork was 
also expanded to provide significantly higher capacity and to improve serv­
ice quality. These Increases were partially offset by a reduction In depre­
ciation rates In 1997 to reflect higher salvage values related to certain 
telephone plant and equipment. 

Other Income and Expense 
In 1997 GTE reported other expense of $48 million compared with $50 
million in 1996. Other income and expense is comprised primarily of 
minority Interests and earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries, including 
international ventures and cellular partnerships. 

Minority Interests increased $6 million in 1997 to $245 million as 
a result of higher earnings In the Canadian operations. The increase in 
minority Interest was more than offset by higher income from unconsoli­
dated subsidiaries. 
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Equity in income of unconsolidated subsidiaries improved consider­
ably In 1997 and 1996. Higher earnings In 1997 of 13% were provided 
by CANTV. GTE's results from CANTV were favorably affected by operat­
ing Improvements stemming from timely rate Increases, productivity 
gains resulting from employee reductions, and other cost controls. In 
addition, 1997 results were favorably Impacted by GTE's Increase in its 
ownership level of CANTV from 20.4% to 25.9% in the fourth quarter of 
1996. In contrast, during 1995, CANTV operated within a weak economy 
with currency controls and limited access to International banking and 
capital markets. As a result of these conditions, CANTV made a relatively 
small contribution to GTE's 1995 earnings. 

Due to the high level of Inflation In Venezuela, CANTV's financial 
performance is highly dependent on Its ability to Increase tariffs. In 
1997-96, CANTV successfully obtained tariff increases, generally 
In accordance with the Concession Agreement with the Venezuelan 
government. 

Regulatory and Competitive Trends 
Much of the regulatory and legislative activity that occurred in the U.S. In 
1997 was a direct result of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (1996 
Act) adopted by Congress. The 1996 Act is intended to promote competi­
tion in all sectors of the telecommunications marketplace, while preserv­
ing and advancing universal telephone service. 

The 1996 Act presents GTE with both challenges and opportunities. 
TE Is facing additional competition from numerous sources, such as 

other incumbent local-exchange carriers, new competitive local-exchange 
carlers, wireless carriers, cable television service providers, and long­
distance companies. However, GTE is now permitted to provide a full 
array of local, long-distance, Internet-access, wireless, and video services 
both within and outside of Its traditional operating areas, and thus gener­
ate new sources of revenue from customers previously beyond reach. In 
fact, GTE now provides long-distance and Internet-access services to 
1,717,000 and 272,000 customers, respectively. 

GTE is a strong supporter of competition in all telecommunications 
markets. The Company's position remains constant: the benefits of com­
petition should not be divided between customers or Industry segments. 
There must be fair, reasonable rules at the state and federal level that 
enable all service providers to participate equitably in the marketplace 
and benefit everyone. GTE believes the FCC and a number of state regula­
tory agencies did not establish these comparable conditions. GTE has 
consequently exercised its right to challenge regulatory actions It believes 
unfairly disadvantage its customers and shareholders. 

In July 1997, the U.S. Eighth Circuit Court released Its decision on 
the challenge filed In 1996 by GTE and numerous other parties to rules 
developed by the FCC to implement the interconnection provisions of the 
1996 Act. The prices for both resold service and network elements were 
required to be set using a methodology created by the FCC. The court 
challenge asserted the FCC's rules were inconsistent with the 1996 Act. 
The July 1997 court decision found that the FCC overstepped its author­
ity in a number of areas, and upheld GTE's position that state regulatory 
agencies bear the primary responsibility for determining the prices which 
competing firms must pay when interconnecting their networks. On Janu­
ary 26, 1998, the U.S. Supreme Court announced that it vrauld review 
this decision. Oral argument in the Supreme Court is expected to take 
place in October 1998, with a final decision likely to be issued no later 
than June 1999. 

This favorable ruling did not Impede the progress of competition. 
GTE has processed over 100,000 requests from competitors for resold 
lines, Is currently processing over 20,000 orders per month and expects 
higher volumes per month In the future. GTE has finalized more than 350 
Interconnection agreements with various competitive local-exchange car­
riers, and is currently in the process of negotiating approximately 900 
additional agreements. A number of these interconnection agreements, 
adopted as a result of the arbitration process established by the 1996 
Act, Incorporate prices or terms and conditions based upon the FCC's 
rules that were overturned by the Eighth Circuit Court. Thus, GTE has 
exercised its right to challenge a number of such agreements. GTE has 
lawsuits pending In federal district court In 14 states. 

In May 1997 the FCC released two new major decisions related to 
Implementation of the 1996 Act's provisions: the universal service and 
access charge reform orders. The universal service order established the 
support mechanisms to ensure continued availability of affordable local 
telephone service and created new programs to provide discounted 
telecommunications services to schools, libraries and rural health care 
providers. GTE and numerous other parties have challenged the FCC's 
decision before a Federal Court of Appeals on the grounds that the FCC 
did not follow the requirements of the 1996 Act to develop a sufficient, 
explicit and competitively neutral universal service program. A decision 
is expected In 1998. 

The FCC access charge order revamped the rate structure through 
which local and long-distance companies charge customers for using 
the local phone network to make long-distance calls. The FCC ordered 
$18.5 billion in cuts for long-distance companies to be accomplished by 
increasing the access charges for businesses and residential customers 
with more than one phone line. GTE and numerous other parties also 
challenged this decision before a federal appeals court, charging the 
FCC: did not eliminate the universal service subsidies implicit in 
interstate access charges as directed by the 1996 Act; and created 
additional subsidy charges paid only by businesses and multiline 
residential customers. 
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Also in May 1997, the FCC released a decision completing a periodic 
review of its price cap regulatory oversight of interstate access charges. 
GTE and numerous other local-exchange carriers have challenged this 
decision before a Federal Court of Appeals based on the belief that the 
FCC established a fundamentally unfair price reduction formula and 
required retroactive price reductions. A decision on this challenge Is also 
expected In 1998. 

Approximately 62% of GTE's domestic access lines are In 10 
states that have adopted incentive regulation plans for intrastate service, 
including California, Florida and Texas, the states where GTE's largest 
operations are located. Approximately 72% of the regulated revenues for 
GTE's domestic telephone operations are under some form of alternative 
regulation, including 100% of the interstate revenues. GTE filed inter­
state access revisions during 1997 that became effective June 3, 1997 
and July 1,1997 Overall, these filings resulted in a net annual price 
reduction of $103 million. In 1997 the FCC also ordered significant 
changes that altered the structure of access charges collected by GTE, 
effective January 1, 1998. Generally, the FCC reduced and restructured 
the per minute charges paid by long-distance carriers and Implemented 
new per line charges. The FCC also created an access charge structure 
that resulted in different access charges for residential primary and sec­
ondary lines and single line and multiline business lines. In aggregate, 
the reductions in usage sensitive access charges paid by long-distance 
carriers were offset by new per line charges and the charges paid by 
end-users. 

Internationally, the pace of regulatory and competitive change con­
tinued to accelerate during 1997 which allovre GTE the opportunity to 
more fully participate in the $600 billion annual world telecom market. 
Currently, 20% of the world market operates in a competitive mode, and 
by the year 2000, this will have shifted to 80%. Much of this shift Is 
associated with the 1997 World Trade Organization (WTO) agreement on 
trade in basic telecommunications. This agreement was signed by 69 
countries that represent 94% of global telecommunications services. 

Across Latin America, intensive efforts to institute market liberaliza­
tion are underway with Brazil, Mexico, Ecuador and Guatemala leading 
the way. In Venezuela, where GTE is a major participant in a wide range of 
telecom services through CANTV, the market is scheduled for competitive 
liberalization In November 2000. In Argentina, Important regulatory 
changes have Instituted "calling party pays" In the cellular market. In 
addition, a decision is In the courts that could allow GTE's cellular ven­
ture CTI to carry Its customers' long-distance calls. Further, CTI has 
gained the right to bid for a license to offer PCS service in Buenos Aires, 
which would extend its service coverage to the entire country. In the 
Dominican Republic, CODETEL maintains Its solid position as a full ser­
vice provider of choice In an Increasingly competitive telecom market. 

Europe opened its market to extensive competition on January 1, 
1998, as part of its V\n"0 commitment. GTE continues to evaluate the 
many opportunities made available by this opening of one of the most 
prosperous telecom markets in the world. 

In Asia, where GTE's position is growing, massive untapped markets 
are just beginning to emerge. GTE is involved in providing fixed wireless 
service In northern India, PCS service In Taiwan and paging service In 
China. Although China and Taiwan have not currently committed to the 
V/TO agreement, these countries, along with all of Asia, continue their 
movement toward market liberalization. From Its base In Asia, GTE will 
share in the region's growth. 

In Canada, GTE already provides a wide range of telecom services 
through Its BC TEL and Quebec Tel operations. These companies provide 
the opportunity for further grovrth as Canada's market flourishes under 
that country's competitive initiatives, which Include the implementation 
of a price cap regime, rebalancing of local rates and the opening of 
competition In local service in British Columbia effective January 1, 
1998. The Canadian telephone operations currently follow accounting 
prescribed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, 
"Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation" (FAS 71). 
Given the changes discussed above, GTE's Canadian telephone opera­
tions are studying whether the use of FAS 71 continues to be appropriate. 
If they were to determine that the use of FAS 71 was no longer appropri­
ate, they would be required to write-off certain deferred costs and obllga 
tions and reduce the carrying value of their plant and equipment to the 
extent that It Is considered unrecoverable. The financial impact of such a 
determination, which would be non cash, could be material. 

Around the globe, GTE continues to support the orderly transition to 
competitive telecommunications markets that allow all efficient service 
providers to work together under unbiased laws and regulations to bring 
the best in telecommunications services to the consumer. 
GTE Growth Initiatives 
In 1997 GTE continued to position itself to respond aggressively to 
competitive developments and benefit from new opportunities. 

In May 1997, GTE announced plans to become a leading national 
provider of data communications services that included the acquisition 
of BBN Corporation, a leading supplier of end-to-end Internet solutions. 
BBN Corporation brings valuable skills, a leading position In the Internet 
market and an impressive list of Fortune 500 clients. In addition, GTE 
announced a strategic alliance with Cisco Systems, Inc. to jointly develop 
enhanced data and Internet services for customers; and the purchase of a 
national, state-of-the-art fiber-optic network from Qwest Communica­
tions. This expansion of data services continued in November 1997 with 
the announcement of the acquisition of Genuity Inc. (Genuity), a sub­
sidiary of Bechtel Enterprises. Genuity Is a premier value-added provider 
of distributed application hosting solutions. 
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During 1997, GTE established an organization that could take 
advantage of the new opportunities available as a result of the changing 
regulatory environment. GTE Communications Corporation is the enabling 
marketing and sales organization, permitting GTE to go beyond its tradi­
tional franchise boundaries and compete effectively In the marketplace. 
By packaging products and services, such as traditional wireline, wire­
less, long-distance and Internet services on one bill, GTE Is positioned 
to capture high value, high margin customers, both inside and outside 
of franchise territories. GTE Communications Corporation is Initially 
reselling other companies' facilities, including those of GTE's In-franchise 
local-exchange carriers. However, as the marketplace dictates, variations 
of service delivery may occur that could include the following possibili­
ties: a GTE network, supporting all information transport (voice, video 
and data) over wireline and wireless; a series of alliances; or through least 
cost routing as a reseller. 

In addition, GTE activated its first PCS wireless network In Cincin­
nati In February. PCS wireless networks were also activated in April and 
May, in Seattle and Spokane, respectively, completing the PCS martlet 
launch. At year end there virere 19,000 customers. 

GTE Is also actively pursuing expansion of its International opera­
tions to capitalize on opportunities for long-term profitable growth. 

GTE expanded paging service through a joint venture with a major 
Chinese wireless telecommunications operator. This service now encom­
passes 20 major metropolitan areas. This effort has generated over 

5,000 customers. In January 1997 the government of Taiwan awarded 
a digital cellular license to Pacific Cellular Corporation, a consortium in 
which GTE holds a minority interest as the only foreign stakeholder. ' 
GTE expects to invest approximately $135 million into this venture. The 
planned network will Include approximately 1,200 cell sites, representing 
the largest network on any frequency In the country. Service was 
launched in January 1998. 

Capital Investment, Resources and Liquidity 

Capitalization 
GTE targets a capital structure and overall credit position that is appropri­
ate for an "A" rated company. This allows GTE's shareholders to enjoy the 
benefits of prudent and reasonable financial leverage, while also protecting 
debtholder interests and ensuring ready access to the capital markets. 

In June 1996, Moody's raised its rating on GTE Corporation's senior 
debt to A3 from Baal and in March 1997 Standard & Poor's raised its 
rating on GTE Corporation's senior debt to A from A-. In October 1997 
due to the proposed offer to merge with MCI, the rating was reduced to 
Baal by Moody's. Although MCI has approved an alternate offer, GTE's 
offer remains open. Due to the uncertainty of the closing of the other 
offer for MCI and GTE's open offer, four major rating agencies have con­
tinued a negative "watch listing" on GTE's debt rating. 

During 1997 GTE renegotiated its two syndicated credit facilities 
totaling $4.0 billion, includingaflve-year lineof $2.5 billion for GTE 
Corporation and a 364-day line of $1.5 billion for certain domestic tele­
phone operating subsidiaries. Fifty-four banks representing 12 countries 
participated in these syndicated facilities, which will be used primarily to 
back up commercial paper borrowings. In December 1997 GTE negoti­
ated bilateral credit agreements for an additional $2.0 billion In credit 
capacity. These facilities, which are shared by GTE Corporation and cer­
tain domestic telephone operating subsidiaries, are aligned with the 
maturity date of the existing 364-day line. The additional capacity pro­
vides greater flexibility to incur additional indebtedness of a shorter-term 
duration during periods when it may not be desirable to access the capi­
tal markets to refinance short-term debt. 

In June 1997 GTE's Board of Directors approved the filing of a 
$3 billion shelf registration statement with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission that included the establishment of a public Medium-Term 
Note (MTN) program. The benefits of an MTN program include lower 
rates than traditional debentures due to more flexibility with regard to 
amounts issued, timing and speed to market. Notes issued under the 
MTN program have received the same credit ratings as GTE Corporation's 
debentures. 

Return on Equity 
GTE's return on average common equity was 40.6% in 1997 compared 
with 40.1% in 1996, excluding the Impact of data Initiatives and the 
1996 gains on the sales of certain nonstrategic domestic telephone 
properties. 

CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION 

• Total Debt (in billions) 

B Total Equity (in billions) 

• Interest Coverage Ratio 
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Total equity as a percentage of total capitalization was 36.5% at the 
end of 1997 compared with 38.1% in 1996. 
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS {in billions) 

• EBITDA (see definition in "Cash Row" below} 

• Net Cash from Operations 

• Capital Expenditures 

S8.2 i S . 7 

Cash Flow 

GTE's cash flow from operations increased to $6.2 billion in 1997 from 
$5.9 billion in 1996, reflecting the improved 1997 operating results from 
domestic and international operations. The Improvement In operating 
results Is reflected in the "Earnings before income taxes plus deprecia­
tion and amortization" (EBITDA) performance measure. EBITDA repre­
sents operating income, adjusted to include the net earnings from 
unconsolidated subsidiaries less minority interest, plus depreciation and 
amortization. For 1997 EBITDA amounted to $9.6 billion, reflecting a 
favorable increase of $249 million. 

Capital expenditures totaled $51 billion In 1997 a 25% Increase 
from the $4J billion spent in 1996. The majority of the 1997 new invest­
ments were made to meet demands of growth, modernize facilities and 
continue to position GTE as the low-cost provider of high-quality voice, 
data and video telecommunications services. Other expenditures were 
made to improve and expand GTE's wireless and data networks, including 
an approximately $264 million Initial Investment to build a state-of-the-
art national fiber-optic network. GTE expects capital expenditures to 
remain at approximately the same level in 1998. Reduced capital require­
ments within GTE's core wireline business are expected to be partially 
offset by increased expenditures on GTE's new data initiatives. 

Additional cash used in investing activities totaled $845 million 
during 1997 Acquisitions and investments In the new data initiatives 
accounted for a majority of the increase and included approximately 
$625 million to acquire all of the outstanding shares of BBN. In addition, 
approximately $90 million was used to acquire Genuity Inc., whose 
applications enable customers to transfer their business applications 
to the Internet. 

In 1997-95, GTE announced plans to repurchase up to 20, 25 and 
20 million shares, respectively, of Its currently Issued common stock from 
time to time, depending on market conditions. The shares will be used to 
satisfy the requirements of GTE's employee benefit and dividend reinvest­
ment programs. Of the announced repurchase plans, a total of 38.8 mil­
lion shares had been repurchased under the 1996 and 1995 programs. 
Ĉ ash used for the purchase of these shares was $1.7 billion. Repurchases 
under the 1997 program will continue In the future, considering the Com­
pany's targeted credit profile, stock price and related factors. 

In 1996, GTE's cash flow from operations increased to $5.9 billion 
from $5.0 billion in 1995, reflecting improved 1996 operating results. 

Capital expenditures totaled $4.1 billion In 1996, atx)Ut $50 million 
more than the 1995 level. The 1996 total reflected expenditures used for 
the deployment of broadband video networks In California and Florida, 
bulldout of the new wireless PCS networks and other requirements to 
support new revenue grovrth initiatives and expanded service capabilities, 
partially offset by lower spending on domestic cellular networks. Other 
investing activity included $190 million for the purchase of CANTV shares 
during the initial public offering by the government of Venezuela and 
subsequent market purchases. 

In 1998, the funding of dividends and capital requirements for 
GTE's businesses will be substantially sourced by cash from operations, 
although GTE's strong financial position allows ready access to worldwide 
capital markets for any additional cash requirements. 

Forward-Looking Statements 
GTE estimates that core earnings per share from operations will grow not 
less than 10% in 1998, and that for 1999 and beyond consolidated earn­
ings per share, Including the effects of the data Initiatives, will grow at an 
accelerated level of 30% to 50% higher than the previous guidance of 
10%. Consolidated revenue growth will accelerate from the current 9% 
growth rate to 10% to 12% over the longer term, with much of that 
growth driven by expanded services like long-distance, video, value-
added data communications and Internet-related services. In addition, 
the new marketing and sales initiative will generate significant revenue 
growth through sales of bundled services. Operating margins for domestic 
telephone operations are expected to be consistent with margins 
achieved in 1997 

GTE has projected domestic wireless operations will grow consistent 
with the industry. Cellular revenues per customer, however, is expected to 
continue a downward trend as more residential customers sign up and 
new competitors enter the market. 

GTE continues to project that the amount of net Income contributed 
by Its international operations In 1995 will double by the year 2000. 
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Risk Management 
GTE views derivative financial instruments as risk management tools and. 
In accordance with Company policy, does not utilize them for speculative 
or trading purposes. GTE Is also not a party to any leveraged derivatives. 
GTE is exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates and foreign 
currency exchange rates, as well as changes in the market price of GTE's 
common stock. GTE manages its exposure to market risks through Its reg­
ular operating and financing activities and, when deemed appropriate, 
through the use of derivative financial instruments that have been autho­
rized pursuant to the Company's policies and procedures. The use of 
these derivatives allows GTE to reduce Its overall exposure to market risk, 
as the gains and losses on these contracts substantially offset the gains 
and losses on the liabilities being hedged. In addition, GTE enters into 
derivative financial Instruments with a diversified group of major financial 
Institutions in order to manage its exposure to nonperformance on such 
Instruments. 

GTE uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to 
Interest rate movements and to reduce borrowing costs. GTE's net expo­
sure to interest rate risk primarily consists of floating rate instruments 
that are benchmarked to U.S. and European short-term money market 
interest rates. GTE manages this risk by using interest rate swaps to con­
vert floating-rate long-term and short-term debt to synthetic fixed rate 
instruments. GTE also uses forward interest rate swaps and forward con­
tracts to sell U.S. Treasury bonds to hedge interest rates on anticipated 

llong-term debt issuances. 

Based on GTE's Interest rate sensitive derivative financial instru­
ments outstanding at December 31,1997 a 100 basis point increase In 
interest rates as of December 31, 1997 would result in a net Increase in 
the market value of these instruments of $96 million. Conversely, a 100 
basis point decrease in interest rates would result In a $108 million net 
reduction in the market value of these Instruments. Any Increase or 
decrease In the market value of GTE's Interest rate sensitive derivative 
financial Instruments would be substantially offset by a corresponding 
decrease or increase in the market value of the underlying liability or 
anticipated debt issuance. 

GTE uses foreign currency derivative instruments to reduce its 
exposure to adverse changes in foreign currency rates. The use of these 
derivatives allows GTE to reduce its overall exposure to exchange rate 
fluctuations, as the gains and losses on these contracts substantially off­
set the gains and losses on the liabilities being hedged. The Company's 
exposure to foreign exchange rates primarily exists with the British pound 
and the Canadian dollar. As of December 31, 1997 GTE's exposure result­
ing from fluctuations In foreign currency exchange rates was not material. 

In the past, GTE Issued stock options to certain of Its employees 
that had tandem stock appreciation rights. To minimize GTE's exposure to 
compensation expense related to these stock appreciation rights, GTE 
purchased long-term call options on Its common stock. As of December 
31, 1997 a $5 change In the per-share price of GTE's common stock 
would Impact GTE's pretax earnings by $50 million. However, gains and 
losses recognized on granted employee options are substantially offset by 
gains and losses recognized on the purchased call options. 

Year 2000 Conversion 
The Year 2000 issue has an industry-wide Impact. GTE has had an active 
Year 2000 Program in place. The GTE Year 2000 methodology and 
processes were certified in 1997 by the Information Technology Associa­
tion of America. This program is necessary because the Year 2000 issue 
would Impact systems, networks and business processes at GTE. This 
program includes: inventory; assessment and analysis of systems, net­
works and business processes; remediation of any impacted software; 
and validation testing. The current estimate for the cost of remediation 
for GTE and affiliates is approximately $350 million. Year 2000 remedia­
tion costs are expensed In the year Incurred. Through 1997 expenditures 
totaled $67 million. GTE currently has approximately 1,200 full time 
equivalents (company employees and contractors) mobilized throughout 
Its business units to address the Year 2000 Issue. Continued success is 
dependent on the timely delivery of Year 2000 compliant products and 
services from its suppliers. GTE currently believes that its essential 
processes, systems and business functions will be ready for the millen­
nium transition. 

Risk Factors 
GTE's fonward-looking statements are based upon a series of projections 
and estimates regarding the economy, the telecommunications Industry, 
the effects of federal, state and local regulations on the industry in gen­
eral and within GTE's markets, as well as key performance Indicators that 
affect the company directly. These projections and estimates regarding 
the economy and the telecommunications industry relate to the demand 
for and pricing of services, the effects of competition, the impact of uni­
versal service and the success of new products, services and new busi­
nesses such as bundled services through the new marketing and sales 
initiative, value-added data communications, Internet-related services, 
long distance and video. 

With regard to the effects of regulation, GTE has assumed fair and 
reasonable resolutions to any pending and potential federal, state and 
local regulatory initiatives and proceedings, including arbitration pro­
ceedings before various state regulatory commissions. GTE has assumed 
that the favorable rulings of the Ctourt of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit 
regarding the terms of interconnection, unbundled network elements and 
resale rates will be upheld by the U.S. Supreme Court, which announced 
It would review this decision. 

The risk management discussion and the estimated exposures 
included herein are forward-looking statements of market risk assuming 
certain adverse market conditions occur. Actual results in the future may 
differ significantly from these estimated exposures due to actual develop­
ments in the global financial markets. The analysis methods used by the 
company to assess and mitigate risk should not be considered projections 
or forecasts of future events or losses. 

In developing its forward-looking statements, GTE has made certain 
assumptions relating to key performance indicators that have a direct 
bearing on GTE's ability to attain these projections. These assumptions 
include the continued annual growth of telephone access lines and min­
utes of use, new and expanded services, wireless volumes, and customer 
growth. They also assume productivity Improvements and the absence of 
disruption to GTE's markets. 

If future events and actual performance differ from that assumed for 
the risk factors noted above, GTE's actual results could vary significantly 
from the performance projected in the forward-looking statements. 
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Report of Independent Public Accountants Management Report 

To the Board of Directors and 
Shareholders of GTE Corporation: 

To Our Shareholders: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of GTE 
Corporation (a New York corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 
1997 and 1996 and the related consolidated statements of Income, 
shareholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 31, 1997 as set forth on pages 29 through 39 
of this report. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Company's management. Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits In accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo­
sures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by manage­
ment, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of GTE Corporation 
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the results of 
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 31,1997 in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

As discussed In Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, in 
1995 the Company discontinued applying the provisions of Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of 
Certain Types of Regulation." 

Stamford, Connecticut 
January 27 1998 

The management of GTE is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of 
the financial and operating Information contained in this annual report, 
including the consolidated financial statements covered by the Report 
of Independent Public Accountants. These statements were prepared In 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and Include 
amounts that are based on the best estimates and judgments of 
management. 

The Company has a system of Internal accounting controls that 
provides management with reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded and executed In accordance with its authorizations, that assets 
are properly safeguarded and accounted for, and that financial records are 
maintained so as to permit preparation of financial statements In accor­
dance with generally accepted accounting principles. This system includes 
written policies and procedures, an organizational structure that segre­
gates duties, and a comprehensive program of periodic audits by the Inter­
nal auditors. The Company also has Instituted policies and guidelines that 
require employees to maintain the highest level of ethical standards. 

In addition, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, con­
sisting solely of outside directors, meets periodically with management, 
the internal auditors and the Independent public accountants to review 
internal accounting controls, audit results and accounting principles 
and practices, and annually recommends to the Board of Directors the 
selection of independent public accountants. 

GA^OJ^ ^- ^ •uuz. 
Charles R. Lee 
Ct}airman and 
Chief Executive Officer 

<9x^ ^ ^ i c ^ 

J. Michael Kelly 
Executive Vice President-
Finance and Planning 
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Consolidated Statements of income GTE Corporation and Subsidiaries 

(Millions of Dollars, Except Per-Share Amounts) 
Years Ended December 31 

1997 1996 1995 

Revenues and Sales 

Local services 

Network access services 

Toll services 

Cellular services 

Directory services 

Other services and sales 

$ 6,607 
4,923 
2,429 
2,817 
1,507 
4,977 

$ 6,060 
4,618 
2,500 
2,562 
1,527 
4,072 

$ 5,743 
4,363 
2,548 
2,191 
1,383 
3,729 

Total revenues and sales 23.260 21,339 19,957 

Operating Costs and Expenses 

Ck)st of services and sales 

Selling, general and administrative 

Depreciation and amortization 

9,203 
4,560 
3,886 

8,071 
4,010 
3.770 

7,537 
3,689 
3,675 

Total operating costs and expenses 17,649 15,851 14,901 

Operating Income 

Other (Income) Expense 

Interest—net 

Other—net 

5,611 

1,145 
48 

5,488 

1,026 
50 

5,056 

1,047 
5 

m ,orne before income taxes 

me taxes 
4,418 
1,624 

4,412 
1.614 

4,004 
1,466 

Income before extraordinary charges 

Extraordinary charges 
2,794 2,798 2,538 

(4,682) 

Net Income (Loss) $ 2,794 $ 2,798 $(2,144) 

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share 

Before extraordinary charges 

Extraordinary charges 
$ 2.92 $ 2.89 2.62 

(4.83) 

Net Income (Loss) $ 2.92 $ 2.89 (2.21) 

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share 

Before extraordinary charges 

Extraordinary charges 
$ 2.90 $ 2.88 $ 2.61 

(4.81) 

Net Income (Loss) $ 2.90 $ 2.88 $ (2.20) 

Average Common Shares Outstanding (in millions) 

Basic 

Diluted 
958 
962 

969 
972 

970 
973 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets GTE Corporation and Subsidiaries 

(Millions of Dollars) 

December 31 
1997 1996 

Assets 

Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Receivables, less allowances of $333 and $299 

Inventories and supplies 

Deferred Income tax benefits 

Other 

$ 551 
4,782 

846 
51 

307 

$ 405 
4,482 

673 
200 
273 

Total current assets 6,537 6.033 

Property, plant and equipment, net 

Prepaid pension costs 

Franchises, goodwill and other Intangibles 

Investments In unconsolidated companies 

Other assets 

24,080 
4,361 
3,232 
2,335 
1,597 

22,902 
3,639 
2,507 
2,035 
1.306 

Total assets $42,142 $38,422 

Liabifities and Shareholders' Equity 

Current Liabilities 

Short-term obligations. Including current maturities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Taxes payable 

Dividends payable 

Other 

3,398 
4,672 

771 
466 
534 

$ 2,497 
4,156 

75 
472 
435 

^ 
o ^ ^ 

Total current liabilities 9,841 8.314 

Long-term debt 

Employee benefit plans 

Deferred Income taxes 

Minority interests 

Other liabilities 

14,494 
4,756 
1,782 
2.253 

978 

13,210 
4,688 
1,474 
2,316 
1,084 

Total liabilities 34,104 31.086 

Shareholders' Equity 

Common stock-shares Issued 984,252,887 and 980,911,281 

Additional paid-in capital 

Retained earnings 

Guaranteed ESOP obligations 

Treasury stock—26,253,088 and 17,813,275 shares, at cost 

49 
7,317 
2.372 

(550) 
(1,150) 

49 
7,248 
1,370 
(575) 
(756) 

Total shareholders' equity 8,038 7.336 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $42,142 $38,422 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows GTE Corporation and Subsidiaries 

(Millions of Dollars} 

Years Ended December 31 

1997 1996 1995 

Operations 

Income before extraordinary charges 

Adjustments to reconcile income before extraordinary charges 

to net cash from operations: 

Depreciation and amortization 

Deferred income taxes 

Changes in current assets and current liabilities, excluding the 

effects of acquisitions and dispositions: 

Receivables—net 

Other current assets 

Accrued taxes and Interest 

Other current liabilities 

Other—net 

$ 2,794 $ 2,798 $ 2,538 

,886 
456 

(622) 
(220) 

86 
405 

(541) 

3,770 
415 

(571) 
26 

(109) 
(220) 
(210) 

3,675 
484 

(561) 
(92) 
(25) 

(598) 
(388) 

Net cash from operations 6,244 5,899 5,033 

Investing 

Capital expenditures 

Acquisitions and Investments 

Proceeds from sales of assets 

her—net ^mu 

(5,128) 
(927) 

73 
9 

(4,088) 
(476) 
337 
(50) 

(4,034) 
(798) 
314 

17 

Net cash used in Investing (5,973) (4,277) (4,501) 

Financing 

Common stock issued 

Purchase of treasury stock 

Dividends paid 

Long-term debt and preferred securities issued 

Long-term debt and preferred securities retired 

Increase (decrease) in short-term obligations, excluding cun-ent maturities 

Other—net 

See Notes to ConsDlidated Financial Statements. 

288 
(576) 

(1,802) 
2,407 

(2.417) 
2,015 

(40) 

444 
(967) 

(1,825) 
2,038 
(582) 
(725) 

68 

385 
(133) 

(1,827) 
1,098 

(1,553) 
1,529 

(22) 

Net cash used in financing 

Increase In cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents: 

Beginning of year 

End of year 

Cash paid during the year for 

Interest 

Income taxes 

(125) 

146 

405 

$ 551 

$ 1,282 

1,057 

(1,549) 

73 

332 

$ 405 

$ 1,088 

1,325 

(523) 

9 

323 

$ 332 

$ 1,133 

985 
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity GTE Corporation and Subsidiaries 

(Millions of Dollars] 

Shareholders' Equity, 

December 31 , 1994 

Net loss 

Dividends declared 

Common and treasury stock Issued under employee 

and shareholder plans (13,564,835 shares) 

Purchase of treasury stock (3,589,200 shares) 

Retirement of preferred stock (265,895 shares) 

Other 

Shareholders' Equity, 

December 31, 1995 

Net income 

Dividends declared 

Common and treasury stock Issued under employee 

and shareholder plans (11,570,546 shares) 

Purchase of treasury stock (23,533,200 shares) 

Other 

Shareholders' Equity, 

December 31, 1996 

Net Income 

Dividends declared 

Common and treasury stock Issued under employee 

and shareholder plans (6,620,993 shares) 

Purchase of treasury stock (11,719,200 shares) 

Other 

Additional 

Preferred Common Paid-in 

Stock Stock Capital 

Retained Guaranteed 

Earnings ESOP Treasury 

(Deficit) Obligations Stock 

$ 10 $48 

Shareholders' Equity, 

December 31, 1997 

$7,627 

369 

$ 3.422 
(2,144) 
(1,824) 

$(624) $ 

43 
(133) 

(10) 
53 12 21 

49 

49 

8,049 

(915) 

110 

4 

7,248 

146 

(77) 

(534) 
2,798 
(905) 

11 

1,370 
2,794 
(1.800) 

8 

(603) (90) 

340 
(1,006) 

28 

(575) (756) 

142 
(536) 

25 

Total 

$10,483 
(2,144) 
(1,824) 

413 
(133) 

(10) 
86 

6,871 
2,798 

(1,820) 

450 
(1,006) 

43 

# 
7 
2 

(1,800) 

288 

(536) 

(44) 

$ - $49 $7,317 $2,372 $(550) $(1.150) $8,038 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Description of Business 

GTE Corporation and subsidiaries (GTE) is one of the largest telecom­
munications companies in the world. GTE's domestic and international 
operations serve 27.7 million access lines in the United States, Canada, 
the Dominican Republic and Venezuela. GTE is a leading wireless opera­
tor In the United States, with the potential of serving 61.3 million wireless 
and personal communications services customers. Outside the United 
States, GTE operates wireless networks serving some 17.6 million POPs 
through subsidiaries In Canada and the Dominican Republic and affili­
ates in Venezuela and Argentina. GTE provides internetworking services 
ranging from dial-up Internet access for residential and small business 
consumers to Web-based applications for Fortune 500 companies. GTE 
Is also a leader In government and defense communications systems and 
equipment, directories, telecommunications-based Information services 
and systems and aircraft-passenger telecommunications. 
Basts of Presentation 

GTE prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, which require management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

The consolidated financial statements of GTE include the accounts 
of all majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant Intercompany amounts 
ave been eliminated. Investments in 20%-50% owned companies are 

accounted for on the equity basis. Investments of less than 20% are 
generally accounted for on the cost basis. 

Reclassifications of prior-year data have been made, where appropri­
ate, to conform to the 1997 presentation. 
Revenue Recognition 

Revenues are generally recognized when services are rendered or prod­
ucts are delivered to customers. Long-term contracts are generally 
accounted for using the percentage of completion method, with revenues 
recognized In the proportion that costs incurred bear to the estimated 
total costs at completion. Expected losses on such contracts, if any, are 
charged to Income currently. 
Depreciation and Amortization 

All subsidiaries provide for depreciation on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated economic lives of their assets. Prior to 1996, GTE's telephone 
subsidiaries provided for depreciation on a straight-line basis over asset 
lives approved by regulators (see Note 2). 

Franchises, goodwill and other intangibles are amortized on a 
straight-line basis over the periods to be benefited or 40 years, whichever 
is less. Amortization expense for consolidated subsidiaries was $143 mil­
lion, $90 million and $87 million in 1997-95, respectively. Accumulated 
amortization was $677 million and $488 million at December 31, 1997 
and 1996, respectively. 

Goodwill resulting from Investments In unconsolidated subsidiaries 
is amortized on a straight-line basis over the periods to be benefited or 
40 years, whichever Is less. 

Foreign Currency Translation 
Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries operating in foreign countries are 
translated Into U.S. dollars using the exchange rates In effect at the bal­
ance sheet date. Results of operatior)s are translated using the average 
exchange rates prevailing throughout the period. The effects of exchange 
rate fluctuations on translating foreign currency assets and liabilities into 
U.S. dollars are included in shareholders' equity. Translation gains and 
losses of affiliates operating In highly-inflationary economies are included 
in net income as they occur. 
Employee Benefit Plans 

Pension and postretirement health care and life insurance benefits 
earned during the year as well as interest on projected benefit obligations 
are accrued currently. Prior service costs and credits resulting from 
changes In plan benefits are amortized over the average remaining service 
period of the employees expected to receive benefits. Material curtailment/ 
settlement gains and losses associated with employee separations are 
recognized In the period in which they occur. 
Income Taxes 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are established for temporary differ­
ences between the way certain income and expense items are reported for 
financial reporting and tax purposes and are subsequently adjusted to 
reflect changes In tax rates expected to be in effect when the temporary 
differences reverse. A valuation allowance is established for deferred tax 
assets for which realization Is not likely. 

Deferred income taxes are not provided on undistributed earnings of 
foreign subsidiaries, abrogating approximately $612 million at December 
31,1997 as such earnings are expected to be permanently reinvested 
In these companies. 
Earnings Per Common Share 
In the fourth quarter of 1997 GTE adopted Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 128, "Earnings per Share" (FAS 128), which 
supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 15. Under FAS 128, 
earnings per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) 
available to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of 
common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share 
reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other con­
tracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common 
stock or resulted In the Issuance of common stock. Prior-period amounts 
have been restated, where appropriate, to conform to the requirements 
of FAS 128 (see Note 15). 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents Include investments in short-term, highly 
liquid securities, which have maturities when purchased of three months 
or less. 

Financial Instruments 
GTE uses a variety of financial instruments to hedge Its exposure to fluc­
tuations in interest and foreign exchange rates and in compensation 
expense related to GTE's common stock price appreciation. The Company 
does not use financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes, 
nor is the Company a party to leveraged derivatives. Amounts to be paid 
or received under interest rate swaps are accrued as Interest expense. 
Gains or losses on foreign exchange contracts are recognized based on 
changes in exchange rates, as are offsetting foreign exchange gains or 
losses on the foreign currency obligations being hedged. Gains or losses 
on long-term call options on GTE's common stock, which hedge GTE's 
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exposure to compensation expense related to outstanding stock apprecia­
tion rights (SARs), are recognized based on fluctuations in the market 
price of GTE's common stock. Gains or losses recognized on these call 
options offset SARs expense or Income In GTE's consolidated statements 
of Income. 

Inventories and Supplies 
Inventories and supplies are stated at the lower of cost, determined 
principally by the average cost method, or net realizable value. 

2. Extraordinary Charges 
In response to legislation and the Increasingly competitive environment 
in which telephone subsidiaries operate, GTE discontinued the use 
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, "Accounting 
for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation" (FAS 71), In the fourth 
quarter of 1995. 

As a result of the decision to discontinue FAS 71, GTE recorded a 
noncash, after-tax extraordinary charge of $4£ billion (net of tax benefits 
of $2.8 billion), or $4.79 per share, in the fourth quarter of 1995. The 
charge primarily represented a reduction in the net book value of tele­
phone plant and equipment of domestic telephone subsidiaries through 
an Increase in accumulated depreciation. GTE shortened the depreciable 
lives of its telephone plant and equipment In 1996, which ranged from 11 
to 30 years, to 8 to 20 years for circuit equipment, switching equipment, 
copper and fiber-optic cable. 

In addition, during 1995, GTE redeemed, prior to their stated matu­
rity, 12 series of Its preferred stock totaling $71 million. Including $10 
million of perpetual preferred, and $932 million of its telephone operat­
ing subsidiaries' long-term debt. These redemptions resulted in an after­
tax extraordinary charge of $41 million (net of tax benefits of $21 
million), or $.04 per share. 

3. Investments in Unconsolidated Companies 
GTE's investments In unconsolidated subsidiaries include its investments 
In Companfa An6nima Naclonal Tel6fonos de Venezuela (CANTV) and 
Compafila de Tel6fonos del Interior (CTI) as well as Its investments in cellu­
lar partnerships in the U.S. and other international investments. 

During the fourth quarter of 1996, GTE Increased Its ownership in 
CANTV from 20.4% to 25.9% through the purchase of $190 million of 
additional shares in connection with the initial public offering of CANTV 
shares by the Venezuelan government and subsequent market purchases. 
CANTV Is the primary provider for local, national long-distance and inter­
national long-distance telephone service in Venezuela. CANTV also pro­
vides other telecommunications and related services, including cellular, 
Internet access and directory advertising services. At December 31, 1997 
and 1996, GTE had an Investment In CANTV of $1.6 billion and $1.5 bil­
lion, including $787 million and $812 million of goodwill, respectively. 

GTE has a 25.5% ownership Interest In CTI, an International con­
sortium providing cellular services in the north and south interior regions 
of Argentina. At December 31, 1997 and 1996, GTE had an investment In 
CTI of $208 million and $113 million, respectively, and through Decem­
ber 31, 1997 provided $182 million in guarantees to banks and other 
shareholders. 

Other investments In unconsolidated subsidiaries, primarily cellular 
partnerships, were $482 million and $400 million at December 31,1997 
and 1996, respectively, including goodwill of approximately $23 million 
and $24 million, respectively. 

4. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, "Reporting Comprehensive 
Income" (FAS 130). FAS 130 establishes standards for reporting and dis­
play of comprehensive income and its components in the financial state­
ments. FAS 130 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
1997 Reclassification of financial statements for earlier periods provided 
for comparative purposes is required. The adoption of this standard will 
have no Impact on GTE's results of operations, financial position or cash 
flows. 

In June 1997 the FASB issued Financial Accounting Standards No. 
131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Informa­
tion" (FAS 131). FAS 131 establishes standards for the way that public 
busiriess enterprises report information about operating s^ments in 
annual financial statements and requires that those enterprises report 
selected Information about operating segments In interim financial 
reports issued to shareholders. It also establishes standards for related 
disclosures atx)ut products and services, geographic areas and major 
customers. FAS 131 is effective for financial statements for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 1997 Financial statement disclosures for 
prior periods are required to be restated. GTE expects changes in its 
disclosure. The adoption of FAS 131 will have no impact on GTE's 
consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash ftovi;s. 

5. Shareholders' Equity 

Preferred Stock 
During 1995, GTE retired, prior to Its stated maturity, perpetual preferred 
stock of approximately $10 million (see Note 2). 

Common Stock 
The authorized common stock of GTE at December 31,1997 consisted 
of two billion shares with a par value of $.05 per share. In 1997 GTE's 
Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 20 million shares 
of currently issued GTE common stock in the open market or in privately 
negotiated transactions. This program is In addition to the 25 million 
share repurchase program announced in August 1996. 

Additional Paid-in Capital 
Dividends for the first and second quarters of 1996 were paid entirely 
from additional paid-in capital as a result of the extraordinary charges 
taken as of December 31, 1995 in connection with the discontinuance of 
FAS 71 (see Note 2). Beginning In the third quarter of 1995, dividends 
were paid from retained earnings. 

Additional paid-in capital includes cumulative foreign currency 
translation adjustments of $(263) million, $(173) million and $(192) 
million at December 31, 1997-95, respectively, and the cumulative 
unrealized gains on investments In debt and equity securities of $20 mil­
lion, $5 million and $20 million at Decehiber 31,1997-95, respectively. 
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6. Stock Option and Shareholder Rights Plans 

Stock option Plans 

GTE maintains broad-based stock option plans that cover substantially all 
employees. Prior to 1997 options were granted separately or In conjunc­
tion with stock appreciation rights (SARs). Beginning In 199/ the grant­
ing of SARs was discontinued. The options allow the purchase of GTE 
common stock at the market price on the date of grant and have a term of 
10 years. The options vest over periods not exceeding seven years. 

The number of shares that are available for granting in each year is 
limited to four-tenths of one percent of GTE's outstanding common stock 
as of December 31 of the preceding year. Any unused amount is carried 
forward and made available for granting in the subsequent year. 

In 1995, the FASB issued FAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation" (FAS 123). As permitted by FAS 123, GTE contin­
ues to apply the recognition and measurement provisions of Accounting 
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to 
Employees" (APB 25). The differences between the recognition and 
measurement provisions of FAS 123 and APB 25 would impact GTE's 
results of operations by less than $.03 per share. 

The following table summarizes stock option activity during each 
of the last three years: 

(Number of Options in Thousands) 

Stock 

Options 

Average 

Price 

alance, December 31,1994 
Options granted 
Options exercised 
Options cancelled or forfeited 

12,264 $31.01 
5,728 33.54 

(2,375) 29.17 
(183) 33.16 

Balance, December 31, 1995 
Options granted 
Options exercised 
Options cancelled or forfeited 

15,434 
13,268 
(2,634) 
(154) 

32.21 
41.96 
30.29 
37.51 

Balance, December 31, 1996 
Options granted 
Options exercised 
Options cancelled or forfeited 

25,914 
22,208 
(3,951) 
(1,046) 

37.36 
45.28 
33.58 
40.31 

Balance, December 31, 1997 43,125 $41.71 

At December 31, 1997, 13.4 million options were exercisable. 

Shareholder Rights Plan 

GTE maintains a shareholder rights plan. Under the original provisions of 
this plan, a right to purchase one one-thousandth of a share of series A 
participating no par preferred stock for $200 (a "Right") was granted for 
each outstanding share of GTE common stock. As a result of a two-for-
one stock split effected after the adoption of the plan, each share of GTE 
common stock is currently entitled to one-half of a Right. The Rights 
become exercisable only if a person or group, without GTE's prior con­
sent, (i) acquires or commences a tender or exchange offer for 20% or 
more of GTE common stock, or (11) acquires 10% or more of GTE common 
stock and executes an agreement with GTE to effect a merger or other 
business combination. The Rights have certain anti-takeover effects 

.designed to cause substantial dilution to a person or group that attempts 

to acquire GTE on terms not approved by GTE's Board of Directors. The 
Rights may be redeemed by GTE at a price of $.01 per Right, at any time 
prior to becoming exercisable. Rights that are not redeemed or exercised 
will expire on December 7,1999. 

7. Minority Interests 
Minority interests in equity of subsidiaries as of December 31 was as 
follows: 

(Millions of Dollars) 1997 1996 
Minority Interests In consolidated subsidiaries: 

BC TEL (50.8% GTE ownership) $ 789 
Quebec Telephone (50£% GTE ownership) 85 
Cellular partnerships and other 170 

Preferred securities issued by subsidiaries 1,209 

784 
84 

139 
1,309 

Total minority interests in equity of subsidiaries $2,253 $2,316 

Preferred securities issued by subsidiaries Include two Issues, 
Series A and B, totaling $1.0 billion of Monthly Income Preferred Securi­
ties. These securities. Issued by GTE Delaware, a limited partnership 
holding solely GTE junior subordinated debentures, are subject to 
optional redemption at a price of $25 per share. Series A and B become 
callable beginning October 17 1999 and March 6, 2000 and have cumu­
lative annual dividend rates of 9.25% and 8.75% with maturities in 2024 
and 2025, respectively. 

8. Debt 
Long-term debt as of December 31 was as follows: 

(Millions of Dollars) 1997 1996 
GTE Corporation: 

Debentures, maturing 1998 through 2027, 
average rates 8.7% and 9.0% $ 4 ,150 

Guaranteed ESOP obligations, maturing 1999 
through 2005, average rate 9.7% 555 

Sinking fund debenture at a rate of 10.8% — 
Other borrowings, maturing 2000 

through 2010. average rates 6.1% and 6.0% 807 

$ 3,350 

593 
200 

411 

5,512 4,554 
Telephone Subsidiaries: 

First mortgage bonds, debentures 
and notes, maturing through 2031, average 
rates 7.5% and 7.6% 

Other Subsidiaries: 
Debentures and notes, maturing 

through 2012, average rates 73% and 75% 
Commercial paper expected to be refinanced on 

a long-term basis, average rates 6.0% and 5.3% 

7,412 

696 

1,963 

7,835 

1,062 

631 

Total principal amount 
Less: Premium and (discount)—net 

Total 
Less: Current maturities 

Total long-term debt 

15,583 
13 

15.596 
(1,102) 

$14,494 

14,082 
12 

14,094 
(884) 

$13,210 
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Estimated payments of long-term debt during the next five years 
are: $1,102 million in 1998; $1,274 million in 1999; $863 million in 
2000; $791 million In 2001; and $832 million in 2002. 

GTE's telephone subsidiaries finance part of their construction pro­
grams through the use of short-term loans, including commercial paper, 
which are refinanced at later dates by issues of long-term debt or equity. 

First mortgage bonds Issued by GTE's telephone subsidiaries 
are secured by a lien on substantially all telephone property, plant 
and equipment. 

Total short-term obligations as of December 31 were as follows: 

1997 1996 

$2,259 $1,580 
(Millions of Dollars) 

Commercial paper—average rates 6.1% and 5.6% 
Notes payable to banks—average rates 5.9% 

and 6.5% 
Current maturities of long-term debt 

37 
1.102 

33 
884 

Total $3,398 $2,497 

GTE and its subsidiaries had available unused lines of credit 
aggregating $6.4 billion at December 31, 1997. 

9. Financial Instruments 
As of December 31, 1997 and 1996, GTE had entered Into Interest 
rate swap agreements primarily to convert $1,425 million and $800 mil­
lion, respectively, of floating rate long-term and short-term debt to 
fixed rates. GTE had entered into foreign exchange contracts having 
a contract value of $579 million and $484 million at December 31, 1997 
and 1996, respectively. Call options on GTE's common stock having a 
notional contract value of $380 million and $428 million were outstand­
ing at December 31, 1997 and 1996, respectively. 

At December 31, 1997 and 1996, GTE had entered Into forward 
interest rate swap agreements and forward contracts to sell U.S. Treasury 
Bonds to hedge against changes in market interest rates on $1,460 mil­
lion and $400 million, respectively, of planned long-term debt issuances 
expected to be completed within the next twelve months. Gains and 
losses recognized upon the expiration or settlement of forward Interest 
rate swap agreements and forward contracts to sell U.S. Treasury Bonds 
are amortized over the life of the associated long-term debt Issuance as 
an offset or addition to interest expense. 

The risk associated with these off-balance-sheet financial instru­
ments arises from the possible Inability of counterparties to meet the 
contract terms and from movements In interest and exchange rates as 
well as the market price of GTE's common stock. GTE carefully evaluates 
and continually monitors the creditworthiness of Its counterparties and 
believes the risk of nonperformance Is remote. 

The fair values of financial instruments, other than long-term debt, 
closely approximate their carrying value. As of December 31, 1997 and 
1996, the estimated fair value of long-term debt based on either reference 
to quoted market prices or an option pricing model, exceeded the carry­
ing value by approximately $600 million and $450 million, respectively. 

10. Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment as of December 31 was as follows: 

(Millions of Dollars) 1997 1996 
Land 
Buildings 
Plant and equipment 
Work In progress and other 

$ 369 
4,534 

45,715 
5,872 

$ 364 
4,395 

42,963 
5,759 

Total 
Accumulated depreciation 

56,490 53,481 
(32,410) (30,579) 

Total property, plant and equipment—net $ 24,080 $ 22,902 

Depreciation expense in 1997-95 for GTE's telephone subsidiaries 
was equivalent to a composite average percentage of 6.8%, 7.0% and 
72%, respectively. During 1997 depreciation was partially offset by a 
reduction in depreciation rates to reflect higher salvage values related to 
certain telephone plant and equipment. 

11. Employee Benefit Plans 

Retirement Pians 
GTE sponsors noncontributory defined benefit pension plans covering 
substantially all employees. The benefits to be paid under these plans are 
generally based on years of credited service and average final earnings. 
GTE's funding policy, subject to the minimum funding requirements of 
employee benefit and tax laws, is to contribute such amounts as are 
determined on an actuarial basis to accumulate funds sufficient to meet 
the plans' benefit obligation to employees upon their retirement. The 
assets of the plans consist primarily of corporate equities, government 
securities and corporate debt securities. During 1997 pension costs and 
obligations were reduced due to the purchase of annuities for certain 
retirees. 

The components of the net pension credit for 1997-95 were as follows: 

1997 1996 1995 

$ 259 $ 250 $ 213 

618 593 568 

(Millions of Dollars} 

Benefits earned during the year 
Interest cost on projected 

benefit obligations 
Return on plan assets: 

Actual 
Deferred 

Other—net 

(2,689) (2,079) (2,420) 
1,496 943 1,413 
(122) (138) (177) 

Net pension credit $ (438) $ (431) $ (403) 

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets was 9.0% for 
1997 9.0% for 1996 and 8.5% for 1995. The funded status of the plans 
and the net prepaid pension cost at December 31, 1997 and 1996, were 
as follows: 

(Millions of Dollars) 

Vested benefit obligations 

Accumulated benefit obligations 

Plan assets at fair value 
Less: Projected benefit obligations 

Excess of assets over projected obligations 
Unrecognized net transition asset 
Unrecognized net gain 

Net prepaid pension cost 

1997 

$ 5,930 

$ 6,766 

$16,934 
8,649 

8,285 
(318) 

(3,910) 

$ 4,057 

1996 

$ 5,644 

$ 6,260 

$15,097 
8,067| 

7 , 0 3 * 
(427) 

(3,230) 

$ 3,373 
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Included in the previous table are prepaid pension costs of $44 bil­
lion and $3.6 billion and accrued pension liabilities of $304 million and 
$266 million for 1997 and 1996, respectively. 

Assumptions used to develop the projected benefit obligations at 
December 31 were as follows: 

1997 1996 

Discount rate 7.25% 7.50% 
Rate of compensation Increase 5.00% 5.25% 

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions 
Siibstantially all of GTE's employees are covered under postretirement 
health care and life Insurance benefit plans. In addition, many retirees 
outside the U.S. are covered by government sponsored and administered 
programs. The determination of benefit cost for postretirement health 
plans Is generally based on comprehensive hospital, medical and surgical 
benefit plan provisions. GTE funds amounts for postretirement benefits as 
deemed appropriate from time to time. Plan assets consist primarily of 
corporate equities, government securities and corporate debt securities. 

The postretirement benefit cost for 1997-95 Included the follow­
ing components: 

(Millions of Dollars) 1997 1996 1995 

Benefits earned during the year 
Interest on accumulated postretirement 
1 benefit obligations 

Rctual return on plan assets 
Amortization of prior service benefits 
Other-net 

$ 43 

240 
(44) 
(75) 

8 

$ 49 

255 
(21) 
(53) 

(2) 

$ 46 

258 
(41) 

(50) 
17 

Postretirement benefit cost $172 $228 $230 

The following table sets forth the plans' funded status and the accrued 
postretirement benefit obligations as of December 31: 

(Millions of Dollars) 1 9 9 7 1 9 9 6 

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligations 
attributable to: 

Retirees $2,954 $2,812 
Fully eligible active plan participants 219 293 
Other active plan participants 931 960 

Total accumulated postretirement benefit 
obligations 

Less: Fair value of plan assets 
4,104 

524 
4,065 

416 

Excess of accumulated obligations over 
plan assets 

Unrecognized prior service benefits 
Unrecognized net loss 

3,580 
731 

(248) 

3,649 
554 
(62) 

Accrued postretirement benefit obligations $4,063 $4,141 

• 

The assumed discount rates used to measure the accumulated 
postretirement benefit obligations were 7.25% and 75% at December 31, 
1997 and December 31,1996, respectively. The assumed health care cost 
trend rate was 8.25% in 1997 and 8.75% In 1996 and is assumed to 

ecrease gradually to an ultimate rate of 6.0% in the year 2004. A one 
ercentage point Increase in the assumed health care cost trend rates for 

each future year would have Increased 1997 costs by approximately $27 
million and the accumulated postretirement benefit obligations as of 
December 31, 1997 by approximately $340 million. 

Savings and Stock Ownership Plans 
GTE sponsors employee savings plans under section 401(k) of the Inter­
nal Revenue Code. The plans cover substantially all full-time employees. 
Under the plans, GTE provides matching contributions In GTE common 
stock based on qualified employee contributions. Matching contributions 
charged to Income were $76 million, $80 million and $85 million In the 
years 1997-95, respectively. 

GTE also maintains an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP). In 
1989, the ESOP borrowed $700 million to acquire, at market value, 
24.6 million shares of GTE common stock, which will be used to meet 
GTE's contributions to certain employee savings plans through the year 
2004. The unpaid balance of the loan, which has been guaranteed by 
GTE, Is Included In the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as 
long-term debt with a similar reduction in shareholders' equity. The debt 
service payments, including Interest, made by the ESOP for the years 
1997-95 totaled $96 million, $92 million and $88 million, respectively. 
These payments were funded by $49 million, $45 million and $45 mil­
lion of dividends accumulated on the GTE stock held by the ESOP and by 
$47 million, $47 million and $43 million of cash contributions by GTE In 
1997-95, respectively. 

12. Interest—Net 
The (Income) and expense components of interest—net are as follows: 

(Millions of Dollars) 1 9 9 7 1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 

Interest expense 
Interest capitalized 
Interest Income 

$1,283 
(48) 
(90) 

$1,146 
(61) 
(59) 

$1,151 
(49) 
(55) 

Total $1,145 $1,026 $1,047 

13. Other—Net 
The (income) and expense components of other—net are as follows: 

1997 1996 1995 (Ivlillions of Dollars) 

Minority Interests 
Preferred dividends 
Equity in income of 

unconsolidated companies 
Gains on sales of nonstrategic 

telephone properties 
Other 

Total 

$245 
12 

(217) 

— 
8 

$ 48 

$239 
17 

(201) 

(12) 
7 

$ 50 

$227 
22 

(107 

(16 
(121 

$ 5 

In 1996, GTE completed Its program to sell or exchange nonstrate­
gic domestic local-exchange telephone properties (representing less 
than 5% of its U.S. access lines). Telephone properties serving 11,700 
and 10,000 access lines were sold In 1996 and 1995, respectively, for 
cash of $30 million in each year. Pretax gains, associated with these 
sales, were recorded by GTE In 1996 and 1995 of $12 million and 
$16 million, respectively. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

14. Income Taxes 
Income before Income taxes Is as follows: 

(Millions of Dollars) 1 9 9 7 

Domestic $3,720 
Foreign 698 

Total $4,418 

The Income tax provision (benefit) is as follows: 

(Millions of Dollars) 1 9 9 7 

1996 

$3,799 
613 

$4,412 

1996 

1995 

$3,550 
454 

$4,004 

1995 

Current: 
Federal 
Foreign 
State and local 

725 
256 
187 

$ 851 
241 
107 

$ 711 
173 
98 

1,168 1,199 982 
Deferred: 

Federal 
Foreign 
State and local 

451 
(26) 
65 

399 
(38) 
97 

439 
14 
90 

Amortization of deferred 
Investment tax credits—net 

Total 

490 

(34) 

$1,624 

458 

(43) 

$1,614 

543 

(59) 

$1,466 

The amortization of deferred Investment tax credits-net, relates to 
the amortization of Investment tax credits previously deferred by GTE's 
telephone subsidiaries. 

A reconciliation between taxes computed by applying the statutory 
federal Income tax rate to pretax income and income taxes provided In 
the consolidated statements of income is as follows: 

(Millions of Dollars) 1997 1996 1995 
Amounts computed at statutory rates 
State and local income taxes, net of 

federal tax benefits 
Minority interests and preferred 

stock dividends 
Amortization of Investment tax 

credits—net 
Other differences—net 

Total provision 

$1,546 

164 

44 

(34) 
(96) 

$1,624 

$1,544 

133 

44 

(43) 
(64) 

$1,614 

$1,401 

122 

43 

(59) 
(41) 

$1,466 

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to the 
deferred Income tax benefits and deferred income tax liabilities at 
December 31 are as follows: 

(Millions of Dollars) 1997 1996 
Depreciation and amortization 
Employee benefit obligations 
Prepaid pension cost 
Investment tax credits 
Other—net 

$ 1,830 
(1,873) 
1,439 

60 
275 

$ 1,696 
(1,870) 
1,189 

95 
164 

Total $ 1,731 $ 1,274 

15. Earnings (Loss) per Common Share 
The reconciliation of basic and diluted per-share computations Is as follows: 

(Millions of Dollars, 

Except Per-Share Amounts) 1997 1996 1995 
Net Income (loss) from: 

Income before extraordinary charges $2,794 $2,798 $2 ,538 
Extraordinary charges — — (4,682) 

Net Income (loss) 2.794 2,798 (2,144) 
Adjustment to net Income (loss): 

Add: Interest expense, net of tax 
effect, on employees' stock plans 

Total adjustments 

Adjusted net Income (loss) from: 
Income before extraordinary charges 2,794 2,798 2,540 
Extraordinary charges — — (4,682) 

Adjusted net Income (loss) $2,794 $2,798 $(2,142) 

Average common shares 
Adjustment to common shares: 

Add: Employees' stock and stock 

958 969 970 

option plans 

Total adjustments 

Adjusted average common shares 

4 

4 

962 

3 

3 

972 

3 

3 

971 
Earnings (loss) per common share: 

Basic 
Income before extraordinary charges $ 2.92 
Extraordinary charges — 

$ 2.89 $ 2.62 
(4.83) 

Net Income (loss) $ 

Diluted 
Income before extraordinary charges $ 
Extraordinary charges 

Net income (loss) $ 

2.92 

2.90 

2.90 

$ 2.89 

$ 2.88 

$ 2.88 

$ (2.21) 

$ 2.61 
(4.81) 

$ (2.20) 

Certain outstanding options to purchase common shares were not 
included in the respective computations of diluted earnings (loss) per 
common share because the options' exercise prices were greater than the 
average market price of the common shares. For each of the years pre­
sented these outstanding options consisted of the following: during 1997 
8.5 million shares at an average price of $48.59 expiring in 2007 during 
1996, 8.7 million shares at an average price of $43.69 expiring in 2006 
and during 1995,0.2 million shares at an average price of $38.33 expir­
ing in 2005. 



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

16. Commitments and Contingencies 
GTE has noncancelable operating leases covering certain buildings, office 
space and equipment. Rental expense was $399 million, $392 million 
and $384 million In 1997-95, respectively. Minimum rental commit­
ments under noncancelable leases through 2002 do not exceed $244 
million annually and aggregate $663 million thereafter. 

GTE and its unconsolidated affiliates are subject to a number of pro­
ceedings arising out of the conduct of Its business. Including those relat­
ing to regulatory actions, commercial transactions, government contracts 
and environmental, safety and health matters. Management believes that 
the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse 
effect on the results of operations or the financial position of GTE. 

Recent judicial and regulatory developments, as well as the pace of 
technological change, have continued to influence industry trends, 
including accelerating and expanding the level of competition. As a 
result, GTE's wireline and wireless operations face increasing competition 
in virtually all aspects of their business. GTE supports greater competi­
tion in telecommunications provided that, overall, the actions to elimi­
nate existing legal and regulatory barriers allow an opportunity for all 
service providers to participate equally in a competitive marketplace 
under comparable conditions. 

• 

Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited! 

(Mitdons of Dollars 

Except Per-Share Amounts) 

1997 
Revenues and sales 

Operating Income 
Net Income 

Earnings per 
common share t̂ >: 

Basic 
Diluted 

Dividends declared per 
common share 

Stock market price: 
High 
Low 
Close 

(Millions of Dollars 

Except Per-Share Amounts) 

1996 
Revenues and sales 
Operating income 

Net income 

Earnings per 
common share'a); 

Basic 
Diluted 

Dividends declared per 
common share 

Stock market price: 
High 
Low 
Close 

l5t Qtr 

$5 ,281 
1,346 

665 

$ .69 
$ .69 

$ .47 

$49.38 
43.13 
46.63 

1st Qtr<w 

$4,951 
1,250 

616 

$ .63 
$ .63 

$ .47 

$49.25 
40.50 
43.38 

2nd Qtr 

$5,692 
1,406 

671 

$ .70 
$ .70 

$ .47 

$47.50 
41.13 
43.88 

2nd Qtr 

$5,293 
1,339 

642 

$ .66 
$ .66 

$ .47 

$45.63 
40.88 
44.75 

3rd Qtr 

$5,940 
1,487 

756 

$ .79 
$ .79 

$ .47 

$48.38 
42 .88 
45.38 

3rd Qtr 

$5,344 
1,445 

756 

$ .78 
$ .78 

$ .47 

$45.00 
37.75 
38.50 

4th Qtr 

$6,347 
1,372 

702 

$ .73 
$ .73 

$ .47 

$52.25 
40.50 
52.25 

4th Qtr 

$5,751 
1,454 

784 

$ .81 
$ .81 

$ .47 

$46.50 
38.25 
45.38 

(a) In the fourth quarter of 1997, GTE adopted SlatemenI of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 128, "Earnings per Share," accordingly prior-period amounts have 
been restated to conform to the new requirements (see Notes 2 and 15 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements). 

(b) First-quarter 1996 net income includes an after-tax gain on the sale of nonstrategic 
domestic local-exchange telephone properties of $8 million, or $.01 per share (see 
Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Corporate Headquarters 

GTE Corporation 
One Stamford Rorum 
Stamford, CT 06904 
203.965.2000 

Information Via the Internet 
World Wide Web users can access 
information about GTE at: 
http://www.gte.com 

Shareholder Systematic Investment Plan. Under this plan, GTE shareholders 
may reinvest their dividends or make optional payments toward the purchase 
of additional shares of common stock. Shareholders wishing Information 
about this plan should contact BankBoston, N.A. at 800.225.5160. 

Dividend Direct Deposit Service. GTE offers Its registered shareholders the 
option of having dividends deposited directly into their checking or savings 
accounts at any financial institution participating in the Automated Clearing 
House CACH) system. This service is provided at no charge. To sign up for this 
service, shareholders should contact BankBoston, N.A. at 800.225.5160. 

Dividends and Earnings. GTE has generally paid Its dividends on the first day 
of January, April, July and October. Earnings have generally been announced 
th^hi rd week of January, April, July and October. Shareholders may call 
^ ^ B | 5 . 5 1 6 0 at BankBoston, N.A. to hear quarterly financial highlights. 

Shareholder Services. BankBoston, N.A., Transfer Agent and Registrar for 
GTE's common stock, should be contacted with any questions relating to 
shareholder accounts. This includes: 

• Account Information • Dividends • Market Prices 
• Transfer Instructions • Statements and Reports • Change of Address 
• Lost Certificates 

Shareholders may call toll free at 800.225.5160 any time, seven days a 
week. Customer Service Representatives are available Monday through 
Friday between the hours of 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. Eastern Time. Outside the 
United States call 781.575.2990. 

Or write to: 

BankBoston, N.A. 
c/o Boston EqulServe, L.P. 
P.O. Box 8031 
Boston, MA 02266-8031 

Shareholders with e-mail addresses can send inquiries to: 
http://www.equiserve.com 

For overnight delivery services, use the following address: 
BankBoston, N.A. 
c/o Boston EqulServe, L.P. 
Blue Hills Office Park 
150 Royal I Street 
Mail Stop 4502-60 
Canton, MA 02021 

T^^ankBoston, N.A. address where shareholders, banks and brokers may 
(^^•cert i f icates: 
^ IRcur i t l es Transfers and Reporting Services 

55 Broadway 
New York, NY 10006 

Annual Meeting. The 1998 Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held 
at 2 p.m. on Wednesday, April 15, at the Italian Center, 1620 Newfield 
Avenue, Stamford, Connecticut. 

Investor Relations. Security analysts, institutional Investors and other 
members of the financial community requesting Information about GTE 
should contact: 

Investor Relations Department 
GTE Corporation 
One Stamford Forum 
Stamford, CT 05904 
203.965.2789 
International Telex: 4750071 
Fax: 203.965.2520 
http://www.gte.com 

Stock Exchange Listings. GTE Corporation (symbol: GTE) Is listed on the 
New York Stock Exchange, the Chicago, Pacific and other regional stock 
exchanges in the United States and on stock exchanges In Amsterdam, 
Basel, Geneva, Lausanne, London, Paris, Zurich and Tokyo. 

Auditors 
Arthur Andersen LLP 
400 Atlantic Street 
Stamford, CT 06912 

Requests for Annual Reports. Shareholders may obtain an additional printed 
copy of this annual report or a copy of the annual Form 10-K filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, by calling 800.225.5160. 

An audiocassette version of the 1997 annual report Is available to visually 
Impaired shareholders by contacting: 

Public Affairs and Communications 
GTE Corporation 
One Stamford Forum 
Stamford. CT 06904 
203.965.3436 

Other Securities. Questions regarding the bonds, debentures and preferred 

securities of GTE or its subsidiaries should be directed to: 
Treasury Department 

Capital Markets 
GTE Corporation 
One Stamford Forum 
Stamford, CT 06904 
203.965.3425 

Products and Services Hotline. Shareholders may call 800.828.7280 to 
receive information concerning GTE products and services. 

Diversity at GTE. GTE strives to be a workplace of choice in which people 
of diverse backgrounds are valued, challenged, acknowledged and rewarded, 
leading to higher levels of fulfillment and productivity. A copy of our 
Diversity at GTE brochure is available upon request from the Corporate 
Secretary's Office. 

%f This report is prinled or paper thai contains recycled libers (10-50% postconsjmer waste). © 1998 GTE Corporation 
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About Bell Atlantic 

www.BellAtlantic.com The New Sell Atlantic - forrned througti the merger of 

j Bell Atlantic and NYNEX - is at the forefront of the new' 

• communications and information industry. With nearly 40 

i million domestic access lines and more than six million 

i wireless customers worldwide, the company is a premier 
j 

I provider of advanced wireline voice and data services, a 

i market leader in wireless services and the world's 

I largest publisher of directory information. Bell Atlantic is 

I also one of the world's largest investors in high-growth 

I global communications markets, with operations and 

i investments in 21 countries. 
i 
I 

I Additional investor information is available by contacting 
• Investor Relations on 212 395-1525. We also have a shareowner 
; newsiine on 800 BEL-5595 and a fox-on-demand service on 
\ 800 329-7310. Or visit us on the World Wide Web at 
i www.BellAttanTic.com/invest 

I The 1997 Annual Report, printed on non'glossy, recycled paper, 

i reflects our continuing commitment to provide concise and cost-

I effective reporting of financial perfirmance to our shareowners. 
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1997 Highlights 

We successfully completed the merger of Bell Atlantic and NYNEX, 
creating a company with a diverse portfolio of communications assets 
in some of the most attractive markets in the world. This combination of 
market reach, financiai resources and customer focus positions us to 
address expanding market opportunities and become one of the premier 
Investments in the global communications industry. 
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Lett«r to Shareownera 

Our Shareowners By any measure, 1997 was an 
excellent year for Bell Atlantic's 
shareowners. 

Raymond W. Smith Ivan G. Seidenberg 

"The merger 
of our two 
companies gives 
Bell Atlantic 
shareowners a 
matchless 
investment in the 
most valuable 
assets in the 
communications 
industry" 

We achieved our third consecutive year of double-
digit growth in earnings before special items and 
delivered a 46.5 percent total return to shareowners. 

With strong volumes in our core businesses, we 
were able to sustain our performance even in the face 
of increased competition and significant price reduc­
tions mandated by regulators. We made great strides 
in preparing for a more competitive environment by 
opening our local networks and improving our cost 
structure. And we raised the standard of service we 
deliver to customers, with dramatic improvements in 
virtually every measurement of service excellence. 

The year's most strategic accomplishment, however, will continue to pay off 
long past 1997. By successfully merging Bell Atlantic and NYNEX, we are 
convinced we have created a company that is best-positioned to benefit from the 
historic expansion of communications markets that will drive the global economy 
for years to come. 

The merger of our two companies gives Bell Adantic shareowners a matchless 
investment in the most valuable assets in the communications industry: high-
quality "first-mile" connections to high-demographic, information-hungry 
customers - Fortune 500 companies, Federal and state governments, colleges and 
research centers and many millions of households - in the most attractive markets 
in the world. 

Building scale and scope in key business sectors was the fiindamental rationale 
for the merger of BeU Adantic and NYNEX. Together, this collection of assets gives 
us the ability to leverage the tremendous potential of these markets into worldwide 
growth opportunities through global alliances, joint ventures, and partnerships. Our 
"currency" in forming these arrangements will be our access to the scarcest resource 
of all: millions and millions of customers in prime communications markets. 

The benefits of our merger are immediate a W long-term. 
We structured the merger to create shareowner value, with accretion in value to 

owners of both companies. We saw that - by uniting our regional market, lowering 
our cost structure and enhancing our strategic position in new markets - we could 
accelerate our long-term growth rate beyond what either company could have 
achieved on its own. We have identified about $1.8 billion in annual expense syner­
gies, capital savings and incremental revenue opportunities to be achieved by 2000 -
nearly twice what we believed possible before closing the merger in August 1997. 

Thanks to the extraordinary efforts of a focused and aggressive management 
team, we have moved quickly to integrate the operations of our two companies -
meaning we are making good on our synergy commitments today. 

Our goal was ro begin ro think and act as a single company as soon as 
possible - and weVe succeeded. 



Letter to Shareowners continued 

Looking ahead, we are committed to delivering 
double-digit earnings growth while we make the tran­
sition to full competition and fund new business 
initiatives required for future growth. 

For 1998, strong volumes expected from our 
core wireline and wireless businesses - combined 
with $450 million in anticipated expense synergies -
enable us to target earnings within our long-term 
growth objective of 10 to 12 percent despite signifi­
cant investments in competitive readiness. In partic­
ular, synergies will help us absorb both the costs 
associated with opening our local networks as a pre­
condition for long distance entry, as well as the price 
reductions mandated by stSitt and federal regulators 
that will impact revenue growth at least through the 
first half of the year. 

We also are preparing for competition by step­
ping up our capital investment in high-bandwidth 
landline and digital wireless networks, which will 
better position us for new revenue opportunities -
particularly the exploding demand for high-speed 
data connectivity. The size of our new market oppor­
tunities is what separates the new Bell Atlantic from 
the pack 

Because of the superior demographics and infor­
mation-intensive economies across all our market 
segments, we start from a position of strength. The 
combined markets for long distance and data connec­
tivity in our regional telecommunications business 
alone expand our market opportunity to more than 
$60 billion - more than twice the size of our $27 
billion telecom business today. And, fiieled by surging 
customer demand and new digital technologies, the 
wireless industry continues to be on^ of the worlds 
great investment opportunities despite increased 
competition. We are confident that our global wireless 
portfolio will continue to experience healthy increases 
in subscribers and profitability as we fiilly participate 
in this high-growch market. 

Being a fiall-service provider in the world's best 
communicat ions markets is the biggest merger 
synergy of all. We intend to capitalize on these 
growth opportuni t ies by delivering world-class 
customer service, building on our strong brand iden­
tity and leveraging our low-cost position. Our goal is 
to be the premier provider of network services in the 
industry - the key, we believe, to maximizing our 
current investments as well as to forming the joint 
ventures and aiiiances thar will permit us to serve 
customers on a global basis. 

The influx of capital into the communications 
industry in 1997 is evidence of investors' confidence 
chat the expansion of markets - spurred by new digital 
technologies, new customer requirements, and a more 
open global regulatory environment - represents a 
historic growth opportunity for investors. 

The job of any leadership team is to put its 
company - and its shareowners - in a position to 
benefit from this growth. 

Our most important achievement of 
1997 is that we have repositioned 
Bell Atlantic to be one of the very 
few companies with the right 
markets, the right assets, and the 
right priorities to succeed, no 
matter how the industry develops. 

A critical part of that strategic repositioning is 
putting in place a management team and structure 
chat will deliver on this promise. 

We will ensure that the Bell Atlantic leadership 
team remains one of the strongest and most focused 
in the industry. 

Bell Atlantic may be a new company, with new 
opportunities, but our commitment to shareowners is 
the same; to continue our proven track record of 
sustainable growth in the value of your investment. 
We firmly believe that our market value will reflect 
our conviction chat we have built one of the great 
companies in perhaps the most dynamic industry m 
the global economy. 

Stay tuned. 

Raymond W. Smith 
Chairman of the Board 
and Chief Executive Officer 

February 27, 1998 

Ivan G. Seidenberg 
Vice Chairman, President 
and Chief Operating Officer 
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BeU Atlantic at a Glance 

Business Profile 

Premier provider of advanced voice, data, and information 

services from Maine to Virginia - the worlds most 

in formation-intensive marketplace. 

Major market segments include: 

Consumer 

Business 

Wholesale 

Information Services Revenues of $27 billion 

Business > Assets of more than $41 bUllon 

' Nearly 40 million access lines 

' 22 million households 

Region includes 34% of Fortune 500 

companies and Federal GovernmBnt 

Wholesale 

Global Wire less One of the world's largest and most successful wireless 
companies, with domestic operations in 25 states and interna­
tional investments in Latin America, Europe and 
the Pacific Rim. 

The portfolio includes the following companies: 

Ownership % 
Total 
Subscribers (000) 

Belt Atlantic Mobile 100 
Grupo [usaceil (Mexico) 42.1 
PriracCo Personal Communications 50 
Omnitel Pronto Italia (Italy) 17.45 
EuroTel Praha (Czech Republic) 24.5 
EuroTel Bratislava (Slovakia) 24.5 
STET Hellas (Greece) 20 
Excclcomindo (Indonesia) 23-1 

5356 
400 
387 

2.400 
347 
91 

390 
133 

• Assets of more than $7.5 billion 

• More than 175 million proportionate POPs 

• Proportionate revenues of $3.7 billion 

• 6.3 million proportionate subscribers 

Internat ional A mix of mature and start-up communications businesses in 

Europe and the Pacific Rim. The portfolio consists principally 

of the following investments: 

_^^__ Ownership % 

Telecom Corpcrarion of New Zealand 
Cable Sc Wireless Communications 
FLAG 
TclecomAsia 
BayanTel 
Global Directory Services 

24.95 
18.5 
37.87 
18.2 
20 

various 
« Assets of nearly $2 billion 
• Market value of investments exceeds 

$4 billion 



1997 Performance Highlights 

• Revenue growth of nearly 3%; revenue 
growth excluding the effea of $500 million in 
mandated federal and state price reductions 
approached 5% 

• Revenues driven by solid growth in access 
lines and access minutes of use, widi strong 
increases in vertical services in the consumer 
market and high-speed, high-ban dwiddi 
services in the business market 

• Expense growth contained to 1.2% including 
nearly $300 million of coses associated with 
opening our network to competitors 

•$5-5 billion capital investment as part of 
network modernization program 

• Significantly improved service results in virtu-
aJly all measurements throughout the region 

Access Lines in Service 

38.3 M 

96 1 

39.7 M 

97 1 

Rs^dence 

3.7% growth 

n 
Public 

Strategic Priorities 

• Maximize value of "first-mile" assets 

through higher penetration of vertical 

services and entry into new markets 

such as long distance and data 

communications 

• Improve operating efficiency through 

cost savings initiatives 

• Achieve higher asset returns and-capital 

productivity 

• Build brand equity and focus on 
customer care and service excellence 

• Added more than 1.6 million proportionate 
subscribers in 1997 

• International ventures contributed 30% of 
new subscribers, with significant subscriber 
growth in all markets 

• Bell Adantic Mobile (BAM) operating 
income grew 29% with an operating cash 
flow margin of 43% 

• Deployed advanced digital technology 
throughout 75% of domestic cellular markets 

• Market-leading network quality and coverage 

• Expanded distribution channels 

Propo / t i o ra te Subscr ibers 

6.3 M 

4.7 M 

• Be the leading provider in every 

market served 

• Drive growth and profitability through 

effective maHteting, product innovation, 

and operating efficiency initiatives 

• Provide world class customer service 

• Deliver superior network quality 

Bell Atlantic 
Mobile 

PrimeCo 
D 

tntern^onal 

35% growth 

• Increased contribution to corporate earnings 
growth 

• Continued solid operating performance in 
Telecom Corporation of New Zealand 

' Formed Cable & Wireless Communications 
in April through the merger of Mercury 
Communications, NYNEX CableComms, 
and Bell Cablemedia 

• Successfiilly launched the commercial service 
of FLAG, die world's largest undersea 
fiberoptic cable, in December. FLAG 
recorded nearly $400 million in revenues, 
reflecting cumulative pre-sales since the 
beginning of the project 

Proport ionate Revenues 

$1.3B 

• Maximize the value of current invest­

ments by exporting our core competen­

cies CO improve operating performance 

• Capitalize on market demands for 

expanded global connectivicy 

• Selectively pursue global alliances and 

partnerships 

86% growth 



Selected Financial Data 

Results of Operations 
Operating revenues 
Operating income 
Income before extraordinary items 

and cumulative effect of changes 
in accounting principles 

Per common share-basic 
Per common share-diluted 

Net income (loss) 
Per common share-basic 
Per common share-diluted 

Cash dividends declared per common share (•=' 

Rnancial Position 
Total assets 
Long-term debt 
Employee benefit obligations 
Minority interest, including a portion 

subject to redemption requirements 
Preferred stock of subsidiary 
Shareowners' investment 

1997'" 

$ 30,193.9 
5,341.5 

2.454.9 
3.16 
3.13 

2.454.9 
3.16 
3.13 
3.02 

$ 53.964.1 
13,265.2 
10,004.4 

911.2 
200.5 

12,789-1 

1996'W 

$ 29.155.2 
6,078.6 

3.128.9 
4.05 
4.01 

3.402.0 
4.40 
4.36 
2.88 

$ 53.361,1 
15.286.0 
9,588.0 

2,014.2 
145.0 

12,976.4 

(Dollars 
1995^ 

$ 27.926.8 
5,417.4 

2,826.1 
3.70 
3.68 

(96.8) 
(.13) 
(.13) 
2.80 

$ 50,623.1 
15.744.1 
9,388.4 

1,221.1 
145.0 

11.213.6 

m Millioni. Exccpc Per Share Amounts) 
1994̂ -=' 

$ 27.098.0 
4.522.4 

2.224.9 
2.94 
2.93 
68.2 

.09 

.09 
2.76 

$ 54,020.2 
14,590.2 
8.980.2 

648.0 
85.0 

13,063.5 

1993^' 

$ 26,553.4 
3,204.6 

1.320.7 
1.76 
1.75 

(593.2) , 

(.79) 1 
(.78) 
2.68 

. 
S 58,844.8 

14,144.0 
7,666.4 

I 
1 

213.7 i 
- 1 

15,010.5 1 

Selected Financial Data prior to 1997 has been restated to rcflea the merger of Bell Adantic Corporation and NYNEX Corporation completed 
on August 14, 1997 and accounted for as a pooling of interests. 

(a) 1997 data include merger-related costs and other special items (see Note 1 and Man^mcnts Discussion and Analysis). 

(b)1996 data include retirement incentive costs (see Note 16), and the adoption ofa change in accounting for directory publishing (sec Note 3). 

(c) 1995 and 1994 data include retirement incentive costs {scs Note 16), and an extraordinary charge for the discontinuation of regulatory accounting 
principles (see Note 4). 

(d) 1993 data include restructuring costs and the adoption of changes in accounting for income taxes and postemployment benefits. 

(e) Cash dividends declared per common share represent the historical dividends of BeU Atiantic Corporation. Cash dividends declared in 1996 
include a payment of S.005 per common share for redemption of all rights granted under our Shareholder Rights Plan. 



Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition 

(Tables fhown in Dollars in Millions) 

The year 1997 marked a period of significant change for our 

company. We completed the merger with NYNEX 

Corporation (NYNEX) on August 14, 1997. creating one of 

the world's largest telecommunications companies. The merg­

er was accounted for as a pooling of interests, meaning that 

for accounting and financial reporting purposes the compa­

nies are treated as if chey had always been combined. 

Therefore, we have restated our financial information for all 

daces and periods prior to the merger. The financial state­

ments presented reflect the new presentation used by our 

company. You should read Note 1 to the consolidated finan­

cial statements on pages 28 and 29 for additional information 

on the merger transaction. 

We reported net income of $2,454.9 million or basic earnings 

per share (EPS) of $3.16 and diluted EPS of $3.13 in 1997, 

compared to net income of $3,402.0 million or basic EPS of 

$4.40 and diluted EPS of $4.36 in 1996, and a net loss of $96.8 

million or basic and diluted loss per share of $. 13 in 1995. 

Bisic earnings per share arc calculated by dividing nee income 

by the weigh ted-ave rage number of common shares outstand­

ing during the period. Diluted earnings per share are calculat­

ed based on the assumption that potential common shares, 

such as stociic options, were also outstanding during the 

reporting period. 

Our rcponed results for ail three years were affected by special 

items. After adjusting for such items, net income was 

$3,846.8 million or $4.96 basic EPS and $4.90 diluted EPS 

in 1997, $3,474.2 million or $4.49 basic EPS and $4.45 

diluted EPS in 1996, and $3,120.7 million or $4,08 basic 

EPS and $4.06 diluted EPS in 1995. The most significant of 

these items are discussed below. Per share amounts referred to 

in the following discussion are diluted EPS. 

Year 1997 

Merger-related Costs 
During 1997. we recognized merger-related costs of approxi­
mately $519 million ($381 million after-tax or $.49 per share), 
consisting of $200 million of direct incremental costs, $223 
million for employee severance costs and $96 milUon of transi­
tion and integration costs. Direct incremental costs consist of 
expenses associated with completing the mei^er transaction 
such as professional and regulatory fees> compensation arrange­
ments and shareowner-related costs. Employee severance costs 
represent benefit costs for the separation by the end of 1999 of 
approximately 3,100 management employees who arc entitled 
to benefits under pre-existing separation pay plans. Transition 
and integration costs consist of costs associated with integrating 
the operations of Bell Adantic and NYNEX, and we expect 
over the three years following the closing of the merger that 
such costs will aggregate between $400 million to $500 million 
(pre-tax). 

Other Charges and Special Items 
During 1997, we recorded pre-tax charges of approximately 
$1,041 million ($686 million after-tax or $.87 per share) in 
connection with consolidating operations and combining 
organizations and for special items arising during the year. 
These charges were principally associated with certain video 
investments and operations, the write-down of obsolete fixed 
assets, the consolidation of certain redundant real estate prop­
erties, contingencies for various regulatory, legal and tax 
matters and other miscellaneous items. Other special items 
recognized during 1997 included gains on the sales of our 
ownership interests in several businesses, a net tax benefit 
related to a change in state tax law and other tax issues, and 
charges associated with our equity share of formation costs 
incurred by Cable & Wireless Communications PLC (CWC). 

Wc also incurred pre-tax costs of approximately $513 million 

($325 million after-tax or $.41 per share) associated with our 

current retirement incentive program. 

Year 1996 

In 1996, we incurred pre-tax charges of approximately $315 

million ($198 million after-tax or $.25 per share) for regula­

tory issues, a net loss on the disposition of certain nonstrate­

gic investments and other matters arising during the year. 

We also incurred pre-tax costs of approximately $236 million 

($147 million after-tax or $.19 per share) associated with the 

retirement incentive program. 

Effective January 1, 1996, we changed our method of 

accounting for directory publishing revenues and expenses. 

We adopted the point-of-publication method, meaning that 

wc now recognize directory revenues and expenses upon 

publication rather than over the lives of the directories. We 

recorded an after-tax increase in income of $273.1 million, or 

$.35 per share, in 1996, representing the cumulative effect of 

this accounting change. 

Year 1995 
In 1995, we incurred pre-tax charges of approximately $228 

million ($172 million after-tax or $.22 per share) for regula­

tory and other issues, and wc recognized a net pre-tax gain of 

approximately $336 million ($204 million after-tax or $.27 

per share) on the sale of certain cellular properties and other 

asset dispositions. 

We also incurred pre-tax costs of approximately $514 million 

($327 million after-tax or $.43 per share) associated with the 

retirement incentive program. 



Management's Discussion and Analysis continued 

In the second quarter of 1995, we recognized an extraordi­
nary charge of $2,919.4 million, or $3.80 per share, in 
connection with our decision to discontinue the use of regula­
tory accounting principles for two of our operating telephone 
subsidiaries (New York Telephone and New England 
Telephone) under Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards (SFAS) No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of 
Certain Types of Regulation" (see Note 4 to the consolidated 
financial statements on page 32). Results for 1995 also 
included an extraordinary charge of $3.5 million, or $.01 per 
share, for the early extinguishment of debt. 

Accounting for investments 

' Grupo lusacell, S.A. deC.V. 
In February 1997, we consummated a restructuring of our 
investment in Grupo lusacell, S.A. de C.V. (lusacell), a 
Mexican wireless company, to permit us to assume control of 
the Board ofDirectors and management of lusacell. As a 
result of the restructuring, we changed the accounting for our 
lusacell investment from the equity method to full consolida­
tion in the first quarter of 1997. 

United Kingdom Operations 
In the second quarter of 1997, we transferred our interests in 
cable television and telecommunications operations in the 
United Kingdom to CWC in exchange for an 18.5% owmer-
ship interest in CWC. This transaction vras accounted for as a 
nonmonetary exchange of similar productive assets and, as a 
result, no gain or loss was recorded. Prior to the transfer, we 
included the accounts of these operations in our consolidated 
financial statements. We account for our investment in CWC 
under the equity method. 

See Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 
33 and 34 for additional information on the lusacell restruc­
turing and CWC transaction. 

These and other items affecting the comparison of our results of 

operations for the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 

1995 are discussed in the following sections. 

Results of Operations 

Operating Revenues 

Yeats Ended December 31. 1997 1996 1995 

Local services 

Network access services 

Long distance services 

Ancillary services 

Directory and 
information services 

Wireless services 

Other services 

Total Operating Revenues 

$13,113.2 

7,158.6 

2,190.1 

1.845.4 

2.298.0 

3,328.5 
260.1 

$30,193.9 

$12,559.1 

7,112.6 

2,373.6 

1,738.0 

2,224.3 

2.713.6 

434.0 

$29,155.2 

$12,115.3 
6.952.2 

2,474.3 

1.450.8 

2,050.8 

2,147.8 

735.6 
$27,926.8 

Local Services Revenues 

1997-1996 

1996-1995 

$ 554.1 

$ 443.8 

Increase 

AÂ Ai 

3.7% 

Local services revenues are earned by our operating telephone 

subsidiaries from the provision of local exchange, local private 

line, public telephone (pay phone) and value-added services. 

Value-added services are a family of services which expand the 

utilization of the network. These services include products 

such as Caller ID, Call Waiting and Return Call. 

Higher usage of our network facilities was the primary reason 

for the increase in local services revenues in 1997 and 1996. 

This growth was generated by an increase in access lines in 

service of 3.7% in 1997 and 3.6% in 1996, and stronger busi­

ness message volumes. Access line growth reflects primarily 

higher demand for Ccntrex services and an increase in addi­

tional residential lines. Higher revenues from private line and 

switched data services also contributed to the revenue growth 

in both years. 

Revenue growth in 1997 and 1996 was boosted by increased 
revenues from value-added services. This increase was princi­
pally the result of higher customer demand and usage. 

Revenue growth from volume increases was partially offset in 
! 996 by rate reductions primarily in New York and 
Massachusens, and by the effect of service rebates paid to 
customers in New York. 

For a discussion of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the 

Aa) and its impact on the local exchange market, sec "Other 

Faaors That May Affect Future Results" beginning on page 19. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis continued 

Network Access Services Revenues 

1997-1996 

1996-1995 

$ 46.0 
$ 160.4 

Increase 

.6% 

2^3% 

• 

Network access services revenues are earned from carriers for 

their use of our local exchange facilities in providing usage 

services to their customers, and from end-user subscribers. 

Switched access revenues are derived from fixed and usage-

based charges paid by carriers for access to our network. 

Special access revenues arise from access charges paid by carri­

ers and end-users who have private networks. End-user access 

revenues are earned from our customers who pay for access to 

our network. 

Network access services revenues increased in 1997 and 1996 
because of higher customer demand as reflected by growth in 
access minutes of use of 7.3% in 1997 and 9.6% in 1996. 
Growth in access revenues in 1997 and 1996 also reflects 
higher network usage by alternative providers of intraLATA 
toll services. This revenue growth was negatively affected in 
both years by pricz reductions as mandated by federal and 
state price cap and incentive plans. 

The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) regulates 

the rates that we charge long distance carriers and end-user 

subscribers for interstate access services. We are required to 

file new access rates with the FCC each year, under the rules 

of its Interim Price Cap Plan. We implemented required price 

decreases for interstate access services totaling approximately 

$380 miUion on an annual basis for the period August 1995 

through June 1996 and $63 million on an annual basis for 

the period July 1996 through June 1997. Effective July 1, 

1997, we implemented annual price decreases on interstate 

access services of approximately $430 miUion. An additional 

price reduction of $49.5 miUion was implemented in 

December 1997, following the resolution of certain issues 

previously under review by the FCC. The rates included in 

out 1997 filings will be in effect through June 1998. In addi­

tion, eflfective January 1, 1998, our operating telephone 

subsidiaries adjusted their annual rates by approximately $200 

miUion to recover contributions that they will owe to the new 

universal service fund. These revenues wiU be entirely offset 

by the contribution amount, which will be included in Other 

Operating Expenses. 

Revenues were also affected by reductions of approximately 

$174 miUion in 1997 and $132 million in 1996 for contin­

gencies associated with regulatory matters. 

For a fiirther discussion of FCC rulemakings concerning price 

caps, access charges and universal service, see "Other Factors 

That May Affect Future Results—Recent Developments— 

FCC Orders" beginning on p ^ e 20. 

Long Distance Services Revenues 
(Decrease) 

1997-1996 

1996-1995 
$(183.5) 
$(100.7) 

(7.7)% 
(4.1)% 

Long distance services revenues are earned primarily from 
calls made outside a customers local calling area, but within 
the same service area of our operating telephone subsidiaries 
(intraLATA toll). Other long distance services that we 
provide include 800 services, Wide Area Telephone Service 
(WATS), corridor services and long distance services outside 
of our region. 

Company-initiated price reductions and increased competi­
tion for intraLATA toll, WATS and private line services both 
contributed substantiaUy to the reduction in long distance 
services revenues in 1997 and 1996. We continue co imple­
ment price reductions on certain long distance services as 
part of our response to competition. Competition for 
intraLATA toil services decreased revenues to a greater degree 
in 1997 as a result of the introduction of presubscription in 
many states throughout our region. Revenue reductions from 
presubscription were partially offset by increased network 
access services revenues for usage of our network from alter­
native providers of IntraLATA toll services. Higher caUing 
volumes generated by an increase in access lines in service 
also mitigated revenue decreases. 

By December 1997, all of our operating telephone 

subsidiaries had implemented intraLATA presubscription. 

except in Maryland, Massachusetts and Virginia. We expect to 

offer intraLATA presubscription coincident with our offering 

of long distance services in those states, or by February 8, 

1999, as required by the Act. We believe that competition for 

long distance services, including competitive pricing and 

customer selection of alternative providers of intraLATA toll 

services in the states currently offering presubscription, will 

continue to affect revenue trends. You should read "Other 

Factors That May Affect Future Results—Competition— 

IntraLATA ToU Services'* on page 21 for a further discussion 

of presubscription. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysts continued 

Ancillary Services Revenues 
Increase 

1997-1996 

1996-1995 

$ 107.4 
$ 287.2 

6.2% 

19.8% 

Our company provides ancillary services which include 

I systems integration services, equipment and construction 

i services for other telecommunications carriers, billing and 

collection services for long distance carriers, customer premis­

es equipment (CPE) services, facilities rental services and 

voice messaging. 

The growth in ancillary services revenues in 1997 and 1996 

included higher revenues as a result of new contracts with 

business customers for systems integration services and higher 

demand for CPE and voice messaging services, principally 

Home Voice Mail. We also recognized additional revenues in 

both years as a result of the introduction of customer late 

\ payment charges by our operating telephone subsidiaries. 

I Revenue growth in 1996 was also affected by the impact of 

1 state regulatory issues in 1996 and 1995, resulting in a year-

i over-year revenue increase of approximately $137 million. In 

; 1997, the effect of these state regulatory issues reduced revenue 

j growth by approximately $64 miUion, as compared to 1996. 

Directory and Information Services Revenues 
Increase 

1997-1996 

1996-1995 

$ 73.7 

$ 173.5 
3.3% 

8.5% 

I We earn directory and information services revenues primarily 

j from local advertising and marketing services provided to 

i businesses in our White and Yellow Pages directories within 

i our region, international directory services, and electronic 

publishing services. We also provide dataisase services and 

I directory marketing services outside of our region. Revenues 

I from our Internet services businesses are also included in this 

! revenue category. 

i As previously described in the "Overview" section, we changed 
'• our method of accounting for directory publishing revenues 
; and expenses in 1996. The effect of this change caused an 
; increase in revenues of approximately $125 million in 1996. 
: Excluding the effect ofthis accounting change, 1996 directory 

and information services revenues grew 2.4% over 1995. 

I Revenue growth in both 1997 and 1996 was principally 
' attributable to volume increases and higher rates charged for 

' directory publishing services. The year 1997 also reflects 

: improved revenue growth from our Internet services. 

Wireless Services Revenues 
Increase 

1997-1996 

1996-1995 

$ 614.9 
$565.8 

22.7% 

26.3% 

Wireless services include revenues generated from our consoli­

dated subsidiaries that provide cellular and paging communi­

cations services, including Bell Atlantic Mobile, domestically, 

and lusaceU in Mexico. As described earlier, as a result of the 

restructuring of our lusaceU investment, we account for this 

investment as a fiilly consolidated subsidiary beginning in 

1997. while in 1996 and 1995 we accounted for this invest­

ment under the equity method. 

Growth in our domestic ceUidar customer base of 21.4% in 
1997 and 31.3% in 1996 was the primary reason for the 
increase in wireless services revenues in both years. Customer 
growth in both years, particularly in 1997, was affected by 
competition from new wireless carriers. Revenue growth 
resulting from our increased customer base was partially offset 
by a decline in average revenue per subscriber as a result of 
increased penetration of the lower usage customer market, 
and in 1997, competitive pricing factors. The consolidation 
of approximately $228 million of lusaceU s operating revenues 
also contributed to revenue growth in 1997. 

Other Services Revenues 
(Decrease) 

1997-1996 

1996-1995 

$(173.9) 
$(301.6) 

(40.1)% 

(41.0)% 

Other services include revenues from our telecommunications 

consulting, real estate and financing businesses. As described 

earlier, we account for our CWC investment under the equity 

method, beginning in the second quarter of 1997. Prior to this 

transaction, our cable television and telecommunications opera­

tions in the United Kingdom were accounted for as a fully 

consolidated subsidiary. 

The decline in other services revenues In 1997 was caused 

primarily by the effect of the CWC transaction and by the 

sale of our real estate properties business in the second quarter 

of the year. Revenues in 1996 decUned principally as a result 

of the sale of our domestic computer maintenance subsidiary 

in October 1995. 



Management's Discussion and Analysis continued 

Operating Expenses 

Years Ended Deceniber 31 . 1997 

$ 8,703.9 $ 8,811.3 Employee costs 
Depreciation 

and amortization 

Taxes other than income 

Other operating expenses 

Total Operating Expenses $24,852.4 \ $23,076.6 $22,509-4 

S 9.047.2 

5,864.4 

1,606.9 

8,333.9 

1996 1995 

5,379.0 

1.499.9 

7,493.3 

5,326.1 

1.589.3 

6,782.7 

For purposes of our discussion, reference co the network subsidiaries 
includes our operating telephone subsidiaties, subsidiaries thai provide 
centralized services and support, and network-related subsidiaries provid­
ing systems integration, CPE dismbution, inside wiring, long distance, 
and directory and information services. 

Employee Costs 

Increase (Decrease) 

1997-1996 

1996-1995 

$ 343.3 
$(107.4) 

3.9 % 
(1.2)% 

i Employee costs consist of salaries, wages and other employee 

} compensation, employee benefits and payroU taxes. 

j Employee costs increased in 1997 as a result of merger-related 

I costs recorded in the third quarter. As described earlier, we 

' recognized approximately $223 miUion in benefit costs for the 

separation by the end of iS99 of approximately 3,100 

management employees who arc entitied to benefits under pre­

existing separation pay plans. We also recorded approximately 

$53 million of direct incremental merger-related costs associat­

ed with compensation arrangements. The 1997 expense 

increase also reflects higher costs of approximately $277 

mUiion in connection with our retirement incentive program. 

For a further discussion of retirement incentives, see below. 

Other items contributing to the increase in employee costs in 

1997, but to a lesser extent, were annual salary and wage 

increases and the effect of increased work force levels princi­

pally as a result of higher business volumes at our network 

and domestic wireless subsidiaries. Work force levels grew by 

approximately 3,800 or 2.8% from the prior year, with 

SLggroKimatclY 2,600 of the increase attributable to our wire­

less subsidiaries. The effect of consolidating our lusaceU 

investment also contributed to the expense increase in 1997. 

j These increases were partially offset by reductions due to 

j lower overtime pay for repair and maintenance activity at our 

! network subsidiaries and the effect of accounting for our 

I CWC investment under the equity method. 

In addition, pension and benefit costs were lower in 1997 due 
to a number of Actors, including changes in actuarial assump­
tion, favorable returns on plan assets, lower than expected 
medical claims experience and plan amendments including 
the conversion ofa pension plan to a cash balance plan. 
Effeaive January 1, 1998, we established common pension 
and saving plans benefit provisions for all management 
employees. As a result, continuing NYNEX management 

employees will receive the same benefit levels as previously 

given under BeU Adantic management plans. This change 

included the conversion of the NYNEX management pension 

plan to a cash balance plan. The change to the cash balance 

plan is expeacd to result in lower pension costs in 1998. 

The reduction in employee costs in 1996 was principally 
caused by lower retirement incentive costs of approximately 
$278 mUlion, as compared to 1995. This expense decrease 
was partially offset by the effect of annual salary and wage 
increases, higher work force levels and increased overtime pay 
for repair and maintenance activity. 

Retirement Incentives 

In 1993, we announced a restructuring plan which included 

an accrual of approximately $1.1 billion (pre-tax) for severance 

and postretirement medical benefits under a force reduction 

plan. Beginning in 1994, retirement incentives have been 

offered as a voluntary means of implementing substantially all 

of the work force reductions planned in 1993. 

We estimated that additional costs of approximately $2.2 

billion would be incurred as employees elected to leave the 

business through 1998 under the retirement incentive program 

rather than through the severance provisions of the 1993 force 

reduction plan. This determination was based on the expecta­

tion that the total number of employees who woidd elect to 

leave under the current retirement incentive program through 

its completion in 1998 would be in the range of 19,000 to 

21,000, consisting of approximately 9,000 to 10,000 manage­

ment and 10,000 to 11,000 associate employees. 

Since the inception of the retirement incentive program, addi­

tional costs totaled approximately $1,957 miUion (pre-tax) as 

of December 31, 1997, consisting of $513 million in 1997. 

$236 mUlion in 1996. $514 million in 1995 and $694 miUion 

in 1994. As of December 31,1997, employees who have left 

the business under the retirement incentive program totaled 

19,275, consisting of 9,329 management and 9,946 associate 

employees. The retirement incentive program covering 

management employees ended on March 31, 1997 and the 

program covering associate employees is scheduled to end in 

August 1998. In the first quarter of 1998, wc expect between 

1,700 to 1,800 associate employees to elect to leave under the 

retirement incentive program, resulting in an estimated pre-tax 

charge in the range of $250 miUion to $300 miUion. 

Based on the experience of employee take rates under the 

program and man^ment 's most tecent assessment of work 

volume and productivity trends, we are currently considering 

and discussing with the unions possible changes in the program 

for associare employees. Wc now expect that, if the current 

program is fiiUy implemented, the total number of employees 

electing to leave under the program, and the associated addi­

tional charges, would be substantially greater than previously 

estimated. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis continued 

As of December 311 1997, the remaining reserves associated 

with the 1993 restructuring plan were approximately $39 

miUion for employee severance and $54 miUion for postretire­

ment medical benefits. Other reserves established in the 1993 

restructuring plan related to process re-engineering, exit costs 

and asset write-ofB. The utilization of these other reserves 

amounted to approximately $5 miUion in 1997. $134 miUion 

in 1996 and $328 million in 1995. See Note 16 to the consoli­

dated financial statements on pages 44-47 for additional infor­

mation on retirement incentives. 

Depreciation and Amortization 

1997-1996 

1996-1995 

$ 485.4 

$ 52.9 

Increase 

9.0% 

1.0% 

Depreciation and amortization expense increased in 1997 
primarily as a result of the recording of approximately $297 
miUion for the write-down of obsolete fixed assets in the third 
quarter of 1997. Depreciation expense was also higher in 1997 
due to growth in depreciable plant and changes in the mix of 
plant assets at our network and domestic wireless subsidiaries. 
The effect of consolidating our lusacell investment also 
contributed to the expense increase in 1997. These expense 
increases were partially offset by lower rates of depreciation and 
the effect of the CWC transaction. 

The increase in depreciation and amortization expense in 
1996 w^s principally caused by higher depreciable plant 
balances at our network and domestic wireless subsidiaries. 
This expense increase was substantially offset by lower rates of 
depreciation and the effect of the sale of out domestic 
computer maintenance subsidiary in October 1995. 

Taxes Other Than Income 

1997-1996 

1996-1995 

Increase (Decrease) 

$ 107.0 7.1 % 

$ (89.4) (5.6)% 

Taxes other than income consist principally of taxes for gross 

receipts, property, capital stock and business licenses. 

The increase in taxes other than income in 1997 was substan­
tiaUy due to charges recorded in the third quarter of 1997 for 
state and local tax contingencies of approximately $55 miUion 
and for taxes incurred as part of direct incremental mei^er-
related costs of approximately $25 miUion. 

Taxes other than income declined in 1996 principally as a 

result ofa tax settlement recorded in 1995. and the effect ofa 

change in the gross receipts tax law in New York in 1995. 

Other Operating Expenses 

1997-1996 

1996-1995 

$ 840.1 

$ 711.1 

Increase 

11.2% 

10.5% 

Other operating expenses consist of contract services, rent, 

network software costs, the provision for uncollectible 

accounts receivable and other costs. 

The rise in other operating expenses in 1997 was largely due 

to the recording of merger-related costs and other special 

items aggregating approximately $634 million in the twelve­

month period. The charges contributing to the increases in 

other operating expenses included; direct incremental merger-

related costs of $122 million, transition merger-related costs 

of $90 miUion, video-related charges of $69 million, costs to 

consolidate certain redundant real estate properties of $55 

miUion, charges for regulatory, legal and other contin^tncie^s 

of $126 miUion and other misccUaneous expense items of 

$172 miUion. 

Other operating expenses in 1997 also included increased costs 
at our network subsidiaries to comply with certain require­
ments of the Aa to permit out eventual entry into the in-
region long distance business. Costs associated with opening 
our network to competitors, including local number portabili­
ty, totaled approximately $290 miUion in 1997 and $125 
miUion in 1996. In 1997, wc also recognized higher intercon­
nection payments to competitive local exchange and wireless 
carriers to terminate calls on their networks, higher expenses as 
a result of increased business volumes at our domestic wireless 
and systems integration subsidiaries and higher costs associated 
with entering new businesses such as outTof-region long 
distance and Internet services. The effect of consolidating 
lusaccU also contributed to the expense growth in 1997. 
Expense increases in 1997 were offset, in part, by the effect of 
the CWC transaction and lower network software purchases. 

Other operating expenses were higher in 1996, as compared to 
1995, largely due to additional costs incurred at the network 
subsidiaries to upgrade network software, enhance billing and 
operating systems, market and advertise services and comply 
with certain aspects of the Act. The change in accounting for 
directory publishing expenses in 1996 and costs associated 
with entering the out-of-tegion long distance and Internet 
businesses also caused an increase in other operating expenses 
in 1996. Other operating expenses also included higher 
volume business costs at our domestic wireless and systems 
integration subsidiaries. Expense increases in 1996 were 
partiaUy offset by the effect of the sale of our domestic 
computer maintenance business in late 1995 and the zfftci of 
lower charges associated with regulatory issue; and certain 
asset and investment dispositions. 

We expect to continue to incur costs associated with compli­
ance with the Act in 1998 at about the same level as in 1997. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis continued 

Income (Loss) from Unconsolidated Businesses 
Increase (Decrease) 

1997-1996 

1996-1995 

$(138.3) 

$ 3 6 . 3 

Income (loss) from unconsolidated businesses includes 

income and losses from investments accounted for under the 

equity method and goodwill amortization related to these 

investments. As described eariier, beginning in the second 

quarter of 1997 we account for our investment in CWC 

under the equity method, and in the first quarter of 1997 we 

fully consolidated our investment in lusaceU. 

We recognized a loss from unconsoUdated businesses in 1997 

principally as a result of special charges of approximately $162 

miUion related to certain video investments and operations. In 

1997, we determined that we would no longer pursue a multi­

channel, multipoint, distribution system (MMDS) as part of 

our video strategy. As a result, we recognized liabilities for 

purchase commitments associated with the MMDS technology 

and costs associated with closing the operations of our Tele-TV 

partnership because this operation is no longer needed to 

support our current video strategy. We also wrote down our 

remaining investment in CAI Wireless Systems, Inc. 

The year 1997 also included $59.3 mUIion for our equity 

share of formation costs incurred by CWC and higher equity 

losses associated with our investment in a personal communi­

cations services (PCS) joint venture, PrimeCo Personal 

Communications, L.P (PrimeCo). In November 1996, 

PrimeCo launched commercial service in l6 major cities 

throughout the country, expanding its PCS service to 28 cities 

by the end of 1997. The change between 1997 and 1996 was 

also affected by a pre-tax gain of approximately $66 miUion 

recognized in the first quarter of 1996 on the disposition ofa 

nonstrategic investment. 

These factors were offset, in part, by pre-tax gains on the 

sales of our ownership interests in several businesses, includ­

ing approximately $42 million related to the disposition of 

our interest in Sky Network Television Limited ofNew 

Zealand, $54 mUlion on the sale of our 33% stake in an 

Italian wireline venture, Infostrada, and $46 million, net of 

reserves, on the sale of our two-sevenths interest in Bell 

Communications Research, Inc. (Bellcore). We also recog­

nized a small gain on the sale of lusaceU's interest in an 

Ecuadorian cellular company in 1997. 

Results for 1997 were positively aflfectcd by the consolidation 

of our lusaceU investment and improved operating results from 

our investments in Omnitel Pronto Italia S.pA. (Omnitel), an 

international wireless investment, and FLAG Ltd. (FLAG), a 

company, in which we are the managing sponsor, that has 

completed construction of an undersea fiberoptic cable system 

between Europe and Asia and launched its commercial service 

in the founh quarter of 1997. 

Income from unconsolidated businesses in 1996 was higher 
than in 1995, principally due to the recognition of a pre-tax 
gain on the sale of a nonstrategic investment and lower equity 
losses from our lusaceU investment, reflecting net foreign 
exchange gains and a reduction in the amortization of good-
wiU. These increases were partially offtet by higher equity 
losses associated with our investments in several joint 
ventures, including PrimeCo and Omnitel. 

Other Income and (Expense), Net 
Increase (Decrease) 

1997-1996 

1996-1995 

$ 96.3 

$(503^9) 

Other income and (expense), net, consists primarily of inter­

est and dividend income, minority interest in net income 

(loss) of consolidated businesses, and gains and losses on non-

operating assets and investments. 

The principal items affecting the change in other income and 

expense in 1997 were the effects of accounting for our equity 

investment in CWC and the consolidation of our lusaceU 

investment, as described earlier. 

The change in other income and expense in 1996 was primar­

ily attributable to a pre-tax gain of approximately $384 

million recorded in 1995 on the sale of certain cellular prop­

erties and a change in the method of recording capitalized 

interest costs by two of our operating telephone subsidiaries. 

In conncaion with the discontinued application of SFAS No. 

71 in 1995, these operating telephone subsidiaries began 

recognizing capitalized interest costs as a reduction to interest 

expense beginning in 1996. Previously, these subsidiaries 

recorded an allowance for funds used during construction as 

an item of other income. 

Interest Expense 
Increase (Decrease) 

1997-1996 

1996-1995 

$ 148.0 

$(182.6) 

13.7% 

(14.4)% 

Interest expense increased in 1997 principally as a result of 

higher borrowing levels at our network and wireless 

subsidiaries. A reduction in capitalized interest costs associat­

ed with our PrimeCo investment and the effect of the lusacell 

consolidation also contributed to the rise in interest expense 

in the year. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis continued 

Financial Condition 

We were able to reduce our interest expense in 1996 as a 

result of lower rates of interest and lower average borrowing 

levels during the year. The aforementioned change in the 

method of recording capitalized interest costs by two of our 

operating telephone subsidiaries also contributed to the 

reduction in interest expense in 1996. 

See Note 9 to the consoUdated financial statements on pages 

36-38 for additional information about our debt portfolio. 

Effective Income Tax Rates 
Years Ended Decembet 31, 

1997 

1996 

1995 

38.4% 

36.3% 

37.7% 

The effective income tax race is the provision for income taxes 
as a percentage of income before provision for income taxes, 
extraordinary items and cumulative effect of change in 
accounting principle. 

The higher effective income tax rate in 1997 resulted from 
the effect of certain merger-related costs and special charges 
for which there were no corresponding tax benefits. 
Adjustments to the valuation allowance resulting from our re-
evaluation of tax planning strategies in light of the merger 
also contributed to the higher effective income tax rate in 
1997. These factors were partiaUy offset by the t^ect ofa 
change in the New Jersey state tax law, which resulted in the 
recognition of a deferred state income tax benefit of approxi­
mately $75 million in the third quarter of 1997. 

In 1997, a New Jersey law was enacted that repealed the gross 
receipts tax applicable to telephone companies and extended 
the net-in CO me-based corporate business tax to include tele­
phone companies. This change is not expected to have a 
material effect on future results of operations. 

The effective income tax rate was lowet in 1996, as compared 
to 1995. due principally to changes in foreign investee results 
for which there were no corresponding tax benefits or expense. 
The 1996 rate also reflects prior period adjustments, including 
research and development credits. The 1995 rate reflects a 
provision for various state tax issues recorded in 1995. The 
effect of these Actors was partiaUy offset by the reduction in 
the amortization of investment tax credits and the elimination 
of the benefit of the income tax rate differential applied to 
reversing timing differences, both as a result of the discontin­
ued application of regulatory accounting principles by two of 
our operating telephone subsidiaries in June 1995. 

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the 
effective income tax rate for each period is provided in Note 
17 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 47-48. 

Years Ended December 31, 

Cash Rows From (Used In) 
Operating activities 
Investing activities 
Financing activities 

1997 

$ 8,858.7 
(7.338.6) 
(1,446.7) 

1996 

$ 8,780.8 
(7,574.0) 
(1.420.3) 

1995 

$ 7,894.4 
(6.564.1) 
(1,147.8) 

We use the net cash generated from our operations and from 

external financing to fund capital expenditures for network 

expansion and modernization, pay dividends, and invest in 

new businesses. While current UabiUties exceeded current 

assets at December 31, 1997 and 1996, our sources of ftinds, 

primarily from operations and. to the extent necessary, from 

readily available extern^ financing arrangements, are suffi­

cient to meet ongoing operating and investing requirements. 

We expect that presently foreseeable capital requirements will 

continue to be financed primarily through internally generat­

ed funds. Additional debt or equity financing may be needed 

to fiind additional development activities or to maintain our 

capital structure to ensure our financial flexibiUty. 

Cash Rows From Operating Activities 

Our primary source of fiinds continued to be cash generated 

from operations. Improved cash flows from operating activi­

ties during 1997 resulted mainly from improved operating 

income before certain charges in connection with the merger 

and with consolidating operations and combining organiza­

tions. Cash flows from operations improved in 1996 due 

principally to growth in operating income and timing differ­

ences in the payment of accounts payable and accrued taxes. 

Cash Rows Used in Investing Activities 

Capital expenditures continued to be our primary use of cash 
resources. Our capital expenditures consisted principally of 
investments in our nerwbrk subsidiaries. We invested approxi­
mately $5.5 billion in 1997 and $4.9 biUion in each of 1996 
and 1995 to support our network businesses in order to facili­
tate the introduction of new products and services, enhance 
responsiveness to competitive chaUenges and increase the 
operating efficiency and productivity of the network. We 
expect capital expenditures in 1998 to aggregate to approxi­
mately $7.0 biUion, including approximately $6.0 billion to 
be invested in our network subsidiaries. 

Wc continue lo make substantial investments in our uncon­
solidated businesses. During 1997, we invested $833.0 
miUion in unconsolidated businesses including approximately 
$426 miUion in PrimeCo to fund its operations and the 
continued build-out of its PCS network, $138 miUion in 
FLAG and $269 million in leasing and other partnerships. 
Cash investing activities in unconsolidated businesses in 1996 
totaled $1,071.2 miUion, which included investments of 
approximately $257 million in PrimeCo, $315 million in 
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IVIanagement's Discussion and Analysis continued 

Omnitel, primarily to increase our ownership interest, $224 

million in other international telecommunications invest­

ments and $275 miUion in leasing and other partnerships. 

Cash investments in unconsolidated businesses in 1995 

consisted principally of approximately $612 million in 

PrimeCo to fund the initial purchase of PCS licenses. $170 

miUion in international telecommunications investments and 

$258 miUion in leasing and other partnerships. 

Our short-term investments consist principdiy of cash equiv­

alents held in trust accounts for the payment of certain 

employee benefits. During 1997 and 1996, we invested 

$843.6 million and $418.1 million in short-term investments, 

principally in trusts to prc-fond vacation pay and associate 

health and welfare benefits. In 1997. we increased our pre-

funding ofbenefits trusts to cover employees of the former 

NYNEX companies. Proceeds from the sales of short-term 

investments were $426.9 million in 1997, compared to 

$132.5 miUion in 1996. 

During 1997, we received cash proceeds totaling $546.5 
miUion from the sales of our real estate properties and our 
interests in Bellcore, Infostrada, Sky Network Television 
Limited ofNew Zealand and other joint ventures. 

In 1996. we received cash proceeds of approximately $128 

million from the sales of nonstrategic investments. Cash 

proceeds from dispositions of businesses in 1995 consisted 

principally of approximately $453 miUion from the sale of 

certain ceUular properies and approximately $250 million in 

connection with the sales of our computer maintenance busi­

ness and our interests in certain European computer mainte­

nance operations. 

During 1997, we received cash proceeds of $153.3 mUlion 

from Telecom Corporation of New Zealand's (TCNZ) share 

repurchase plan. TCNZ completed its repurchase plan in 

December 1997. As a result of the repurchase plan, we 

increased our ownership interest in TCNZ from 24.82% to 

24.95%, the maximum permitted level. 

Cash Rows Used In Rnancing Activities 

As in prior years, dividend payments were a significant use of 

capital resources. We determine the appropriateness of the 

level of our dividend payments on a periodic basis by consid­

ering such factors as long-term growth opportunities, internal 

cash requirements and the expectations of our shareowners. In 

September 1997, we announced a quarterly dividend 

payment of $.77 per share, an annual rate of $3.08 per share, 

as contemplated in the meiger with NYNEX. The new divi­

dend payment is equivalent to what former NYNEX share-

owners would have received from the N Y N I ^ quarterly 

dividend of $.59 per share. Cash dividends declared in the 

first and second quarters of 1997 were $.74 per share. In 

1996, cash dividends were $.72 per share each quarter, or 

$2.88 for the year; dividends declared in 1996 included $.005 

per common share for redemption of all rights granted under 
our Shareholder Rights Plan. In 1995, cash dividends were 
$.70 per share each quarter, or $2.80 for the year. 

We increased our long-term debt (including capital lease 
obligations) and short-term debt by approximately $1,438 
miUion from December 31. 1996, compared to a reduction in 
debt of approximately $197 miUion from 1995 to 1996. The 
increase in 1997 was principally attributable to an increase in 
telephone plant construction, new investments in PrimeCo 
and other wireless subsidiaries, and the consolidation of our 
lusacell investment. Additional pre-funding of employee 
benefits trusts also contributed to the increase in debt levels. 
The effects of these capital expenditures and the pre-fiinding 
ofbenefits trusts were partially offset by proceeds from the 
TCNZ share repurchase plan and Irorn sales of our real estate 
properties and other investments. 

In January 1998, one of our operating telephone subsidiaries 
issued $250.0 miUion of debentures, and in February 1998 
the proceeds were used to redeem $200.0 million of bonds 
and to reduce short-term debt levels. 

Our debt ratio was 60.5% as of December 31, 1997, 

compared to 58.3% as of December 31, 1996 and 62.1% as 

of December 31, 1995. 

At December 31, 1996, we classified approximately $1.8 

billion of commercial paper borrowings as Long-Term Debt 

as a result of our intent to refinance these borrowings on a 

long-term basis using an unsecured revolving credit facUity. 

This revolving credit facility was canceled in 1997. As a 

result, ail commercial paper was classified as Debt Maturing 

Witiiin One Year in 1997. 

As of December 31,1997, we had unused bank lines of credit 

in excess of $4.8 bUlion and our subsidiaries have shelf regis­

trations for the issuance of up to $2.7 biUion of unsecured 

debt securities. We also had $509.7 million in borrowings 

outstanding under bank lines of credit at December 31. 1997. 

We have established a $1.0 biUion Euro Medium-Term Note 

Program for the issuance of debt securities through a 

subsidiary. The debt securities of our subsidiaries continue to 

be accorded high ratings by primary rating agencies. 

In the second quarter of 1997, we reduced our Scries B 

Preferred Stock of Subsidiary by 100,000 shares through the 

purchase of the stock by a wholly owned subsidiary for $10.0 

million. In December 1997. our subsidiary BeU Atiantic New 

Zealand Holdings, Inc. (BANZHI) issued 650,000 shares of 

Series C Variable Term Preferred Stock at $100 per share with 

an initial annual dividend rate of 4.40%. In 1995, BANZHI 

issued 600,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock at a share 

price of $100 with an annual dividend rate of $5.80 per 

share. Preferred share sales restdted in cash inflows of $65.5 

million in 1997 and $59.5 miUion in 1995. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis continued 

As a result of the consolidation of our lusaceU investment in 

the first quarter of 1997 and the transfer of our interests in 

United Kingdom operations to CWC for an equity interest in 

CWC in the second quarter of 1997, our consolidated balance 

sheet at December 31, 1997 reflects increases and decreases in 

certain categories of assets and liabilities; however, these trans­

actions had no material effect on our financial condition. 

In February 1998. we issued approximately $2.5 billion in 

exchangeable notes. The notes have a maturity of five years 

and may be exchangeable into shares of TCNZ, with the 

exchange price established at a premium to the TCNZ share 

price at the time of the offering. The notes are noncaliable for 

a period of at least three years, and are not exchangeable by 

investors for an initial period of 18 months. Upon exchange 

by investors, we retain the option to settle in cash or by deliv­

ery of shares. Proceeds from the offering are being used for 

general corporate purposes, including the repayment ofa 

portion of our short-term debt. This transaction is not expect­

ed to have a material effect on our financiai condition or 

results of operations in 1998-

Market Risk 

We are exposed to various types of market risk in the normal 
course of our business, including the impact of interest rate 
changes, foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations and 
changes in corporate tax rates. We employ risk management 
strategies including the use of derivatives such as interest rate 
swap agreements, interest rate caps and floors, foreign 
currency forwards and options, and basis swap agreements to 
manage these exposures. We do not hold derivatives for trad­
ing purposes. The analysis below presents the hypothetical 
changes in fair values related to our financial instruments 
held as of December 31, 1997, which are subject to these 
market risks. 

Interest Rate Risk Management 
Our objective in managing interest rate risk is to maintain a 
mix of fixed and variable rate debt that will lower our overall 
borrowing costs within reasonable risk parameters. Our 
short-term commercial paper and bank loans expose our 
earnings to changes in short-term interest rates since interest 
rates on these obligations are either variable or fixed for such 
a short period of time as to effectively become variable. 
Interest rate swaps are used to convert a portion of our debt 
portfolio from a variable rate to a fixed rate or from a fixed 
rate to a variable rate. We have also entered into interest rate 
swap agreements to hedge the value of certain international 
investments. These swap agreements generally have both 
interest rate and foreign currency components. The interest 
rate components typically require us to pay a floating rate of 
interest and receive a fixed rate. 

As of December 31,1997, the fair value of our long-term 

debt and interest rate derivatives was approximately $14.4 

biUion. The aggregate hypothetical ^ir value of these financial 

instruments assuming a 100-basis-point upward parallel shift 

in the yield curve is estimated to be $13.6 billion. The a^re-

gate hypothetical fair value of these financial instruments 

assuming a lOO-basis-point downward parallel shift in the 

yield curve is estimated to be $15.2 biUion. The fair values of 

our commercial paper and bank loans are not significantly 

affected by changes in market interest rates. 

Foreign Exchange Risk Management 
Our objective in managing foreign exchange risk is to protect 

against earnings and cash flow volatility resulting from 

changes in foreign exchange rates. Short-term transactions in 

foreign currency and foreign currency commitments expose us 

to changes in foreign exchange rates. We have entered into 

forward contracts to limit this risk by making the terms of the 

forward exchange contracts comparable with the terms of the 

related foreign currency transactions. 

At December 31,. 1997, our primary exposure with respect to 
these transactions was to U.S. dollar/ Italian lira. U.S. dollar/ 
German mark and U.S. dollar/ Dutch guUder exchange rates. 

Certain other foreign currency transactions were entered into 
to hedge the value of certain international investments. As 
noted in the "Interest Rate Risk Management" section above, 
certain of our interest rate swap agreements also contain a 
foreign currency component whereby the final principal 
exchange is designated in a foreign currency. At December 31. 
1997, we had exposure to U.S. doUar/ British pound and U.S. 
dollar/ Thai baht exchange rates. In addition, our equity 
investment in the Philippines holds debt denominated in a 
currency other than the Filipino peso and recognizes foreign 
currency gains or losses when translating those liabilities. Our 
equity income related to this investment is subject to fluctua-

! tions in the U.S. doUar/Filipino peso exchange rate. 

; We are subject to risk from changes in foreign exchange rates 
! for our equity investees which use a foreign currency as their 
\ functional currency and are translated to U.S. dollars. Such 

changes result in cumulative translation adjustments which 
are included in Shareowners' Investment. At December 31, 
1997, we had translation exposure to various foreign curren­
cies with the most significant being the New Zealand dollar, 
Italian lira and British pound. 

The aggregate hypothetical change in the fair values of our 
foreign currency derivatives and cost investments from a 10% 
increase or 10% decrease in the value of the U.S. dollar 
against the various currencies that we are exposed to at 
December 31, 1997 was not material. This calculation does 
not include potential changes in the value of our international 
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IVIanagement's Discussion and Analysis continued 

investments accounted for under the equity method. As of 

December 31, 1997, those international investments totaled 

approximately $1.8 biUion. 

The fair values of our investments accounted for under the 

cost method may also be at risk from adverse changes in 

foreign exchange rates. We currently hold an international 

portfolio of telecommunication-related infrastructure projcas 

that includes cost investments in Thailand and Indonesia. 

During the past several months, Asian financial markets have 

experienced a high degree of volatility, which has had a nega­

tive effect on the fair values of these international invest­

ments. However, we believe that the declines from recorded 

book values are temporary and that the spot currency markets 

are not a clear and reliable indicator of the rates which the 

local economies may support in the future. While we expect 

to recover our investments in these countries, we will contin­

ue to monitor the Asian financial markets closely and manage 

our investments in order to maximize our future results, all 

within the parameters of established risk management 

! processes. The ultimate impact of these market uncertainties 

wiU be dependent upon fiiture events, including the level of 

voiatUiry in these markets, the duration of these unsettled 

market conditions and the state of the underlying economies 

in the affected countries. Should wc determine the downturn 

of financial markets in these countries to be other than 

temporary, the impact could be material to our financial 

condition and results of operations. 

Other Risk Management 
Earnings generated from our leveraged lease portfolio may be 

affected by changes in corporate tax rates. In order to hedge a 

portion ofthis risk, we entered into several basis swap agree­

ments which provide for the receipt ofa variable interest rate 

(LIBOR-based) in exchange for a rare calcidatcd based on a 

tax-exempt market index (J.J. Kenney). We account for these 

swaps at ^ r value and record changes in unrealized gains and 

losses in our statement of income. 

It is our policy to enter into interest rare, foreign currency and 

other transactions only to the extent necessary to achieve the 

desired objectives of our management in limiting our exposures 

to the various market risks discussed above. We do not hedge 

all of our market risk exposures in a manner that would 

completely eliminate the impact of changes in interest rates and 

foreign exchange rates on our net income. We do not expect 

that our results of operations or liquidity wiU be materiaUy 

affected by these risk management strategies. 

The notional amounts of our derivative contracts are used only 

to calculate contractual payments to be exchanged and are not 

a measure of our credit risk or our fiiture cash requirements. 

Credit risk related to derivatives is limited to nonperformance 

by counterparties to our contracts. We manage that credit risk 

by limiting our exposure to any one financial institution and 

by monitoring our counterparties' credit lutings. We believe 

that the risk of loss due to nonperformance by counterparties 

is remote and that any losses would not be material to our 

financial condition or results of operations. 

In addition, we are typically exposed to other types of risk in 

the course of our business such as political risks to assets 

located in foreign countries. 

Credit risks and other potential risks have not been included 
in the above analysis. 

Other Factors That IVlay Affect Future Results 

Bell Atlantic - NYNEX Merger 

The merger of BeU Atlantic and NYNEX was completed on 

August 14, 1997. We are targeting recurring expense savings 

of approximately $450 miUion in 1998. $750 miUion by 

I 1999 and $ I. I bUlion by 2000 and approximately $300 

! million a year in capital savings as a result of the merger by 

j consolidating and integrating networks and operating 

I systems, eliminating approximately 3,100 management posi-

j tions. centralizing procurement, reducing the need for 

i contract services, consolidating real estate, combining infor-

; mation systems and eliminating duplicative operations. We 

also expect to add approximately $400 miUion a year in 

; revenues from our current product portfolio by using our 

best marketing and advertising practices. We are targeting 

1998 earnings growth within the 10% to 12% range, exclud­

ing merger-related transition and integration costs. 

Telecommunications Industry Changes 

The telecommunications industry is undergoing substantial 
changes as a result of the Act. other public policy changes and 
technological advances. These changes are bringing increased 
competitive pressures in our current businesses, but wiU also 
open new markets to us. 

The Act became law on February 8, 1996 and replaced the 

Modification of Final Judgment (MFJ). In general, the Act 

includes provisions that open local exchange markets to 

competition and permit BeU Operating Companies (BOCs) 

or their afflUates, including BeU Atlantic, to provide 

intcrLATA (long distance) services and to engage in manufac­

turing previously prohibited by the MFJ. Under the Act. our 

abiUty to provide in-regjon long distance service is largely 

dependent on satisfying certain conditions. The requirements 

include a l4-point ^^competitive checklist" of steps wc must 

take which wiU help competitors offer local service through 

resale, the purchase of unbundled network elements or 

through their own networks. We must also demonstrate to the 

FCC that our entry into the in-rcgion long distance market 

would be in the public interest. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis continued 

I A U. S. District Conn recently found that the l'tne-of-busine$s 

I restrictions in the Act, including the requirement that BOCs 

alone comply with a competitive checklist before being allowed 

to provide long distance, are unconstitutional because they 

apply only to BOCs. The court has stayed its order pending 

appeals by the U. S. Department of Justice (DOJ) and other 

parties. Although we believe that the courts decision will be 

upheld on appeal, we are continuing co work through the regu­

latory process at both the state and federal levels in order to be 

in a position to enter the in-region long distance market in 

1998. We expect to petition the FCC for permission to enter 

the in-region long distance market in New York early in the 

second half of this year and in one or more other states by the 

end of the year. We anticipate entering the in-region long 

distance market in at least one jurisdiction during the second 

half of 1998. but there can be no assurance that any approval 

will be forthcoming in time to permit us to do so. The timing 

of our long distance entry in each of our l4 jurisdictions 

depends on the receipt of FCC approval and on the ultimate 

outcome of the appeals of the district court's decision. 

A U. S. Court of Appeals has found that the FCC unlawfully 
attempted to preempt scare authority in implementing key 
provisions of the Act and that several provisions of the FCC's 
rules that wc challenged are inconsistent with the statutory 
requirements. In particular, it affirmed that the states have 
exclusive jurisdiction over the pricing provisions of local inter­
connection and resale arrangements, that the FCC cannot 
lawfully allow competitors to "pick and choose" isolated terms 
out of negotiated interconnection agreements, and that the 
FCC cannot require incumbent local exchange carriers to 
provide competitors a pre-assembled network platform at 
network element prices or to combine unbundled network 
elements for competitors. The U. S. Supreme Court has agreed 
to hear appeals by the DOJ and other parties of that decision. 

We are unable to predict definitively the impact that the Aa 
will idtimately have on our business, results of operations or 
financial condition. The financial impact will depend on several 
factors, including the riming, exrent and success of competition 
in our markets, the timing and outcome of the various appeals, 
and the timing, extent and success of our pursuit of new oppor­
tunities resulting from the Act. 

We anticipate that these industry changes, together with the 

rapid growth, enormous size and global scope of these markets, 

wiU attract new entrants and encourage existing competitors to 

broaden their offerings. Current and potential competitors in 

telecommunication services include long distance companies, 

other local telephone companies, cable companies, wireless 

service providers, foreign telecommunications providers, elec­

tric utilities, Internet service providers and other companies 

that offer network services. Many of these companies have a 

strong market presence, brand rec<^nirion and existing 
customer relationships, all ofwhich contribute to intensifying 
competition and m^y affect our fiiture revenue growth. In 
addition, a number of major industry participants have 

announced mergers, acquisitions and joint ventures which 
could substantiaUy affect the development and nature of some 
or ail of our markets. You should also read the "Competition" 
section on page 21 for additional information. 

Recet\t Developments - FCC Orders 

In 1997i the FCC adopted ordcn to reform the interstate 

access charge system, to modify its price cap system and to 

implement the "universal service" requirements of the Act. 

Access Charges 

Interstate access charges are the rates long distance carriers 
pay for use and availabUity of the operating telephone 
subsidiaries' facilities for the origination and termination of 
interstate service. The FCC's order adopted changes to the 
access tariff structures in order to permit the operating tele­
phone subsidiaries to recover a greater portion of their inter­
state costs through rates that reflect the manner in which 
those costs are incurred. The FCC required a phased restruc­
turing of access charges, beginning in January 1998, so that 
the operating telephone subsidiaries' nonusage-sensitive costs 
will be recovered from long distance carriers and end-users 
through flat rate charges, and usage-sensitive costs will be 
recovered from long distance carriers through usage-based 
rates. In addition, the FCC wiU require establishment of 
different levels of usage-based charges for originating and for 
terminating interstate traffic. 

A portion of the operating telephone subsidiaries' interstate 
costs are also recovered through flat monthly charges to 
subscribers (subscriber line charges). Under the FCC's order, 
subscriber line charges for primary residential and single line 
businesses will remain unchanged initially, but such charges for 
additional residential lines and multi-line businesses will rise. 

The FCC has begun an investigation of the tariffs filed by the 

operating telephone subsidiaries and other local exchange 

carriers ro implement this new rate structure. We are imable 

to predict the results of this investigation. 

Price Cups 

The FCC also adopted modifications to its price cap rules 
which affect access rate levels. Under those rules, each year 
our price cap index is adjusted downward by a fixed percent­
age intended to reflect increases in productivity (Productivity 
Factor) and adjusted upward by an allowance for inflation 
(the GDP-PI), In the twelve month period ended June 30, 
1996, our Productivity Factor was 5-3%. The FCC created a 
single Productivity Factor of 6.5% for all price cap compa­
nies, eliminated requirements to share a portion of future 
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IVIanagement's Discussion and Analysis continued 

interstate earnings in excess of the authorized rate of return 

with customers and required that rates be set as if the higher 

Productivity Factor had been in effect since July 1996. Any 

local exchange company that earns an interstate rate of return 

below 10.25% in a calendar year wiU be permitted to Incre^e 

its interstate rates in the following year. The FCC also ordered 

elimination of recovery for amortized costs associated with 

our implementation of equal access to all long distance carri­

ers and removal of certain general overhead costs that it 

concluded were associated with other unregulated services. 

The FCC is expected to adopt an order in 1998 to address the 

conditions under which the FCC would relax or remove exist­

ing access rate structure requirements and price cap restric­

tions as increased local market competition develops. We are 

unable to predict the results ofthis further proceeding. 

Universal Service 
The FCC also adopted rules implementing the "universal 

service" provision of the Act, which was designed to ensure 

that a basket of designated services is widely available and 

affordable to all customers, including low-income customers 

and customers in areas that are expensive to serve. The FCC's 

universal service support in 1998 wiU approximate $1.5 

billion for high-cost areas. The support amount thereafter 

cannot yet be determined. The FCC, in conjunction with the 

Federal-State Joint Board on Universal Service. wiU adopt a 

methodology for determining high-cost areas for nonrural 

carriers, and the proper amount of federal universal service 

support for high-cost areas. A new federal high-cost universal 

service support mechanism will become effective in 1999. 

The FCC also adopted rules to implement the Act's tequire-

ments to provide discounred celecommunications services to 

I schools and libraries and to ensure that not-for-profit rural 

I health care providers have access to such services at rates 

i comparable to those charged their urban counterparts. AU 

; telecommunications carriers must contribute fiinding for 

I these universal service programs. 

I The federal universal service fiinding needs as of January I, 

j 1998 require each of our operating telephone subsidiaries to 

f contnhxite approximately 2% of its interstate retail revenues 

for high-cost and low-income subsidies. Each of our operating 

telephone subsidiaries wiU also be contributing a portion of its 

total interstate retail revenues for schools, libraries and not-for-

profit health care. Our operating telephone subsidiaries wiU 

recover these contributions dirough interstate charges to long 

distance carriers and end-users. Effective in 1998, our domes­

tic wireless subsidiary wiU also be required to contribute to 

these universal service programs and will recover the cost of its 

contributions from end-users. 

Competition 

IntraLATA Toll Services 
IntraLATA toU calls originate and terminate within the same 

LATA, but generally cover a greater distance than a local caU. 

These services are generally r^ulated by stare regulatory 

commissions rather than federal authorities. All of our state 

regulatory commissions (except in the District of Columbia, 

where intraLATA toll service is not provided) permit other 

carriers to offer intraLATA toll services within the state. 

Until the implementation of presubscription, intraLATA toll 

calls were completed by our operating telephone subsidiaries 

unless the customer dialed a code to access a competing carri­

er. Presubscriprion changes this dialing method and enables 

customers to make these toU calls using another carrier with­

out having to dial an access code. 

The Act generally prohibits, with certain exceptions, a state 

from requiring presubscription until the earlier of such time 

as the BOC is authorized to provide long distance services 

originating in the state or three years from the effective date 

of the Act. 

New York Telephone Company substantiaUy completed 

implementation of intraLATA presubscription in the first 

quarter of 1996. and fully completed intraLATA presubscrip­

tion implementation by September 1996. By December 1997. 

our operating telephone subsidiaries in Delaware, Maine, 

New Hampshire, New Jersey, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, 

Vermont and West Virginia had also implemented presub­

scription. We expect to offer intraLATA presubscription in 

Maryland, Massachusetts and Virginia coincident with our 

offering of long distance services in chos£states, or by 

February 8. 1999, as required by the Act. 

Implementation of presubscription for intraLATA toll services 

has begun to have a material negative effect on intraLATA toll 

service revenues in those jurisdictions where, as noted above, 

presubscription has been implemented before we are permit­

ted to offer long distance services. The adverse impact on 

intraLATA toll services revenues is expected co be partiaUy 

offset by an increase in intraLATA access revenues. 

Local Exchange Services 
Local exchange services have historically been subject to regu­

lation by state regulatory commissions. Applications from 

competitors to provide and reseU local exchange services have 

I been approved in all of our state jurisdictions. The Act is 

I expected to significantly increase the level of competition in 

\ all of our local exchange markets. 
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IVIanagement's Discussion and Analysis continued 

Year "2000" Systems Modifications 

We have initiated a comprehensive program to evaluate and 

address the impact of the year 2000 on our operations in 

order to ensure that our network and computer systems 

recognize calendar year 2000. This program includes steps to 

(a) identify each item or element that will require date code 

remediation, (b) establish a plan for remediation or replace­

ment, (c) implement the fix, (d) test the remediated product 

and (c) provide management with assurance of a seamless 

transition to the year 2000. The identification and planning 

phases are substantially complete and remediation and testing 

are in process. We expect to complete the major portion of 

our internal date remediation activity in 1998. 

For the years 1998 and 1999, we expect to incur total pre-tax 
expenses of approximately $200 mUlion to $300 miUion asso­
ciated with both internal and external staffing resources for 
the necessary planning, remediation and testing and other 
expenses to prepare our systems for the year 2000. However, a 
portion of these expenses will not be incremental, but rather 
wiU represent the redeployment of existing information tech­
nology resources. Estimated expenses include (a) anticipated 
license fees for replacement software that will generally 
provide increased functionality as weU as year 2000 compli­
ance, and (b) direct remediation costs to provide priority to 
year 2000 compliance during the next two years. The cost of 
planning and initial remediation incurred through 1997 has 
not been significant. Certain other costs, which wiU be capi­
talized, represent ongoing investment in systems upgrades, the 
timing ofwhich is being accelerated in order to facilitate year 
2000 compliance. These cost estimates have been included in 
our earnings targets. 

We expect to complete this effort on a timely basis without 

disruption to our customers or operations. 

Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward -

Looking Statements 

Information contained above in this Management's 

Discussion and Analysis and elsewhere in this Annual Report 

with respect to expected financial results and future events 

and trends is forward-looking, based on our estimates and 

assumptions and subject to risks and uncertainties. For those 

statements, we claim the protection of the safe hari>or for 

forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities 

Litigation Reform Act of 1995. 

The following important factors could affect the future results 
of our company and could cause those results to differ materi­
aUy from those expressed in the forward-looking statements: 
(i) materially adverse changes in economic conditions in the 
markets served by us or by companies in which we have 
substantial investments, or changes in available technology; 
(ii) the final outcome of FCC rulemakings, and judicial 
review of those rulemakings, with respect to the access and 
interconnection that we must provide other carriers under the 
Act; (iii) the final outcome of FCC rulemakings with respect 
to access charge reform and universal service; (iv) fiiture state 
regulatory actions in our operating areas; (v) the extent. 
timing and success of competition from others in the local 
telephone and intraLATA toU service markets; (vi) the timing 
and profitabiUty of our entry into the in-region long distance 
market and (vii) the success and expense of the remediation 
efforts of the company and its suppliers in achieving year 
2000 compliance. 
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Report of Management Report of Independent Accountants 

We, the management of Bell Atiantic Corporation, are 

responsible for the consolidated financial statements and the 

information and representations contained in this report. We 

believe the financial statements have been prepared in confor­

mity with generally accepted accounting principles and the 

information in this report is consistent with those statements. 

To meet our responsibUity for the preparation of reliable finan­

cial statements, we maintain a strong internal control struc­

ture. It includes the appropriate control environment, 

accounting systems and control procedures. The internal 

control structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance 

that assets are safeguarded from unauthorized use, that transac­

tions are properly recorded and executed under our authoriza­

tions, and that the financial records permit the preparation of 

reliable financial statements. There are, however, inherent limi­

tations that should be recognized in considering the assurances 

provided by the internal control structure. The concept of 

reasonable assurance recognizes that the costs of the internal 

control structure should not exceed the benefits to be derived. 

The internal control structure is reviewed and evaluated on a 

regular basis. Compliance is monitored by our internal audi­

tors through an annual plan of internal audits. 

The Board ofDirectors has the responsibility to review the 

financial statements. This is done by its Audit Committee, 

which is composed of four outside directors. The Audit 

Committee meets periodically with management and the 

Board ofDirectors. It also meets with representatives of the 

internal auditors and independent accountants and reviews 

the work of each to ensure that their respective responsibilities 

are being carried out and to discuss related matters. Both the 

internal auditors and independent accountants have direct 

access to the Audit Committee. 

Raymond W. Smith 
Chairman of the Board 
and Chief Executive Officer 

Frederic V. Salerno 

Senior Executive Vice President 

and Chief Financial Officer/ 

Strategy and Business Development 

To the Board of Directors and Shareowners of 

Bell Atlantic Corporation: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance 

sheets of Bell Atlantic Corporation and subsidiaries as of 

December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the related consolidated 

statements of income, changes in shareowners' investment, 

and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 

December 31, 1997. The consolidated financial statements 

give retroactive effect to the merger of Bell Atiantic 

Corporation and NYNEX Corporation on August 14, 1997, 

which has been accounted for as a pooling of interests, as 

described in Note I to the consolidated financial statements. 

These financial statements are the responsibility of the 

Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an 

opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted 

auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 

audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 

significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluat­

ing the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 

our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above 

present fairly, in all material respects, rhe consolidated finan­

cial position of Bell Atlantic Corporation and subsidiaries as 

of December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the consolidated results 

of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three 

years in the period ended December 31, 1997 in conformity 

with generally accepted accounting principles. 

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial state­

ments, in 1996, the Company changed its method of 

accounting for directory publishing revenues and expenses. 

Also, as discussed in Notes 2 and 4 to the consolidated finan­

cial statements, in the second quarter of 1995, the Company 

discontinued accounting for the operations of certain tele­

phone subsidiaries in accordance with Statement of Financial 

Accounting Standards No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of 

Certain Types of Regulation." 

1301 Avenue of rhe Americas 

New York, New York 

February 9, 1998 
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Bell AlUnttc Corporauon and Suhsidi.inei 

Consolidated Statements of Income 

Years Ended December 3 1 , 

Operating revenues 
Operating expenses 

Employee costs, including benefits and taxes 
Depreciation and amortization 
Taxes other than income 
Other operating expenses 

1997 

$ 30,193.9 

9,047.2 
5,864.4 
1,606.9 
8,333.9 

24,852.4 

(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Amounts) 

1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 

$ 29,155.2 $ 27,926.8 

8J03.9 8,811.3 
5,379.0 5,326.1 
1,499.9 1,589.3 
7,493.8 6,782.7 

23,076.6 22,509.4 
Operating income 

Income (loss) fi^om unconsolidated businesses 
Other income and (expense), net 
Interest expense 

Income before provision for income taxes, 
extraordinary items, and cumulative effect 
of change in accounting principle 

Provision for income taxes 

5,341.5! 
(124.1) 

(3.3) 
1.230.0 

3.984.1 j 
1.529.2 1 

6,078.6 
14.2 

(99.6) 
1,082.0 

4,911.2 
1,782.3 

5,417.4 
(22.1) 

404.3 
1.264.6 

4,535.0 
1,708.9 

I Income before extraordinary items and 

I cumulative effect of change in accounting pnnclpte 
! Extraordinary items 
I Discontinuation of regulatory accounting 
j principles, net of tax 
I Extinguishment of debt, net of tax 

j Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 
j Directory publishing net of tax 

Net income (loss) 

2.454.9 3.128.9 2.826.1 

$ 

1 

-

1 
i 

2,454.9 • $ 

— 

-

273.1 
3,402.0 $ 

(2,919.4) : 
(3.5) ; 

(2,922.9) : 

(96.8) 

I Basic Earnings Per Common Share: 
I Income before extraordinary items and 

I cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 

; Extraordinary items 
j Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 
i 

I Net income (loss) 
: Weighted-average shares outstanding (in millions) 

$ 3-16 

3.16 
775.9 

4.05 

.35 

4.40 

773.3 

3.70 

(3.83) 

(.13) 
764.3 

Diluted Earnings Per Common Share: 
Income before extraordinary items and 

cumulative effect of change In accounting principle 
Extraordinary items 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 

3.13 4.01 

.35 

3.68 
(3.81) 

Net income (loss) 

Weighted-average shares-diluted (in mUlions) 
3.13 

785.5 

4.36 
780.1 

(.13) 
768.2 

StY XtJU'i M (.Ji::ot':;ti:t!i h:':,;::•.:.li 
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BeU Atiantic Con •poraiton and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

Ac December 31. 
(Dollars in Millions, Except Per SKaie Amounts) 

1 9 9 7 1 9 9 6 

Assets 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Short-term investments 
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $611.9 and $566.7 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 
Other 

Plant, property and equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Investments in unconsolidated businesses 
Other assets 
Total assets 

Liabilities and Shareowners' Investment 

Current liabilities 
Debt maturing within one year 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Other 

Long-term debt 
Employee benefit obligations 
Deferred credits and other liabilities 

Deferred income taxes 
Unamortized investment tax credits 
Other 

Minority interest, including a portion subject 
to redemption requirements 

Preferred stock of subsidiary 
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 6, 7 and 8) 
Shareowners' Investment 

Series preferred stock ($.10 par value; none issued) 
Common stock ($.10 par value; 788.026.395 shares and 

787,000,254 shares issued) 
Contributed capital 
Reinvested earnings 
Foreign currency translation adjustment 

Less common stock in treasury, at cost 
Less deferred compensation-employee stock ownership plans 

Total liabilities and shareowners' investment 

322.8 
720.6 

6.340.8 
550.3 
634.0 
432.3 

9.000.8 
77,437.2 
42.397.8 
35.039.4 

5.144.2 
4,779.7 

$ 53,964.1 

249.4 
300.5 

6.168.9 
478.4 
716.3 
543.3 

8.456.8 
75,679.5 
39.544.7 
36,134.8 
4,922.2 
3.847.3 

S 53,361.1 

$ 6,342.8 
5,966.4 
1,355.0 

13.664.2 
13,265.2 
10,004.4 

2,106.2 
250.7 
772.6 

3,129.5 

911.2 
200.5 

$ 2.884.2 • 
6,160.6 1 
1,305.1 I 

10.349.9 ' 
15.286.0 i 
9.588.0 ; 

! 
1,846.9 \ 

288.8 • 
865.9 1 

3,001.6 i 

2,014.2 '\ 
145-0 1 

78.8 
13,255.6 
1,261.7 
(553.4) 

14.042.7 
590.5 
663.1 

12,789.1 
$ 53.964.1 

,78.7 ; 
13,295.0 • 
1,279.8 : 
(319.4) ; 

14,334.1 ' 
589.3 
768.4 : 

12.976.4 
$ 53.361.1 

.>Vc A'cfCJ to Ctnholti id! 
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ii<:u -iicUHiic K.-̂ rpurAU' 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareowners' Investment 

Years Ended December 31 , 

Common Stock 
Balance ac beginning of year 
Pooling of interests with NYNEX Corporation 
Balance at beginning oryear, restated 

Shares 

787,000 

787,000 

1997 

Amounc 

$ 78.7 

78.7 

(Dollars in Millions 

1996 

Shares 

771,680 

771,680 

Except Per Share 

Amount 

$ 77.2 

77.2 

Amo unts, and Shares in 

1995 

Shares 

436,406 
325,299 
761,705 

Thousands) 

Amount 

S 436.4 
(360.2) 

76.2 t 
Shares issued: 

Employee plans 
Shareowner pians 
Acquisition agrcemenis 

Common shares issued co subsidiary 
Shares retired 
Balance at end of year i 

Contributed Capital 

Balance at beginning of year 
Pooling of interests with NYNEX Corporation 
Balance at beginning of year, restated 
Shares issued: 

Employee plans 
Shareowner plans 
Acquisition agreements 

Sale of stock by subsidiary 
Dividends 
Common shar« issued ro subsidiary 
Other 
Balance at end of year 

1,022 

4 

788.026 78.S 

13,295.0 

13.295.0 

(22.1) 

(.3) 

(17.0) 

4,542 
1.484 

9,398 
(104) 

787,000 73.7 

12,452.9 

12,452.9 

263.5 
94.2 

(.2) 
490.0 

(5.4) 

5,615 
2.167 

375 
1,818 

771,680 77.2 

5.428.4 
7.097.6 

12.526.0 

306.0 
118.9 

13.7 
155-2 

(761.5) 
94.6 

13,255.6 13,295.0 12,452.9 

Rdiflva&ted Earnings 
BaJancc at beginning of year 
Pooling of interests wich NYNEX Corporation 
Balance at beginning of year, restated 
Net income (loss) 

I Dividends declared and rcdempdon of stock 
i rights ($3.02, J2.88. and S2.80 per share) 

Shares issued: 

1.279.8 

1,279.3 •' 
2,454.9 ! 

(2.363.4) 

184.6 

184.6 
3,402.0 

(2,295.7) 

1,144.4 
605.8 

1.750.2 
(96.8) 

(i.473.4) 

Employee plans 
Tax benefit of dividends paid to ESOPs 

: Other 
Baiance,at end of year 

Foreign Currency Transfatton Adjustment 
Balance ac beginning of year 
Pooling of interests with NYNEX Corporation 
Balance ac beginning of year, restated 
Translation adjustments (net of tax benefit 

0fSl.8.S4.7,and5J.l) 
Balance at end of year 

Treasury Stock 
Balance at beginning of year 
Pooling of interests with NYNEX Corporation 
Balance at beginning of year, restated 
Shares purchased 
Shares distributed: 

Employee plans 
Sharcownet plans 
Acquisition agreements 

Common shares held by subsidiary 
Shares retired 
Balance at end of year 

Defarred Compensation-ESOPs 
Balance ar beginning of year 
Pooling of interests with NYNEX Corporation 
Balance at beginning of year, restated 
Amortization 
Balance at end of year 
Total Shareowners' investment 

M,270 

_ 
11.270 
12,074 

(11.630) 
(26) 

(212) 

~ 
-

n.476 

(121.0) 
12.9 
(1,5) 

1,261.7 

(319-4) 

-
(319.4) 

(234.0) 
(553-4) 

589.3 

-
589.3 
919.8 

(899,0) 
{1.81 

(17.8) 

-
-

590.5 

768.4 

-
768.4 

(105-3) 
663.1 

$ 12.789A 

1.881 

_ 
1,881 
1,789 

(1.693) 
(I) 

-
9,398 
(104) 

11.270 

(19.4) 
14.8 
(6.5) 

1.279.8 

(541.3) 

-
(541.3) 

221.9 
(319.4) 

97.9 

-
97.9 

118.3 

[111.6) 

CD 
-

490.9 
(6.1) 

589.3 

86L9 

-
861.9 
(93.5) 
768.4 

$ 12.976.4 

220 

-
220 
211 

(43) 
(234) 

(91) 
1.818 

-
1.881 

(11.8) 
16,4 : 

- • 

184.6 

(330.8) , 
3.2 

(327.6) 

(213.7) 
(541,3) 

11,0 

-
11-0 
11.2 

(2.1) 
(tt.6) 

(5.4) 
94.8 

-
97.9 

5S6.2 
364.2 
950,4 . 
(88.5) 
861.9 

S 11.21X6 
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BeU AiUntic (Corporation and Suhudiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended December 31, X997 

(Dollais in Millions) 

1996 1995 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Ncc income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amorrizarion 
Extraordinary items, net of rax 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax 
Gain on sale of cellular properties, net of tax 
Income (loss) from unconsolidated businesses 
Dividends received from unconsolidated businesses 
Amortization of unearned lease income 
Deferred income taxes, net 
Investment tax credits 
Other items, net 

Changes in certain assets and liabilities, net of effects 
from acquisition/disposition of businesses: 

Accounts tzceivable 
Inventories 
Other assets 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Employee benefit obligations 
Other liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

$ 2.454.9 

5,864.4 

124.1 
192.1 

(110.3) 
236.9 
(38.1) 
88.2 

(139.5) 
(73.8) 
65.2 

(93.3) 
415.5 

(127.6) 

$ 3,402.0 $ 

5,379.0 

8.858.7 

(273.1) 

(14.2) 
194.8 

(100.6) 
284.2 
(57.3) 
274.1 

(184.0) 
(116.1) 
(244.8) 
382.6 
206.5 

(352.3) 

i,780.8 

(96.8) 

5,326.1 
2,922.9 

(244.2) 
22.1 

179.0 
(92.1) 
(13.8) 
(70.5) 
48.0 

(591.0) 
(70.8) 

(241.0) 
290.3 
425.5 
100,7 

7.894.4 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Purchases of short-term investments 
Proceeds from sale of short-term investments 
Additions ro plant, property and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of plant, property and equipment 
Investment in leased assets 
Proceeds from leasing activities 
Proceeds from notes receivable 
Acquisition of businesses, less cash acquired 
Proceeds from Telecom Corporation ofNew Zealand Limited 

share repurchase plan 
Investments in unconsolidated businesses, net 
Proceeds from disposition of businesses 
Other, net 
Net cash used in investing activities 

I Cash Flows From Financing Activities 
I Proceeds from borrowings 
; Principal repayments of borrowings and capital lease obligations 
' Early extinguishment of debt 

Net change in short-term borrowings with 
original maturities of three months or less 

I Dividends paid and redemption of stock rights 
: Proceeds from sale of common stock 

Purchase of common stock for treasury 
I Minority interest 
; Reduction in preferred stock of subsidiary 
I Proceeds from sale of preferred stock by subsidiary 
i Proceeds from sale of stock by subsidiary 
! Net change in outstanding checks drawn 

on controlled disbursement accounts 
I Net cash used in financing activities 

': Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
I Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 
I Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

(843.6) 
426.9 

(6,637.7) 
5.5 

(161.6) 
83.0 
63.1 

(61.8) 

153.3 
(833.0) i 
546.5 
(79.2) 

(418.1) 
132.5 

(6,394.7) 
15.4 

(201.3) 
99.9 

213.3 
(10.0) 

(1.071.2) 
127.8 
(67.6) 

(7,338.6) (7,574.0) 

633.0 
(901.4) 

1,580.3 i 
(2,340.4) I 

710.7 ; 
(919.8) i 

(.1)' 
(10.0) 
65.5 

(264.5) 
(1.446.7) 

73.4 
249.4 

109.4 
(375.8) 

77.1 
(2.204.1) 

328.3 
(118.3) 
687.S 

75.3 
(1,420.3) 

(213.5) 
462.9 

(135.0) 
136.9 

(6.304.7) 
4.9 

(245.4) 
179.0 
264.5 
(41.4) 

(1,040.5) 
701.4 
(83.8) 

(6,564.1) 

429.0 
(583.8) 
(200.0) 

(89.0) 
(2,117.4) 

299.6 
(11.2) 

289.2 

59.5 
610.3 

166^ 
(17147.8) 

322.8 249.4 

182.5 
280A_ 

'462.9 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Bell Atlantic - NYNEX Merger 

On August 14, 1997, Bell Adantic Corporation and NYNEX 
Corporation completed a merger of equals under a definitive 
merger agreement entered into on April 21, 1996 and amend­
ed on July 2, 1996. The stockholders of each company 
approved the merger ac special meetings held in November 
1996. 

In this Annual Report, Bell Atlantic Corporation is referred to 
as "we" or "Bell Atlantic." Reference co Bell Atlantic is also 
made in connection with information about Bell Adantic 
prior to the merger. NYNEX Corporation is referred to as 
"NYNEX." 

Under the terms of the amended agreement, NYNEX became 
a wholly owned subsidiary of Bell Adantic. NYNEX stock­
holders received 0.768 of a share of Bell Atlantic common 
stock for each share of NYNEX common stock that they 
owned. This resulted in the issuance of 350.2 million shares 
of Bell Adantic common stock. 

NYNEX provides a fiill range of communications services in 
the northeastern United States and in high growth markets 
around the world. NYNEX has expertise in telecommunica­
tions, wireless communications, directory publishing and 
information services. 

The merger qualified as a tax-free reorganization and has been 
accounted for as a pooling of interests. Under this method of 
accounting, the companies arc treated as if they had always 
been combined for accounting and financial reporting 
purposes and, therefore, we have restated our financial infor­
mation for all dates and periods prior to the merger. 

The combined results reflect certain reclassifications to 

conform to the presentation used by BcU Atlantic and certain 

adjustments to conform accounting methodologies between 

Bell Atlantic and NYNEX. Results of operations for certain 

periods prior to the merger have been combined and 

conformed as follows: 

Six months ended 

June 30, 1997 

{Dollars in Millions) 

Years Ended December 31, 
1996 1995 

Operating revenues: 
Bell Adantic 
NYNEX 
Reclassifications (a) 

Cellular consolidation (b) 

Combined 

Net income (loss): 
BeU Adantic 
NYNEX 

Cellular consolidation (b) 
SFAS No. 106 adjustment (c) 
Gain on sale of stock by subsidiary (d) 
Other (e) 

Combined 

(unaudiTCti) 

$ 6,854.6 
6,815.1 

.1 
1,454.5 

$ 15,124.3 

1.014.5 
540.1 i 

3.3 j 
39.1 I 

(2.0) ! 

1.595.0 

13,081.4 
13,453.8 

.7 
2,619.3 

$ 29,155.2 

1.881.5 
1,477.0 

(7.6) 
62.4 

(11.3) 

3,402.0 

13,429.5 
13,406.9 

1.090.4 

S 27,926.8 

1,858.3 
(1.849.9) 

(10.5) 
79.0 

(155.2) 
(18.5) 

(96.8) 

(a) Reclassifications have been made to conform to our post-merger presentation. 

(b)An adiustmcnt has been made to conform accounting methodologies and to consolidate the accounts of cellular operations that were jointly 
controlled by NYNEX and Bell Atlantic prior to the merger and accounted for by both companies using the equity method. 

(c) An adjustmeni has been made ro reflect the adoption by NYNEX of the immediate recognition of the transition benefit obligation under Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 106, "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions," effective January 1, 
1993, to conform to the method used by Bell Atlantic. 

(d)An adjustment has been made co reflect the initial public offering of stock by a subsidiary of NYNEX as a capital transaction to conform to the 
accounting methodology that we adopted for recording such transactions. 

(ej Other adjustments have been made to conform the accounting policies of the companies, and to record the related tax effects of these adjustments. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued 

Note I continued 

Merger-Related Costs 

In the third quarter of 1997 wc recorded merger-related pre­

tax costs of approximately S200 million ($182 million after-

I tax) for direct incremental costs and approximately $223 

j million ($140 miUion after-tax) for employee severance costs. 

I Direct incremental costs consist of expenses associated with 

I completing the merger transaction such as professional and 

; regulatory fees, compensation arrangements and shareowner-

related costs. Employee severance costs, as recorded under 

SFAS No. 112, "Employers' Accounting for Postemployment 

Benefits," represent the benefit costs for the separation by 

the end of 1999 of approximately 3,100 management 

employees who are entitled to benefits under pre-existing 

separation pay plans. 

Description of Business and Summary of Significant 

Accounting Policies 

Description of Business 

The merger of Bell Atlantic and NYNEX creates a telecom-

: munications company that operates in a region stretching 

; from Maine to Virginia (Maine, New Hampshire, Vermont, 

I Massachusetts, Rhode Island, Connecticut, New York, 

i Pennsylvania, New Jersey, Maryland, Delaware, District of 

! Columbia, West Virginia and Virginia). Our nine operating 

\ telephone subsidiaries provide local telephone services includ­

ing voice and data transport, enhanced and custom calling 

I features, network access, directory assistance, private lines and 

I public telephones. We also provide systems integration, 

I customer premises equipment distribution, directory and 

I electronic publishing and financing services. Wc currently 

offer long distance services in selected areas outside of our 

geographic region. 

! We provide domestic wireless services in 25 states and have 
\ international wireless investments in Latin America, Europe 
: and the Pacific Rim. 

I We have other international investments in telecommunica-

I tions companies in New Zealand, Thailand and the 

I Philippines. We own an interest in an integrated telecommu-

\ nications and television entertainment service company in the 

United Kingdom, and wc are the managing sponsor ofa 

: company that has constructed an undersea fiberoptic cable 

, between Europe and Asia. 

We operate predominantly in a single indixstry segment -

; communications and related services. 

The telecommunications industry is undergoing substantial 

changes as a result of the Telecommunications Act of 1996, 

other public policy changes and technological advances. These 

changes arc likely to bring increased competitive pressures, 

I but will also open new markets to us, such as long distance 

; services in our geographic region, upon completion of certain 

requirements of the Telecommunications Act of 1996. 

Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include our controlled 

or majority-owned subsidiaries. Investments in businesses in 

which we do not have control, but have the ability to exercise 

significant influence over operating and financial policies, are 

accounted for using the equity method. Investments in which 

we do not have the ability to exercise significant influence 

over operating and financiai policies are accounted for under 

the cost method. All significant intercompany accounts and 

transactions have been eliminated. 

Grupo lusacell, S.A, de C. V. 

In February 1997, we consummated a restructuring of our 

investment in Grupo lusacell, S.A. de C,V (lusacell), a 

Mexican wireless company, to permit us to assume control of 

the Board ofDirectors and management of lusacell (see Note 

6). As a result of the restructuring, we changed the accounting 

for our lusacell investment from the equity method to full 

consolidation. 

United Kingdom Operations 

In the second quarter of 1997, we transferred our interests in 

cable television and telecommunications operations in the 

United Kingdom to Cable & Wireless Communications PLC 

(CWC) in exchange for an 18.5% ownership interest in 

CWC (see Note 6). Prior to the transfer, we included the 

accounts of these operations in our consolidated financial 

statements. We account for our investment in CWC under 

the equity method. 

Use of Estimates 

We prepare our financial statements under generally accepted 

accounting principles which require management to make 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 

or certain disclosures. Actual results could differ from those 

estimates. 

Revenue Recognition 

Our operating telephone subsidiaries recognize revenues when 

services are rendered based on usage of our local exchange 

network and facilities. Our other subsidiaries recognize 

revenues when products arc delivered or services are rendered 

to customers. 

Maintenance and Repairs 

Wc charge the cost of maintenance and repairs, including the 

cost of replacing minor items not constituting substantial 

betterments, to Operating Expenses. 

I Earnings per Common Share 

j All earnings per share computations and presentations are in 

j accordance with SFAS No. 128, "Earnings per Share." 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued 

Note 2 cnntinutd 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

We consider all highly liquid investments with a maturity of 
90 days or less when purchased to be cash equivalents, except 
cash equivalents held as short-term investments. Cash equiva­
lents are stated at cost, which approximates market value. 

Short-Term Investments 

Our short-term investments consist primarily of cash equiva­

lents held in crust to pay for certain employee benefits. Short-

term investments are stated at cost, which approximates 

market value. 

Inventories 

We include in inventory new and reusable materials of the 

operating telephone subsidiaries which are stated principally at 

average original cost, except that specific costs arc used in the 

case of large individual items. Inventories of our other 

subsidiaries are stated at the lower of cost (determined princi­

pally on either an average or first-in, first-out basis) or market. 

Plant and Depreciation 

I We state plant, property and equipment at cost. Our operat-

\ ing telephone subsidiaries' depreciation expense is principally 

based ox\ the composite group remaining life method and 

j straight-line composite rates. This method provides for the 

1 recognition of the cost of the remaining net investment in 

I telephone plant, less anticipated net salvage value, over the 

remaining asset lives. This method requires the periodic revi-

i sion of depreciation rates, 

I Our operating telephone subsidiaries discontinued accounting 

I for their operations under SFAS No. 71, "Accounting for the 

i Effects of Certain Types of Regulation," in August 1994 

I (Pennsylvania, New jersey, Maryland, Delaware, District of 
I Columbia, West Virginia and Virginia) and June 1995 (New 

j York and New England) (see Note 4). For financial reporting 

! purposes, we no longer use asset lives set by regulators. As a 

I result, we began using shorter estimated asset lives for certain 

I categories of plant and equipment. 

I The asset lives used by out operating telephone subsidiaries are 

1 presented in the following table; 

I Average Lives (in years) 
j • ' ' ~ ' ' ' ~ 

\ Buildings 15-60 
I Central office equipment 4-12 

Cable, wiring and conduit 8-65 
Other equipment 5-40 

When wc replace or retire depreciable telephone plant, we 
I deduct the carrying amount of such plant from the respecrive 
I accounts and charge accumulated depreciation. Gains or loss-
1 es on disposition are amortized with the remaining net tnvest-
i ment in telephone plant. 

Plant, property and equipment of our other subsidiaries is 

depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimat­

ed useful lives; buildings, 20 to 60 years; and other equip­

ment, 5 to 40 years. 

When the depreciable ŝ&ets of our other subsidiaries are 

retired or otherwise disposed of, the related cost and accumu­

lated depreciation are deducted from the plant accounts, and 

j any gains or losses on disposition are recognized in income, 

I Computer Software Costs 

! Our operadng telephone subsidiaries capitalize initial right-

I to-use feê  for central office switching equipment, including 

initial operating system and initial application software costs. 

For noncentral office equipment, only the initial operaung 

system software is capitalized. Subsequent additions, modifi­

cations, or upgrades of initial software programs, whether 

operating or application packages, are expensed as incurred. 

i Capitalization of interest Costs 

j We capitalize interest associated with the acquisition or 

i construction of plant assets. Capitalized interest is reported as 

: a cost of plant and a reduction in interest cost. Before we 

j discontinued accounting under SFAS No. 71, ouroperaring 

telephone subsidiaries recorded an allowance for funds used 

during construction, which included both interest and equity 

return components, as a cost of plant and as an item of other 

income. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill is the excess of the acquisition cost of businesses 
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. Wc 
amortize goodwill on a straight-line basis over periods not 
exceeding 40 years. We assess the impairment of goodwill 

; related to our consolidated subsidiaries under SFAS No. 121, 
I "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for 
I Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of," and whenever events 
! or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value 
i may not be recoverable. A determination of impairment (if 

any) is made based on estimates of future cash flows. 

I Foreign Currency Translation 

i The fiinctional currency for nearly all of our foreign operations 
! is the local currency. For these foreign enrities, we translate 
j income statement amounts at average exchange rates for the 
I period, and we translate assets and liabilities at end-of-period 
i exchange rates. We present these translation adjustments as a 
I separate component of Shareowners' Investment. We report 
I exchange gains and losses on intercompany foreign currency 
, transactions ofa long-term nature in Shareowners' Investment. 
j Other exchange gains and losses are reponed in income. 

i When a foreign enuty operates in a highly inflationary econo-

my. we use the U.S. dollar as the fijncrional currency rather 

than rhe local currency. We translate nonmonetary xs.s,et$ and 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued 

Note 2 continued 

liabilities and related expenses into IJ.S. dollars at historical 

exchange rates. We translate all other income statement 

amounts using average exchange rates for the period. 

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at end-of-period 

exchange rates, and any gains or losses are reported in income. 

Effective October I, 1996, we consider lusacell to operate in a 

highly infiatiofiary economy. 

Derivative Instruments 

We have entered into derivative transactions to manage our 

exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates 

and corporate tax rates. Wc have implemented strategies using a 

variety of derivatives including foreign currency forwards a^d 

options, foreign currency swaps, interest rate swap agreements, 

interest rate caps and floors and basis swap agreements. 

Fair Value Method 

We use the fair value method of accounring for our foreign 

currency derivatives, which requires us to record these deriva­

tives at fair value in our consolidated balance sheets with 

I changes in value recorded in income or Shareowners' 

I Investment. Depending upon the nature of the derivative 

1 instruments, the fair value of these instruments may be record-

j ed in Current Assets, Other Assets, Current Liabiliries and 

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities in our consolidated 

balance sheets. 

Gains and losses and related discounts or premiums arising 

from foreign currency derivatives, which hedge our net invest­

ments in consolidated foreign subsidiaries and investments in 

foreign entities accounted for under the equity method, are 

included in Shareowners' Investment as foreign currency 

translation adjustments and reflected in income upon sale or 

substantial liquidation of the investment. Certain of these 

derivatives also include an interest element, which is recorded 

in Interest Expense over the lives of the contracts. Gains and 

losses from derivatives which hedge our short-term transac­

tions and cost Investments arc included in Other Income and 

Expense, Net, and discounts or premiums on these contracts 

are included in income over the lives of the contracts. Gains 

and losses from derivatives hedging identifiable foreign 

currency commitments are deferred and reflected as adjust­

ments to the related transactions. If the foreign currency 

commitment is no longer likely to occur, the gain or loss is 

recognized immediately in income. 

We have entered into basis swap agreements which protect a 

portion of our leveraged lease portfolio from the effects of 

increases in corporate tax rates. We account for our basis swap 

agreements using the fair value method of accounring. Under 

this method, these agreements are carried at foir value and 

included in Other Assets or Deferred Credits and Other 

Liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the 

unrealized gain or loss are included in Other Income and 

Expense, Net. 

Accrual Method 

Interest rate swap agreements and interest rate caps and floors 

that qualify as hedges arc accounted for under the accrual 

method. An instrument qualifies as a hedge if it effectively 

modifies and/or hedges the interest rate characteristics of the 

underlying fixed or variable interest rate debt. Under the 

accrual method, no amounts are recognized in our consolidat­

ed balance sheets related to the principal balances. The inter­

est differential to be paid or received, which is accrued as 

interest rates change, and premiums related to caps and floors 

are recognized as adjustments to Interest Expense over the 

lives of the agreements. These interest accruals are recorded in 

Current Assets and Current Liabilities in our consolidated 

balance sheets. If we terminate an agreement, the gain or loss 

is recorded as an adjustment to the basis of the underlying 

liability and amortized over the remaining original life of the 

agreement. If the underlying liability matures or is extin­

guished and the related derivative is not terminated, that 

derivative would no longer qualify for accrual accounting and 

would then be accounted for at fair value, with changes in 

that value included in income. 

Sale of Stock by Subsidiary 

Changes in our ownership percentage in a subsidiary caused 

by issuances of the subsidiary's stock are recognized in consol­

idation as adjustments to Contributed Capital. 

Income Taxes 

Bell Atlantic and its domestic subsidiaries file a consolidated 

federal income tax return. For periods prior to the merger, 

NYNEX filed its own consolidated federal income tax return. 

Our operating telephone subsidiaries use the deferral method 

of accoiuiting for investment tax credits earned prior to the 

repeal of investment tax credits by the Tax Reform Act of 

1986. We also defer certain transitional credits earned after 

the repeal. These credits are being amortized as a reduction to 

the Provision for Income Taxes over the estimated service lives 

of the related assets. 

Advertising Costs 

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

We account for stock-based employee compensation plans 

under Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, 

"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," and related 

interpretations. Effective January 1, 1996, we adopted the 

disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123. "Accounting for 

Stock-Based Compensation." 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements i-amsnued 

Note 2 L'ontimted 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 

issued SFAS No. 130, "Reporting Comprehensive Income." 

SFAS No, 130 establishes standards for the reporting and 

display of comprehensive income, requiring its components 

to be reported in a financial statement that is displayed with 

the same prominence as other financiai statements. We will 

adopt this standard in the first quarter of 1998. The adoption 

of SFAS No. 130 will have no impact on our consolidated 

results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. 

In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 

issued SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an 

Enterprise and Related Informarion." SFAS No. 131 estab­

lishes standards for reporting financial information about 

operating segments in annual financiai statements and 

requires reporting of selected information about operating 

segments in interim financial reports issued to shareowners. It 

also establishes standards for related disclosures about prod­

ucts and services, geographic areas, and major customers. 

Operating segments are defined as components of an enter­

prise about which separate financial information is available 

and evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision makers 

in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing perfor­

mance. Wc arc required to disclose this information for the 

first rime when we publish our 1998 annual report, but earli­

er adoption of the statement is permitted. We are in the 

process of evaluating the segment disclosures for purposes of 

reporting under SFAS No. 131. The adoption of SFAS No. 

131 will have no impact on our consolidated results of opera­

tions, financial condition or cash flows. 

Discontmuatton ot Regulatory Accounting Principles 

In August 1994, our operating telephone subsidiaries in 
Pennsylvania. New Jersey, Maryland, Delaware, District of 
Columbia, West Virginia and Virginia discontinued the use of 
regulatory accounting principles under SFAS No. 71. As a 
result, we recorded a noncash, extraordinary charge of 
$2,150.0 million, which is net of an income tax benefit of 
$1,498.4 million. 

In June 1995. our operating telephone subsidiaries in New 
York and New England also discontinued the use of regulato­
ry accounting principles under SFAS No. 71. For these 
subsidiaries, we recorded a noncash, extraordinary charge of 
$2,919.4 million, which is net of an income tax benefit of 
$1,617.6 million. 

The extraordinary charges consisted principally of adjust­

ments to telephone plant and equipment through an increase 

to accumulated depreciation of $2,306.9 million in 1995 and 

$2,128.9 miUion in 1994 to reflect the difference between 

recorded depreciation and the amount of depreciation that 

would have been recorded had the operating telephone 

subsidiaries not been subject to rate regulation. Investment 

tax credit amortization of $44.2 miUion in 1995 and S136.2 

milUon in 1994 was accelerated as a result of the reduction in 

asset lives of the associated telephone plant and equipment. 

We also eliminated nonplant regulatory assets and liabilities 

of $656.7 million in 1995 and $157.3 million in 1994, prin­

cipally related to deferred debt refinancing, vacation pay and 

pension costs, which were being amortized as they were recog­

nized in the ratemaking process. 

Change in Accounting Pnncipfe - Directory Pufahshing 

Effective January 1, 1996, we changed our method of 
accounting for directory publishing revenues and expenses 
from the amortized method to the point-of-publication 
method. Under the point-of-publication method, revenues 
and expenses are recognized when the directories are 
published rather than over the lives of the directories, as 
under the amortized method. We believe the point-of-publi­
cation method is preferable because it is the method generally 
followed by publishing companies. 

This accounting change resulted in a one-time, noncash 

increase in net income of $273.1 million (net of income tax 

of $179.0 million), or $.35 per share, which is reported as a 

cumulative effect ofa change in accounting principle at 

January 1, 1996. On an annual basis, the financial impact of 

applying this method in 1996 was not significant, and it 

would not have been significant had it been applied in 1995. 

5. Plant, Property and Equipment 

The following table displays the detaUs of plant, property and 

equipment which is stated at cost: 

.At December } l . 

Land 
Buildings 
Central office equipment 
Cable, wiring and conduit 
Other equipment 
Other 
Construction-in-progress 

Accumulated depreciation 
Total 

1997 

$ 405.7 
6,284.8 

29,167.2 
26,759.0 
12.323.4 

1,228.1 
1.269.0 

77,437.2 
(42,397.8) 

$ 35.039.4 

(Dollars in Millions) 

' $ 

• 

' 

' $ 

1996 

440.3 
6,284.4 

27,226.8 
25,780.1 
11,126.8 
3.131.8 
1.689.3 

75.679.5 
(39,544.7) 
36A34.8 

Plant, property and equipment at December 31, 1997 and 

1996 includes real estate property and equipment under oper­

ating leases, or held for lease, of $32.8 miUion and S365.4 

million, and accumulated depreciation of $I4.8 million and 

S101.0 million. 
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6. Investments in Unconsolidated Businesses 

Our investments in unconsolidated businesses are comprised of the following: 

At December 31 , 

\ Equity investees: 
PrimeCo Personal Communications, LP. 

I Cable & Wireless Communications PLC 
Telecom Corporation ofNew Zealand Limited 
Omnitel Pronto Italia S.p.A. 
Grupo lusacell, S.A. de C.V. 
FLAG Ltd. 
Other 

Total equity investees 
Cost investees 
Total 

vncrship 

50.00% 
18.50 
24.95 
17.45 

37.87 
various 

various 

1997 
Investment 

$ 919.9 
665.8 
417.7 
313.2 

236.6 
714.7 

3.267.9 
1,876.3 

$ 5,144.2 1 

Ownership 

50.00% 

(Dollars in Millions) 

1996 
Investment 

725.8 

24.82 
17.45 
41.90 
37.87 

various 

various 

689.2 
331.5 
333.1 
67.5 

794.1 
2,941.2 
1,981.0 

$ 4,922.2 

PrimeCo Personal Communications, L.P. 

PrimeCo Personal Communications, L.P. (PrimeCo) is a part­

nership between Bell Atiantic, AirTouch Communications 

and U S West Media Group which provides personal commu­

nications services (PCS) in 28 major cities across the United 

Stares. PrimeCo began offering services to customers in 

November 1996. Under the terms of the partnership agree­

ment, PrimeCo entered into a leveraged lease financing 

arrangement for certain equipment. This leveraged lease 

financing obligation has been guaranteed by the partners in 

the joint venture. Our share ofthis guarantee is approximate­

ly $151 million. In 1997, we invested approximately $426 

million in PrimeCo to fund its operations and the continued 

build-out of its PCS network. 

Cable & Wireless Communications PLC 

In the second quarter of 1997, we transferred our interests in 

cable television and telecommunications operations in the 

United Kingdom to Cable &C Wireless Communications PLC 

(CWC) in exchange for an 18.5% ownership interest in 

CWC. This transaction was accounted for as a nonmonetary 

exchange of similar productive assets and, as a result, no gain 

or loss was recorded. We account for our investment in CWC 

under the equity method because we have significant influ­

ence over CWC's operating and financial policies. Prior to the 

transfer, we included the accounts of these operations in our 

consolidated financial statements. 

An entity holding our United Kingdom operations completed 

an Initial Public Offering (IPO) of 305 million equity units in 

June 1995 for approximately $610 miUion. We recorded an 

Increase to Contributed Capital on the IPO of $155.2 million, 

net of deferred taxes of $109.0 million, in recognition of the 

net increase in our interests in the United Kingdom operations. 

: Telecom Corporation of New Zealand Limited 

i Telecom Corporation ofNew Zealand Limited (TCNZ) is 

that country's principal provider of telecommunicadons 

i services. At the date of acquisition of our interest in 1990, 

I goodwill was approximately $285 milUon. We are amortizing 

( this amount on a scraighc-line basis over a period of 40 years. 
j 

i During 1997, we sold portions of our stock investment to 

TCNZ in connection with its share repurchase plan, resulting 

in cash proceeds of approximately $153 mUlion. These transac­

tions reduced our investment and increased our ownership 

interest in TCNZ. Our investment in TCNZ was also reduced 

by approximately $100 million as of December 31, 1997 as a 

result of foreign currency translation losses. We recorded these 

losses as a component of Shareowners' Investment. 

In connection with our investment in TCNZ, in February 

1998 we issued approximately $2.5 billion in notes which 

may be exchangeable into shares of TCNZ stock. The notes 

have a maturity of five years, are noncaliable for a period of at 

least three years, and are not exchangeable by investors for an 

initial period of 18 months. Upon exchange by investors, we 

retain the option to settle in cash or by delivery of shares. 

Omnitel Pronto Italia S.p.A. 

Omnitel Pronto Italia S.p.A. (Omnitel) operates a cellular 

mobile telephone network in Italy. We account for this invest­

ment under the equity method becavise we have significant 

influence over Omnitcis operating and financial policies. 

Approximately $250 miUion of our investment represents 

goodwill, which is being amortized on a straight-line basis 

over a period of 25 years. 
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Grupo lusacell, S.A. de C.V. 
Grupo lusaceU, S.A. de C.V, (lusacell) is the second largest 

telecommunications company in Mexico. At acquisition, 

goodwill amounted co approximately $760 million, which is 

being amortized on a straight-Une basis over a period of 25 

years. In February 1997, we consummated a restructuring of 

our investment to permit us to assume control of the Board 

ofDirectors and management of lusacell. Under the terms of 

the restructuring, we exchanged certain Series B and D shares 

of lusacell stock for Series A shares, enabling us to elect a 

majority of the Board ofDirectors. This exchange of shares 

did not affect our economic ownership percentage of lusacell. 

We also paid a premium of $50.0 miUion to the principal 

shareowner. We also converted approximately $33 million of 

subordinated debt into Series A shares, thereby increasing 

our economic ownership from 41.9% to 42.1%, and we are 

obUgated until September 30, 1999 co provide lusaceU up to 

$150 million in subordinated convertible financing as 

lusacell may require from time to time. As a result of the 

restructuring, we changed the accounting for our lusacell 

investment from the equity method to full consolidation in 

the first quarter of 1997. 

FLAG l td . 
Fiberoptic Link Around the Globe Ltd. (FLAG) is an under­

sea fiberoptic cable system, providing digital communications 

links between Europe and Asia. We are the managing sponsor 

of FLAG and hold approximately a 38% equity interest in the 

venture and a 41% funding obligation. In 1997. we invested 

approximately $138 million in FLAG to fond the construc­

tion of its network. FLAG launched commercial service in the 

fourth quarter of 1997. 

FLAG has borrowed $615.1 miUion as of December 31. 1997 
under a limited recourse debt facility which provides for 
maximum available borrowings of $950.0 miUion. Under the 
terms of this facility, we and the other fonding shareholders of 
FLAG had entered into a contingent sponsor support agree­
ment which could require aggregate payments to the lenders 
of $500.0 miUion upon the occurrence of certain limited 
events of default by FLAG. Our share ofthis guarantee 
totaled $350.0 miUion at December 31, 1997, which included 
obligations we had assumed on behalf of other shareholders in 
return for a fee. 

In the first quarter of 1998. FLAG refinanced its existing debt 

through an $800.0 million credit facility. As a result ofthis 

refinancing, we are now released from our obUgations under 

the contingent sponsor support agreement. 

Other Equity Investees 
We also have global wireless investments in the Czech 

Republic, Slovakia and Greece. These investments arc in joint i 

ventures to build and operate cellular networks in these coun­

tries. We have an investment in a company in the Philippines 

which provides telecommunications services in certain regions 

of that country. Other investments include real estate partner­

ships, publishing joint ventures, and several other domestic 

and international joint ventures. 

In 1997, we sold our ownership interests in several businesses 

tesulting in pre-tax gains of approximately $54 miUion for 

Infostrada. an Italian wireline joint venture; $42 million for 

Sky Network Television Limited ofNew Zealand; and $46 

million for Bell Communications Research, Inc, (Bellcore). 

Included in Operating Expenses are amounts billed by 

Bellcore. Such expenses were $191.2 million in 1997. $182.0 

miUion in 1996 and $197.5 miUion in 1995 for various 

network planning, engineering and software development 

ptojccts. 

Dividends received from equity investees amounted to $132.1 

miUion in 1997. $134.8 miUion in 1996 and $115.6 miUion 

in 1995. 

Cost Investees 
In 1993, wc invested $1,2 billion in Viacom Inc. (Viacom) for 

24 miUion shares of Viacom Series B Cumulative Preferred 

Stock, carrying an annual dividend of 5%. The stock is 

convertible into shares of Viacom Class B nonvoting common 

stock at a price of $70 per share. For additional information 

on our investment in Viacom, see Note 1 \ . 

Other cost investments consist princip"ally of a wireless invest­

ment in Indonesia and a telecommunications investment in 

Thailand. 

Dividends received from cost investees amounted to $60.0 

million in 1997, S60.0 miUion in 1996 and $63.4 mUlion 

in 1995. 
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Leasing Arrangements 7-1 
As Lessor 

We are the lessor in leveraged and direct financing lease agree­

ments under which commercial aircraft, rail equipment, 

industrial equipment, power generating facilities, real estate, 

and telecommunications and other equipment are leased for 

remaining terms of 2 to 39 years. Minimum lease payments 

receivable represent unpaid rentals, less principal and interest 

on third-party nonrecourse debt relating to leveraged lease 

transactions. Since we have no general UabUity for this debt, 

the related principal and interest have been offset against the 

minimum lease payments receivable. Minimum lease 

payments receivable are subordinate to the debt and the debt 

holders have a security interest in the leased equipment. 

Finance lease receivables, which are included in Current Assets - Other and Noncurrent Assets - Other Assets in our consolidated 

balance sheets, are comprised of the following: 

Ac December 31, 

Minimum lease payments receivable 
Estimated residual value 
Unearned income 

Allowance for doubtfol accounts 
Finance lease receivables, net 
Current 
Noncurrent 

Leveraged 

Leases 

$ 2.674.6 
1.969,7 

(1,874.7) 
$ 2.769.6 

Direct 

Finance 

Leases 

$ 223.5 
36.2 

(70.7) 
S 189.0 

1997 

TovA 

$2,898.1 
2.005.9 

(1,945.4) 
2,958.6 

(24.9) 
$ 2,933.7 
$ 39.2 
$2,894.5 

Leveraged 
Leases 

$ 2,436.9 
1.925.6 

(1.806.1) 
$2,556.4 

(Dol 

Direct 

Finance 

Leases 

$ 268.6 
36,3 

(87.2) 
$ 217,7 

:ars in Millions) 

1996 

Tocal 

$2,705.5 
1,961.9 

(1,893.3) 
2.774.1 

(23.8) 
$ 2,750.3 
$ 36.9 
$2,713.4 

Accumulated deferred taxes arising firom leveraged leases, which are included in Deferred Income Taxes, amounted to $2,233.8 

miUion at December 31, 1997 and $1,976.4 million at December 31, 1996. 

The following table is a summary of the components of 

income from leveraged leases: 

Years Ended December 31 1 9 9 7 

Pre-tax lease income 
Income tax expense 
Investment tax credits 

97.4 
30.7 

2.9 

[Dollars in Millions) 

1996 1995 

87.5 
22.1 

3.5 

91.8 
29.3 

3.9 

This table displays the future minimum lease payments to be 

received from noncancelable leases, net of nonrecourse loan 

pzyments related to leveraged and direct financing leases in 

excess of debt service requirements, for the periods shown at 

December 31, 1997: 

Vears 

(Dollars in Millions) 

Cjpir.il C^ptTLiciiu: 

Lenses Lcnsc-s 

1998 

1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
Thereafter 
Total 

100.3 
74.7 
63.5 
66.3 
93.7 

499.6 

$ 3.5 
3.4 
3.2 
2.9 
3.1 

.9 

2,898.1 $ 17.0 
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As Lessee 

We lease certain facilities and equipment for use in our opera­

tions under both capital and operating leases. Tocal rent 

expense under operating leases amounted to $572,6 milUon in 

1997, $531.9 million in 1996 and $531.3 million in 1995. In 

1997, 1996 and 1995, we incurred initial capital lease obliga­

tions of $11.4 million, $16.4 million and $14.3 million. 

Capital lease amounts included in plant, property and equip­

ment are as follows: 

Ac December 31, 

Capital leases 
Accumulated amortization 
Total 

$ 

$ 

1997 

307.2 
(163.5) 
143.7 

(Dollars in .Millions) 

1996 

$ 

$ 

304.7 
(147.8) 
156.9 

This table displays the aggregate minimum rental commit­

ments under noncancelable leases for the periods shown at 

December 31, 1997: 

Years 

(Dollars in Millions) 

Capital Oper.uing 

Leases Leases 

1998 $ 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
Thereafter 
Total minimum rental 

commitments 
Less interest and 

executory costs 
Present value of minimum 

lease payments 
Less current installments 
Long-term obligation 

at December 31, 1997 $ 

44.0 $ 294.3 
35.2 
44.9 
31.5 
25.6 

492.5 

673.7 3 

503.4 

170.3 
20.6 

149.7 

262.9 
232.6 
197.0 
179.9 

1.522.6 

! 2,689.3 

As of December 31, 1997, the total minimum sublease rentals 

j to be received in the fiiture under noncancelable operating 

; subleases was $273.6 million. 

Commitments and Contingencies 

In connection with certain incentive plan commitments with 
state regulatory commissions, we have deferred revenues 
which will be recognized as the commitments are met or 
obligations are satisfied under che plans. In addition, several 
state and federal regulatory proceedings may require our oper­
ating telephone subsidiaries to refund a portion of the 
revenues collected in che current and prior periods. There arc 
also various legal actions pending to which we are a party. 
We have established reserves for specific UabiUties in connec­
tion with r<^latory and legal matters which we currently 
deem to be probable and estimable. 

We do not expect that the ultimate resolution of pending 
regulatory and legal matters in fiiture periods will have a 
material effect on our financial condition, but it could have a 
material effect on results of operations. 

9-ESIHHHHHiiHHHHIHBHiiH 
V>ebt Maturing Within Ons Year 

The following table displays the details of debt maturing 

within one year: 

Ac December 31 1997 
(Dollars in Millions) 

1996 

Notes payable: 
Commercial paper 
Bank loans 

Long-term debt maturing 
within one year 

Total debt maturing 
within one year 

Weigh ted-average interest 
rates for notes payable 
outstanding at year-end 

$ 5,067.7 
509.7 

765.4 

6,342.8 

$ 1.611.0 
480.8 

792.4 

2.884.2 

5.9% 5.7% 

Capital expenditures, primarily construction of telephone 
plant, arc partially financed, pending long-term financing, 
through bank loans and the issuance of commercial paper 
payable within 12 months. 

At December31, 1997, we had in excess of $4.8 billion of 
unused bank lines of credit. The availability of these lines, for 
which there are no formal compensating balances, is at the 
discretion of each bank. Certain of these lines of credit 
contain requirements for the payment of commitment fees. 
SubstantiaUy all of the assets of lusacell, totaUng approximate­
ly $500 million at December 31, 1997, are subject to lien 
under a credit facility with certain bank lenders. 
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Long-Term Debt 

This table sbows our outstanding long-term debt obligations: 

At December 31. 

Telephone subsidiaries' debentures 

Notes payable 
Refiinding mortgage bonds 
Mortgage and installment notes 
Commercial paper and bank loans 
Employee stock ownership plan loans: 

Bell Adantic Corporation senior notes 
NYNEX Corporation debentures 

Capital lease obligations -
average rate 10.8% and 10.7% 

Unamortized discount and premium, net 
Total long-term debt, including 

current maturities 
Less maturing within one year 

Total long-term debt 

Interest Rates 

4.375% - 7.00% 
7.125%- 7.75% 

7.85%-9.375% 

5.05%-12.42% 
4 . 2 5 % - 7.75% 

10.50%-11.00% 

8.17% 
9.55% 

Maturities 

1998-
2002-
2010-

1998-
1998-
1998-

-2033 
-2033 
-2031 

-2012 
-2011 
-2003 

2000 
2010 

1997 

$ 3,867.0 
2,705.0 
2,179.0 
8,751.0 
3,516.6 

985.0 
22.5 

-

313.4 
327.3 

170.3 
(55.5) 

14.030.6 
765.4 

$ 13,265.2 

The telephone subsidiaries* debentures outstanding at 

December 31, 1997 include $2,317.0 million that are 

callable. The call prices range fi-om 103.15% to 100.00% of 

fiice value, depending upon the remaining term to maturity of 

the issue. All of our refiinding mortg^c bonds, totaling 

$985.0 million are also callable as of December 31, 1997. In 

addition, our long-term debt includes $735.0 milUon that 

will, become redeemable for limited periods at the option of 

the holders. Ofthis amount, $385.0 million becomes 

redeemable in 1999 and $175.0 million in 2002. One deben­

ture totaling $175.0 million becomes redeemable in 2000 and 

again in 2002. The redemprion prices wiU be 100.0% of face 

value plus accrued interest. 

Maturities of long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 

1997, excluding capital lease obligations and unamortized 

discount and premium, are $744.8 miUion in 1998, $1,287.2 

miUion in 1999, $892.0 million in 2000. $372.7 million in 

2001, $840.0 million in 2002 and $9,779.1 million there­

after. These amounts include the redeemable debt at the earii-

est possible redemption dates. 

Our medium-term notes are issued by Bell Atlantic Financial 

Services, Inc. (FSI), a wholly owned subsidiary. FSI debt secu­

rities (aggregating $503-6 million at December 31, 1997) have 

the benefit of a Support Agreement dated October 1, 1992 

becween BeU Adantic and FSI under which Bell Atlantic wiU 

make payments of interest, premium (if any) and principal on 

the FSI debt should FSI fail to pay. The holders of FSI debt do 

not have recourse to the stock or assets of our operating tele­

phone subsidiaries, however, they have recourse to dividends 

paid to Bell Atiantic by any of our consolidated subsidiaries as 

(Dollars in Millions) 

1996 

$ 3,867.0 
2,705.0 
2,179.0 
8.751.0 
3.564.7 
1,045.0 

59.8 
1,773.7 

412.2 
348.6 

188.4 

(65.0) 

16,078.4 
792.4 

$ 15,286.0 

weU as assets not covered by the exclusion. The carrying value 

of the available assets reflected in our consolidated financial 

statements was approximately $13-7 biUion at December 31, 

1997. A similar Support Agreement dated February 1, 1998 

between Bell Atiantic and FSI also provides guarantees for the 

payment of interest, premium (if any), principal and the cash 

value of exchange property on approximately $2,5 billion of 

exchangeable notes that we issued in connection with our 

investment in TCNZ (see Note 6). The holders of these notes 

also have recourse to the $13.7 billion of assets previously 

mentioned. Substantially all of the assets of New York 

Telephone Company, totaling approximately $12.6 billion at 

December 31, 1997, are subject to lien under New York 

Telephone Company's refunding mortgage bond indenture. 

At December 31, 1996. we had a $2.0 billion unsecured 

revolving credit facility under which we were permitted to use 

the proceeds for various corporate purposes, including support 

of outstanding commercial paper and bank loans. Since we 

had both the intent and the ability to refinance a portion of 

our commercial paper and bank loans on a long-term basis 

using the credit facility, $1,773.7 miUion of outstanding 

commercial paper and bank loans were included in Long-

Term Debt at December 31, 1996. This revolving credit facili­

ty was canceled in 1997. As a result, all commercial paper was 

classified as Debt Maturing Within One Year in 1997. 

We recorded extraordinary charges associated with the early 

extinguishment of debentures. These charges reduced net 

income by $3-5 miUion (net of an income tax benefit of S2.5 

miUion) in 1995. On January 13, 1998. New York Telephone 

Company issued $250.0 million of 6.125% debentures due on 
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January 15. 2010. The proceeds ofthis issuance were used in 

February 1998 to redeem $200.0 million of refiinding mort­

gage bonds due in 2006 and to reduce short-rerm debt levels. 

In connection with this redemption, we wiU record an extraor­

dinary charge of $1.5 million in the first quarter of 1998. 

Information on our Employee Stock Ownership Plan Loans is 

provided in Note 16. 

10. Financial instruments 

Derivatives 

We limit our use of derivatives to managing risk that could 

negatively impact our financing and operating flexibility, 

making cash flows more stable over the long run and achiev­

ing savings over other means of financing. Our risk manage­

ment strategy is designed to protect against adverse changes in 

foreign exchange rates, interest rates and corporate tax rates, 

and to otherwise facilitate our financing strategies. We use 

several types of derivatives in managing these risks, including 

foreign currency forwards and options, interest rate swap 

agreements, interest rate caps and floors, and basis swap 

agreements. Derivative agreements arc linked to specific 

liabUities or assets and hedge the related economic exposures. 

We do not hold derivatives for trading purposes. In 1997 and 

1996, we recognized income of $17.3 million and $12.7 

miUion before taxes in our statements of income related to all 

of our risk manzgemem activities. 

interest Rate Risk Management 

The following table provides additional information about 
our interest rate swap agreements, interest rate caps and 
floors, and basis swap agreements. Certain of our interest rate 
swap agreements {included below as "Foreign 
Currency/Interest Rate Swaps") also contain a foreign 
exchange component which has been described in the 
"Foreign Exchange Risk Management" section below. We use 
these interest rate swap agreements to hedge the value of 
certain international investments. The agreements generally 
require us to receive payments based on fixed interest rates 
and make payments based on variable interest rates. The 
structured note swap agreements convert several structured 
medium-term notes to conventional fixed rate liabilities while 
reducing financing costs. The effective fixed interest rates on 
these notes averaged 6.1% and 6,2% at December 31, 1997 
and 1996. Other interest rate swap agreements, which some­
times incorporate options, and interest rate caps and floors are 
all used to adjust the interest rare profile of our debt portfolio 
and allow us to achieve a targeted mix of floating and fixed 
rate debt. The basis swap agreements hedge a portion of our 
leveraged lease portfolio against adverse changes in corporate 
tax rates. The agreements require us to receive payments based 
on an interest rate index (LIBOR-based) and make payments 
based on a tax-exempt marker index (J.J.Kenney). We account 

for these basis swap ^reements at fair value and recognized 
income of $4.2 miUion and $20.2 miUion in 1997 and 1996 
related to mark-to-market adjustments. 

The notional amounts shown below are used to calculate inter­

est payments to be exchanged. These amounts are not actually 

paid or received, nor are they a measure of our potential gains 

or losses from market risks. They do not represent our exposure 

in the event of nonperformance by a counterparty or our fiiture 

cash requirements. Our financial instruments are grouped 

below based on the nature of the hedging activiiy. 

Ac December 31, 

Notional 
Amount 

(Dollars in Millions] 

Weiahced-Averaae Race 
Marunries Receive Pav 

Interest Rate Swap Agreements: 

Foreign Currency/Interest Rate Swaps: 

1997 $ 375.4 1998-2002 

1996 928.4 1997-2002 

Other Interest Rate Swaps; 

Pay fixed 

4.5^ 
3.3 

6.2% 

5.9 

1997 
1996 
Pay variable 
1997 
1996 

S 260.0 
221.2 

$ 783.7 
530.7 

1999-2005 
1997-2005 

1999-2006 
1997-2004 

5.7% 
5.7 

6.6% 
6.5 

5.9% 
6.0 

6.1% 
6.4 

Structured Note Swap Agreements: 

1997 $ 6Q.0 1999 
1996 105.0 1997-2004 

Interest Rata Cap/Floor Agreements: 

1997 $ 262.0 1999-2001 
1996 140.0 1999-2001 

Basis Swap Agreements: 

1997 $ l.OOl.O 2003-2004 
1996 1,001.0 2003-2004 

Foreign Exchange Risk Management 

Our foreign exchange risk management includes the use of 
foreign currency forward contracts, options and foreign 
currency swaps. Forward contracts and options call for the 
sale or purchase, or the option to sell or purchase, certain 
foreign currencies on a specified future date. These contracts 
are typically used to hedge short-term foreign currency trans­
actions and commitments. The total notional amounts of our 
foreign currency forward contracts and option contracts were 
S14.5 miUion and $332.1 million at December 31. 1997 and 
1996, all ofwhich had maturities of six months or less. 
Certain of the interest rate swap agreements noted above 
contain both a foreign currency and an interest rate compo­
nent. The agreements require the exchange of payments based 
on specified interest rates in addition ro the exchange of 
currencies at the maturity of the contract. The required 
payments for both components are based on the notional 
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amounts of the contracts which have been included in the 

table above. Foreign currency swaps, with a notional value of 

$60.0 million and a scheduled maturity of 2003, were 

outstanding at December 31. 1996. These swaps also 

contained both a foreign currency and an interest rate compo­

nent. These foreign currency swaps, which were terminated in 

1997, required quarterly payments in U.S. dollars and 

receipts in British pounds. 

Our net equity position in unconsolidated foreign businesses 

as reported in our consolidated balance sheets totaled 

$1,784.2 mUlion and $1.611.3 million at December 31. 1997 

and 1996. Our most significant investments at December 31, 

1997 had operations in New Zealand, the United Kingdom, 

Italy and Bermuda. We have not hedged our accounting 

translation exposure to foreign currency fluctuations relative 

to these investments except for our United Kingdom invest­

ment, which is partially hedged. Our equity income is subject 

to exchange rate fluctuations when our equity investee has 

balances denominated in a currency other than the investees' 

functional currency. We recognized $(30.1) miUion, $6.8 

million and $(29.0) million related to such fluctuations in 

Income (Loss) From Unconsolidated Businesses for the years 

ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995. We continually 

monitor the relationship between gains and losses recognized 

on all of our foreign currency contracts and on the underlying 

transactions being hedged to mitigate market risk. 

Concentrations of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments that subject us to concentrations of 

credit risk consist primarily of temporary cash investments, 

short-term investments, trade receivables, certain notes receiv­

able, preferred stock, and derivative contracts. Our policy is 

to place our temporary cash investments with major financiai 

institutions. Counterparties to our derivative contracts are 

also major financial institutions and organized exchanges. The 

financial institutions have all been accorded high ratings by 

primary rating agencies. We limit the dollar amount of 

contracts entered into with any one financial institution and 

monitor our counterparties' credit ratings. We generally do 

not give or receive collateral on swap agreements due ro our 

credit rating and those of our counterparties. While we may 

be exposed to credit losses due to the nonperformance of our 

counterparties, we consider the risk remote and do not expect 

the settlement of these transactions to have a material effect 

on our results of operations or financial condition. 

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables 

other than those from AT&T are limited due to the large 

number of customers. For the years ended December 31, 

1997, 1996 and 1995, revenues generated from services 

provided to AT&T (primarily network access and billing and 

collection) were $2,632.3 million, $2,570.3 million and 

$2,791.3 miUion. 

Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

The tables below provide additional information about our 

material financial instruments: 

Financial Instrumenc Valuation Method 

Cash and cash equivalents 
and short-term investments 

Debt (excluding capital leases) 

Cost investments in 
unconsolidated businesses 
and notes receivable 

Interest race swap and other 
agreements 

Carrying amounts 

Market quotes For similar terms 
and maturities or future cash 
flows discounted at current tates 

Future cash flows discounred 
at current rates, market 
quotes for similar instruments or 
other valuation models 

Gains or losses to terminate 
^reemcnts or amounts paid 
to replicate agreements at 
current rates 

Foreign currency forward 
and option contracts 

.•\t Dca-mber 31, 

Carrying 

Amount 

Debt $ 19,437.7 
Cost investments 

in unconsolidated 
business^ 

Notes receivable, net 
Interest rate swap and 

other agreements: 
Assets 
LiabiUties 

Foreign currency 
forward and 
option contracts:' 

Assets 
Liabilities 

1.693.0 
32.9 

26.3 
24,8 

.2 

.2 

iMarket q uotes or gains or losses 
to terminate agreements 

1997 

Fair 

V,iiue 

$ 19,988.9 

1,464.6 
33.2 

31.8 
31.8 

-
.2 

(Dollars in .Vlilliuns) 

Carrying 

Amount 

1996 

Fair 

Value 

$17,981.8 $18,150.7 

1.785.3 
93.6 

11.8 
39.5 

19.9 
2.3 

1.968.5 
93.8 

23.0 
53.3 

19.9 
2.3 

* No position in any individual foreign currency exceeded S.2 
million at December 31, 1997 and $19.8 million at December 31. 
1996. The carrying amounts shown for derivatives include 
deferred gains and losses. 

Our investment in Viacom, which is included in "Cost invest­

ments in unconsolidated businesses" in the tabic above, is in a 

preferred stock which is not publicly traded, and therefore the 

fair value indicated above includes amounts calculated using 

certain theoretical convertible valuation models. These 

models, however, do not ascribe or attribute any value to any 

strategic aspect of the investment. We were unable to deter­

mine the fait value of other investments, with carrying values 

of $183.3 million and $195.7 million at December 31. 1997 

and 1996, without incurring excessive costs. 
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11 . Minority Interest 

At Dt:ci:mbcr 31 

(Dollars in Millions) 

1997 I 1995 

Portion subject to | 
redemption requirements $ 618.3 $ 1,504.4 

Portion nonredeemable 292.9 '• 509.8 

s 911.2 '' $ 2.014.2 

United Kingdom Operations 

; As a result of the transfer of our interests in cable television 

and telecommunications operations in the United Kingdom 

1 to CWC in the secor\d quarter of 1997, we now account for 

i this investment under the equity method (see Note 6). Prior 

to this transaction, wc included the accounts of these opera-

; tions in our consolidated financial statements. The change in 

'•• Minority Interest from 1996 to 1997 is principally due to 

: this transaction. 

I Viacom Monetization Transaction 

, In connection with our investment in Viacom preferred stock 
(see Note 6), we entered into nonrecourse contracts whereby 
we raised capital based on the value of our investment in 
Viacom ("monetized" our investment) and realized proceeds 
of $100.0 million in 1995 and $500.0 million in 1996. In 
order to accomplish this transaction, a fully consolidated 
subsidiary was created to manage and protect certain assets for 
sale or distribution at a later date. In order to induce an 
outside party to contnbute cash in exchange for an interest in 
this subsidiary, we contributed certain financial assets as 
collateral. These assets included 12 million shares of Viacom 
preferred stock with a book value of $600.0 million and 11.2 
miUion shares of our common stock. The outside party's 
contribution included $600.0 million in cash for an interest 
in the subsidiary which is reflected in Minority Interest in our 
consolidated balance sheets. The common stock held by the 
subsidiary is reflected as an issuance of common shares in 
1995 and 1996 in our consolidated statement of changes in 
shareowners' investment and as Treasury Stock in our consoli­
dated balance sheets. 

The term of the monetization transaction is five years (ending 
December 31, 2000) at which time the outside party's interest 
in the subsidiary will be redeemed through the liquidation of 
the subsidiary's assets. We may, upon meeting certain funding 
requirements, elect to purchase the outside party's interest 
or terminate the transaction and cause the liquidation of all 
the assets. 

Absent certain defaults or other defined events, only we have 
the option to unwind and liquidate the existing structure. 
The outside party has certain consent rights that could, 
under certain circumstances, limit our rights to acquire, sell, 
refinance or distribute the assets of our subsidiary or affect 

certain other fundamental changes in situations other than in 
the ordinary course of business. Howt-v^r, such rights are not 
expected to affect the management an*l control of these 
assets. In addition, absent certain deljtdts or other events, we 
have the right to refinance the transatiion, purchase the 
outside party's interest and thereafter avquire, sell, refinance 
or distribute any remaining assets. 

The outside party has certain rights to >rnsent to or prohibit 

certain actions by our subsidiary, incluilsng changes in the 

basic structure, operations or assets. Hn^vever, the outside 

party is not involved in managing the assets and only has 

recourse (absent certain defaults) for income or return of capi­

tal derived from the assets. The outsidr party does not have 

redemption rights but can cause liquiiUtion upon the occur­

rence of a breach by us or our subsidiai v of our undertakings, 

or the occurrence of certain other defuicd events. 

Other Minority Interests 

Minority interest for 1997 and 1996 Jî :s included the minor­
ity interests in certain partnerships C(.i.-..-;idated by BeU 
Atlantic Mobile. The minority partnn '̂ ; nterest in lusaceU is 
reflected in 1997 as a result of consoU.lAting our lusaceU 
investment in 1997 (see Note 6). 

12. Preferred Stock of Subsidiary 

Our subsidiary BeU Atlantic New Zc^U-.d Holdings, Inc. 
(BANZHI) has the authority to issue ^. jOO.OOO shares of 
Serial Preferred Stock, BANZHI ha'̂  i^i^cd three series of 
preferred stock. BANZHI and anothrr iabsidiary indirectly 
own our investment in Telecom Corp.'ration ofNew 
Zealand Limited. 

In 1994, BANZHI issued 850,000 sl..ir 
Stock at $ 100 per share with an anna A 
pet share. In 1995, 600,000 shares oi Ŝ  
were issued at $100 per share with an i-
$3.80 per share. At December 31, Vrt^ 
million) of Series B Preferred Stock wm; 
owned subsidiary. Both series are suli; 
redemption on May 1, 2004 at a redr 
$100, together with any accrued and M-

In 1997, 650,000 shares of Series C \ i 
Stock were issued at $100 per share A 
these shares had an initial annual divi.i 

ti of Series A Preferred 
Zi'vidcnd rate of $7.08 
ries B Preferred Stock 
nual dividend rate of 

. 95,000 shares ($9.5 
; held by a wholly 
- to mandatory 
r-tion price per share of 
paid dividends. 

-,ableTerm Preferred 
December 31, 1997, 

;.-d rate of 4.40%. 



I 1 3 . Shareowners' Investment 

Our certificate oflncorporation provides authority for the 

issuance of up to 250 million shares of Series Preferred Stock, 

$.10 par value, in one or more scries, with such designations, 

preferences, tights, qualifications, limitations and restrictions 

as the Board of Directors may determine. 

We are authorized to issue up to 2.25 biUion shares of 

common stock. 

On January 23. 1996, the Board of Directors adopted a reso­

lution ordering the redemption of all rights granted under our 

Shareholder Rights Plan, approved by the Board in 1989-

Shareholders of record as of April 10, 1996 were paid the 

redemption price of $.01 per Right ($.005 per share as a 

result ofa two-for-one stock split declared on March 16, 

1990) on May 1, 1996. 

A portion of NYNEXs 1995 dividends was declared from 

Contributed Capital. 

During 1995, wc issued 92,898 shares of common scock to 

complete the terms of an acquisition ofa cellular telephone 

system in 1992. Prior to delivery, these shares were carried in 

our consolidated balance sheets as Common Stock Issuable. 

14. I Earnings per Share 

Basic earnings per common share are based on the weighted-
average number of shares outstanding during the year. 
DUuted earnings per common share include the dilutive effect 
of shares issuable under our stock-based compensation plans, 
which represent the only potential dilutive common shares. 

The number of shares included in the diluted earnings per 

share computation for potential common shares issuable 

under stock-based compensation plans was 9.6 million in 

1997, 6.8 miUion in 1996 and 3.9 million in 1995. 

Stock options to purchase 0.1 million shares and 14.9 million 
shares of common stock were outstanding at December 31, 
1997 and 1996, which were not included in the computation 
of diluted earnings per share because the options' exercise 
price was greater than the average market price of the 
common shares. The number of antidilutivc stock options 
outstanding at December 31, 1995 was not material. 

15, Stock incentive Plans 

We have stock-based compensation plans that include fixed 

stock option and performance-based share plans. We apply 

APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in account­

ing for our plans. We have adopted the disclosure-only provi­

sions of SFAS No. 123. We recognize no compensation 

expense for our fixed stock option plans. Compensation 

expense charged to income for our performance-based share 

plans was $23.4 million in 1997, $10.6 million in 1996 and 

$8.7 million in 1995, If we had elected ro recognize compen­

sation expense based on the fair value at the grant dates for 

1995 and subsequent fixed and perforrnance-based plan 

awards consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123, net 

income and earnings per share would have been changed to 

the pro forma amounts indicated below: 

(Dollars in Millions. Except Pet Share Amounts) 

• 

"ic.u^ I:iKi..-ti I Kwir.iicr .»I 1997 1996 

Net income (loss) 

Basic earnings (loss) per share 

Diluted earnings (loss) per share 

These results may not be representative of the effects on pro forma net income for future years. 

1995 

As reported 
Pro forma 

As reported 
Pro forma 

As reported 
Pro forma 

$ 

$ 

$ 

" 
2,454.9 
2,393.6 

3.16 
3.08 

3.13 
3.05 

$ 

$ 

$ 

3.402.0 
3,355.8 

4.40 
4.34 

4.36 
4.30 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(96.8) 
(117.8) 

(.13) 
(.15) 

(.13) 
(.15) 
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Note 15 continued 

We determined the pro forma amounts using the Black-

Scholes option-pricing model based on the following 

weighted-average assumptions: 

1997 1996 1995 

4.86% i 
14.87% : 
6.35% ; 

5 ^ 

4.72% 
15.16% 
5.42% 

5 

5.75% 
15.62% 
7.61% 

5 

Dividend yield 
Expected volatility 
Risk-free interest rate 
Expected lives (in years) 

i The weighted-average value of options granted was $8.60 per 

I option during 1997. $5.92 per option during 1996 and $5.82 

I per option during 1995. 
I 
I The NYNEX stock options outstanding and exercisable at the 
; date of the merger were converted to BeU Adantic stock 
] options. The NYNEX opnon activity and share prices have 
i been restated, for all years presented, to Bell Atlantic shares 

using the exchange ratio of 0.768 BeU Atlantic common stock 
to one share of NYNEX common stock. Our stock incentive 
plans are described below: 

Pixed Stock Option Plans 

We have fixed stock option plans for key management 

• employees under which options to purchase BeU Atlantic 

common stock are granted at a price equal to the market price 

. of the stock at the date of grant. 

Under the 1985 Incentive Stock Option Plan (ISO Plan), 
'• key employees may be granted incentive and/or nonqualified 
! Stock options to purchase shares of common stock and 
; Certain key employees may receive reload options upon 
I tendering shares of common stock to exercise options. In 
I 1994, we adopted the Options Plus Plan. Under this plan, 

we granted nonqualified stock options to approximately 800 
managers below the rank of officer in place ofa portion of 
each such manager's annual cash bonus in 1994 and 1995. 
The Options Plus Plan was then discontinued. The Stock 
Compensation Plan for Outside Directors entitles each 

: outside director co receive up co 2,500 stock options per year. 
Options are exercisable after three years or less and the maxi­
mum term is ten years. 

Fixed stock option plans covering key management employees 
of the former NYNEX companies include the 1990 and the 
1995 Stock Option Plans. The 1990 Stock Option Plan, which 
expired on Decernber 31, 1994, permitted the grant of options 
through December 1994 to purchase shares of common stock. 
In January 1995, NYNEX established the 1995 Stock Option 
Plan which permits the grant of options no later than 
December 31. 1999 to purchase shares of common stock. 
Options under the 1995 Stock Option Plan are exercisable after 
three years or less and the maximum term is ten years. 

In 1992, NYNEX established stock option plans for associates 
and for management employees other than those eligible to 
participate in the other stock option plans. These employees 
were granted options, with the number of options granted 
varying according to employee level, to purchase a fixed 
number of shares of common stock at the market price of the 
stock on the grant date. Options under this plan are exercis­
able after two years or less and the maximum term is ten years. 

This table is a summary of the status of the fixed stock 
option plans: 

Outstanding, 
December 31. 1994 

Granted 
Exercised 
Canceled/forfeited 

Outstanding, 
December 31, 1995 

Granted 
Exercised 
Canceled/forfeited 

Outstanding, 
December 31. 1996 

Granted 
Exercised 
Canceled/forfeited 

Outstanding, 
December 31, 1997 

Options exercisable. 
December 31: 

1995 
1996 
1997 

Stock Options 

32.812,229 
6,233,123 

(4,065,511) 
(621,879) 

34,357,962 
15,933,184 
(4,444,703) 

(549,944) 

45,296,499 
7,835,105 

(13,119,045) 
(442,592) 

39,569,967 

22,643,942 
28,241.432 
31,825,285 

Wcightcd-

Avcragc 

Exi.TciMj Pricu 

5 44.79 
49.70 
48.59 
51.51 

49.86 
66.55 
49.30 
63.01 

55.85 
66.19 
52.79 
58.78 

58.56 

49.68 
55.35 
56.53 

• 

• 
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Note 15 continued 

The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options outstanding as of December 31, 1997: 

Scock Options Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable 

Range of 
Exercise Prices 

$ 30.00-39.99 
40.00-49.99 
50.00-59.99 
60.00-69.99 
70.00-79.99 
80.00-89.99 
90.00-99.99 

Total 

Shares 

19.708 
6,636,342 

12,282.991 
19,608.830 

862,876 
135,113 
24.107 

39,569,967 

Weighced-Average 
Remaining 

Contractual Life 
Weigh ted-Average 

Exercise Price 

.7 years $ 35-48 
4.6 
6.5 
8.4 
9.6 
9.8 

10.0 
7.2 

46.20 
51.98 
65.92 
75.55 
84.03 
90.45 
58.56 

Shares 

19.708 
6.636,342 

11.755,114 
13,350,627 

63.494 

31,825,285 

Weigh ted-Average 
Exercise Price 

$ 35.48 
46,20 
51.88 
65.71 
73.27 

56.53 

1 

Performance-Based Share Plans 

Our performance-based share plans provide for the granting 
of awards to certain key employees, including employees of 
the former NYNEX companies in the form of BeU Atlantic 
common stock. Employees receive the distribution of shares 
or cash at the end of the applicable performance measurement 
period or the employees elect to defer the distribution of the 
awards for one or more years. Awards are based on the total 
return of Bell Adantic common stock in comparison to the 
total return on the stock of a number of other telecommuni­
cations companies and other strategic performance indicators. 
Authority to make new grants expired in December 1994. 
Final awards were credited to pre-merger employees of Bell 
Atlantic in January 1996 and to employees of the former 
NYNEX companies in March 1994. 

We also have deferred compensation plans that allow certain 

employees and members of the Board of Directors to defer all 

or a portion of their compensation. Some of these plans 

provide for returns based on the performance of, and eventual 

settlement in, Bell Atlantic common stock. Compensation 

expense for all of these plans is recorded based on the fair 

market value of the shares as they are credited to participants' 

accounts. 

Effective January I, 1998, the Income Deferral Plan replaces 

all performance-based share plans, including the deferred 

compensation plans, and expands the award distribution 

options for these employees. 

This table is a summary of the status of the share portion of 

our performance-based share plans: 

Sharirs 

Outstanding, 
December 31. 1994 

Additional shares credited 
Shares distributed 
Canceled/for fei ted 

Outstanding, 
December 31, 1995 

Additional shares credited 
Shares distributed 
Canceled/forfeited 

Outstanding, 
December 31, 1996 

Additional shares credited 
Shares distributed 
Canceled/forfeited 

Outstanding, 
December 31, 1997 

1,094.165 
87,387 

(193,499) 
(21.634) 

966,419 
60.699 

(170.917) 
(230,058) 

626,143 
81,890 

(105.042) 
(53.146) 

549.845 

A total of 75,878,886 shares may be distributed under the fixed 

stock option plans and the performance-based share plans. As 

ofDecember31, 1997 and 1996, a total of 20,406,827 and 

21,915,417 shares of common stock were avaUable for the 

granting of stock options under the fixed stock option plans 

and for distributions of shares under the performance-based 

share plans. 

In addition to plans described above, lusacell maintains a 

separate stock option plan for its key employees in which it 

awards options to acquire lusacell common stock. The effect 

ofthis plan on our consolidated results of operations was 

not significant. 
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16. Employee Benefits 

In 1997, following rhe completion of the merger, we contin­

ued to maintain separate benefit plans for employees of the 

former NYNEX companies. The assets of the BeU Atlantic 

and NYNEX pension and savings plans have been commin­

gled in a master trust. The following disclosures present finan­

cial information for the combined BeU Atlantic and NYNEX 

benefit plans using weighted-average assumptions to calculate 

benefit costs and obligations. The actuarial assumptions used 

are based on financial market interest rates, past experience, 

and management's best estimate of future benefit changes and 

economic conditions. Changes in these assumptions may 

impact fiiture benefit costs and obligations. 

Effective January I, 1998. we established common pension 
and savings plans benefit provisions for all management 
employees. As a result, continuing NYNEX management 
employees will receive the same benefit levels as previously 
given under Bell Atlantic management plans. Pension and 
other postretirement benefits for our associate employees 
(approximately 70% of our work force) are subject to collec­
tive bargaining agreements, and no changes were bargained in 
1997. Modifications in associate benefits have been bargained 
from time to time, and we may also periodically amend the 
benefits in the management plans. Substantive commitments 
for future amendments are reflected in the pension costs and 
benefit obligations. 

Pension Pians 

We sponsor noncontributory defined benefit pension plans 
covering substantiaUy all of our management and associate 
employees. Benefits for associate employees are determined by a 
flat dollar amount per year of service according to job classifica­
tion. Management employees are covered under cash balance 
plans with pension benefits determined by compensation cred­
its related to age and service and interest credits on individual 
account balances. The cash balance plan covering the NYNEX 
management employees was adopted on September 5, 1997. 
with an elective date of December 31, 1997. The cash balance 
plan covering all other management employees became effective 
on December 31, 1995. Prior to this change, the pension bene­
fit for management employees was based on a stated percenrj^e 
of adjusted career average earnings. 

Under the cash balance plan, each management employee's 
opening account balance was determined by converting the 
accrued pension benefit as of che effective date to a lump-sum 
amount based on the prior plan's provisions. The lump-sum 
value was then multiplied by a transition factor based on age 
and service to arrive at the opening balance. 

Our objective in ftjnding the plans is to accumulate funds ar a 

relatively stable level over participants' working lives so that 

benefits are fully funded at retirement. Plan assets consist 

principally of investments in domestic and foreign corporate 

equity securities, U.S. and foreign government and corporate 

debt securities and real estate. 

A summary of the components of pension cost is as foUows: 

Years Ended December 31. 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Actual return on 

plan assets 
Net amortization 

and deferral 
Net periodic 

pension income 
Retirement incentive 

cost, net 
Other gains, net 
Total pension cost 

1997 

$ 355.8 
1,877.3 

(6.202.7) 

3.575.6 

(394.0) 

397.1 
-

$ 3.1 

(Dollars in Millions) 

1996 

$ 398.6 
1,831.2 

' • 

(4.215.4) 

1.827.0 

(158.6) 

216.3 
-

$ 57.7 

1995 

$ 343.8 
1,808.4 

(5,638.5) 

3.292.1 

(194.2) 

422.3 
(103.9) 

$ 124.2 

The change in net periodic pension income from year to year 
was caused by a number of variables, including changes in 
actuarial assumptions (see table below), favorable returns on 
plan assets and plan amendments. We recognized retirement 
incentive costs in 1997, 1996 and 1995 as a result of work 
force reductions primarily through retirement incentives 
offered to management and associate employees of the former 
NYNEX companies. The costs were comprised of special 
termination benefits charges of $687.7 million in 1997, 
$481.3 mUlion in 1996 and $723.5 miUion in 1995. These 
amounts were partially offset by curtailment gains of $221.8 
mUlion in 1997, $174.4 million in 1996 and $222.7 million 
in 1995 and by severance reserves of $68.8 miUion in 1997, 
$90.6 miUion in 1996 and $78.5 miUion in 1995. The sever­
ance reserves "^ere established in 1993 and transferred to the 
pension liability as employees accepted the retirement incen­
tive offer. Other gains represent net curtailment gains associat­
ed with the termination of pension benefits for certain 
employees in 1995. 
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Note !6continued 

The following table shows the pension plans' funded status 

reconciled with amounts in our consolidated balance sheets: 

Ar December 31, 

Actuarial present value of benefit obi 

Benefits based on service to date 

and present salary levels 

Vested S 

Nonvested 

Accumulated benefit obligation 

Additional benefits related 

to estimated future salary levels 

Projected benefit obligation 

Fair value of plan assets 

1997 

gations; 

23.889.3 

1.923.3 

25,812.6 

919.4 

26.732.0 

35,253.0 

(Dollars in Millions) 

$ 

1996 

21,389.6 

2.192.7 

23.582.3 

1,353.4 

24,935.7 

31.075.5 

Plan assets in excess of 
projected benefit obligation 

Unrecognized net gain 
Unamortized prior service cost 
Unamortized net transition asset 
Addirional minimum liabilicy 

for nonqualified plans 
Accrued pension obligation 

(8.521.0) 
9,521.4 
1,493.1 

439.0 

42.2 

(6,139.8) 
7,025.4 
1,465.9 

520.9 

24.7 

2,974.7 2.897.1 

We used the following weighted-average assumptions to 

calculate pension costs and benefit obligations: 

At December 31 1997 1996 1995 

Discount rate 
Rate of future increases 

in compensation levels 

7.25% •• 7.75% 7.25% 

4.00 i 4.40 4.40 

In addition, the expected long-term rate of return on plan 

assets used to calculate pension costs for 1997. 1996 and 

1995 was 8.90%, 8.60% and 8.60%. 

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions 

Our postretirement health and life insurance benefit plans 

cover substantially all of our management and associate 

employees. Postretirement health benefit costs are based on 

comprehensive medical and dental plan provisions. 

Postretirement life insurance costs are based on annual basic 

pay at retirement. 

In 1996, we restructured certain postretirement health and 

life insurance obligations and assets to create a single plan. 

The remaining postretirement benefits continue to be provid­

ed by separate plans. The restructure did not affect plan bene­

fits or postretirement benefit costs or obligations. 

We fund the postretirement health and life insurance benefits 

of current and fiiture rerirees. Plan assets consist principally of 

investments in domestic and foreign corporate equity securi­

ties and U.S. Government and corporate debt securities. 

Postretirement benefit cost includes the following 

components: 

Years Ended December 31. 1997 
(Dollars in Millions] 

1996 1995 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Actual return on 

plan assets 
Net amortization 

and deferral 
Net periodic 

postretirement 
benefit cost 

Retirement incentive 
cost, net 

Other gains, net 
Total postrerirement 

benefit cost 

$ 98.4 ; $ 122.5 $ 107.8 
626.3 ; 653.0 682.8 

(673.3) 

433.9 

(358.3) (525.3) 

207.1 423.4 

485.3 

89.5 

624.3 

4.4 

688.7 

71,6 
(17.2) 

$ 574.8 $ 628.7 $ 743-1 

The change in net periodic postretirement benefit cost from 

year to year was caused by a number of variables, including 

changes in actuarial assumptions (see table below), changes in 

plan provisions, favorable medical claims experience and 

favorable returns on plan assets. We recognized retirement 

incentive costs in 1997, 1996 and 1995 as a result of work 

force reductions primarily through rerirement incentives 

offered to management and associate employees of the former 

NYNEX companies. The costs were comprised of special 

termination benefit chaises of $60.0 miUion in 1997, $39.8 

million in 1996 and $72.9 million in 1995 and curtailment 

losses of $139.5 miUion in 1997. $95.7 million in 1996 and 

$45.0 million in 1995. These amounts were partially offset by 

postretirement medical benefit reserves of $110.0 million in 

1997. $131.1 million in 1996 and $46.3 million in 1995. 

The postretirement medical reserves were established in 1993 

and transferred to the postrerirement benefit liability as 

employees accepted the rerirement incentive offer. Other 

gains represent net curtailment gains associated with the 

termination of postretirement benefits for certain employees 

in 1995. 
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Note 16 continued 

The following table shows the postretirement benefit plans' 

funded status reconciled with the amounts recognized in our 

consolidated balance sheets: 

AtDt iber3l, 

(Dollars in Millions) 

1997 I 1996 

Accumulated postretirement 

benefit obUgation (APBO): 

Retirees 

Fuily eligible plan 

participants 

Other active plan 

participants 

Total APBO 

Fair value of plan assets 

APBO in excess of plan assets 

Unrecognized net gain 

Unamortized prior service cost 

Accrued postretirement 

benefit obligation 

Tocal APBO by plan: 

Health and welfare 

Life insurance 

Toral 

Fair value of plan 

assets by plan: 

Health and welfare 

Life insurance 

Total 

6,018.2 

884.7 

5.683.7 

877.3 

1.949.3 
8.852.2 
3,824.6 
5.027,6 
1.512.1 
(192.3) 

S 6.347.4 

2.056.2 
8.617.2 
3,209.9 
5,407.3 
1,061.7 
(224.7) 

$ 6,244.3 

.957.9 

894.3 
$ 8,852.2 

7,815.1 

802.1 
8,617.2 

3,003.7 

820.9 

3,324.6 

2,516.4 

693.5 

3,209.9 

We used the following weighted-average assumptions to calcu­

late the postretirement benefit costs and benefit obligations: 

At December 31, 1997 1996 1995 

7.25% 1 
1 

4.00 i 

6.50 

5.00 1 
i 

3.50 ' 
3.00 

7.75% 

4.40 

8.30 

4.75 

3.75 
3.50 

7.25% i 

4.40 

10.30 1 
1 

4.75 

4.00 i 
3-50 1 

Discount race 

Rate of future increases in 

compensation levels 

Medical cost trend race: 

For che year ending 

Ultimate (year 2001 for 1997, 

2008 for 1996 and 1995} 

Dental cost trend race: 

For the year ending 

Ultimate (year 2002) 

In addition, che expected long-term rare of return on plan 

assets used to calculate postretirement benefit costs for 1997, 

1996 and 1995 was 8.70%. 8.35% and 8.35%. The medical 

cost trend rate significantly affects the reported postretirement 

benefit costs and benefit obligations. A one-percentage-point 

increase in the assumed health care cost trend rates for each 

future year would have increased 1997 postretirement benefit 

costs by $59.3 million and would have increased the accumu­

lated postretirement benefit obligation as of December 3 1 , 

1997 bv $649,6 mUlion. 

Retirement Incentives 

In 1993, we announced a restructuring plan which included 

an accrual of approximately $1.1 biUion (pre-tax) for sever­

ance and postretirement medical benefits under a force reduc­

tion plan. Beginning in 1994, retirement incentives have been 

offered as a voluntary means of implementing substantially all 

of the work force reductions planned in 1993. 

Since the inception of the retirement incentive program, addi­

tional costs totaled approximately $1,957 million (pre-tax) as 

of December 31 . 1997. comprised of $513 million in 1997, 

$236 miUion in 1996, $514 miUion in 1995 and $694 

million in 1994. These costs include the pension and postre­

tirement benefit amounts shown in the tables above, as well as 

vacation pay costs and other items. As described above, the 

retirement incentive costs have been reduced by severance and 

postretirement medical benefits reserves established in 1993 

and transferred to the pension and postretirement benefits 

liabilities as employees accepted the retirement incentive offer. 

As of December 31 , 1997. the remaining reserves associated 

with the 1993 restructuring plan were approximately 539 

million for employee severance and $54 miUion for postretire­

ment medical benefits. 

As of December 31 , 1997, employees who have left the busi­

ness under the rerirement incentive program totaled 19.275, 

consisting of 9,329 management employees and 9,946 associ­

ate employees. The rerirement incentive program covering 

m a n ^ e m e n t employees ended on March 3 1 , 1997 and the 

program covering associate employees is scheduled to end in 

August 1998. 

Savings Plans and Employee 5tocl< Ownership Pians 

We sponsor savings plans to provide opportunities for eligible 

employees to save for retirement on a tax-deferred basis and to 

encourage employees to acquire and maintain an equity inter­

est in our company. Under these plans, we match a certain 

percentage of eligible employee contributions with shares of 

our common stock. We maintain three leveraged employee 

stock ownership plans (ESOPs), In 1989, two levcrs^ed 

ESOPs were established to purchase our common stock and 

fund our matching contribution. In 1990, NYNEX estab­

lished a leveraged ESOP to fund matching contributions to 

management employees and purchased shares of NYNEX 

common stock. At the date of the merger, NYNEX common 

stock outstanding was converted to Bell Atlanric shares using 

an exchange rario of 0.768 of a share of BeU Atlantic common 

stock to one share of NYNEX common stock. 
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Note 16 continued 

' The leveraged ESOP trusts established in 1989 were ftinded 

i by the issuance of $790.0 million in ESOP Senior Notes. The 

• annual interest rate on the ESOP Senior Notes is 8.17%. The 

ESOP Senior Notes are payable in semiannual installments, 

; which began on January 1, 1990 and end in the year 2000. 

The NYNEX leveraged ESOP trust was established through a 

company loan of $450 million, the proceeds ofwhich were 

used to purchase common shares of NYNEX stock held in 

, treasury. NYNEX issued and guaranteed $450 million of 

: 9.55% Debentures, the proceeds ofwhich were principally 

' used to repurchase common shares in the open market. The 

\ Debentures require annual payments of principal and are due 

: on May 1, 2010. Interest payments are due semiannually. The 

leveraged ESOP trusts repay the debt, including interest, with 

funds from our contributions to the ESOP trusts, as well as 

dividends received on unallocated and allocated shares of 

common stock. 

The obligations of the leveraged ESOP trusts, which we guar­
antee, are recorded as Long-term Debt and the offeetting 
deferred compensation is classified as a reduction of 
Shareowners' Investment. As the ESOP trusts make principal 
payments, we reduce the long-term debt balance. The 
deferred compensation balance is reduced by the amount of 
employee compensation recognized as the ESOP shares are 
allocated to participants. 

Common stock is allocated from the leveraged ESOP trusts 

based on the proportion of principal and interest paid on 

ESOP debt in a year to che remaining principal and interest 

due over the term of the debt. At December 31, 1997, the 

number of unallocated and allocated shares of common stock 

was 11.2 miUion and 13.9 miUion. All leveraged ESOP 

shares are included in earnings per share computations. 

We recognize leveraged ESOP cost based on the modified 

shares allocated method for the leveraged ESOP trusts that 

held securities before December 15, 1989 and the shares allo­

cated method for the leveraged ESOP trust that held securi­

ties after December 15, 1989. 

ESOP cost and trust activity consist of the following 

Years Ended December 31. 1997 
(Dollars in Millions) 

1996 1995 

Compensation $ 105,4 | S 93-5 S 88.4 
Interest incurred 57.0 | 69.4 84.4 
Dividends (36.9) ! (42.1) (47.0) 
Other crust earnings and j 

expenses, nee (.5) (.2) (.5) 
Nccleveragcd ESOP cost 125.0 j 120.6 125,3 
Additional (reduced) j 

ESOP cost (2.3) I 14.6 19.2 
Total ESOP cost S 122.7 ^ $ 135̂ 2 $ 144.5 

Dividends received for 
debt service $ 66.7 ' S 68.3 $ 69.7 

Total company 
contributions to leveraged 
ESOP crusts $ 136.5 $ 141.S S 152,3 

In addition to the ESOPs described above, we maintain 

savings plans for associate employees of the former NYNEX 

companies and certain other subsidiaries. Compensation 

expense associated with these savings plans was $71.1 million 

in 1997, $69.1 million in 1996 and $62.8 miUion in 1995. 

n.masss^ m» 

The components of income tax expense from continuing 

operations are presented in the foUowing table: 

^e.irs Fndccl DeL^'niber .M . 

Current: 
Federal 
State and local 

Total 
Deferred: 

Federal 
State and local 

Total 
Investment tax credits 
Other credits 
Total income tax expense 

1997 ! 
1 

$1,207.4 
222.2 

1.429.6' 

279.2 ! 
(42.3): 
236.9 ; 
(38.1): 
(99.2) 

$1,529,2 

(Ctoll 

1996 

$1,450.2 
195.4 

1.645.6 

235.9 
48,3 

284.2 
(57.3) 
(90.2) 

$1,782.3 

ars in Millions) 

1995* 

$1,602.3 
234.8 

1,837,1 

(65.1) 
51.3 

(13.8) 
(70.5) 
(43.9) 

$1,708.9 

Docs noc include the effect of investment tax credit araortiiation thiic 
was accelerated in connection with ihc discontinued application of 
SFAS No. 71. 
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Note l7conti> 

During 1997, two states in our operaring region enacted 

significant changes in their tax laws. In New Jersey, a law was 

enacted that repealed the gross receipts tax applicable to tele­

phone companies and extended the net-income-based corpo-

! rate business rax to include telephone companies. This 

j resulted in a decrease in deferred state income tax expense of 

j $75.4 million. In Maryland, a law was enacted that changed 

I che determination of taxable income. This resulted in an 

I increase in deferred state income tax expense of $8.3 million. 
j 

I The foUowing table shows the principal reasons for the differ-

I ence berween the effective income tax rate and the statutory 

• federal income tax rate: 

Years Ended December 31. 1997 1996 1995 

Statutory federal 
income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35-

Investment tax credits (.6) (.8) (1.1) 
Race differential applied to 

reversing timing differences - | - (.2) 
State income taxes, net of j 

federal tax benefits 2.6 1 3.1 3.9 
Other, net 1,4 | (1.0) J _ 
Effective income tax rate 38.4% \ 36.3% 37.7% 

Deferred taxes arise because of differences in the book and 
tax bases of certain assets and UabiUties. Significant compo­
nents of deferred tax liabilities (assets) are shown in the 
following table: 

At December 31, 1997 
(Dollars in Millions) 

1996 

$ 3,564.5 
2.225.3 

329.9 
1,044.2 
7,163.9 

$ 3,646.8 
2,022.0 

244.0 
1,024.3 
6,937.1 

(4,065.0) 
(94.3) 

(117.4) 
(1,114.8) 

(4,021.1) 
(103.9) 

(90.6) 
(1,060.1) 

$ 

(5,391.5) : 
79.4 ' 

1.851.8 ' $ 

(5,275.7) 
44.8 

1,706.2 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Depreciation 
Leveraged leases 
Partnership investments 
Other 

Deferred tax assets: 
Employee benefits 
Investment tax credits 
Allowance for uncollectible 

accounts receivable 
Other 

Valuation allowance 
Net deferred tax liability 

Deferred tax assets include approximately $3,125.8 mUlion at 

December 31, 1997 and $2,740.2 million at December 31, 

1996 related to postretirement benefit costs recognized under 

SFAS No. 106, "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement 

Benefits Other Than Pensions." This deferred tax asset will 

gradually be realized over the estimated lives of current 

retirees and employees. 

The valuation allowance primarily represents tax benefits of 
capital loss carryforwards, certain state NOL carryforwards 
and other deferred tax assets which may expire unutilized. 
During 1997, the valuation allowance increased $34.6 
million. This increase was primarily a result of a change in tax 
planning strategies. 

18. Additiona Financial Information 

The tables below provide additional financial information related co our consolidated financial statements: 

income Statement Information 

Years Ended December 31. 1997 .. 1996 
(Dollars in .MiltionsJ 

1995 

Interest expense incurred, net of amounts capitalized 
Capitalized interest 
Advertising expense 

$ 1,275.2 
81.0 

397.0 

1,124.1 
128.5 
357.5 

$ 1.305.0 
73.2 

314.8 

Interest expense incurred includes $45.2 million in 1997. 

$42.1 million in 1996 and $40.4 million in 1995 related co 

our lease financing business. Such interest expense is classified 

as Other Operating Expenses. 
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Note 18 continued 

Balance Sheet Information 

At December 31. 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Accrued vacation pay 
Accrued salaries and wages 
Interest payable 
Accrued taxes 

Total 
Other current liabilities: 

Advance billings and customer deposits 
Dividend payable 
Other 

Total 

Cash Flow information 

Years Ended December 31, 

1997 

$ 5.966.4 

(Dollars in Millions) 

1996 

3,575.4 
1,089.7 

618.1 
279.9 
245.8 
157.5 

$ 3,513.1 
1.357.6 

611.7 
236.7 
230.0 
211.5 

6.160.6 

$ 643.0 
597.8 
114.2 

$ 1,355.0 

$ 638.3 
574.8 
92.0 

$ 1.305.1 

1997 1996 

(Dollars ia Millions) 

1995 

Cash paid during the year for: 
Income taxes, net of amounts refunded 
Interest, net of amouncs capitalized 

Noncash investing and financing activiries; 
Acquisition of plant under capital leases 
Acquisition of plant through mortgage assumption 
Common stock issued for performance-based share plans 
Common stock issued for dividend reinvestment plan 
Common stock issued and debt assumed for acquisitions 
Noncash investment in unconsolidated businesses 
Contribution of net assets to unconsolidated businesses 
Accrued contributions to partnerships 

,402.8 j 
,215.4 1 

1 
1 

11.4 1 
i 

10.0 i 

21.9 ' 

681.8 1 
73.0 ; 

1,667.9 
1,162.5 

16.4 
16.0 
13.1 

79.2 

9.0 

220.1 

$ I M S A 
1,307.5 

14.3 

8.1 
106.1 

19.0 

16.4 
139.8 

19. i Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited 

(Dollars in Millions. Except Per Share AmountO 

1 
i 

i (.J^uarter Ended 
1 
i 

' 1997: 

March 31 
June 30 
September 30* 

; December 31 

1 1996: 
; March 31 
1 June 30 
i September 30 

December 31 

Opcracing 

Revenues 

$7,416.5 
7,707.8 
7.373.9 
7,695.7 

$ 7,044.0 
7,329.4 
7,376.6 
7,405-2 

Operating 

Intome 

$1,458.5 
1,847.9 

421.0 
1,614.1 

$ 1,346.2 
1,599.2 
1.667.2 
1.466.0 

$ 

S 

Income 

Amounc 

698.2 
896.8 
(80.1) 
940.0 

690.0 
829.8 
871.8 
737.3 

(Loss) Before Cunuilativc 
ill Accounting Print 

Per Share 

$ 

$ 

-Basic 

.90 
1.16 
(.10) 
1.21 

.90 
1.07 
1.13 
.95 

EUea 
iple 

Per .Sh 

o i O ange 

are-Diluted 

$ 

$ 

.89 
1.14 
(.10) 
1.19 

.88 
1.06 
1.12 
.94 

Incn 

$ 

$ 

Ncr 

rne (t,t)S.sl 

698.2 
896.8 
(SO. I) 
940.0 

963.1 
829.8 
871.8 
737.3 

* Results of operations for the third quarrer of 1997 include merger-related costs (see Note I). 

Wc restated results nf operations for 1996 and the first and second quarters of 1997 as a result of our mci^r with NYNEX which was accounted for 
as a pooling of ircerests (see Note I). 

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle per common share is computed independently for each quarter and che sum ot :hx 
quarters may not equal the annual amount. 



Board of Directors and Executive Officers 

i Board of Directors 
i 
! Lawrence T. Babbio, Jr. 
i President and Chief Executive Officer ~ Network Group 
I Chairman - Global Wireless Group 
; BeU Atlantic Corporation 

: Richard L Carrion 
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer 
Popular, Inc. 

James G. Cullen 
President and Chief Executive Officer - Telecom Group 
Bell Atlancic Corporation 

Lodewijk J.R. dc Vlnk 
President and Chief Operating Officer 
Warner-Lambert Company 

James H. Gilliam, Jr. 
Executive Vice President and General Counsel 
Beneficial Corporacion 

Stanley P. Goldscein 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 
CNS Corporanon 

Helena L. Kaplan 
Of Counsel 
Skadden, Arps, Slace, Meagher & Flom 

Thomas H. Kean 
President, Drew University 
Former Governor of New Jersey 

Elizabeth T. Kennan 
President Emeritus 
Mount Hoiyoke College 

John F. Maypole 
Managing Partner 
Peach State Real Estate Holding Company 

Joseph Neubauer 
Chairman, arui Chief Executive Officer 
ARAMARK Corporation 

Thomas H. O'Brien 
Chairman arui Chief Executive Officer 
PNC Bank Corp. 

Eckhard Pfeiffer 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
Compaq Computer Corporacion 

Hugh B. Price 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
Nacional Urban Le^ue 

Rozannc L. RJdgway 
Former Assistant Secretary of State for Europe and Canada 

Frederic V. Salerno 
Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer/ 
Strategy and Business Development 
Bell Adantic Corporation 

Ivan G. Seidenberg 
Vice Chairman, President and Chief Operating Officer 
BeU Adantic Corporacion 

Walter V.Shipley 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 
The Chase Manhaccan Corporacion 

Raymond W. Smich 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 
Bell Adantic Corporacion 

John R. Stafford 
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer 
American Home Products Corporation 

Morrison DeS. Webb 
Executive Vice President — External Affairs and Corporate 
Communications 
Bell Atlantic Corporacion 

Shirley Young 
Vice President, China Strategic Development 
General Motors Corporation 

Executive Officers 

Raymond W. Smich 
Chairman of the Beard and Chief Executive Officer 

Ivan G. Seidenberg 
Vice Chairman. President and Chief Operating Officer 

Lawrence T. Babbio. Jr. 
President and Chief Executive Officer - Network Group 
Chairman - Global Wireless Group 

James G. Cullen 
President and Chief Executive Officer- Telecom Group 

Jacquelyn B. Gaces 
Vice President - Ethics and Corporate Compliance 

Alexander H. Good 
Executive Vice President - Strategy and Corporate Development 

Melvin Meskin 
Vice President - Controller 

Patrick F.X. Mulhcarn 
Vice President— Corporate Communications 

Donald J. Sacco 
Executive Vice President - Human Resources 

Frederic V. Salerno 
Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer/ 
Strategy and Business Development 

Dorecn A. Toben 
Vice President and Chi^Financial Officer - Telecom Group 

Chester N. Watson 
Vice President - Internal Auditing 

Morrison DcS. Webb 
Executive Vice President - External Affairs and Corporate 
Communications 

Ellen C Wolf 
Vice President - Treasurer 

James R. Young 
Executive Vice President- General Counsel 
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Investor Information 

Annual Shareowners Meeting 

May 1. 1998 -2 p.m. 

The Playhouse Theatre 

Wilmington, Delaware 

Shareowner Services 

Questions about stock-related matters including account 

changes, stock transfers and other requests for assistance with 

regard to your stock ownership should be directed to our 

transfer agent, Boston EquiServe: 

BeU Atlantic Shareowner Services 
Boston EquiServe 

c/o BankBoston 

P.O. Box 8038 
Boston, MA 02266-8038 

Phone 800 631-2355 

Persons outside the U.S. may caU collect: 781 575-3994 

Persons using a telecommunications device for the deaf 

(TDD) may call: 800 829-8259 

Shareowners with e-mail addresses can send inquiries to; 

Shareholder-EquiServe@EquiServe.com 

Bell Atlantic contacts: 

Peter Crawford Vice President - Investor Relations and 

Shareowner Services 

212 395-1955 

Maria Dominguez Director - Shareowner Services 

212 395-1846 

Bell Atiantic Direct Invest 

Bell Atlantic offers a direct stock purchase and share owner­

ship plan. The plan allows currenr and new investors to 

purchase Bell Atlantic stock conveniently and economically. 

To receive a Plan Prospectus and enrollment form, contact 

Boston EquiServe. 

Dividend Direct Deposit Service 

Bell Atlantic offers an electronic funds transfer service to 

shareowners wishing to deposit dividends directly into check­

ing or savings accounts on dividend payment dates. 

For more information, contact Boston EquiServe. 

Shareowner News 

For earnings highlights, dividend announcements and 

other pertinent information, you may caU our newsiine: 

800 BEL-5595 

Common Stock Price and Dividend Information 

• Ticker symbol (NYSE): BEL 

• Shareowners of record at December 31,1997: 1,233,500 

Cash 

Maricet Price Dividend 
High Low Declared 

1997 

First Quarter 
Second Quarter 
Third Quarter 
Fourth Quarter 

1996 

First Quarter 
Second Quarter 
Third Quarter 
Fourth Quarter 

71V, 

78 Vi 

8IV,6 

91V, 

74% 

67'A 

64 

68 

59'A 

56'A 

68 
74V* 

61'A 

59 

55% 

58'/= 

$ 

$ 

.74 

.74 

.77 

.77 

.72 

.72 

.72 

.72 

' Includes payment of $.005 per common share for redemption of rights 
under our Shareholder Rights Plan. 

Form 10-K 

To receive a copy of the 1997 Bell Atlantic Annual Report on 

Form 10-K, which is filed with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission, contact: 

Bell Atlantic Investor Relations 

1095 Avenue of the Americas 

36th Floor 

New York, New York 10036 

Phone: 212 395-1525 

Fax: 212 921-2917 

Equal Opportunity Policy 

The Company has over 140,000 employees and maintains a 

long-standing commitment to equal opportunity and valuing 

the diversity of its employees, suppliers, and customers. 

The Company strives to create a working environment free of 

discrimination with respect to age, color, disability, gender, 

national origin, race, religion, citizenship status, marital 

status, sexual orientation, disabled veteran and veteran of the 

Vietnam era status. 

For a summary of annual profile reports filed with the EEOC, 

contact Mr. Charles Christian, 1717 Arch Street, 28th Floor 

South, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103. 

Website information 

i Corporate 

Investor Information 

www.BellAclantic.com 

www.BellAtlantic.com/invest 
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